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St James’s Place plc s the FTSE 250 hsted

parent cornpany of the St Jarnes’s Place Wealth
Management Group The Group provides high
quality wealth management advice, investment
management and related services to businesses

and mndividuals across the UK, through 1ts
representatives—The St James’s Place Partnership

St James’s Place Wealth Management Group
manages £44 hilhon of chent funds.

At the heart of the sustained growth in our
business 1s the importance we place on
maintamning long lasting relationships with our
Partners and chents and serving them well Our
approach was once agam publicly endorsed during
the last twelve months, when St James's Place
won several industry awards that were voted for
by chents, members of the public and fellow

mdustry peers.
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Financial Highlights

FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

£44.3 billion

PROFIT BEFORE SHAREHOLDER TAX

£190.7 million

+27%
2012 £34 8 talhon

+42%
2012 £134 6 mulhon

£4.3 billion £327.2 million
128% +18%

2012 £3 35 ilbon

2012 £276 8 mlhon

£6.8 billion £462.7 million
+21% +26%

2012 £5 6 hllion

2012 £365 9 milhon

PARTNERSHIP NUMBERS CASH RESULT

1,958 £168.8 million
+9.5% +84%

2012 1,788 2012 £91 7 milhion

Visit us online

Our website and 1Pad app contains a full investor relation
section with news, reports, webcasts, financial calendar

and share price information.
www sjp co.uk click on Investor Relations
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Chief Executive’s Statement

David Bellamy
Chief Executive

NET INFLOY OF FUNDS

£4.3 billion

(2012 £3 35 balhon)

FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

£44.3 billion

(2012 £34 8 billion)

2 013 will be remembered as one of the most significant years
1n our history Quute apart from the strong performance in all
aspects of our business, 2t was also a year 10 which we became a
wholly independent FTSE company for the hrst time, having
attracted a number of new mstitutional shareholders as the
Lloyds Banking Group (LBG) sold their 57% holding n us

As well as thanlang 1 loyds for thewr support in recent years, [ would
like to thank our existung shareholders who have mcreased ther
holdings 1 us T would also like to take this opportunsty to welcome
our new sharehelders and thank them for investing 1n us

It was also a year in which we made some 1mportant decisions
for the future, affecting our back office infrastructure and our
distribution capabilities I comment further on both these
imtiatives later mn this statement

Agamst this backdrop, and with the benefit of improved
sentiment for investments, 1 am very pleased to report another
record year that saw our funds under management increase by
£9 5 bullyon to a new record ugh of £44 3 billion

As L have said previously, there 15 a reassuring consistency about
our business, which 1s most clearly demonstrated by the sustained
growth 1n our funds under management over the last five years
Over this period of changing econemic and market condhtions,
funds under management have grown by a compound 22% p a
through new business and mnvestment performance 10 £44 brthon
at the end of 2013

New Business and Funds Under Management

New single investments of £7 2 billion were 22% higher than
2012, with clients choosing to invest broadly evenly across cur
hife, pension and umt trust/ISA 1nvestment tax wrappers
Alongaide those new 1nvestments, our Partners once agun did an
excellent job of looking after chents and this 15 demonstrated by
the continued strong retennion of existing funds enabling us to
report net inflows of £4 3 hillion, up 28% on the previous year
As I mentigned above, those net mflows, together with very
healthy growth 1n most equity markets, enabled us to report
growth n funds under management of 27% to £44 3 billion

Clients

At the heart of this sustamned growth 1s the importance we place
on mawntaiming long lasting relationships with our Partners and
cltents and serving them well

We are very clear that 1f we do this well, we will mamtamn our strong
retentron record and attract new clients and mvestments through
referrals and introductions That was further evidenced last year

by the introduction of over 45,000 dlients to St James's Place

Registered No 03183415
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We also regularly seek feedback from our chents and Partners
For example, each year we commission the independent research
speczalists, Ledbury Research, to conduct a review amongst a
random sample of clrents Whilst there 1s always room for
mprovement, the results of their latest review, carried outat the
end of 2013, were very encouraging with clients reporting higher
levels of overall satisfaction, levels of service, communicatton and
advocacy relative to both the feedback given in previous years and
the wider marketplace

Such research, together with the direct contact we maintain with
clients, reassures us that our chents value the importance we
place on lookang after their wealth through our distinct approach

to 1mnvestment ma.uagement

Investment Management

Over the last 12 manths, the slowly improving economic
backdrop and the continued low interest rates have been key to
the growth m mvestment markets m the UK, US and Europe,
albest at the expense of savers in tradiional bank and building
SOCtety accounts

In the UK, the combination of econome policy and, 1n
particular, of keeping interest rates low for so long, appears to be
finally bearing fruit, with signs that the economy 1s L mproving
The key 1ndicators on growth and employment are looking more
positive now than at any time 1n the last five years

Stock markets 1n the major economues performed strongly last
year, with the FT'SE 100 index up 14% n capital growth, 19%
with dividends remvested Shightly hagher growth was seen n the
US and Europe, enabling 1nvestors in equities to enjoy unproved
returns as companies continue to return to stronger growth and
profitability, the maimn exception being the lower growth seenn
stock markets of the emerging economies and the Far East That
said, the Japanese stock market had an excellent year, making
sigmficant gains, albeit these were offset somewhat by the
weakness of the currency

Aganst this backdrop, 5t James's Place equity based and
managed funds also did very well last year, providing strong
double-digit returns for the majority of our clients who were
wnvested in them The general sentument toward 1nvestment today
15 far more positive than 1t has been for 2 number of years and,

at a ine when access to trusted advice 1s increasingly m short
supply, I believe our Partnersare very well positioned to provide
haghly personalised advice to investors on how best to achieve
their investment objectives

The St James’s Place Partnership

In 2013, alongside the impressive financial results, we continued
to attract high quality adwisers to jon us The near 13% mncrease
1n the size of the Partnershup to 1,258 was very encouraging and
bears testimony to the outstanding reputation that we have builkt
for both the quahty of our chent propesition and the level of
support and development our Partners receive Increasmng the
number of Partners and providing them with the tools and
support to deliver hugh quahity outcomes for clients 1s one of the
key dravers to our achieving our long term growth objectives

Whilst we are confident that we can continue to attract
established Ingh quality advisers, we are conscous of the fact that
very few compames are 1nvesting 1n the development of new
advisers In recogmtion of this, we have nvested 1n our new
Academy programme Re-launched 1n 2012, we saw a further

60 students join the Academy last year, bringing the total to over
100 Alongside them, we also saw 40 Next Generauon students
(sons and daughters of existing Partners) began their careers with
us via the Academy If all goes according to plan, we can expect
around 50 or so students to graduate as ether Partners or
advisers during the course of the next year We also aim to
attract a further 50-60 new entrants to the Academy during
2014 and are planning to expand the programme through the
introduction of regional based Academues, the first of which will
begin 1n Manchester later this year

We now offer the most comprehensive geographic access to wealth
management advice i the UK Notwithstanding the fact that we
remam very focused on our UK business, we see an opportunity to
expand our services overseas to the expatriate community Thisis
an area that we have been exploring for some tune and [am pleased
to confirm that we arc close to completing the acquistion of a
well-respected adviser business, which has an exasting team of
advisers 1n Singapore, Hong Kong and Shangha specialising n the
provision of financial advice to members of the expatrrate
community 1n the Far East This 1s an excting development for us
that we beheve sits perfectly wath our comprehensive svestment
approach and, subject to regulatory approval, the acquisition should
be finalised 1n the first few months of 2014

‘Back-office’ Administration

In 2013, we embarked on one of the mast significant
developments in aur back office for some time The first step
combines our two major back offices under one management, and
that was completed at the start of 2014 IFDS, which already
admusters cur umt trust and [SA business, has now taken on the
management of the team i Cragforth who admmster our other
onshore 1nvestment business

The second step wall be to putm place one unified, chient-centric
computer system that will be available to all the back-offices,
enabling them to delver 1mproved service and improved
effiency for the business
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Financial Performance
I am pleased to say that the business’s finaneial performance has
beer very positive 1n 2013

On an International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) basis,
profit before shareholder tax increased to £190 7 mullion (2012
£134 6 tmilion)

Our European Embedded Value (EEV) basis operating profit for
2013 was £462 7 rullion (2012 £365 9 nullion) reflecting good
growth i new business and a strong positive experience varanee

The Chief Frnancal Officer’s Report and Finaneal Review, on
pages 12 to 33, provide a comprehensive presentation of the
fingncial resules for the year

Dividend

Leading on from these profit results, we coantinue to see a
growing cash resuit, a trend that 15 expected to continue with the
increasing maturty of funds under management

Consequently, given our angong confidence 1n the profile of the
future cash emergence, we announced at the ime of our mterum
results a 50% increase 1n the 2013 interim dividend and indicated
that the full year dividend would be increased by a sumilar

amount

I am thercfore pleased to confirm the underlying cash result was
up 67% to £139 9 million and, n hne with this statement, we are
pleased to confirm the 50% increase in the final dividend of 9 58p
per share, bringing the full year dividend to 15 96p per share

Furthermore, given our onguing confidence 1n the cash
emergence gong forward, we anticipate a dividend increase in
the range of 30 10 40% 1 2014 Beyond that, we fully intend to
continue with a progressive dividend policy, growing the future
dividend 15 line with the underlying performance of the business

The final dividend for 2013, subject to approval of shareholders at
our AGM, will be paxd on 16 May 2014 to shareholders on the
regster at the close of business on 11 April 2014 and, as with last
year, a Dividend Remvestment Plan (‘DRP’) continues to be
available for shareholders

. Chief Executive’s Statement wanes

Partners and Employees

The strength and continued growth of the business 15 dee 1n no
small part to the hard work and dedication of our Partners, thewr
staff and all of our employces and administration support teams

On behalf of the Board and shareholders, I thank everyone
connected with 8t James's Place for their contribution to these
results and for therr continued enthusizsm, dedication and
commitment

The §t James’ Place Foundation

The 5t James's Place Foundation has always been an important
part of the Group’s culture and we were dehghted to celebrate
the 21st anniversary of the Foundation 1 2013 by rawsing a
further £4 5 mulhon, enabling us to support over 600 charrtable
projects This was very much a collectrve effort by the whole SJP
community, inchiding employees, Partners, supphers and others
connected to S[P [ would like to thank them all for helping to
raise such an impressive sum Further details of our CSR
activities are set out on pages 39 to 45

Qutlook

lam confident that the growth we achieved 1n 2013, m both new
investments and Partner numbers, bodes well for the continued
momentum in our business and for future growth m hne with our
medum term objectives

Yore—.

David Bellamy
Chief Executive
24 February 2014

Registered No 03183415
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Our Business Model and Strategy

QOur Business Model — What do we do?

St James's Place specialises in providing face-to-face advice to
chents through our dedicated advisers, the 5t James’s Place
Partnership, and in managing client wealth with our distinctive
Investment Management Approach We ensure efficient
management of our business through effective outsourcing

of the main admmmistration activities

Our business 1s centred on the UK, attracting clients from the
mass affluent and, increasingly, the bugh net worth markets

Our Partners monitor and review clients’ financial needs over
tizne, adaptang advice where necessary 1n order to ensure that
recommendations remain appropriate The endunng nature of
these relationships 15 particularly important, and 1s founded on
mutual respect and trust This relationship-based approach 1s
greatly valued by cur clients, no more so than 1n the recent period
of financtal uncertainty By focusing on getaing thas nght, we can
support the chient and retan the funds under management over
the long term We also attract new busimess and referrals from
sansfied chents

There 1s an increasning demand for trusted advice from
experienced advisers backed by a strong brand and an orgamsation
winch 1s responsible for all aspects of the service Clients also
value and benefit from our umque Investment Management
Approach We are able to support our delivery to chients (and
therefore shareholders) by extending our focus on strong
relationships to our mnteractions with investment managers and
admimstration providers, thereby ensuring posiuve cutcomes

in these mportant areas of our business as well

Our Business Strategy — Where are we going?
St James’s Place has always pursued a sumnple but effective
strategy for growth, based on
— Development of the Partnership through reermtment of new
adwisers and productivity improvements
Increased actvity mn the Partnership results 1n the extension
of our service to new clients and new funds
— Delvering on our investment proposition
Posiave performance of our Investment Management
Approach delivers growth an funds managed and helps ensure
positive client relationships
— Meeting (and where possible exceeding) the expectations of
our chients
Positive long-term relationships wath clients ensures the
retentron of funds for the long term and results 1n additional
business from exasting clients and referrals to new chents

Measured 1n terms of funds under management, the business

has doubled over the last five years as well asin the five years
preceding that, a rate of growth which we aspire to repeat in the
next five years, subject of course to the vagaries of the markets
We believe that the strength of relationship between our Partners
and our chents, together with our approach to mvestment
management, means we are umguely positioned to continue

to succeed 1n the wealth management market

Registered No 03183415
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The St. James’s Place Partnership
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Members of the $t James’s Place Partnership play the leading
role m delivering our wealth management service to the
“mass-affluent’ market Thus market 1s growing and 1o 2014 there
will be 9 1 mullion UK individuals with between £50,000 and

£5 muthon investable assets Their assets total £1,700 bilhon
Further, 1t 1s estimated this marketplace will grow over the next
four years to 10 7 million 1ndividuals with £2,100 bilbon
investable assets (Source Datamomtor)

AOHPLLIACD

Our Partners, so called because of the way they work 1n
partnership with both thear clients and their colleagues, have,

on average, over 17 years' experience We are pleased that our
Partnershup meludes some of the most expenenced and able
professionals working 1n wealth management today Whilst all

of our Partners are experienced advisers, some have expertise

in specific and highly technical areas [f an indvidual’s
arcumstances require additional expertise, Partners will consult
with, and if necessary introduce, a spectalist colleague Partners
also often work alongside other professional advisers, providing a
complementary service and a fresh perspective

SIIEFIDIY {ppuntry

St James's Flace has chosen to promote our services exclustvely
through the Partnership This reflects the confidence we have in
our Partners’ ability to build and mamtain long-term working
relationships with their clients, and so to be able to provide chents
with sound financial advice However, 1t also provides clients with
clanity of responsibility in relanion to their financial dealings

St James's Place works with our Partners to establish long-term
relationships and take responsihty for the financial needs of

our clients

uonpwmIofur Y10

We beheve estabhishing long-term relationships 1s irnportant, and 1t 1s
a key part of our culture Clients need to be able to place reliance on
financal advice and so, baing able to eall upon the services of an
adviser who understands their individual personal circurnstances 15
unportant By establishing long-term relationships, the adviser can
ensure the advice 1s appropruate and clients wull benefit from a source
of trusted advice as their Ainancial needs evolve over the years Qur
Partners are distributed throughout the Umited Kingdom, enabling
face to face advice relationships to be dehivered to all our clents,
wherever they may be

Finally, we are commutted to supperting our Partners’ ongoung
professional development to ensure that they remain appropriately
qualified, technrcally able and equipped to deliver a first class
service to their clients As a result, we are happy to guarantee the
surtability of the advice that they give when recommending any
of the wealth management products and services provided by
compames i the St James’s Place Wealth Management Group
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Investment Management Approach

)

- tthe heart of the proposition to our chents 1s our investment
management approach

Successful mvestment 15 critcal to future financial well-being,
but 1t 15 a field which presents a umque problem future
performance 1s unpredictable As a result, when clients choose
mvestment managers, no matter how successful, they can never
be sure that they have made the right choice, and even if they
have, 1t may not confinue to be the right choce over the years
to come

We beleve that our approach to investment management
addresses these challenges We do not place chents’ money 1n the
hands of our own team of investment managers, indeed, we have
no investment managers of our own Instead, we are free to
choose any 1nvestment manager trom any fund management firm
anywhere 1n the world

The responsibility of selecting the range of funds and fund
managers that are made available to 5t James's Place clients
at any one time falls upon the St James's Place Investment
Committee, advised by respected independent investment
research consultancies, led by Stamford Assocates

Stamford Assocutes share their extensive research of the global
mnvestment markets with a small number of compames We are
particularly proud to bave them on our team, as St James’s Place
15 the only company they work wath that provides wealth
management advice to private individuals or Trustees

The Investment Committee meets regularly to momtor
performance and conmder detailed reports from cur consultants
and each investment manager Ifa change i the marketplace calls
for the addmon of another manager, the Commuttee w1l select
one Equally, if the Committee’s monitoring activity leads 1o a
loss of confidence 1n the abibity of an existing manager then it
will replace them )

Successful long term investment also depends on judicious
diversification The [nvestment Commuttee provides lustrations
as to bow to do thus through the proviston of Example Portfolios,
which combine varigus managers’ funds 1o given proportions
depending on the broad investment objective Ultmately,
however, the right solution for each chent can only be achieved
through the face-to-face advice process, whach 15 the
responsibility of the Partner concerned

Registered No 03183415
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Long-Term Client Relationships

Putting the client at the centre of everything we do 15 core to our
culture and means we seek to run a genunely client-focused
business Through sur relationship-based advice service, we alm
to help chients manage their wealth n a way which reflects their
personal arcumstances This approach has allowed us to develop
long-term relationships, founded on trust, with many of

our clients

We achreve this primanly through the activity of the St James’s
Place Partnership (see page 7) and their ability to provide an
individualised service to each of our chients Our Partners
recognise that no one chent’s objectives or circumstances are
the same as another and so the advice must be tarlored The
relationshup between Partner and client 15 founded on mutual
respect and trust, and the emphass s on building and maintaining
a long-term relanonship Our hagh standards are mamntained

and remnforced by the lgh expectations that members of the
Partnership have of eack other Asa result, clients often continue
the worlang relationshup with their Partner over many years,
appreciating a source of trusted advice as their financial needs
evolve over the years

Given the importance of the Partner-chent relationship, we are
quite proud of the positive results we receive m our annual chent
survey, conducted by Ledbury Research, where we consistently
outperform the marketplace on all core satisfaction metrics In
our 2013 client survey, 32% of chents rated their satisfaction level
at ten out of ten and 86% of chents agreed that we provided
excellent service 81% of clients were likely to recommend

St James’s Plage to others

The followng comments come from some recent client research
1n response to the question ‘i there anything you would like to
add with regard to feedback on 5t James’s Place’

‘I’'m just totally happy I wouldn’t recommend them to other
peaple 1f I weren’t Recommendatzons ¢an backfire, so you have
to know 1t's good ’

‘What they’ve got right 1s their rapport with their chents, 1t's
on the right Jevel. I work with another filnancal company and
they seem a bit condescending, whereas St. James’s Place has
the right balance ’

‘My St James’s Place Partner s a gentleman, whom I can’t
recommend highly enough He 15 someone I go to before I make
any form of decision, 1 my personal affairs not yust my
finanaial affarrs He 1s ahways attentive to my needs even

when F'm not wuvesting with St James’s Place, he 1s always
cancerned, the net effect of that is that when I do mnvest then
St James’s Place gets a big chunk of it’

‘I find 1t an excellent company and the Partner is first class
P've got no problem with them He's got a very good attitude,
he’s friendly, he comes round and visits us when we ask

I honestly couldn’t ask for anybody better”’

The success of our approach 1s also evident from the fact that
over 90% of pew 1vestment 15 estimated to come from existing
chents or from referrals and troductions from them Further,
once clients have invested, they tend to stay mvested and we are
particularly pleased with the consistent, year on year, low rate
of surrender of funds (typically less than 5%)

Despite recerving much positive feedback from clients, we never
become complacent and mn 2014 we will continue pur constant
striving to lmprove our standards
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Our Objectives and Related
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

Funds

Our objectives

Progress during 2013

Key Performance Indicators

To increase funds under
management (FUM) through a

combination of growth in new funds

(new business), positive 1nvestment
returns (above market median
rezurns) and market leading
retention rates of existing funds
under management

New Businéss
Our objectives

During 2013, FUM ncreased to £44 3
bilhon representing growth of 27% over the
year as a result of £6 § billion of gross inflows
(21% nercasc) and £4 3 billion 1n nct inflows
(28% 1ncrease), agmnst the backdrop of
recovermg markets (a 14% nise in FTSE 100
1n 2013)

Progress during 2013

Funds under Management (£’ Bilhon)
The profitabshity on all measures of the
Group 1 ultimately driven by the income we
ezrn from FUM The FUM have exhibited
compound annual growth of 19% over the
Iast ten years and 27% since inception

Key Performance Indicators

To achieve year on year growth
m new business ahead of our
competitors with a medium to
longer term objective of annual
growth of 15 to 20% This 1s
achieved through a combination
of productivity and growth 1
the Partnership

Financial
Our objectives

During 2013, the growth mn new business, as
measured on the Annual Premium Equivalent
(APE) basis (being new regular premiums
plus one-tenth of single premums and unit
trust sales) was 16% The number of Partners
increased by 9 5% and APE per Partner
increased by 7% to £461 8k (2012 £432 5k)

Progress durmg 2013

Growth in New Business (APE)

(£ Mullion)

In 2013, the growth in new business was 16%
resulting 1n compound annval growth of 19%
over the last ten yearsand 18% since inception

The proportion of cur own busmess

(excluding third party new business)
for the ycar was 88%

Key Performance Indicators

To achieve sustainable growth 1n
reported profits on all bases and to
increase the levels of cash emerging
ﬁ'om our business ds 1t matures,
resulting i the opportunity to
distribute mcreased earnings to
our shareholders

Profit before sharcholder tax on an IFRS
basis, EEV new business contrihution, EEV
operating profit before tax and the cash result
allincreased during 2013

Profit before ShareholderTax

& M.llhon)

The IFRS reporting basis 12 the statutory
requirement It provides a measure of
performance which recognises the emergence
of profits in line with the provnision of
services, and 1s comparable with other
businesses In 2013, profit before shareholder
tax {which is defined on page 16}
demonstrated growth of 42%

Registered No 03183415
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Gross Funds Flow (£’ Billion)

Gross funds flow 15 the gross new mvestment
and pensions business (principally single
premium) recewved that contributes to the
posiive maovement 1n FUM

Net Funds Flow (£ Billion)
Nect funds flow represents the combined
cffect of the gross funds flow less the

outflows

Number of Partners

The growth in the number of advisers in the
St James’s Place Partnership contmbutes to
the growth 1n new business year on year Itis
key, not only to recruit good quahty advisers,
but also to retain those already with us
During 2013, the number of Partners
mncreased by 9 §% to 1,958

New Business per Partmer (APE)
(£000)

New business per Partner 15 a measure of the
productivity of the Partnership which has
contributed to the growth 1p new busimess
over recent years

New Business Contribution

on an EEV Basis (£’ Mullion)

New business contribution represents the
gross margin on the European Embedded
Value (EEV) reporting basis emerging from
new business sales, less the direct expenses
As such 1115 2 measure of the profitability of
new busmness sales In 2013, the growthin
EEV new business contribution was 18%

EEV Operating Profit beforeTax
(£ Mullion)

The EEY reporting basis assesses the full
value of the long-term emergence of the
sharehelder cash returns In 2013, we
experienced g:rowth of 26% ycar on year

Cash Result (£ Milhon)

The cash result (which 15 defined on page 17)
13 the combination of the cash arising from
the business in force at the start less the
mvestment to acquire business mn the current
peried —m effect a proportion of the cash
arising from the in-force business 1
reinvested for future cash returns The cash
result has grown by 84% 1n the period
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Chief Financial Officer’s Report

Andrew Croft
Chief Financial Qfficer

UNDERLYING CASH RESULT

+67%

FULL YEAR DIVIDEND

+50%

he financial performance of the Group 1n 2013 was very
strong across all financia]l measures, continuing the positive
trend we haVC seen 10 recent YEEI'E

We have previously commented on the growth in the size of the
Partnership and the record £7 2 hillton of new mvestments
which, together with the continumg excellent retentron of chent
funds and strong investment markets, have led to 2 27% growth
in funds under management to a record £44 3 hillion In this
statement I will comment on the other financial results and, as
usual, addrtional information 15 provided 1 the Financial Review
on pages 16 10 33 whach accompanies this statement

2013 saw LBG sell their 57% shareholding through three
successful share placings in the market which resulted 1n some
£2 bilhon of our shares being acquired by both new and existing
sharehclders Iwould Jike to jom David n thanking our existing
shareholders who acquired additional shares and 1n welcoming
our new sharchalders

Frnancial Results

As shareholders are aware, we report our results on both an IFRS
and EEV basis as well as providing further detail on the cash
emerging from the business Further analysis on these measures
15 provided on pages 16 and 17

It 15 worth noting that, whlst the EEV result 18 primanly draven by
the current year events (particularly new business and mvestment
performance), the [FRS and cash results are the cumulative effect of
all previous years Hence this year’s very positive growth in TFRS and
cash result reflects the impact of growth and retention of funds under
managernent seen tn earlier years

As  commented i oy Interin report, there were also a number of
developments during the year which impacted the resuits

Firatly, the UK hfe company entered into a new rensurance treaty to
remsure the company’s remaining exposure of 1ts closed book of
Protection business (life assurance, critical 1llness and PHI) This
treaty resulted i the removal of both the insurance and persistency
risk on this business from the balance sheet together with a one-off
mncrease m the cash result of £18 3 milhan and a postve contribution
of £8 9 mulhon to the IFRS result

Secondly, we were able to place a value on some historic capital
losses wathin the Group which we now regard as being capable of
utihisation over the medium term Within the IFRS result, a
deferred tax asset of £27 9 mullion (undiscounted) has been
estabhshed and withen the EEV there was a resultant postive
experience variance of £22 8 mllon post-tax (discounted) We
expect the benefit to be realised 1n the cash result n future years
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Finally, the introduction of the new regulatory rules on adviser
charging at the start of 2013 has changed the nature of a pumber
of cash flows The two prinapal 1mpacts were, firstly, apphcation
of surrender penalties to all new penston business, resulting 1n an
accelerabon of cashflow from the first six years, and secondly, the
loss of tax rehef on the advice cost, which reduces the value of
certain business

Looking now at the performance of the key financial mecasurcs

Profit before Shareholder Tax on an IFRS Basis

The Board regards the profit before shareholder tax as the best
measure of the performance of the business on an IFRS basis and
the table below provides the five year record of the financal
result under this measure

As can be seen 1n Table A below, profit on this measure was
£190 7 rmllion, up 42% over the prior year This continues the
umpresstve growth we have seen year on year resulting n
cumulatrve growth of 282% over the pertod This sustained
growth reflects the mcreasing cash result, driven by higher funds
under management and the increasing maturity of the busmess

Table A Profit before Shareholder Tax

Profit before

shareholder tax Growth

£ Millhon %

2013 190 7 42%

2012 134 6 23%

2011 109 7 30%

2010 84 2 69%
2009 499 (23%)°

* Growth sftected by cconomic conditions and excludes one-affs

EEV Result

The three key measures within the EEV results are the new
bustness profit, the operating profit and the net asset value per
share The development of these measures over the last five years
15 shown in Table B

Table B Key EEV Financial Measures

EEV new EEV net asset

busminess  EEV operaung value

contribution profit per share

£ Mdlhon £ Millien Pence

2013 3272 4627 5753
2012 276 8 3659 461 0
2011 246 0 3715 3850
2010 2178 3326 3529
2009 155 4 2289 284 5

The new bustness profit at £327 2 milhion was up 18% during the
year and has grown m each of the years since 2009, doubling over the
period The growth in new business profit reflects increasing new
business volurmes, positive business mix and expense management

The operating profit increased by 26% dunng the year to £462 7
million reflecting both the growth in the new business profit
together with strong positive experience vaniance 1n the year

The net asset value per share on an EEV basis at the end 2013 was
575 3 pence, some 25% higher than the start of the year and has
more than doubled over the perod

Cash Result

The Group's underlying cash result 1s principally dependent on
the value of client funds under management Since much of cur
business does not generate net cash 1n the first six years, the level
of cash result wall increase as a result of new business from six
years ago becoming cash generatve

The first column 1n the table below shows how the underlying
cash ansing from the business in-force at the valuation date
(in-force business) has grown by 30% s the year

Nearly 30% of funds under management are currently not yet
generating any positive cash flow However, they are expected to
become cash generative once they reach the end of their sixth
year, at which tume they wall support future strong organic
growthn the cash arising from the 1n-force

Column 2 of the table shows the underlying level of cash earnings
that1s ‘re-invested’ m acquining new business Despite the new
busmess growth during the penod, the level of the investment
required has not tncreased over the last five years Indeed 1in 2013
there was a positive cffect from the regulatory changes, which has
actually reduced the strain  The reduction 1n the level of
investment required means shareholders can now expect an
improved return on the investment, with an expected internal
rate of return of ¢ 28 4%

The net effect of growing the cash arising from the in-force
business, whilst keeping the level of cash invested m new business
relatively flat, 15 growth in the underlying cash result As can be
seen from Table C, the underlying cash result was up 67% 1n the
year — a fourth successive year of sgmificant growth, a trend that
15 expected to continue

Table C Cash Resule

Cash invested in
Cashanungon  acquringaew Underlying cash

1n-ferce busmess business result Growth

£ Million £' Millien, £ Millrion %

2013 188 2 {48 3) 139 9 67%
2012 i44 5 {60 5) 84 0 33%
2011 125 4 (62 4) 630 54%
2010 102 3 (61 4) 409 74%
2009 88 8 (CEE)) 235 (2%)
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Chief Financial Officer’s Report e

The underlying cash result 1s an important wndicator for investors
as this 15 the key determinant 1n setting the annual dividend to
shareholders The contimung strong growth in this measure

has enabled the board to increase the dmwidend significantly in
recent years

In addition to the underlying cash result, there were posiive
variances during the year totalling £28 9 milhon The man
contrbutor to this exceptronal level of vanances was the impact
of the rexnsurance transaction noted earlrer In addition, there
were a number of other positive and negatve items totalling a
positive £10 6 rmlbon

The total post tax cash result for the year was therefore
£168 8 mllion, compared with £91 7 millon for the prior year

Dividend

As the busmess matures, the cash emerging from the m-force
business 1s increasing year by year, whulst the proportion of this cash
that 15 re-invested 1 acquiring new busmess 1s falling

This combination means the cash avarlable for corperate purposes
and to return to shareholders 15 increasing Consequently the
Board has been able to follow a strategy of increasing the dividend
each year

Having increased the drndend by 33% m each of the three previous
years, at the tume of the interim results, we declared an increase
the 2013 mterim dividend of 50% and indicated that the full year
drmdend would be increased by a simular amount  Therefore, the
Board has proposed a full dividend increase of 50%

Furthermore, given our ongeoing confidence in the cash emergence
gomg forward, we anticipate a dividend merease i the range of 30
to 40% 1n 2014 Beyond that, we fully intend to continue with a
progresave dindend policy, growing the future dvdend m hne
with the underlymy performance of the business

Table D Drnidend

Dividend per
share Growth
Pence %
2013 15 96 50%
2012 10 64 33%
2011 g0 33%
2010 60 33%
2009 45 2 5%

Capatal

A key financial objective 1s to ensure the Group’s solvency1s
managed safcly through both goed and difficult times Thus 1
mmportant not only for the safeguarding of our chents’ assets,
but also to ensure we can maintain returns to shareholders

The Group continues to be capitalised well in excess of regulatory
solvency requirements, and the surplus solvency assets remain
invested prudently in cash, AAA rated money market funds and
UK government securities The relative lack of balance sheet or
market nisk, together with this prudent investment policy has
provided for an increasingly resihent solvency position over
recent years, despite the difficult financral and market
environment recently expenenced At the year end, the total
Group solvency net assets were £507 6 mullion, well 1n excess
of the combined solvency requiremnent of £66 4 milhon of the
regulated entities withan the Group

Future Developments 5

We have commenced an investment programme warking with \

our key ‘back-office’ admimstration provider to enhance our |

‘back office” systems to accomimodate both continued growth and

achieve future efficiency savings Whilst the major systems

development costs wall be borne by the admumstration provader

under a new long-term contract, we will incur our own internal |

project costs over the next couple of years and this s covered 1n |

more detatl in Section 5 of the Financal Review ‘
|

Over a similar timeframe, national regulators are required to
implement the new EU Solvency Il regulations We are well
prepared for implementation and do not beheve the Group
will be adversely impacted

Concluding Remarks

2013 has been another strong year of financal performance for the
Group with the highlight being the strong underlyng post-tax cash
result, which has benefited from the growth and retention of funds
under management, not only i the current year, but more
unportantly from that expenenced in earber years

The business remains 1n good shape As 1t continues to mature, we
expect further growth in the profits and m particular increasing
cash emergence This developing cash result has enabled the Board
not only to increase the 2013 dividend by 50% but also to ndicate
a further sigmificant increase m the 2014 dividend

N\ co

Andrew Croft
Chref Financial Officer
24 February 2014
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Financial Review

The Financial Model

As described earlier, the Group’s strategy 1s to attract and retain
reta) funds under management on which we recerve an annual
management fee for as long as we retain the funds Thisis the
principal source of income for the Group out of which we meet
the overbeads of the business, and invest in growing the
Partnership and 1n acquirmg new funds under management

The level of mncome 15 dependent on the level of chent funds and
asset values In additten, since a proportion of our business does
not generate net cash in the first six years, the level of income
will increase as a result of new business from six years ago
becomng cash generative Thus deferral of cash generation means
the business always has six years’ worth of funds ‘in the gestation
penod’ (see page 28)

Group expenditure 1s carefully managed with clear targets set for
growth in establishment expenses 1o the year Other expenses
mcrease with business levels and are met from margns 1n the
products (see page 31) In addition, the Group will incur
development expenditure through mvestment 1n new client
services, computer systems and other corporate mitiatives

A sonall proportion of Group expenditure 18 required to support
management of existing funds, but the majority of expenditure 1s
mvestment in growing the Partnership and acquiring new funds
The resulting new business 1s expected to generate 1ncome for an
average of 14 years, and 1s expected to provide a good return oo
the investment (see page 28)

As the business matures, the proportion of the cash emergence
from the existng business required to support the acquisizon of
new business 1s reducing Thas has resulted 1 strong growth i
both cash emergence and IFRS profits

Given the high level of investment m new business generation
each year, naither the cash emergence nor the IFRS profit
provides an easy guide to the profits likely to emerge 1n the future
or the total economac value of the business However,
consideration of the contribution to prohts from just the 1n-force
business does provide a good indication of the underlyng value
being generated by the business and results using the EEV
methodolopy (described below) are also useful m assessing the
economic value of our business

Presentation of Financial Results

Management behieves 1t 18 wnportant for investors to appreciate not
only the short term net ncome position of our business, but also
the full, long term potential We therefore complement our
statutory [FRS reporting with additional disclosure on an
embedded value basis (using EEV principles) Thas measure assesses
the discounted vahae of all future cash lows and we believe 1t better
reflects the full economic value of the performance of the busimess
‘We also provide analysis of the sources of cash emergence in the
year, which we refer to as the cash result

These three measures, which are described 1n more detail below,
provide mvestors with different perspectives on the performance
of the business 1n a particular year We believe the addinonal
dasclosure will assist them i making thear own assessment of the
value of the business

The IFRS result is the approach required for statutory reporting
purposcs The standards require that profits are recognised in
line with the provision of services and therefore broadly 1 line
with the cash emerpence from a contract However, for long-term
business 1t seeks 1o spread some of the inital cash flows over the
whole duration of the contract through the use of mtangible
assets and habilities (known as DAC — Deferred Acquusition Costs
and DIR — Deferred Income Reserve) and recognises the value of
certain future cash flows, particularly deferred tax

One point of note i the [FRS methodology 1s the requirement
that the tax recognised 1n the accounts should mclude the tax
meurred on behalf of policyholders mn our UK hfe assurance
company 3ince the policyholder tax charge 1s unrelated to the
performance of the busimess, management beheves 1t 15 useful to
provide additional disclosure of the profit before shareholder tax
This measure reflects the profit before tax 2djusted for tax pad
on behalf of pohcyholders We believe this measure provides the
most useful mdreation of IFRS operating performance in

the period

In arriving at the profit befare shareholder tax, 1t 15 necessary to
estimate the aralysis of the total tax charge between that payable
in respect of policyholders and that payable by shareholders
Shareholder tax 1s estimated by making an assessment of the
cffective rate of tax that 15 applicable to the sharchelders, with the
balance beng treated as tax n respect of policyholders Thisisa
refinement to the estimation approach previously used The
Darectors consider that thus refined approach both more
appropriately reflects the tax that 1s borne by shareholders on
their profits and simplifies the approach for mvestors

The embedded value result 1s parboularly useful for investors
seeking to assess the full value of the long-term emergence of
shareholder cash returns, since 1t includes an asset in the
valuation reflecting the net present value of the expected future
cash flows from the business This type of presentation 15 also
commonly referred to as a ‘discounted cash flow” valuation Our
esnbedded value 15 based on the EEV prinaiples, which were set
out a8 an industry standard by the Chief Financial Officers (CFQ)
Forum un 2004

Many of the future cash flows derive from fund charges, whach
change with movements in stock markets Sice the impact of
these changes 1s unrelated to the performance of the business,
management believes that the EEV operating profit (reflecting
the EEV profit belore tax adjusted to veflect anly the expected
mvestment performance and no changé 1n economuc basis)
provides the most useful measure of performance n the period
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Finally, the cash result measure has been developed with the
aim of assishing investors seeking to understand the sources of
cash emergence It1s based on IFRS, but removes non-cash 1tems
such as DAC, DIR and deferred tax It1s also adjusted to reflect a
level of regulatory salvency constramt on prafits emerging from
regulated companies such as our insurance businesses 1 Ine with
that required by the UK regulators The eftect 15 to create a
measure which more reflects the underlying cash generated by
the business and which can be used by the Board n determiming
the dividend payments to shareholders

Since the cash result can be 1mpacted by one off items, timng
variances and capitalised impacts of changes 1 solvency
requirements management believes it 15 also useful to present an
underlying cash result excluding these effects Neather of these
cash result measures should be confused with the IFRS cash flow
statement which 1s prepared i accordance with IAS 7 and
disclosed on page 105

Section 1 below provides detail on the 2013 developments
tmpacting on the financial result, Sections 2-4 below provide a
commentary on the performance of the business on the IFRS,
EEV and cash result bases, whilst Section 5 covers other matters
of 1nterest to shareholders

Section 1 Developments in 2013 impacting

the Financial Result

As noted 1n the Chief Financal Officer’s Report, there were
three developments of note durmg the year which had sigmficant
impacts on the financial statements and the same developments
will also affect emergence of profit in future years Comment on
the 1mpact 1 included in the detailed notes tn the following
sections, but to assist readers, a full analyss 13 also presented 1n
this section

1 Remnsurance Transaction

In early 2013 the UK Life assurance company entered into a new
reinsurance treaty to remsure the Company’s remaimng
exposure on its closed book of Protection business (life assurance,
critical 1llness and PHI) Thus treatment resulted in the removal
of both the msurance and persistency rsk on this business from
the balance sheet

The transaction resulted in a one-off release of the prudent
solvency reserves and realisation of the capitahsed value of the
expected future margins Since the EEV measure already reflects
future profits the impact on EEV operating profit was small By
contrast, the impact on the cash result was a one-off increase of
£18 3 milkion m the year, due to the impact of immediate
recogmtion of the value of future profits Since the IFRS
approach had already recogmsed some value for the future
cashflows through a DAC asset the net impact was a positive
contribution of £8 9 millon to the profit before shareholder tax

As a result of the transaction, the protection business will no
longer contribute to profit on any measure Our analysis presents
the 1mpact of the transaction as being effective at the start of the
year and so the result in 2013 reflects the expected lower ongomg
level of profit

2 Group Capital Losses Tax Asset

During 2013, the Company was able to place a value on old
capital losses within the Group These are now regarded as being
capable of utihsation over the medium term and so the expected
value was disclosed 1n the interim reporting In the second half of
the year, further work has resulted in a refinement and reduction
of our estumate of the benefit and, at the same time, the
implementation of changes 1n the corporation tax rate has also
reduced the gverall benefit assumed 1n the IFRS accounts 'We are
now fully reflecting the value of these losses 1n the IFRS result
though a deferred tax asset of £27 9 million {undiscounted) so
there should be no further impact on IFRS profit in future years
The same tax asset 15 valued at £22 8 mullion (discounted) 1n the
post-tax EEV, and so contributed £28 6 mullion to the pre-tax
EEV operating profitin the year

The Group did not utilise any of these capital losses in 2013 but
expects to reengnise positive impacts, of loss utdisation, 1n the
cash result in the next few years (which will emerge through the
Miscellaneous hine)

3 Changes due to the Retail Distribution Review

New regulatory rules, following on from the Retail Thstnbution
Review (RDR), came into force at the start of 2013 A key
change was the mtroduction of ‘adviser charging’, with the
requirement that any advice should be the cost of the client rather
than a product manufacturer This change affected the nature of a
number of cash flows, and there were three consequential
impacts affecting the financials

1 The appheation of surrender penalties has been extended to all
new pension business, resulting 1n acceleration of cashflow
from the first six years

2 Advice 1s now paud for by the chent and so there 15 no mitial
charge or expenses to be deferred within the IFRS result
through the DAC and DIR

3 Advice costs are no longer expenses of the UK hfe company
and so tax relief1s no longer available within the hife
company's tax computation {Historcally the tax rehef was
spread over seven years so the impact depends on the
reporting method)
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Fil’lanCial RGViGW continued

The impacts of these changes are summartsed n the following table

Cash Result

IFRS

EEY

Application
of surrender
penalties

The acceleration’of the cashflow
reduces a previous new business
strain and generates an increase 1n
the new business margin

The positive impact 15 only an
acceleration of cashflow, and so the
benefit1s offset in the followng six
years by an mcrease 1n the unwind
of surrender penalties

The additional new business
margin arising from the
acceleration of the cashflow 15
deferred through the DIR, so the
posttive ympact 1n the cash result is
offset and the overall impact on
profit s small

The 1mnpact on future years s also
small

(Note that the impact of this change
alene 15 a signzficant crease m the
DIR on new business, but see also

‘DAC and DIR below }

The earlier realisatton of the
cashflow results in a small inercasc
1 new business contmbution

Thus small impact 1s reflected 1
the new business margin and
future new business contnbution

DAC and
DIR

Not relevant

Since the adwice related cashflows
are no longer deferred, they don’t
actually contribute to DAC and
DIR, and so the new business DAC
and DIR adjustments are much
stnalier than 1 prior years The
effect of the application of
surrender penalties change above
on the DIR 15 therefore reversed
and there 15 a further overall
reductiont In income deferral,
which exceeds the reduction in
expense deferral

The impact of all the changes 1s
therefore an increase 1 the cash
result, which 1s partially mitsygated
by the new (lower) level of DIR
exceeding the new level of DAC
Overall from these effects there 15
an increase in IFRS profit after tax
of ¢ £20 mllion 1n 2013, which
will grow 1n line with new
business in future years but offset
by the additional unwind of
surrender penalties noted 1 the
cash result

Not relevant
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Cash Result

IFRS

EEV

Loss of tax
relief on
advice cost

Although tax relief1s no longer
avatlable on the adwice cost, the
spreading effect means that the
negative impact on the cash result
1s coly fully recogrused over seven
years During that pertod, the
impact 1s expected to bea
reduction of profit growth by

£3-4 mllion each year

This 15 reflected 10 2 nuraber of
lines within the cash result
analysis but princapally throngh a
reduction m the margin arsing
from pew busmess, recogmsing
the full impact, offset by the
unwinding of prior years’ tax
relief through the Miscellaneous

line

The full impact of tax relief on
expenses 1s reflected in the IFRS
result through recopmtion of a
deferred tax asset The loss of the
tax relief therefore gets fully
reflected as well and resultsin 2
reduction of ¢ £11 milhon in IFRS
profit after tax 1n 2613

Within our analysis of the IFRS
result, the reduction will be
reflected merementally in the cash
reslt over seven years, with the
offsetting balance of the negative
mmpact reflected mn the TFRS
deferred tax impacts line

The full capitalised effect of the
loss of tax relief on all future
advice costs 1s reflected 1n the
new business contribution The
mmpact 1n 2013 15 a reduction of
c £20-25 million

Future new business will reflect
the new lower level of new
business margin

Overall

The cash result has imncreased
51gn1ﬁcant1y m 2013 gver 2012 as
a result of the 1ncrease m margin
arising from new business

In future years the mmpact of the
increase In margin arsing from
new business will be offset by an
increase m the unwind of
surrender penalttes, and grawth
1n the cash result wall also be
slowed by the cumulative impact
of the loss of tax relief on advice
costs

The posttive impact on the cash
result i 2013 15 largely mitigated
by adjustments 1z the [FRS result,
and so the [FRS profit after tax
has mncreased only slightly above
the trend from 2012 (after taking
into account one-offs)

Future profits growth will slow
shghtly compared to the profits
growth trajectory of recent years,
putigating the positive uphft

mn 2013

The New business contribution
has reduced 1n the year, resulting
in a corresponding reduction 1n
the new busmness margin

Future EEV profits will reflect the
lower level of new business
contribution
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FiIlaIlCial RElViGW continued

Section 2 International Financial Reporting Standards
(TFRS)

The Board regards the profit before shareholder tax as the best
measure of the IFRS operating performance for the year It
provides a measure of performance which recognises the
emergence of profits 1n line with the provision of sernces, and s
comparable with cther businesses The detailed IFRS result 15
shown on pages 102 to 155 and 15 summarised 1n the table below

Year Bnded Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2013 w2

£ Million £ Milhon

Profit before shareholder tax 190.7 134 6
Shareholder tax (0.4) (27 5)

IFRS profit after tax 190.3 107 1

An analysis of both the movement the profit before shareholder
tax and the shareholder tax itself 15 provided below

Profit before Shareholder Tax
The profit bafore shareholder tax for the year was £190 7 mlhon,
up 42% on the prior year result of £134 6 malhon

As commented on 1n Section 1, the 2013 result included a one-off
amount of £8 9 mithon, arising from a new reinsurance treaty
entered into by the UK hfe company Ths treaty has remsured
the remammng insurance and persistency risk assoctated with that
company’s closed book of Protection business and the profit
reflects the release of the associated prudent solvency reserves
together with the realisation of the capitalised value of the
expected future margin

The key driver of the improved result was the increase 1n 1ncome
derived from higher funds under management Durmg 2013, the
average level of funds under management exceeded £39 5 billon,
and was some 25% higher than 1o the prior year

A breakdown by segmeat of the profit before sharcholder tax 1s
provided i the following table

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 Decemnber

2013 2012

£ Mallion £ Million

Lafe business 170 6 111 7
Unit Trust busimess 539 335
Dastribution business (61) 53
Other (27.7) (15 9)
Profit before shareholder tax 1907 134 6

Life Business
The Life business profit for the year was £170 6 mulhon (2012
£111 7 million) which was 53% higher than the prior year

The principal contributor to this rise m profit was the increase 1n
income derived from higher funds under management The result
also benefited from vmpact of the UK life company entering into
a reinsurance treaty which resulted 1n a one-off positive impact of
£8 9 million (as noted above)

Unit Trust Business

The Unit Trust business profit for the year was £53 9 milbon
(2012 £33 5 million) which was also lugher than the same period
last year As above, the principal contributor to this rse 1n profit
was the ncrease i income arising from higher funds under
management

Diastribution Busmess

The impact of distribution activity 18 separately identified from
‘Other’ operations St James’s Place 1s a vertically integrated
firm, allowing 1t to benefit from the synergies of combimng
management of funds with distribution Therefore, as well as the
income generated on the funds under management, there 153
farther margin from the distnibution activity In any one year, this
result will depend upon the level of new business and expenses

The Distribution business loss for the year was £6 1 mllion
(2012 profitof £5 3 mullion) The result reflects gher expenses
iz 2013 assoctated with the strong increase in Partner numbers
(up 9 5% 1n the pertod} The benefit from this investment 1n
recruitment will be seen in future periods with the overall loss
beng mingated by hagher levels of income arising from the
addrhonal Partmers The result was also impacted by levies to the
Financal Services Compensation Scheme of £5 5 rmlhon (2012
£6 2 million) Whlst the overall impact on the Group of the ~
regulatory changes in 2013 was peutral, changes in the nature of
the cashflows resulted in himited reallocations of both mcome and
expense across the Group, which also contributed to the loss in
the year

Other

Other operations contnbuted a loss of £27 7 million (2012 loss
of £15 9 rullion) Included within this figure 1s the £8 1 million
(2012 £6 © mllion) development costs related to our back-office
nfrastructure project and regulatory change, £7 8 mullian (2012
£5 4 mullior) for the cost of expensing share options, and one-off
costs 1n relation to the reduction in the Lloyds Banking Group
('LBG’) shareholding on 11 March 2013 of £6 2 million
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Shareholder Tax

The tax reported under TFRS each year 1s impacted by a vanety of effects, bath current and future, particularly one-off events such as
the change 1n corporation tax rate Therefore, to asust sharsholders, the table below provades 2 high level analysts of sharehelder tax
and the implied tax rate A more detailed analysis 15 mcluded m Note 8 to the financial statements

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Million £ Milhon
Expected shareholder tax (419) (337
Recogmition of capital losses 279 -
Market related tax effects - 4 0)
Other tax adjustments 16 20
Corporation tax rate change 12.0 82
Actual shareholder tax (04) (27 5)
Expected shareholder tax rate 22 0% 25 0%
Actual shareholder tax rate 0.2% 20 4%

The expected shareholder tax prinapally refiects the current corporatien tax rate applicable and will vary from year to year
depending upon the emergence of profit between the different tax regimes which apply to the 5t James’s Place Group companues
More detal 15 included 1n Note 8 to the financial statements

As commented on 1 Section 1, the recognition of the future effect of Group capital losses reduced the shareholder tax recogmsed tn
the year by £27 9 milhion

The refinement of the method of estimation of pohicyholder tax during the year means the market related tax effects will normaltly
be zero in future The other tax adjustments are also typreally small

The mmpact of the corporation tax rate change on deferred tax has been a recurring feature 1n recent years and reduced the tax
charge 1n both years The mpact on shareholder tax 1n 2012 reflects implementation of corporation tax rate reductions totalling 2%,
from 25% to 23% The rmpact 1n 2013 reflects the implementation of a 2% reduction from 23% to 21% effective from April 2014 and
a further 1% reduction to 20% effective from April 2015

The overall mmpact of all of the above effects1s to decrease the tax charge reported m the [FRS results to £0 4 muillion (2012 £27 §
milhon) However it 1s worth noting that the current year tax charge i the year was £38 3 mlhon (see Note 8 on page 121)

IFRS Profit after Tax
The tollowing additional analysis of the IFRS profit after tax result identifies the different contributions fiom the business in-force at
the start of the year, and the new business added during the year It starts from the cash result, which can be found on pages 26 and 27

New

Year Ended 31 December 2013 Notes In~-Force Busimess Total

£ Milhon £ Million £ Milhion

Cash result 1 2211 (52 3) 168 8

DIR amortisation 2 1137 18 1155
DAC amortisation 3 {91 5) (18) (93 3)
PVIF amortisation 4 (2.5) — (2.5)
DIR on new business 2 - (489) (48 9)

DAC on new business 3 - 315 31.5
Share options 5 (7 8) - (78)

IFRS deferred tax impacts 6 146 - 146

Other IFRS 7 04 — 04

8 120 - 120

Corporation tax rate change

IERS profit after tax 260 0 (69 7) 190.3
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Year Ended 31 December 2012 Notes In-Force Bus:ness Total

£ Milkon £ Milhon £’ Million
Cash result 1 152 2 (60 5) 917
DIR amortsation 2 936 58 99 4
DAC amortisation 3 (74 7) (5 8 (80 5)
PVIF amortisation 4 4 - 24
DIR on new business 2 - (155 %) (155 9)
DAC on new business 3 - 1550 1550
Share options 5 &4 - O]
IFRS deferred tax 1mpacts 6 (8 3) - 83
Other IFRS 7 53 - 53
Corporation tax rate change 8 82 — 82
IFRS profit after tax 168 5 (61 4) 107 1

The IFRS profit after tax from the business in-foree at the starcof
the year mncreased to £260 0 mlhon (2012 £168 5 mlhon) This
reflects both the increase in the underlying cash result as a result
of the increase 1n ingome from higher funds under management
but also the positive impact from recognition of the future tax
benefit of capital losses (£27 9 mallion)

The loss associated wrth acquiring new busimess for the year was
£69 7 miilion (2012 £61 4 milhon loss) and should be viewed as
an investment for future profits The IFRS method seeks to
spread some mitial cashflows aver the whole duration of the
contract and therefore the positive impact of the higher 1mitial
margi, which 13 evident in the lower cash result for new
business, 1s reversed through the DIR The increase in the cost
of new business thercfore reflects the underlying higher
(non-deferrable) expenses in the year, particularly development
expenses and mvestment 1n the business

Notes
1 These figures are explained in the analysis of the post-tax cash result in Section 4
2 DIR IFRS requires any lnitial profit which arises on new business (either through
#a 1nitial charge or surrender penalty) to be deferred at the outset and then
amortsed aver the life of the associated product or the surrender penalty period
Thisrequired treatment gives rise to two adjustments to arrive at the [FRS result
() Thuamortisation of the apening defirred income, which ingreases proht for
the portad, was £113 7 mallon (2012 £93 € emllsa) 1n the current year The
release m a particular year will depend upon the value of DIR at the start of
the year and the remaining hfe of the policies 16 which the DIR relates or the
remmoing surrender penaity period The expected amartsation charge for
2014 s £107 9 mullion
(b) The defrral of the anitial proht asserated with new busmess sales reduedd
the IFRS result by £48 9 rmullion in 2013 (2012 £155 9 million) The deferral
of profit in any particular yar will he dupendent upon the Tuvd of nuw
business
Aa commented on 1n Section 1, the introduction of the new regulatory rules on
adviser charging has resulted an a significant ruduction in the levd of DIR on sew
business i the current year
The current year daferral of £48 2 million does, howcver, include some business
that was 15sued 1n 2013 but advised on before that date and therefore 1t 1s
aceotinted for under the old method Thus figure 13 therefore not representative of
the on gong position 1fall the new business had been adviaed on after the start of
the year, we estimate that the DIR on new business in the year would instead have
been ¢ £35 mullion
3 DAC Speaific new busmess acquisiion expenses are required to be deferred
the year they aruse and then amortised 1n future years over the life of the policies
to which the costs refate The treatment of these acquisition expenses gives rise to
two adjustments 1o the IFRS resalt

(2) The amortisatian of the opeang DAC, which reduces prafit for the perod,
was £91 5 milhon {2012 £74 7 trullion) in the ¢wrrent year The chargeina
particular period normally depends upon the value of the DAC at the start of
the year and the remaining hife of the policies to which the DAC relates
However the 2013 resnlt was 2lso affected by the transaction to reassure the
Protection businezs which resulted 1n an inpairment of the associated
wsursnce DAC with ao additional negative impact of £9 6 million post-tex
The expected smartisation charge for 2014 12 £82 3 mullion

(b) The deferral of the speaific acquaition costs, whsch were incurred 1 the
current period, increased IFRS profits by £31 5 mulbon (2012 £155 0
mullion) The deferral of expenses 1 any particular year wall be dependent
upon the level of the acqusition costs which themselves wall be deternuned by
the Jevel of new business -

A3 commented oo in Section [, the adoption of the new regulatory rules on

adviser charging at the start of 2013 has resulted in 8 significant reduction 1 the

level of DAC on new busincss In the current year

The current year deferral of £31 5 million does, however, include some bumness

that was 1zsued in 2013 but advised on before that date and therefore at1s

aceounted for under the old method This figure 15 therefore not representative of

the on-going posivon 1f all the new business had been advised on efter the start of
the year we estimate that the DAC on new business m the year would 1nstead have
been ¢ £21 millien

PVIF The IFRS balanee sheet includes an asset representing purchased value of

in-force ('PVIF') Tlus assetis amortised over the remaimag Life of the policies

assoriated with this esset The amortisstion ch for the year was £2 5 nullion

(2012 £2 4 million} The charge for 2014 13 expected to be £2 € million

Share options thus gure is the notonal cost tha 15 associated with the various

sharc opuon schemes

IFRS deferred tax Under IFRS, a deferved tax asget 15 established for tax benefits

that are expecred to emerge 1o future  The 2zset then unwinds as the tax benefits

are recognised 1n the cash result Historacally, these movements have contmbuted
small adjustments to the IFRS profit after tax result However, 1n 2013 the result
was tmpacted by both

— the establishment of 2 £27 9 million deferred tax asset, recogusing the fature

benefit from captal lasses within the Group which we now regard as bemg

capable of being urilised 1n the medium term, and

— loss of tax relief on advice costs as a result of RDR

Further comment on these developments s included in Section 1 Overall, the

impact on IFRS profit after tax was to merease profit by £14 & milhon (2012

£8 3 mallion charge)

Other [FRS Thusitem reflects & number of ather adjustments from the cash

result For mstance, the cash result reflects the regulatory solvency requurement

to hold prudent actuar:al reserves, but these are not held 1o the IFRS result

“Therefore movements in these reserves (generally related to movements 1 the

stack markets) will Impact the cash result but are reversed in the IFRS There wall

be a small impact, either posiive or negative, depending upon stack market
mavemments, Lo future years

Corporation tax rate change the above adjustments are all shown net of deferred

tax rates prevailing at the end of each year, and this £12 ¢ million (2012 £8 2

milhon) reflects the elfect on the deferred tax assets and liabilities of the change 1n

the tax rate from 23% to 21% 1 2014 and also the further change to 20% 1 2015
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Whalst the Board considers the profit before shareholder tax1s
the best measure of the performance of the business, the total
IERS result 1s presented grossed up for the inclusion of tax
ncurred on behalf of policyholders in the table below

IFRS Profit before Tax Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

203 02

£ Millron £" Milhion

IFRS profit before tax 461 2 251 8
Policyholder rax (270 5) (117 2}
Profit before shareholder tax 190.7 134 6
Shareholder tax 04) (27 5)

IFRS Proﬁt after tax 1503 107 1

In 2013, the IFRS profit before tax for the year was £461 2
milhion (2012 £251 B rrulhon) with the prinaipal contnbution to
the change bemng the movement in the policyholder tax froma
£117 2 milbion charge n 2012 to 2 £270 5 milhon charge 1n 2013

The policyholder tax reflects the movement 1n the provision
within the umit linked funds for UK tax payable The increase n
the provision arises principally as a result of the increase in the
stock markets during 2013 The movement between the
reporung dates has resulted 1n a tax charge of £270 § miilion

Analysis of IFRS Assets and Net Assets per Share
The table below provides a summarised breakdown of the IFRS
position at the reporting dates

Year Ended Year Ended.
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
£ Milhon 1" Milhon
Purchased value of in-force¥ 320 333
Deferred acqusihion costs* 720 8 7571
Deferred income* (466 7) (519 2)
Other IFRS net assets 112 4 878
Solvency net assets 507 6 403 5
Total IFRS net assets 906 1 7625
*net of deferred tax
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2002
Pence Pence
Net asset value per share 1759 150 4

Section 3 European Embedded Value (EEY)

Life assurance and wealth management business differs from most
other busimesses, 1n that the expected shareholder income from
the sale of 2 product emerges over a long period 1n the future We
therefore complement the TFRS result by providing additonal
disclosure onan EEV basis The EEV result brings into account
the net present value of the expected future cash flows and we
believe this measure 15 useful to investors when assessing the total
economic value of the Group’s operating performance

The table below and accompanying notes summarsse the profit
before tax of the combined busmness The detailed results are
shown on pages 166 to 176 and wclude informatien about the
sensitivity of the results to key assumptions on page 174

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Malhion £' Million

Lafe business 3657 2939
Unit Trust business 1308 824
Dhstnbution 6.1) 53
Other (277) (159
EEY operating profit 4627 3659
Investment return varance 3442 190 4
Economuc assumption changes 106 (37
EEV profit before tax 8175 55826
Tax (161 9) {114 5)
Corporation tax change 189 216
EEV profit after tax 674 5 4597

‘Total EEV aperating profit for the year, at £462 7 milhon, was
26% hugher than the 2012 result of £365 3 milhon

EEV Operating Profit

Life Bustness

The Life business aperating profit has mcreased to £365 7 mllion
n the year (2012 £293 9 milhon) mainly due to the sigmficant
contribution from expenience variances 1n the year A full analysis

of the result 1s shown below

Year Ended Year Ended

- 31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Mullion £ Mallion

New business contribution 213 6 2089

Proht from existing business

— unwind of the discount rate 89.4 76 9

— eXperience variance 53.9 £9
— operating assumption change 46 (a7

Investment income 42 29

Life business EEV operating profit 3657 2939
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The small increase 1n the new business contribution for the
year to £213 6 milhon (2012 £208 9 mllion) reflects the positive
mmpact of the growth in new busmess being greater than the
growth in the associated expensés (the operational geaning), but
15 offset by a negative impact of some £20-25 milhon from the
loss of tax rehef on advice costs (see comment 10 Section 1)

The unwind of the discount rate was £89 4 milhon (2012
£76 9 mllion), prineipally reflecting the higher opeming asset

The expertence variance in the year was £53 9 million (2012
£6 9 milhon) The key contributor to the positive variance 1n the
current year was a £28 6 milhon pre-tax (£22 8 mlhion post tax)
value placed on capital losses wathin the Group, which we now
regard as being capable of uphsation 1n the medium term In
addition the contmued strong retention of chent funds
contributed a further positive vartance of £26 8 milhon pre-tax,
with the balance made up by a number of small posrtive and
negative variances

There was a small positive operating assumption change of
£4 6 mibion (2012 £1 7 rmllion negative varrance)

The investment mmcome for the year was £4 2 milhon (2012
£2 9 rllion) and reflects an assumed interest rate earned on our
free assets

Unit Trust Business
The Umt Trust operating profit was £130 8 milhan (2012 £82 6
milhion)y and a full analysis of the result 15 shown below

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
£' Million £' Milhon
New business contribution 113.6 679
Profit from existing business
— unwind of the discount rate 227 191
— eXperience variance (6 5) (23)
~ operating assumption change - (2 6)
Investment income 10 0s
Unat Trust business EEY
operating profit 130.8 82¢

New business contribution at £113 6 million (2012 £679
mlhon) was 67% higher than the prior year as a result of the
strong new business growth in the period and control of growth
m assocated expenses

The unwind of the discount rate was £22 7 mallion (2012
£19 1 mallion), principally reflecting the higher openung asset

There was a small negative experience variance of £6 5
mulhion (2012 £2 3 mullion negative variance) whach 15 accounted
for by a number of small positive and negative items 1n both years

There were oo operating assumption changes during the
year (2012 £2 6 milhion negative variance)

Distnibution Business and Other
The results from distribution and other operations have already
been commeanted on 1n the IFRS section

Investment Return Variance

The investment return varrance reflects the capitalised impact on
the future annual management fees resulting from the difference
between the actual and assumed investment returns Given the
size of our funds under management, a small difference between
the actual and assumed 1nvestment return can resultin a large
positive or negative variance

During 2013, world stock markets rose, with, for example,

the MSCI £ world mndex mcreasmg'by some 24 3% This was
reflected 1 the investment return on our funds, which
comfortably exceeded the assumed 1nvestment return As a result
there was a positive investment return variance of £344 2 million
for the year

In the prior year, there was a positive mvestment variance of
£190 4 mullion, reflecting the lower level of stock warket
grawth

Economic Assumptton Changes

There was a positrve variance of £10 6 mullion arising from
changes in the economic basis adopted at the year end and, 1n
particular, mcreases in ‘real’ yields above inflation (2012 £3 7
million negative variance)

EEV Profit before Tax

The total EEV profit before tax for the year was £817 5 mmlhon
(2012 £552 6 mlhon) The increase represents both the growth
n the operating profit and the higher investment variance

n 2013

Tax
The tax charge at £161 9 mulhon (2012 £114 5 milhon charge)
was higher than 2012 reflecting the hagher profit before tax

Corporation Tax Rate Change

A further 1% reduction in the Corporation tax rate (from 21%
to 20% mn 2015) was announced 1n the 2013 Budget which has
resulted 1n a further reduction 1n the future expected tax cost
of £18 9 mullion. This reduction has been shown as a negative
tax charge
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EEV Profit after Tax

The EEV profit after tax was £674 5§ millon (2012 £4597
mullion) The principal reasen for the varmation 1s the change in
mnvestment return vanance

New Business Margin

The largest single clement of the EEV operating profit is the new
bustness contribution (see analysis mn the previous section) The
level of new business contribution generally moves 1n hine with
new busmess performance To demonstrate this ink and a1d
understanding of the results, we provide additional analysis of the
new business margim (‘Margin’) This 1s calculated as the new
business contribution divided by = relevant new business measure,
and 15 expressed as a percentage

The table below presents margn results based on each of the two
main measures of new business performance used by the
nsurance sector In a small change to previous practice, APE
margin 1n the table has been presented to disclose the new
business margin on just our own manufactured busmness as this s
considered to be of greater importance to our mvestors and
moves the measure to be consistent with the PYNBP margin
calculation
— Anmual Premoem Equivalent (APE) — calculated as the sem of
regular premums plus 1/10th single premmums
— Present Value of New Business Premmm (PYNBP) —
calculated as single premwums plus the present value of
expected premaums from regular premium busimess, allowing
for lapses and other EEV agsumptions

Restated*
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Life busmess
New busmess contribution (£' Million) 213 6 208 9
APE (£’ Milhon) 5329 488 7
Margn (%) 40.1 427
PYNBP (£ Milhion) 4,758 0 4,424 4
Margin (%) 45 47
Unit Trust business
New business contribution (£ Million) 113.6 679
APE (£ Million) 230.0 148 §
Margmn (%) 49,4 457
PYNBP (£ Million) 2,300.2 1,484 7
Margin (%) 49 446
Total business
New busmess contribution {£” Miilion) 3272 276 8
APE (£ Mallion) 7629 637 2
Margin (%) 42 9 43 4
PVNEP (£’ Milhion) 7,058 2 5,909 1
Margin (%) 46 47

*The prior year APE figures have been restated to exclude non-manufactured
busimess

The Life business margin has decreased from 4 7% to 4 5% on 2
PVNBP bagsis and margmally from 42 7% to 40 1% on the APE basis

In both cases, the movement reflects the net effect of 2 negative
impact from the loss of tax relef on adviser charges withm the
UK Iife company’s ‘I-E” tax computation (as these adviser charges
are now bewng paid direct by the client and not by the company),
partizlly offset by the positive impact of growth in new business
being greater than growth m expenses (the operational gearing)

The Unit Trust margin has inereased from 4 6% t0 4 9% on 2
PVNBP basts and from 45 7% to 49 4% on an APE basis,
reflecting growth in new business volumes exceeding growth 1n
expenses (operational gearing)

The marginal decrease over the prior year on both the easures
for the manufactured business reflects the respective proportions
of Iife and umt trust busmess

In addition to our manufactured business, there was an additronal
£102 3 mulbon (APE) of non-manufactured new busmess,
resulting 10 a combined APE margin for the year of 37 8% (2012
37 2%) The unproved margin reflects the lower proportion of
non-manufactured business m 2013

Analysis of the European Embedded Value and Net
Assets per Share

The table below provides a summanrised breakdown of the
embedded value position at the reporting dates

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
£ Mallion £ Millron

Value of in-force
— Life 1,950 2 1,545 3
— Unat Trust 506 3 3835
Solvency net assets 507.6 403 5
Total embedded value 2,964 1 2,336 3
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 Decamber
2013 2012
Pence Pence
Net asset value per share 8753 461 0
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Section 4 Cash Result and Capital

In addition to presenting the financial performance on the IFRS and EEV basis, we also provide an analysis of the sources of cash
emergence tn the year, which we refer to as the cash result The cash result 1s based on the IFRS result, but removes non-cash items
such as DAC, DIR and deferred tax [t s also adjusted to reflect a level of regulatory solvency constraint on profits emerging from
regulated companies, such as our insurance husinesses, n line with that required by the UK regulators The effect 1s a measure which
more reflects the undertying cash emergence of the business, and which i available to pay dividends An underlying cash result s
also presented, stnpping out the effects of ane off items, nming varances and caprtalised 1mpacts of changes in solvency requirements

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Malhon &' Mallion

Underlying cash result 139.9 840
Remsurance transaction 18.3 -
Variance 10.6 77
Cash result 168.8 917

In 2013, the underlying cash result was £139 9 mllion (2012 £84 0 mullion) some 67% higher than the prior year, principally
due to an mcrease 1n the net income from funds under management In both years, there were positive varlances, and so the overall ~
cash result mcreased to £168 8 million (2012 £91 7 muliron) up 84%

The cash result 15 a combination of the cash emerging from the business in force at the start of the year less the investment made to
acquire new business durng the year

The tables and commentary below provide an indicative analysis of the cash result, enufying the different contributions from the
business n-force at the start of the year, and the new business added during the year

New

Year Ended 31 December 2013 Notes In-Force Business Total
£ Mallion £ Mallion £ Malhon
Net annual management fee 1 2905 270 3175
Unwind of surrender penalties 2 (103 4) (159) (119 3)
Net income from funds under management 1871 11.1 198 2
Margin ansing from new business 3 - 378 378
Establishment expenses 4 (8 6) (78 4) (87 0)
Development expenses 5 - (108) (10 8)
Regulatory Fees 6 09 (80) (89)
Shareholder interest (regulated companies) 7 33 - 33
Shareholder interest (non-regulated compantes) 7 41 - 4.1
Mascellaneous 8 3.2 - 32
Underlying cash result 188 2 (48 3) 1399
Remsurance transaction 9 183 - 183
Variance 10 14.6 (4 0) 106
Cash result 221.1 (523) 168 8
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Year Ended 31 December 2012 Notes In Foree Busin: Total

£" Malhon £' Mallion £' Mithon
Net annual management fee 1 2311 2212 25313
Unwind of surrender penalties 2 (85 5) (107 (96 2)
Net income from funds under management 145 6 115 1571
Margin arising from new business 3 - 133 133
Establishment expenses 4 (7 8) (68 4} (76 2)
Development expenses 5 - (8 8) (8 8)
Regulatory Fees 6 (0 9) @é1n 90)
Shareholder mterest (regulated companies) 7 24 - 24
Shareholder interest (non-regulated companzes) 7 33 - 31
Miscellaneous g 21 - 21
Underlymng cash result 144 5 (60 5) 840
Variance 10 77 - 77
Cash result 152 2 {60 5) 917
Notes

Since all numbers are expressed after tax, they are impacted by the prevailing tax rate for each year Iz 2013, the tax rute hag reduced by 1% compared to the prior year

1

The net annual management fee Thas 13 the manufacturing margin the Group retains from the funds under management after payment of the associated costa (¢ g investment
advisory fees and Partner remuneration) Broadly speaking, the Group retans around 1% before tax (0 77% after tax) of funds voder management

The level of net annual management fee was some 25% hagher than 2012 This increase1sin line with the growth in funds under managerent which averaged £33 5 billion 1
2013 eompared to £31 § billion 1n 2012

Unwind of surrender penalties Thus relates to the reserving methodology applied ta the swrender penalties within the charging structure of the single premuum life bonds
and penmons At the outset of the product, we establish a hability net of the outstanding surrender penalty which would apply if the pobicy were to be encashed

As the surrender penalty veduces to zero, so the labihity to the policyhalder 15 enhanced by 1ncreasing ther Funds by 1% per annum over the first six years of the product lfe,
to carrespond to thus 'unwind” of the surrender peralty In other words, there 15 2 cost which offscts the annuai management fee shove

Like the n¢t annual management fee, the unwind of surrender penalties inereases with the impact of investment growth of funds under mapagement However the increase 18
also ;mpacted by new funds but offsct by the fact that the funds added six years ago have completed the surrender pemlty periad

A3 commented on 1n Section 1, the level of unwand of surrender penalties walb ancrease in future ysars due to the epplication of surrender penalties being extended to 21l
pension business Thas wnll act as 2 slight brake on the future growth in net income from funds under management

Margn ansing from new business This 18 the cash Impact of new business i the year after taking mnto account the directly sitrburable expenses

As commented on in Section 1, as part of the implementation of the RDR rules, the application of surrender penalties was extended to all penaron business This resolted in s
sigmficant werease 1n the margin ansing from new business However, as alsn noted 1n Section 1, the posinve impact bas been offset by loss of tax relief on advice costs

The overall impact was still an increase in the margin annng from new business, 1o £37 8 million o the year from £13 3 mullion n 2012

The impact of this mcrease 1n the margin was the key driver of the reduction in the cost of investment 10 new basiness in the year

Establishment expenses These are the cxpenses of running the Group's infrastructure as shown in the table on page 31 In line with the rest of this table, they are presented
after allowance for tax ‘These expenses were 13% higher in the current year

The post-tax figure 1n this analys:s has mereased st a slaghtly higher rate chan shown on the aforementioned table due to the impact of differing tax rates between the two
reporting periods

Development expenses These represent the sum of the other expenditure noted in the table on page 31 (e g developments, the cost of regulatory change and Academy) The
umpact on the cash result in the year was £10 8 mllion (2012 £8 8 rulhon)

Regulatory fees Ths relates to the fees payable to the Regulatory bodues and the FSCS levy for the year The regulatory fees payable in the year were £8 9 mallion

(2012 £% 0mulbioa)

Shareholder 1aterest ansing from regulated and non-regulated business “Thus 13 the aetual mcome aceruing on the investments and cash held for regulatory purposes together
with the interest recerved on the surplus capital beld by the Group

The small merease 1o interest receved reflects the mcreased lesel of assets invested

Mascellaneous This represents the cash Sow of the business nat covered in any of the other categaries

In addinon to the mncome and expenses from other operations of the business, this item has hustorcally included the emerging profit of the group's pratection (fe, crineal
\llness and PHI) business As commented on i Section 1, as a result of the Reassurance transaction 1o the year, the emerging profits were capitahised and are reflected
elsewhere This stem has therefore reduced by ¢ £3 muilion compared to prior years

Thus rtem also reflects the impact of structural trmung differences i the Iife company tax computation As a consequence of the loss of tax relsef on advice costs commented
on1n Section 1, this atem refleets the benefit of the unwind of the outstanding tax relief on hustarac adiice costs The ponitive impact in 2013 15 expected o reduce by

¢ £1-2 mllzon per annum over the next six years However, the ttem will mstead benefit from the positve rmpact of ntilisation of the Group caprtsl losses during this penad.
Remsurance transactign As commented on 11 Section 1, there has been s one-off tmpact an the cash result of £18 3 million, reflecting the release of the assocrated prudent
solvency reserves together with the realisation of the capitalised value of expected future margins

Variance Ths reflects varlances in the cash result in a year duc to the impact of actual experience {including economic assumptions changes and 1nvestment pesformance) on
|nsurance reserves, as well as vanances m the scttlement of tax related lrabilitics between the policyholders (unit-liked Funds), the shareholder and HMRC

In 2013, the umpact of strang investment performance, improvements 10 real yiclds and some assumprion changes contributed 1o a significant reduction sn insurance reserves,
releasing additional profit of £5 1 auilios The result also benefited by £6 0 nulbion from utilisation of brought forward pension losses and by nearly £10 mullion from other
tax variance effects

The positnve impacts were offser by 2 £4 0 mullion (post tax) cost of back-office infrastructure coats and £4 & mullion {post tax) cost associated with LBG The overall impact
10 the year was an tncrease 1 the result of £10 6 million

The varance of £7 7 mullian n 2012 imcluded £4 0 million from s modification to the calculauon of the surrender penalty posiuon

w
¥
=
=
~

<
=3
=
n

=
2
-

SuAFIDIG [DIUDULY IUDILIPACY)

woRPULIfUT 19430



28 St James’s Place plc Apnual Report and Accounts 2013

FiHaDCial R€V1€W continued

Return on In-Force Business
As shown in the tables above, the return on the in-force business 15 manly driven by the level of the annual management fees, the
unwind of the surrender penalties, and the level of expenses

The vast majority of the return relates to the net income from funds under management (annual management fees less the unwind of
the surrender penalty) Funds under management have been increasing and, as they continue to develop, the future net income should
also increase correspondingly

In addiion, a proportion of the new business has a surrender penalty which uynwinds during the first six years and, consequently, this
business does not make a meaningful contribution to the cash result unti] year seven The table below provides an estimated breakdown
of the aingle premuum business over the last six years where these surrender penalties apply These premums are not yet generating
mcome within the cash result

With

surrender

Year penalties
£ Billion

2008 i4
2009 16
2010 31
2011 22
2012 24
2013 35
Total 13.2

The total business not yet contributing to the cash result 1s £13 2 bilhon* which 1s nearly 30% of the total funds under management at
31 December 2013 Clearly, the potential of this business depends on retention of our chents, however, for illustration purposes, if all
the busmess reached the end of the surrender period then the annual post-tax cash result (based on 0 77% post-tax earmings from funds
under management) would be some £102 million hrgher*

*:guores stock market mevernents and outflows since the date of oniginal client investment

The Board therefore expects the cash earrungs from the m-force business to increase as funds under management grow and the business
matures

Return on Investment in New Business
As noted i the table on page 26, £52 3 imlhon (2012 £60 5 malhon) of the cash arsing from the 1n-force business has been
re-mvested 1n acquiring the new business durmg the year

This investment i new business will generate income in the future that should sigrificantly exceed the cost of investment and theretore
provide positive returns for shareholders The table below provides details of the new business added during the reporung peniods and

different measures of valung the investment Year Ended Year Ended
31 December # December
013 2012
Post-tax investiment 1in new business (£ Million) (52.3) (60 5)
Post-tax present value of expected future cash returns (£' Milhon) 3141 278 8
Post-tax present value of expected profit from investment (£ Million) 261.8 2183
Gross inflow of funds under management (£ Bilbion) 68 56
Investment as % of grass inflow* 0 8% 11%
New business margmn (% of manufactured APE) 42 9% 43 4%
Cash payback period (years) 4 4
Internal rate of return (net of tax) 28.4% 22 5%

* The 1m estment a5 a percentage of net inflow of funds under management was 1 2% compared wath 1 8% for the prior year
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The level of mvestment to acquire new business 15 not expected to increase significantly in future years and therefore the proportion of
the cash generated from the n-force business that will be available to pay dividends to shareholders 1s expected to continue expanding

Capital Position

In addition to presenting an TFRS balance sheet (on page 104) and an EEV balance sheet {on page 168), we beheve it1s heneficial to
provide a balance sheet using the approach underlying our cash result This 1s because the cash result 1s adjusted for non-cash 1tems such
as DAC, DIR and deferred tax The Board therefore considers this cash result balance sheet provides the best mdication of the free
caprtal of the Group which could be available to pay dividends

The following table analyscs the differences between the IFRS balance sheet and the cash result balance sheet These adjustments
nclude netting out assets and habilities of the policybolder interest 1o unit-hinked funds, and removal of 2 number of ugmficant
‘non-cash’ adjustments {in particular DAC, DIR and deferred tax)

Cash
IFRS Result
Balance Balance
Sheet  Adjustment’  Adjustment? Sheet 2012
£ Million 5! Mallion £ Mathion £ Mallion £ Mallion
Assets
Deferred acquisition costs 888 8 - (888 8) - -
Acqared value of m force business 400 - #0 0) - -
Developments 87 - - 87 14 6
Property and equipment 58 - - 58 36
Deferred tax assets 181 8 - (181 8) - -
Investment property 7327 {7327y - - —
Bquites 29,614 8 (29,614 &) — — -
Frxed income securities 5,965 7 (5,898 0) - 677 84 4
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 3,244 3 (2,722 0y - 5223 3217
Dertvative financal instruments 142 9 (142 9 - - -
Reinsurance assets 64 2 - - 64 2 386
Insurance & investment contract recervables 499 - — 49 9 46 5
Income tax assets - - - - 852
Other recervables 554 0 (324 0y 4 0) 226 0 192 8
Cash & cash equivalents 3,845 7 (3,648 6) - 197 1 182 4
Total assets 45,3393 {43,083 0) (1,114 6) 1,141 7 969 8
Liabtlities
Insurance contract Liabilities 466 4 (395 79 793 94 6
Other provinions 27 - - 97 92
Investment contracts 33,7175 (33,7109 - 66 54 4
Borrowings 98 7 - - 98 7 708
Derwative financial instruments 878 (87 8) - - -
Deferred tax liabihities 196 6 (39 5) (216 5) 246 6 353
Insurance & 1mnvestment contract payables 381 — - 381 249
Deferred mncome 2386 — (538 6) — -
Income tax liabilities 49 - - 49 773
Other payables 439 4 (314 4) 1250 184 8
NAYV attributable to unit holders 8,535 4 (8,535 4) - - -
Preference shares 01 - - 01 —
Total habilities 44,433.2  (43,083.0) (741.2) 6090 5513
Net assets 906 1 - (373 4) 5327 418 5
Adjustments

1 Nets out the pohicyholder interest i unit-linked assets and habihtes

2 Removal of IFRS non-cash adjustments
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Financial Review atmued

The movement 1n the cash result net assets 1s equal to the cash result adjusted for dividends paid m the year and other changes in equity
excluding the cost of share options (see page 103 — Consolidated Statement of Changes m Equity)

The table above provides an analyss of the differences between the IFRS balance sheet and the cash result balance sheet Asin previous
years, we also provide an analysis of the Solvency positton The key difference between the cash result net assets (above) and the
Solvency net assets 13 an amount of additional reserves arising from the Irish solvency regulations These reserves mnclude additional
prudential reserves over that required by the UK regulator Asaresult, the Solvency position 1s £507 6 tullion, which 15 £25 1 mullion
lower than the cash result net assets of £532 7 mulhion (2012 £403 5 million and £41§ 5 milhon, respectively)

The Solvency position can be further analysed between regulated and non-regulated entities, and can be assessed agamst the solvency

captal requirement as noted 1n the table below
Other
Lafe Regulated Other Total
£ Mathon £ Miilion £ Mallzon £' Milhon
Solvency position
Solvency net assets 284 2 389 184 5 507 6
Solvency requrement 49 3 171
Solvency ratio 576% 227%

Included within the ‘other’ capital resources 1s an imphed reserve that1s being bult up to cover one year’s dividend cost
At 31 December 2013 the amount set anide to date was £70 milhon compared to a full year dividend cost of £82 million

Companison with previous valuations would show that the Group solvency position has become increasingly resihent, desprte market
volatiity 1n recent years, reflecting the Group's low appetite for market, credit and liquidity risk 1n relation to solvency

The Group continues to be caprtalised well 1n excess of regulatory solvency requirements, with nearly 70% of cash result and solvency

assets mvested prudently in cash, AAA rated money market funds and UK government securities Other assets (principatly other
recervables) are less lqud An analysis of the hqud asset holdings 15 provided below

Analysis of Liquid Assets

Holding Name £ Malhon £ Million

UK government gults

2 25% UK Treasury 07/03/2014 94

5% UK Treasury 07/09/2014 74

5 8% UK Treasury 26/07/2016 ‘ 120

2 5% UK Treasury Index Linked 17/07/2024 173

2% UK Treasury Index Linked 26/01/2035 216 677

AAA rated money market funds

BlackRock 1121

HSBC 94 4

Insight 850

Legal & General 750

Scottsh Widows 650

JP Morgan 550

RBS 348

Santander 10 5223

Bank balances

UK banks* 194 5

Others 26 197 1
787 1

* HSBC, Barclays, Lloyds, Bank of Scotland, RBS, Santander, NatWest and Metro Bank
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Solvency II

Natianal regulators are required to implement the Solvency 1T regulations (when finalised) on 1 Jarmary 2016 As noted previausly, we
do not believe the Group will be adversely impacted by the new requirements and expect to see a reduction m the total capital we are

required to hold for regulatory purposss

Share Options Maturity

At 31 December 2013, there were 6 8 mullion share options outstanding under the various share option schemes whch, if exercised,

will provide up to £19 1 mulhon (2012 £34 0 million) of future capital for the Company

The table below provides a breakdown by date and exermise price

Average Number of
exercise  share options Potential
Earliest date of exercise price  ountstanding proceeds
£ Milbon £' Mallion
Prior to 1 Jan 2014 2 80 53 i4 8
Jan — Jun 2014 242 02 06
Jul —Dec 2014 - -
Jan — Jun 2015 296 03 0B
Jul —Dec 2015 275 03 20
Jan — Jun 2016 388 02 09
58 191
Section 5: Other Matters
This final section covers a number of additional areas that will be of interest to shareholders
Expenses
The table below provides a breakdown of the expenditure (before tax) for the combined financial services activities
Restared*
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Notes 2013 2012
£ Malhon £ Mallion
Pasd from policy margms and advice charges
Partner remuneration 1 407 1 3070
Investment expenses 1 101 8 89 4
Third party admnistration 1 377 328
546 6 429 G
Direct expenses
Other new business related costs 2 69.0 595
Establishment costs 3 113 4 1002
Academy costs 4 27 19
Other development costs s 8.5 46
Back office mnfrastructurc costs 6 5.0 -
Regulatory fees 7 116 i20
Regulatory change costs 8 31 60
Contribution from third party product sales 9 (20 4) 214
1929 162 8
7395 5518

* We have changed the presentation of this analyns of Group expenses to provide further information on corporate nitiatives, myestments 2nd other devtlopments The 2012

comparative bas been restated ro be 11 a consistent format
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F inanCial ReViGW continued

Notes

1 These costs are met from corresponding policy margins and any variation :n ther from changes in the volumes of new businesy or the Jevel of the stack markets docs not
directly impact the prefitabihity of the Campany

2 The other pew business velated costs, such as Partner incentinisation, vary with the level of new bumpess As new business rises or falls, shese cons will move 1n the

nding directien

3 Establishment costs ace the runniag costs of the Group’s infrastructure and are relatively fixed i nature 1n the short term, although they are subject to mflationary increases
These casts will {nerease as the infrastructure expands to manege the higher number of existing client= and the growth in the Partnership and business volumes
The growth 1 establishment expenses during the year was higher than our original expectanions as a consequence of an increase 1o expenditure associated with the hugh level
of Partner recruitment 1n the year together with the costs relating to the higher business volumes
We expect establishment expenses 1n 2014 to increase marginzlly ahead of our usual 10% aperating target reflecting the full year costs of the additronal infrastructure added
2013

4 Wehnereverted to showing the Academy costs separately given the importance of this Investment we are making for the future The 1ncrease in the costs i 2013 reflects
the increased namber of students wathin the programme
2014 wll see further growth o this jav as the Academy e3 to expand and with ths cormmencement of a regional academy :n Manchester later m the year

5  Other development costs represent the expenditure assocated with the on gaing development 1n our investment proposition, corporate mitiatives, technology improvements
and other system developments These costs will vary year by year depending upon the extent of change and/or 1nvestment planned
The development expenses were £8 5 mullion dunng 2013 (2012 £4 6 mullion) and we expect a further incredse in costs in 2014

6 Ajpannounced in the half year report, we have commenced an investment programme warking with our key outseurced provider to brmg together and enhance our *back
nfficc” systems, propare us for cantinued growth and achieve futur efficiency savings
As expected, the project costs for 2013 were £5 0 million and we anticapate expenditure of some £10 0 mallion during 2014

7 The regulatory easts ruproscnt the fues payable to the regulatory bodics of £6 1 mithon (2012 £5 7 miflian), together with our required contributian ta the Financal
Services Compensatfon Scheme of £5 5 zullion (2012 £6 9 malhon)

8 These are the onc-off costs ot changing pur systems anad process for the implementation of the adviser charging Tales As these changes have now heen implomented, we da
not expect further expend:ture in 2014

%  Cantribution from third party product now husiness refiuets the actinenme received from wealth management business of L8 2 mullion (2012 £7 8 million), from group
prasion business af 00 § muithon (2012 0 9 mulbion) and from Protcetion husness of £11 7 millon (2012 €32 7 milluony

Movement 1n Funds under Management
The table below shows the movement 1n the funds under management of the Group during the reporung period

Year Ended Year Eaded
31D b 1D b
2013 02
£ Billion £ Billion
Opeming funds under management 348 285
New money nvested 68 56
Investment return 52 30
46 8 371
Regular withdrawals/maturtties (0.7) 07
Surrenders/part surrenders (1.8) {1 6)
Closulgr funds under management 443 343
Implied surrender rate as % of average funds under management 4 7% 4 5%
Net inflow of funds £4,30bn £3 35bn
Net inflow as % of opening funds under management 12 4% 11 8%

Shareholders will be pleased to nete that the continved strong retention of funds under management, together with the level of new
money invested, provides for a net mflow of funds of £4 3 billien, £1 0 billion lugher than the prior year This net mflow represents
12 4% (2012 11 8%) of opening funds under management and can be viewed as the organic growth of the business

Noted below 18 an explanation of regular withdrawals, maturiues and surrenders

The regular withdrawals represent those amounts selected by chents which are paid out by way of peniodic income The
withdrawals have been assumed 1n the calculation of the cmbedded value new business profit

Maturities are those sums paid out where the plan has reached the selected matunity date (e g retirement date) The expected
maturities have been assumed 1n the calculation of the embedded value new business profit
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Surrenders and part surrenders are those amounts where clients have chosen to withdraw money from their plan Surrenders are
agsumed to occur 1o the caleulation of the embedded value new business profit based on actual experience, updated on an annual bass,
by plan duration and the age of the chent The implied surrender rate shown 1o the table above 1s very much a simple average and

reflects only recent experience Whlst 1t could be compared with the long-term assumptions underlying the calculation of the o
embedded value, 1t should not be assumed that small movements i this rate will result 1n s change to the long term embedded value E
assumptions g
Analysis of Funds under Management
The following table provides an analysis of the funds under management at 31 December 2013 sphit by geography and asset type
2013 2012

£' Ballion £’ Billion
UK Equities 133 106
North American Equities 84 48 T
European Equities 5.0 41 g
Asia & Paaific Equities 39 319 g_
Property 1.1 08 ¥
Fixed Interest 61 50 g
Alternative Investments 13 13 8
Cash 3.6 32 =
Other 1.6 13
Total 443 34 8
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Risk, Risk Management and

Internal Control

he mechanisms for :1dentifying, assessing, managing and

momtoring risks, mcludmg internal controls, are an mtegral
part of the management processes of the Group Understandmg
the risks we face, and managing them appropriately, enables
effective decision-makang, contrbutes to our competitive
advantage and helps us to achieve our business objectrves as set
out on pages 10 and 11 However, i establishing the system of
mternal control, the Directors have regard to the materiality of
relevant risks, the likelihcod of risks occurring and the costs of
mtigating risks The system 15 therefore designed to manage,
rather than elimmate, the nsk of faillure to achieve business
objectives and can provide only reasonable, not absolute,
assurance against material financial mis-statement or loss

Bask Management Framework

The Risk Management Framework, which 1s the responsibility of
the Board, enables the continuous identfication and assessment of
risks that may impact on the successful delivery of our Group
business objectives,

Overseeing our Risk Management Framework on behalf of the
Board 15 the Risk Commuittee This 1s made up of Non-executive
Board members and 15 responsible for ensuning that a culture of
effective risk wdentification and management 15 fostered acrass the
Group A report of their activity during the year 15 on pages 62
and 63

The Rusk Committee 1s supported by a Risk Executive
Commattee and the Rask Management team, which take the lead
n ensuring an appropriate framework 15 in place and that there 18
on-going development and co-ordination of risk management
within the Group

Ulumately, each division of the Group 1s responsible for
dentifying, managing and reporting 1ts own risks each quarter
Each nisk 15 assessed by considering its potential impact and the
probability of 1ts occurrence and impact assessments are made
against financial and non-financial metrics Establishment of
appropriate controls 1s a core part of the nsk management
process The Risk Management team supports Dmisional
mranagers m these activities
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Fmanaal Reporting Processes

Specifically i relatton to the financal reporting processes, the main features of the internal control and risk management systems

mclude

— Extensive documentation, operation and assessment of controls in key risk areas

— Monthly review and sign-off of all finaneial accounting data submutted by outsourced providers and the results of all suhadiares
within the Group

— Formal review of financial statements by semor management, for both individual companies and the consolidated Group

Control Self-assessment

In 2013, the Group has introduced a process of control self-assessments to support and challenge line m'«fnagers 1n therr nisk
management The process requires business arcas to review their key controls and sign-off on their efficacy Where appropriate, action
plans are documented to 1mprove the design and operation of the controls Following a successful pilot with some key areas the process
1s now being rolled-out more widely

Comphance with Cerporate Governance Code and Turnbull

These processes for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group have been in place for all of the year
under review and up to the date of approval of the Annnal Report and Accounts They are regularly reviewed by the Risk Commuttee
on behalf of the Board and accords with the Guidance for Directors in C 2 1 of the UK Corporate Governance Code and wath the
Turnbull Guidance for Directors on Internal Control

Ruske Appetite and Risk Policies

At the centre of our Risk Management Framework 1s the Risk Appetite Statement In our Rusk Appetite Statement, the Board clearly
sets out risk ‘houndaries’ 1 e a specificanon of the types of risks the Group is willing to take and to what extent The Statement i
regularly reviewed and updated to ensure that 1t continues to embody the values which drive how the Group conducts itself [t also sets
out how the Group operates in 1ts chosen business and specifies appropriate metrics for momtoring this

In support of our Risk Appetite Statement, we have a number of Risk Policies which clearly estabhish our objectives, prinaples and high
level management actrvities in relation to each of the main types of risk that the Group faces When analysing risks, we use these
categories to help improve understanding and management of our exposure

Risk Schedules and Key Risk Indicators

Corporate and Divisional risk schedules and quarterly Key Risk Indicator reports are produced to facilitate the momitoring of risks by
the Risk and Finance Executive Commuttees, Risk Commttee and Board The Rask Management and Finance functzons also monrtor
nrisk caprtal These schedules and ndicators provide a mechamsm for capturing and considening the sigmficant nisks facing the business
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Risk, Risk Management and

Internal Control s

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The following tables summarise the principal nisks and uncertainties that are inherent within both the Group’s business model and the

market 1n which we operate These principal risks and uncertamnties, and the hugh level controls and processes through which we aim to
mitigate them, are as follows

Risk

Descraption

Management and Contrels

Advice

Advice prven by an individual Partner or authorised by
the Group 1s deemed unsurtable leading to redress costs,
potentral reputational damage and prospective/

retrospective regulatory 1ntervention !

Advice guidelmes are agreed by technical speciahsts and
reviewed by Group manapement These guidelines are
supported by Traiming and Accreditation arrangements
with close comphance momtoring to ensure they are
followed Appropriate incentives exast to promote
Partner comphance, whilst non-compliance 15 subject to
censure and other sanchons The Group also has
appropriate Professmnal indemmity insurance 1n place

Distnbution
capability

The Group's distribution strength may be eroded due to
an mahility to recrut and retain Partners of the

appropriate quahty

We employ 2 number of speciahst managers specifically
to manage the recrmitroent and retention of hagh quality
Partners Formal retention strategies are 1n place to
ensure that, wherever possible, we retan good qualty
and experienced Partners All recrurtment and
retention activity 15 closely monitored We are also
continuing to develop the SJP Academy, overseen by

a dedicated senior management tearn, to broaden our
recruitment streams

Ethos

Changes to the SJP ethos and culture adversely mopact
the continning success of the business

We bave a range of strategic mechanisms in place
including, for example, regular surveys and consultation
groups, which enable us to monitor the sentument of our
staff and Partners We use these to identify any
potential adverse impacts upon, or trends within, cur
culture, which allows us to respond approprately

Investment
Management

Approach

Our approach to investment management may fail to
deliver expected returns to chents of the Group

We actively manage and monitor the performance of our
mvestment managers through the Investment Commuttee
which also makes use of firms of professional advisers

— led by Stamford Associates — to help them wath this
key task At the same time, and to ensure clients can
manage their risks as well, we offer a broad range of
funds, which allows client dversification and rutigates
our new business, persistency and market risks

Market changes

A new entrant or competitor 1 the adviser-based
wealth management market has an umpact on the
success of SJP’s business

We closely momtor competitor activity and the
marketplace for signs of any potenuial new entrants or
threats, for example, a crowding of the high net worth
marketplace if firms concentrate on wealthier clients
As noted above, we have a proven track record in
Partner acqusition and retention, which we believe
would make 1t difficult for a new entrant ta challenge
§]P's posinon In addition, more established SJP
Partnérs often have sigmficant equity stakes 1n their
practices and thewr ability to access these 1s structured
to aid retention
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Risk Description

Management and Controls

Outsourcing The Group’s dependence on outsourcing may come
under threat should any of its key investment
management or admimstration business partners
decide to exit the market, sygnificantly revise their

strategy or fail

We are a relationship business and beheve 1 the value
of mamtaimng close working relationships, particularly
with our outsourcing partners who are central to our
business model Our focus on positive relationships
means we are able to wurk effectively and efficiently
together to deliver the best result However, 1t also
provides protection as we would have warmng of any
material change that could significantly tmpact our
business In the extreme event, all our relationships are
governed by formal agreements with notice periods and
full exit management plans, and 1f required, strong
alterpative providers exust in the market Business
contimuty arrangements of each outscurcer are also
continually tested and 1mproved and scenario analysis
carrted out

In recent years we have commenced an investment
programme to bring our ‘back office’ admunistration
systems together, to accommodate continued growth
We beheve this imtiative has strengthened our business
admimistration outsourcing arrangements

Regulatory, That changes in the wider regulatory, legislative or tax

legslative environment could have an adverse impact on the

and tax Group’s business and/or the Group could face a fine or

environment regulatory censure from fatlure to comply with
applicable regulations

Our governance structures, management committees
and comphance momtormg activities seek to ensure we
remain comphant with regulation Our active approach,
to maintating aa opee aod mutually benefiaal
relatienship with our regulators provides intelligence
to mitipate the risk of operating 1n a nghly regulated
sector Membership of appropriate trade bodies can
also provide informaticn about proposed changes

The Group also engages the services of relevant

public relations and communteations consultants

|

‘ Retall Further changes to the market, following the

| Distnbution completion of the regulators’ review of outcomes and
l Review other thematic work, adversely impact the Group

During the period of implementing the onginal
changes, the strength of the relationship with our
clients was invaluable 1n sustaining both our chents and
our business through the period of change and
uncertainty We are monrtoring the regulators’ activity
and thinking, to mitigate as far a5 possible the risk

of any further changes ariaing from the Retail
Distnbution Review
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Risk, Risk Management and

Internal Control s

Other Key Risks and Uncertamnties
In addition to the principal risks and uncertainties mentioned above there are other key risks and uncertainnes that are inherent within
the bumnesses and markets in which we operate These are detailed 1n the following table under the relevant risk categories, together
with the high Ievel controls and processes through which we amm to mutagate these risks

Financial Risks

Risk

Description

Management and Controls

Credat

The sk of loss due to a debtor’s non-payment of a loan
or other hine of credit, including holdings of cash and
cash equivalents, deposts and formal loans with banks
and finanmal mstitutions

The Group has adopted a risk averse approach to credit
risk and has a stated policy of not actively pursuing or
accepting credit risk except when necessary to support
other business objectives Loans and advances to
Partaers are assessed on a prudent basis and momtored

carefully

Liquidaty

The risk that the Group, although solvent, exther does
not have available sufficient financial resources to enable
1t to meet 1t5 obligations as they fall due, or can secure
such resources only at excessive cost

The Group 1s averse to hquidity risk and seeks to
mrmmise this risk by not actively pursuing it except
where necessary to support other business chjectives
Generally, free assets are nvested m cash or near cash
assets with strong counterparties and the Group’s cash

-position and forecast are monitored on a monthly basis
The Group also makes use of some bank financing In
certain, unhkely, arcumstances (including change of
control) the terms of these agreements could mandate
unmediate repayment

Market

The risk of Ioss due to the 1mpact of movement 1n the
value of equity or other asset markets

The Group adopts a risk averse approach to market risk,
with a stated solvency policy of not actively purswing or
accepting market risk except where necessary to
support other business objectives Generally, free assets
are nvested 1n cash or near cash to minimise market
maovement 1apact However, future profits are
dependent on anuual management charges which wall
vary with market levels

Insurance

The risk that arises from inherent uncertamnties as
to the occurrence, amount and timing of insurance
hiabibties The Group assumes insurance risk by
1S5UIng Insurance contracts under which 1t agrees to
compensate the client af a specified future event
occurs

The Group has a medium appetite for msurance risk,
only actively pursumg 1t where benefimal, or 1n support
of strategic objectives  Histonically, the Group 1nsured
mortality and morbidity risks, through protection
business, but much of this risk has now been fully
remnsured through a combination of treaties Work
continues on an arrangement to fully reinsure the
remarning protecuon business wiich, 1f successful,
would leave only a small amount of mortahry risk
exlstmg on other mvestment and penston msurance
contracts The Group has no longevity risk as we have
never written annuity business

Further detail about the Group’s exposure to financial risks 1s included 1n Note 28 of the consolidated accounts
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St. James’s Place 1s commutted to
growing our busmess i a way that
considers the economic, social and
environmental impacts of what we do
We understand that responsible
management is important to all our
stakeholders — shareholders, chents,
Partners, employees, supphers and the
communities m which we operate.

O ur commitment to responsible management was established
1n the founding principles of the Company and 15 expressed
1n both the ‘Cur Approach’ document, which 1s shared with all
members of our community, and the “What 1t means to be a
member” brochure, which sets out the expectations for our
Partners ‘We believe responsible management 15 embedded 1n
our culture and exasts in the heart of our organisatzon
Reminders and encouragement to ive by this philosophy are
provided regularly, for example, through the promotion within
our community of the St James's Place Foundation and the
charrties 1t supports, through team meetings and by encouraging
our Partners and stafl to ive up to the high standards expected
of them

By hiving up to the expectations estabhished within our culture,
we believe we wili be able to demonstrate trustworthuness,
rehability and a commutment to the common goed In & world
where the reputation of the financial services industry 18
constantly under pressure, we aspire to create an authentic
alternative which chents and suppliers can trust, and whach the
communities we are part of can appreciate and admire

We are constantly seeking to improve our delivery, but recent

public endorsements mclude

— Various awards relating to our chent offermg inchuding the
City of London ‘Wealth Management Company of the Year’,
the Personal Finance Awards ‘Best Financial Adviser’ and
the Financial Times/Investors Chronicle “Wealth Meanager
of the Year’,

— Endorsement of our business model 1 the Shares Awards, and
by our peers, winming 1n the insurance sector the Britamn’s
Most Admured Compantes award, and

— Maintaiming our inclusion in the FISE4GOQCD Index, which
comprises campanies that meet globally recogmsed corporate
social responsibility eriteria
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CSR Governance

Responsible management 15 central to our culture, and the task of maintaining this culture (including our CSR ambitions) 1s a key focus
of the Executive Commuttee of the Board, comprising the four Executive Directors Oversight of this key aspect of our business 15
provaded by the full Board

The Executive Commuttee of the Board 1s supported 1n this objective (as 1n all of their work) by a number of sub-commuttees, which
are chaired by the Directors and which involve other members of sentor management Responsibiity for speaific areas has been further
delegated to a number of specialist sub-commuttees

Managing Committee Remrt
Our Culture and People Executive Commuttee of the To ensure the strength and maintenance of the unique culture
Board throughout the SJP commumnuty
Our Clients Chent Steering Group To monitor the chent care experience and promote high standards
1n all our interactions with chents
QOur Investments [nvestment Commuttee To ensure the Investment Management Approach and our fund
managers deliver 1n bne with mandates and chient expectations
CSR overview, Local CSR Group To co-ordmnate SJP’s approach to CSR, with particular focus on
Community, Suppliers and promoting local community engagement and environmental
the Environment matters
The 5t James's Place Foundation Trustees To manage the SJP Foundation, mcluding overseeing grant-making
Foundation and comphance with the charity’s objectives
Our Culture

Our culture 15 central to the success of our orgamsation and we are pro-actve 1n bulding and reinforang it

We recognise that as our business grows we will have to take care to ensure that the culture we have nurtured 15 able to retain its key
elements whilst evolving to continue to deliver business success Our employee numbers have grown beyond 1,000 m 2013 and the
number of Partners has increased to 1,958 Both are expected to continue to grow in future years

To ensure continurty of our culture, we ensure that all employees and Partners joinng the business are selected for ther it with our
corporate values, as well as their competency, and that they are grven a full induction as the first step 1n their career with our business

Atinduction, all employees and Partners recerve a booklet entitled “Our Approach’, which gives pwidance on the colture and values of
St James's Place We believe 1t 15 important for all areas of our community to know and understand our objectives, mcluding the ethos
behind the St James’s Place brand and how 1ts integrity and values should be maintamed We are keen to promote our corporate
culture and management style, to provide information about how we deal wath internal and external communications, and to
encourage a shared commitment to the 5t James’s Place Foundation

Members of the Partnershup are also provided with a document entitled "What 1t means to be 2 member’, which sets out a philosephy
and some principles We believe the shared comnutment to living up to these principles 1s what gives the Partnership 1ts competitive
edge and makes 1t a group of professionals that other advisers aspire to jorn  The document emphasises integrity, trust, openness,
partnership and teamwork and 15 demgned to puide individual and corporate actions, demsions and standards across oar commumty

Maintainimng the freshness of the commitment to 1ts culture 13 a key challenge for all businesses, and it 15 particularly relevant for SJP
given the growth which has been achieved 1n recent years We recognise this challenge and are pro-active 1n reinforcing our culture,
with key activities mcluding an Annual Company Meeting, employee and Partner Surveys, regular Partner meetings, feedback
opportumties for employees with Directors and a Leadership Conference for sentor management These activities all provide
opportunities to renew our joint understanding and encourage commitment to our shared culture The same activities also provide
opportumties for all of our commumty to develop a commen awareness of the financial and economic factors aﬁ'cctmg the
Company's perfermance
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Qur People

We are a people business and take pride 1n all our commumty
We believe that our success as a business depends on the loyalty
and dedication of our people, whether Partners or employees,
they provide the Group with a sustainable competitive advantage
and the attitude, knowledge and commutment of our people
contimues to be a strong differentiator

‘We aim to attract the best people and help them fulfil ther
potential ‘We secure their commitment by providing them with
an interesting and challenging carcer within a first class working
environment, and we seek to reward them competitively talung
1nto account the whole package and by encouraging equty
ownership We give credit where credit 1s due, and work hard
to recognuse individual performance

Employees

‘We are commutted to mamtaining an approprately skilled and
drverse workforce irrespective of age, sex, colour, race,
nationality, ethnicity or disability Information about the
breakdown of employees by gender 15 shown in the

following table

Female Male
Board Directors 2 8
Managers and decision-makers 42 262
Total employees 517 519

It 15 our policy to ensure that all job apphcants and employees
being considered for prometion are treated farrly and on merit

In particular, we strive to give full and fair consideration to
apphcations from and promotions of disabled people, having
regard to their particular aptitudes and ahilities, and where
appropriate, we will consider modifications to the working
environment so they can take up opportunities or enhance ther
role We will sumlarly make every effort to achieve contmuity of
employment in the event of an employee becommg ll or disabled,
for example, by arranging appropriate traumng By adopting best
practice principles we seek to ensure that cur respensibilities are
met as an equal opportunity employer and that everyone can
enjoy an environment that 1s free from discrimination of any sort

We have a calendar of regular communication with employees
and this mcludes an employee satisfaction survey which we
conduct every other year Our most recent survey was in 2012
and we received a strong survey response rate of 86% (compared
to 85% mn 2010) whach provided us with a good understanding of
how our employees are feeling on a number of important 1ssues
Our overall engagement acore was 86%, which was significantly
hagher than the financial services benchmark ot 73% We plan to
continue with the bi-annual process wlich means our next survey

will be 1n 2014

We are keen to ensure that all mdividuals are encouraged to
develop and are given opportunrties to seek new challenges across
the business We offer a range of development optiens which
reflect business priorties and offer employees the opportunity

to grow their careers with us For example

— we have bult on our apprenticeshp programme launched i
2012, retaining 100% of our il mntake of five and more
than doubling the size of the mtake 1n 2013 1o fourteen,

— we are members of the Institute of Customer Service (‘ICS"),
and have 2 number of employees involved in the scheme both
as candidates and mentors of others,

— we offer a rolling programme of Knowledge Development
Meetngs ('KDMs") which are short sessions available to all
employees to develop their knowledge of our business and the
external environment 1 which we operate,

— we support employees who want to achieve an externally
recogmsed professional qualification,

- we run management development activities for those with the

"interest and ability to develop their careers as leaders in our
business, and

— we offer spearhe development programmes for the specialist
roles within our Field Management Team

In 2013, the competitive nature of our rewards package for
employees was vahdated by a detatled review and companisen
with the wider financial services marlket

Partners

Each year, we consult with Parmers on a range of topics and we
continue to receive a good response rate with 74% of Partners
responding to our 2013 Partner survey (75% in 2012) The
research provides us with useful feedback on areas where
Partners beheve we are doing well and also where they beheve
unprovements can be made It was particularly pleasing to see
Partners giving an average scote of 8 6 out of 10 when asked to
rate the S]P proposition, with more than 90% of Partners rating
the proposition as better than 7 out of 10 However, some of the
feedback did reinforce the importance of focusing on mamtaiming
our commtment to our calture

Our separate research with new Partners, who we consult with
ance they have been with us for s:x months, continued
throughout the year Despite the increase in number of new
Partners joimng during the year, more than 85% of these new
recruts rated their initial months with the Partnership as 7 or
more out of 10 It1s also pleasing that more than 90% indicate a
willingness to recommend St James’s Place to former colleagues

Following the regulatory changes in 2012, 2013 saw the first
anniversary of renewals of Statement of Professional Standing,
confirming achievernent of continming professtonal development
which was successfully achieved by all of our Partners We are
pleased to conhinue providing support for those now pursuing
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further qualifications, with around halt of Partners having plans
to progress to Chartered Status To support this we have worked
with CII to develop a new St James's Place Advanced Module
which will enable our Partners to progress towards ther
Chartered level of professional qualification To further
demonstrate our commatment to professional development across
the organsation, we have also formed a partnership wath
Loughborough University and designed a Master’s Degree
Programme 1n Wealth Management, which will be launched 1n
2014 and will be available to all employees as well as members
of the Partnership

We are continuing to grow the St James's Place Academy,
providing an opportunity for stably qualified individuals to
receive tramning and assistance to join the adviser community

We offer three intake dates per year in London and are locking at
options to extend the Academy to a northern location in 2014
We have zlso launched a Next Generation Academy speafically
aimed at bringing ‘sons and daughters’ of existing Partners inte
their businesses This supports growth and helps build succession
for existing successful busmesses

Health and Safety

We work hard to create an excellent working environment for
employees and Partners  We cnsurc cvery office complies with
Health and Safety regulations and also seek to improve awareness
through regular traiming sessions on subjects such as manual
handling, fire marshal and first aider training

Each year, we carry out fire evacuation tests and health and safery
inspections, fire nsk assessments {every other year) and the
actions identified from these are completed appropriately and
overseen by the Health and Safety worlang group The worlung
group 1s chaired by the Operations Director and meets at least
quarterly to review polictes, review the progress agamst targets
and agree the action plan for the following year

"

Our Clients

Putting chents at the centre of everything we do 15 core to our
culture and business model, as outlined under the section Our
Business Model and Strategy on page 6§ Cur aim s to help chents
manage therr wealth in a way which reflects their personal
cIrcumstances

In order to ensure that our business continues to be chent-
focused, we have established a Client Steering Group which
meets regularly and monitors all areas of the busmess which can
affect the client experience Topies discussed cover all stages of
the chent hife-cycle, including the switability of advice, policy
administration, claims expertence and, where relevant, chent
complaints

During 2013, the group was able to recommend enhancements to

existing processes and the development of new 1deas to bring

about inprovements 1n the client expenence, including

— further development of our on-hne services, .

— the sharing of best practice client service examples with
Partners,

~ providing Field Management traxmng on the subject of good
client service, and

~ the completion of themanc research focused on key areas of

chent feedback

Despite recerving much positive feedback from clients, we never
become complacent and 1 2014 we will continue striving to
tmprove our support for chents

Community Activities

We are mmdful of the role that we play in cur local communities
and providing support to those less fortunate than ourselves was a
key founding prinaiple for the Company Thus resulted sn the
establishment of the St James’s Place Foundation mn 1992, a
grant-making charity which receives support from all parts of the
S5t James’s Place community employees, Partners, clients,
sapphers and shareholders During the year, the SJP commounrty
raised £2 6 million resulting 1n 2 matching grant from the
Company of £1 9 millien You can find cut more about support
for our Foundation and its activities on pages 48 to 50 or on the
website at www spfoundanon co uk

An important element of the grants distributed by our Foundation 1s
the focus on charrtzes and community groups which are local to our
offices In many cases, these are organisations that are also supported
by our employees or Partners

In 2013 we started a new corporate rmnative, seeking to
recogmse and support our employees who vohunteer Starting
with those mvolved m sport at a grass-roots level, and having
been inspired by the Olympics, we invited members of staff who
give up their time to support a local sports club or association to
apply for a small grant of up to £250 to be used for the benefit of
the club/associaton The mmitiative was successful and we plan to
repeat and extend this imtative 1n 2014

‘We are proud of the generous spirit of our employees and the fact
that, according to feedback from our most recent employee
survey, over 40% of them are actively engaged 1n volunteering in
their local commumities  This 1s an important part of gur culture
and 15 an area we are seeking to develop
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‘We are also pleased to be able to support British sport at all levels
and, 1n the year of & home Commonwealth Games, we are
pleased to be continuing our sponsorship of the Loughborough
Umiverstty Swimmung programme This enables the squad to
recezrve additional coaching, and, stnce our relationship started in
2007, the team have medalled 1n all major UK and Internatzonal
events including European, Commonwealth, World
Championships and Olympic Games Gur support for the
programme will continue at least until the 2016 Olympic Games
in Brazil

However, the central strand of actrvity 1 our local commurunes

remains our focus on schools and colleges The two key iubatves

are

- support for our local further education establishment,
Crrencester College, and

— developing our activity 1in supporting schools with delvery
of Financial Education

Crrencester College

Crrencester Cellege has over 1,600 students between the ages of
16 and 19 and our main mvolvement 1s 11 providing support for
the 'Acadermics Programme’, of which there arc tour, cach
designed for students who aspire to work 1n a particular market
sector These programmes are operated through the College’s
affiliation with the charity Career Acadermies UK ({CAUK’) We
regularly support students with paid summer 1nternshaps and also
provide extensive personal mentoring and business coaching

5t James’s Place sponsors a number of awards and continues to
have representation on the various Academy Boards at College
and National CAUK level We have also been able to offer 19
Academy students jobs followng their graduation, as a dwrect
result of our relationship with the College

A recent Academy graduate, who completed an Internship with
us, spake of his experience saying

‘When I started my Internship, I lacked confldence and wasn’t
sure what, if anything, I could contribute to a company like
Si. James's Place Iknew I was good with nambers, but ddn’t
think I interacted with people particularly well which has
always held me back However, as a result of my Internship
expertence and the requirement to work m an aﬁce
envirenment and frequently speak to people on the phone, I
have discovered that I am a ‘people person’ after all and I
dzdn’t even know 1t! This has really opened my eyes to new
opportunrties that previously I would have 1gnored as bemng
beyond me It was a real boost to my confidence and I can’t
rate my Internship experience hughly enough’

Fmancial Education

St James's Place 15 one of the leading providers of financial advice
to individuals and business ownersin the UK We firmly believe
that financtal education should start at a young age and, as part of
our work with the local cornmunity, we are looking to make use
of our expertise to also help young people learn to manage their
finances better

During the year, we continued our programme of work with
local schools i conjunction with The Money Charity (previously
Credit Action) 14 members of staff delivered hour long, financial
education sessions at a number of local schools to more than 500
pupils The feedback from pupils and staff was very posinve with
most pupils indicating that they understood more about the
financral demands they will face as & young adult

In 2013, we also started an wnitative, working with teachers from
local schools, to support them 1n the development of the financal
education curriculum m their own schools In previcus inrtiatives
we have used our resources to provide one-off events, 1n this
tutiative we are seeking to develop a sustamnable teaching
resource in each school, which can be used more flexably by the
schools smee 1t 1s not reliant on external input

During the course of a number of workshop days, teachers frotn a
number of local schools developed a set of topics and activittes
which can erther be used together to create a day dedicated to the
subject (‘stand-still’ day), or can be spread over the course of a
number of weeks 1f used in mdividual lessons The lesson plans
included topics within both the PSHE (Personal, Socal and
Health Education) and Maths curnculum and are targeted at
puptsin Year 9 or 10 In discussion with the teachers, 1t became
apparent that, when tallang about financial matters, it1s
beneficial for pup:ls to be able to hear the expertence of people
other than just their teachers, and so an important element of the
delivery 1s support prowided by volunteers from S[P The
materals were trialled as a dedicated day 10 November, with

200 Year 10 pupils, which was supported by eight volunteers
from St James’s Place The session was very much apprecrated by
both statf and pupils, and there were lots of :deas emerging about
how to 1mprove and further develop the materials In 2014, we
plan to work with the same schools to develop the materals
further and trial their use in other schools We will also explore
developing mater1als for older, pre-unversity, pupls
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Suppliers

St James's Place believes i treating all cur stakeholders fairly
We also believe 1n the benefits to be gamed from bwlding
long-term relationships based on mutual trust As a result, many
of our key suppliers have been associated with the Group for a
number of years and we have been able to cultivate very strong
and mutually benefictal relationships Key examples of the
positive and beneficial relationships we have been able to establish
with major suppliers are those with our providers of outsourced
admimstration services IFDS, Capita and State Street

More generally, we expect all our suppliers to act accordance
with the standards embedded in cur culture, and will undertake
due dihgence on new service providers to ensure we are
comfortable with their approach to socially responsible
management We are particularly pleased that many of our
suppliers share our deaire to make a pasitive and lasting difference
to the lives of those less fortunate than curselves, and we are very
grateful to all those who have provided support to the St James’s
Place Foundation, both through denations and through active
partictpation in many of the events

5t James’s Place has always placed great rehance on the support
of third party suppliers and the contumted success of our business
reflects, amongst other things, our success n cultivating and
managing successful relationshups with supphers We are pleased
to have signed up to the Prowpt Payment Code whach s
encouraged by the Department of Business Innovation and Skalls
(BIS) and demonstrates a commitment to good practice between
orgamsations and their suppliers Signatories to the Code commut
to paymg their supphers within agreed and clearly defined terms,
and comrmit also to ensuring that there 15 a proper process for
dealing with any 1ssues that may arise

Qur Investments

As a result of the success of our business, S5t James's Place 15 now
mvesting over £44 bilhon of assets on behalf of our chents Thas
gives us influence on stockmarkets and we recognise our
responsibibity for managing these mvestments in a socrally
responsible fashion

As described under the section Our Business Model and Strategy,
our mvestment management approach 1s at the heart of cur
mvestment proposition to clients, and this involves an active
approach to selecting and monitoring fund managers from around
the world, whilst retaining appropriate oversight responsibilities
Our fund managers will each have their own standards for how
they manage their portfolios responsibly, but as part of our
oversight we require that they all meet a minimum requirement

The Stewardship Code 13 a set of prinaiples or guidelines first
released 1n 2010 and updated 1n 2012 by the Financial Reporting
Council, directed at anstitutional investors who hold voting rights
m United Kingdom compames Tts principal aim 15 to ensure that
wmsttutional mvestors, who manage other people’s money,
actively engage 10 corperate governance m the mterests of their
beneficiaries (the shareholders) St James’s Place requires that
our fund managers should comply with these principles n full
and as part of our oversight of the fund managers we undertake a
process of momtoring annually

The Environment

St James’s Place 1s commutted to managing the Group’s
environmental impact through effective management of our
energy systems, travel, water usage and waste recychng ‘We
recogmuse the effect our business can have on imate change and
we take a posive approach to managing our business activities,
wlilst at the same ttme encouragmng all Partners and staff to
constder therr own personal unpact on the environment

We measure our environmental data from October to September
and the following tables summarise both our absolute and
nermalised CO,e emussions 1n recent years for our core business
activities, using 2013 conversion rates as provided by DEFRA for
all our ermssion categories We also report on levels of paper
recycled and water usage The data has been checked and verified
by RSK

Growth in staff numbers caused us to mss our target for Absolute
Emusstons related to business travel However, we beat out targets
on all other measures and were sigmificantly ahead of our three
year targets on all the key Normalised Emissions measures

A reduction 1n the number of bwldings during the period
contributed to the relative reduchion 1n water usage, while the
relative reduction 1n paper recycled reflected an overall reduction
1n paper usage as a consequence of the introduction of our
Electrontc Bustness Submission system 'We will be reviewing our
objectives 1n 2014 and setting new targets for the next pertod
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1 ) Absolute Emissions ( Core business operations, year te end September)

2013 Target % Change on 3 YR Target

Tonnes COle 2010 2011 2012 203 2010 2010-2013
Energy 2,954 2,947 2,683 2,704 2,844 -8 5% -4 0%
Business travel 1,137 1,i95 1,245 1,445 1,108 27 1% -3 0%
Waste 116 112 i1 108 110 -6 9% -5 0%
Total 4,207 4,254 4,039 4,257 4,062 12% -3 4%

CO,e = Carbon Dioxide equivalent — Methane and Nitric Aad are converted to Carbon Dioxide

Current targets were set1n 2010 for three years and will be reviewed again . 2014

Absolute change

Toones 2010 201 2012 2013 on 2010
Paper recycled 194 195 176 192 ~-1.0%
Absolute change

Cubic Metres 2010 2011 2012 2003 on 2010
Water usage 6,371 7,856 6,579 6,835 7.3%
2) Normalised Emissions (per person, year to end September) 2013 Target % Change YR Target
Tonnes CO e per perton 2010 2011 2012 2013 FTE/ COzc On 2010 2010-2613
Energy (FTO) 1 592 1 869 1611 1492 1 841 -25 1% -8 0%
Business travel (FTE) 1 638 1578 1 467 1442 1 466 -12 0% -11 0%
Waste (FTO) 0078 0071 0 067 0 060 0 071 -23 1% -10 0%
Total ' 3 708 3518 3 145 299 3378 -19 3% -8 9%
MNormahsed

Tonnes per parson 200 2011 2012 2013 change on 2010
Paper recycled (FT0) 0131 0124 0105 0106 -19 %
Normalised

Cubic Metres 2010 2011 2012 2013 change on 2010
Water used (FTO) 4 296 4 982 3 949 3770 -12 2%
Number of persons 2010 2011 2012 2043 2013 Target
FTO (Full Time Occupants, reflecting bulding sharing) 1,483 1,577 1,666 1813 1,531
FTE (Full Time Employees) 694 757 849 1002 742

Other Imtiatives
Carbon offsetting ~ Recogmsing that we are unable to reduce our carhon emissions tn a zera level while energy 15 primarily sourced
from fossl fuels, we have made arrangements ta offset our consumption through the purchase of carbon credits through the Carbon

Neutral Company

Electrome shareholder communications — We remain a member of the €Tree imhative (www €lreeuk com), which encourages
shareholders to recerve electronic communications, and 15 run n association with the Woodland Trust ‘Tree for All’ campaign
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Approval of the Strategic Report

As part of the Annual Report by the Directorsitis a statutory requirement to produce a Strategic Report
The purpose of the report s

‘to mform members of the Company and help them assess how the Directors have performed their duty under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006
(duty to promote the success of the Company) '

The objective of the report s to provide shareholders with an analysis of the Company's past performance, to impart msight 1nto 1ts
business model, strategices, objectives and prinaipal nsks and to provide context for the financial statements in the Annual Report

The Directors consider that the report, comprising pages 1 to 50 of this document, meets the statutory purpose and cbjectives of the
Strategic Report

On behalf of the Board

D Bellamy A Croft

Chief Executrve Chief Financal Officer
24 February 2014

Registered No 03183415




47

St James's Place plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013

Stratcgic Repore

Governance

Financial Statements

Other Information




48

St James's Place plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013

St. James’s Place Foundation

The St. James’s Place Foundation 1s a
grant-making charity with a difference,
reflecting the Group’s culture of giving
back to those less fortunate 1 society.
The vast majority of funds raised come

_from fundraising or generous donations
made by the Partners and employees of
St. James’s Place each year. These funds
are then matched pound for pound by
the Company.

The Foundatron has grown sigmificantly m the last 21 years and
has become one of the most successful company charities i the
UK with over £32 nuilon raised and distributed to good causes
during thus period

The Foundation Trustees are immensely proud of the fact that
over 80% of the St James's Place Community give regularly to
the Foundation through therr pay or earnings The Foundation
receives almost £1 million annually through regular monthly
donations (before company matching) and it 15 this on-gomng
support that enables the Foundation to support charines over a
mamber of years with multi-year grants and to grow the amounts
gven to good causes which match the Foundation’s themes

2013 Review

2013 has been a successful year for the Foundation with over £4 5
rmullion ratsed, thanks to the commitment to fundraising by our
commumty On top of the support recerved from regular monthly
contributions, a number of successful events were held 1n 2013,
rasing over £1 muilhon before matchuing, including a canoe
challenge, walks/treks, cycle rides, spinathon, dinners/balls, golf
days, runs, trrathlens, cake bakes and the hke The Foundation
Trustees would like to thank everyone whe has contributed m any
way to Taising over £4 5 muilliop duning the year
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Furthering Our Reach —~ Helping those who need it most
Our continued success with fundrasing has meant that the
Foundation has been able to further 1ts reach by donating in
excess of £4 muillion to pood causes i 2013 both in the UK and
overseas, together with a further £4 mllion pledged as multi-year
grants to charities over the next three years subject to the
satisfaction of varnous conditions

The Foundation makes donations of all sizes, from a few hundred
pounds to donations of over £1 milion, with a particular focus on
small to medium size chanties whom the Trustees believe are
best equipped to make a positive and lasting difference to people’s
hves Charities are selected based on the suitability of their
project and whether or not the work they do matches the
Foundation’s grant making themes and criteria These themes
currently mclude cancer, the hospice movement and support for
children and young people with disabilities, hife imiting illnesses
or those who are disadvantaged socrally or economically

These themes have been chosen by our community and are
regularly reviewed and updated

In addition to small grants of over £900,000, the Foundation has
been able to make three major capital tnvestments 1n 2013 These
caputal projects will, once they have been completed, play a major
partn ensuring that hundreds of deserving chuldren and young
people are given the chance of iving more fulfilling lives and
reaching their full potential

Swule, Support & Care

The St James's Place Foundation has donated £1 milhon to the
chanty Smule, Support & Care to help build a new respite centre
for disabled cluldren and their fambes bving 1n Hampshire, West
Sussex, Dorset and Wiltshire

The centre, which 15 due to open i m1d-2014, will provide
comfortable accommodation 1 peaceful surroundings and be
avatlable to children with varying needs, including the most
severely disabled children who require specialist care and round
the clock professional support The new centre will enable short
breaks for a disabled chuld at the same time gaving the child’s
parents or carers the chance to have some respite, providing a

holiday for all

www smilesupport org uk

Chucks

Chucks 13 a national children’s chanity providing the most
disadvantaged children in the UK, aged between 8 and 15, respite
breaks at therr current centres in Devon and Cornwall Founded
1n 1992, CHICKS offers breaks to over 1,200 disadvantaged
children a year, many of whom are young carers and often 1t’s the
first *holiday’ they have ever had Generally lashing a week, the
children get to experience activities such as pony treklang,
swimmng and rock cimbing, as well as trips to the beach and
z0o, and many revisit the centres annually The charity also keeps
m touch with the children throughout the year, especially at
vulnerable tmes like Christras and seeks ways to ensure longer
term impact for each child visiting their centres

The Foundation has agreed a ‘match fund’ donation of £750,000
towards the conversion and refurbishment of a new centre on the
Staffordshire/Derbyshire border, to enable the charity to offer
further respite breaks to those hiving in the Midlands and North

www chucks org uk
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Onside

Finally, the Foundation has also pledged

£1 mullion to the youth charity Onside, to be matched by The
Queen's Silver Jubilee Trust, towards the building of two new
youth centres mn Wolverhampton and the Wirral, both set to
openin 2015 The new centres will give young people in these
two locations (ranked 40th and 60th respectively m the list of the
UK’s most deprived areas) the opportunity to participate
activities that would otherwise be out of their reach

Onside 15 a nattonal charity with one simple, but almost
old-fashioned, aim — to buald a network of 21st century youth
centres, giving young people quality, safe and affordable places
1o go in their lessure time

The new centres are modelled on the hugely successful Bolton
Lads and Girls Club, which has served the young of Bolton since
1889 and 15 the UK's largest single youth club with nearly 3,500
regular members Onside was established to replicate this success
1n other towns and cittes by providing a broad range of high
quahty faclities and activities, such a dance studios, climbing
walls, art studios, gyms, enterprise hubs, football pitches, as well
as carefully designed spaces for youth work and mentoring

Onade currently has five centres located in Carlisle, Blackburn,
Oldham, Manchester and Wagan, together supporting over
10,000 young people a year, with a vision to have 20 centres

m aperation by 2020

www onsideyouthzones org

Sport for Good — Helping young people by harnessing
the power of sport to change young lives

Thus year, the Foundation has continued to support seven
independent partner charities through the Sport for Good
programme Through the overall investment of £1 74 million the
hives of over one million disadvantaged and disabled children have
been improved in the last two years of the project The seven
charities include local chanties Greenbank Sports Academy and
Poaitive Futures in Laverpool, Disability Sport Wales, Norwich
Communmnity Sports Foundation and Keyfund in the North East
The charities which operate nationally include Panathlon
Challenge and Laureus/Active Communities Network who work
m partnership to dehiver the Urban Stars project

In 2013 alone, a total of £580,000 has been donated wia the Sport
for Good programme and this mvestment has enabled each and
every chanty (whether local or national) to thrive, with three of
the seven chanties exceeding thewr expected targets for the year
with the support of the Foundation

Plans for the Future

The Foundation plans to build on the success achieved over
the last few years by contimung to grow our fundraising and
mvesting 1 worthwhile chartable projects mn the UK

and overseas

In addrtion to the employees and Partners contnibuting to the
Foundation on a monthly basis, we also have a number of exating
fundraising events planned for 2014 We have no doubt that the
SJP Community will contmue to support the Foundation to
achieve 1ts objectives 1 2014 and beyond
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Board of Directors

Chairman

Sarah Bates
Chatrman (Rem until the AGM) (N)

Executive Directors

David Bellamy
Chief Executive

Andrew Croft
Chuef Financial Officer

Sarah joined the Board as an independent Non-
executive Director yn 2004 and she was appointed
Chawrman on 1 January 2014 She is Chair of the
Remuneration Commttee {from whach position she
will retire at the AGM) and she retired from the
Investment Commttes on 31 December 2013
Sarah has over thirty years' investment experience
and a considerable amsunt of board and semor
management experience She 1y Charrman of

JP Morgan American Investment Trust plc,
non-executive and senior independent director

of Development Securities ple and Witan Pacihic
[nvestment Trust, and a non-executive darectar
of Polar Capital Technology Trust and Worldwide
Healthcare Trust ple She 13 a member of the
Investment Comrurtee of the Univeraties
Superannuation Scheme and an adwiser to the East
Rading Penmon Scheme She 1s Chairman of the
CRC Pension Fund mvestment commuttee and
was previously Charrman of the Association of
Investment Companies

Key

{A) ~ Member of the Andit Commuttee

(R) — Member of the Risk Commuttes

(Iy — Mgmber of the Investment Commitice

(Rem) — Member of the Remuneration Committee
{N) — Member of the Nomiation Commtter

Dawid jo:ned the Company in 1991 apd was apponted
to the Board 10 1997, before becoming Chaef
Executlve 1n 2007 He previously fulfilled a number
of rolesat St James's Place including Group
Operations Director and Managing Director David
has worked in the financial services Industry since
1973 and 15 a Trustee of the St James's Place
Foundation He 1s also 2 metnber of the Financal
Conduct Authority's Practitioners Panel

Ian Gascoigne
Managing Director

Andrew jowned the Comnpany 1o 1993 and has been
Chief Financial Officer since 2004 He quabfiedasa
Chartered Accountant at Prcewaterhouse Coopers 1n
1988 and has a degree n Accounting and Economics
from Southampton Unrversity Andrew 1sa Trustee of
the St James’s Place Fourdation During 2013 he was
appointed a lay adviser to the Finance & IT Board of
the Royal College of Surgeans of England

David Lamb
Managing Director (1)

lan has worked in the financial services Industry since
1986 and joined the Company in 1991 He was
appotated to the Board 1n 2003 He has » degree from
Lancaster University and an MA frem Leicester
Upiversity lan isa Trustee of the St James's Place
Foundation He 1s also on the Advisory Board of
Loughborough Umversity Business School

Dawd jomned SJP 10 1992 and was appomted to the
Board 1o 2007 He 15 2 member of the Investmant
Commuttee and a Trustee of the St James's Place
Foundation David 15 2 non-executrve director of The
Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust plc,
a durector of the Wealth Management Associanon, a
member of the Counal for the CRI (South West) and
Gavernor of the University of the West of England
He 15 a graduate of Cizy University, London and a
Fellow of the Institute of Actuanes
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Non-executive Directors

Vivian Bazalgette
Independent Non-executive Director

(1) (Rem) (A)

Sumon Jeffreys
Independent Non-executive Director
{(A)(Rem)

Tain Cornish
Senior Independent Non-executive
Director (A} (R) (N)

Vivian joined the Board 1n July 2011 as an
independent Non-executive Director and 15 Charr of
the Investment Committee He 1s also a member of
the Remuneration and Audit Commuttees Vivian has
a wealth of board and sentor management experience
and has gver thirty years’ expenience of investment
markats He 15 a non-executive director of
Henderson High Income Trust ple, The Brunner
Iovesmaent Trust plc and Perpetual Income & Growth
Irvestmeot Trust ple  Vivian is curreatly Vice
Charrman of the Governors of Dulwich College and
advises the BAE Systems Plc Pension Fund and the
investipent Commuttee of the Nuffield Foundation

Baroness Wheatcroft
Independent Non-executive Director

(R) (Rem) (N)

Sumon was appointed to the Board as 2n independent
Non-executive Director on 1 January 2014 and 152
member of the Audit and Remuneraton Conmumittees
He wall become Chair of the Andit Comrmttee on

1 March 2014, following the finalisatian of the 2013
accounts Simon was a partner wath
Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP (1986-2006} where
he Ted the firm’s Global Investment Management
practice, after which he jomed Fidehry International
Limuted as Group Chudf Admunustrative Officer
(2006-2008) He » now Chuef Cperating Officer

of Wellcome Trust and non-executive drector at
Heoderson International Income Investment Trust,
Aon UK Limited, and SimCorp A/S, a Damsh
publicly listed financial servaces seftware company

Roger Yates
Independent Non-executive Director

(R) (Rem)

Baroness Wheatcroft was appomted to the Board as
an independent Non-executive Director m April 2012
and ts a member of the Risk, Nommation and
Remuneration Commuttees Baroness Wheatcroftisa
member of the House of Lords and s currently 2
non-executve dwector of FIAT S p A and of the
Association of Leading Visitor Attractions She
became chairman of the Patrons Commuttee and

of the Investment Committee of the British Museum
1n 2013 Barcness Wheatcroft has considerable
experience of the media and journalsm and was
previously Editor-m-Chief at the Wall Street Journal,
Europe, 2 former Editor of the Sunday Telegraph and
was Business end City Editor of The Tunes between
1997 and 2006 5he hag been anon executive
director of Barclays Group ple 2nd Shaftesbury ple
and acts as an adviser to, or member of, various other
bodes, including the UK /India Round Table

Roger was appointed to the Board as an independent
Non-executive Director on 1 January 2014 and 152
member of the Rask and Remuneration Commuttees
He wiill become Chair of the Remuneration
Comnuttee after the Annual General Meeting1n
2014 Roger has over 30 years of investment
management experience at Morgan Grenfell, Invesco
and Henderson Group ple, where he was Chuef
Executive Officer (1999-2008), and as an
mdependent non-executive director at F&C Asset
Management ple (2009 oaly) He s currently
ron-executive Chairman of Pioneer Global Agset:
Management § p A and Electra Private Equity ple
and a non-execonve director of |P Morgan Electple
and IG Group Holdngs plc

Iain jorned the Board as an independent
Non-executive Director in October 2011 He was
appointed as Senror Independent Director and as
Char of the Risk Commuttee on 1 Jantary 2014 He
15 currently Charr of the Audit Commattee but wall
step down as Chair from | March 2014 when Simon
Juffreys will become Char He 1s also a member of
the Nomnanon Commuttee lamn has considerable
board and semor management expenience and was
Chuef Execunve of the Yorkshire Buldmg Socety
fram July 2003 unt1l December 2011, having jomed
the Soaery m 1392 Pror ta joining the Society, he
was a Semor Consultantin KPMG's Strategy Services
Consultancy Practice, specialising 1o banlkang and
finance sectar consultancy projects lanisa
non-executive director of Arrow Global Group ple,
and 15 an independent director of the Prudential
Regulation Authority He also served as amember
of the FSA Pracitioner Panel from 2007 to 2011,
becorming Charrrnan 1 2009
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Chairman’s Report

Sarah Bates

Chatrman

I am pleased to be making my first report as Chairman of

St James's Place During my time as an independent
Non-executive Director of St James's Place [ have been fortunate
enough to serve the Board 1n many capacities, starting with the
Investment Commuttee and Risk Commuttee, but more recently
as Semor Independent Director and Chair of the Remuneration
Committee [n my new role, I will also charr the Nomination
Commuttee As aresult, | know the Company well and am proud
to have been a Board member during a period of growth for
clients, shareholders and employees

That growth has been strong and the success has been reflected 1
a number of ways, including the recognition given to us by
vartous industry awards such as Britain's Most Admired Company
(Top 1n Sector) award from Management Today, but also 1n the
progression of our stock market ranking As a Board, our task
over the next few years 1s to maintam such safe and sustainable
growth as 15 in the interests of all our stakeholders Our challenge
15 threefold
- to maintain those characteristics which have led to the success
of the Company over the last 23 years,
— to adapt to the changing world around us and the opportunsties
1t provides, and
~ to buald the management team and approach for the next
20 years

More information 18 provided in the next few pages about how
your Board works, and 1n particular the formal structures which
are necessary and helpful in ensuring sound corporate
governance However, I beheve (along with many commentators)
that these structures are not, on their own, sufficient to safeguard
the interests of clients and shareholders What 1s necessary 1n
addition 15 a set of values, a culture and an operating approach,
which together support the effective stewardship of shareholders’
and chents’ interests The Board must therefore be prepared to be
congistent and clear-sighted 1 continung 1ts leadership, support
and oversight of that culture and i particular the principle that
St James’s Place will seek to do the right thing tor its clients and
thus for its shareholders This wall be my main aim 1n provading
leadershup to the Board

Board Composition
Reflecting the continuing growth of cur Company and the sale of
the Lloyds Banling Group {‘'LBG’) shareholding, the Board has

seen a number of changes over the last financial year

At the end of 2013, Charles Gregson stepped down as Chairman
m order to be able to devote more time to s other directorshups
We are grateful for hus contnbunpn as both a Non-executive
Director and then Charrman Mike Power also stepped down at
the end of the year, having been Chair of the Risk Commttee and
having contributed considerably to the way we think about nsk
over the last mne years However, we are pleased he will remain
as an mdependent Non-executive Director on the Board of

St James's Place International ple, the Group's Dublin-based hfe
company At the same time, Jamn Cormsh became the Semor
Independent Director and Chairman of the Risk Committee

There was much change in the representation of LBG on the
Board during the year Firstly, in June, Steve Colsell was replaced
by Sue Harris and Alhison Hewitt However, following the
completion of the sale of the LBG shareholding, both Sue and
Alison also stepped down from the Board We are grateful for the
support and msights of all those Directors who have represented
LBG during recent years
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Finally, as part of our process of ongong renewal of the Board,
we appomnted two new Non-executive Directors Simon Jeffreys
has a wealth of audit and finaneal services experience and we are
pleased that he will be taking over as Chair of the Audit
Committee in March 2014 Roger Yates has extensive knowledge
and expenence, particularly of the mvestment industry, and we
are pleased that he will be takang over as Chair of the
Remuneration Commuttee following the AGM We look forward
to the expertise and experience they will bring to the Board

The Future

2013 was a very significant year for St James’s Place and its
shareholders Over the course of 12 months our shareholder base
has been transformed and we have welcomed new wvestors from
around the world However, our ambitions for the future haven't
changed We remain a well-respected and trusted provider of
high quality advice and wealth management services, and we will
continue to build on that success But we know that our success
stems from our culture, and so we will continue to focus on our
values, and 1n particular on dotng the nght thing for our ehents
and thus for our shareholders

Ilook forward to working with the Board on these aspirations

o

Sarah Bates
Chairman

24 February 2014
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Corporate Governance

Board Leadership

Your Board 15 responsible for providing entrepreneurial leadership
and direction to the Company, as well as setung out its strategrc
alms, vision and values [tisalso responmble for ensuring that
adequate controls exist in order to deliver value to shareholders
and other stakeholders who derive benefit from our activities

How have we complied with the UK Corporate
Governance Code?

Under the UK Listing Rules, UK listed companies are required
to state whether they have complied with the provisions of the
UK Corporate Governance Code {the ‘Code’) during the year,
and where they have not complied, they are required to explan
such non-compliance Details of how the Company has applied
the principles of the Code are set out 1n this report, other than
the prineciples of the Code relating to remuneration, which are set
out in the Remuneration Report on pages 68 to 92 Your Board
considers that the Company has fully complied with all of the
Code’s provisions duning 2013 The provisions of the Code can be
found on the Financial Reporting Counal’s website, at www frc
org uk

How did your Board carry out its work during 2013?
Dunng the year, six formal Board meetings were held, including
a full day Board Strategy meeting, and two ad hoe Board meetings
were held by telephone conference call Directors’ attendance at
Board meetings can be found on page 58

Board Committee

Report

For each Board meeting, all members of the Board are supphed with
an agenda and pack contarning reports and management information
on current trading, operational 1ssues, comphance, rsk, accounting
and finangal matters The Chairs of the various commttees of the
Board also report to the Board at each Board meeting and copies of
committee meetng minutes are included 1n Board packs

Whulc the Board has a formal schedule of matters speaifically
reserved for 1t, it acknowledges that it is respongible for focusng
on growing the business successfully by developing and prometing
appropriate polices and procedures and encouraging a culture of
innyvation and continual improvement Matters speaifrcally
reserved to your Board are set out below

~ deteromning the overall strategy of the Company,

— ensuring that the Company’s operations are well managed and
proper succession plans are 1n place,

— reviewing major transactions or intratives proposed by the
Executive Directors,

= lmplementmg appropriate corporate governance procedurcs,

— penodically reviewnng the results and operations of
the Company,

— ensuring that proper accounting records are mamtained and
adequate controls are in place to safeguard the assets of the
Company from fraud and other sigmficant risks,

— wdentifying and managing risk, and

— decading the Company’s policy on chartable and
political donations

5t. James's Place plc

structure

Shareholders

(Matters reserved to AGM)

5t. Jarmes’s Place plc Board
{Chair = Sarah Bates)
{Maviars ressrved to Board)

Remuyneration
Committee
{TOR) {(NEDs)
(Chawr = Sarah Bates)

Audit Committee Risk Commitiee
(TOR) (NEDs) (TOR) {NEDs)
(Chair = {ain Cornish) [ (Chair = lain Cornish)

Investment
Committee
(TOR) (IMA)
{Chair =Vivian
Bazalgette)

Executive Board Neomination
{Execs} Committee
(Chair = David (TOR) (MEDs}
Bellamy) (Chair = Sarah Bates)

SJPi Board (BCM
& Matters Res)
(Chair = A Croft)

Risk ExCo
{Chair = B Tonls)

Finance ExCo
(Chair = A Croft)

Operations &
Infrastructure ExCo
(Chair = 5 Gravestock)

Distribution ExCo
(Chair = | Gascoigne)

Investment ExCo
{Chair=D Lamb)

Remstered No 03183415




St James’s Place plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013

57

How are other matters delegated to your

Board’s Commattees?

Operational matters are delegated to management via the Board’s
Executive Commuttee, comprising the Executive Directors of the
Board (the ‘Executive Board”) The Executive Board 15
responsible for communicating and implementing the Group’s
business plan objectives, ensuring that the necessary resources are
putin place to achieve those objectives and managing the
day-to-day operational activities of the Group The level of
committees below those of the mam Board committees assist the
Executive Board 1n executing these responstbilities

The Company maintains a Board Control Manual which sets out
the primary pelicy and decision-making mechamsms within the
Company It includes the terms of reference for the varous
commuttees of the Board, the Company’s risk pohcies and sk
appetate statement In additton, detailed job descriptions for each
Executive Director are ineluded, as well as a general job
description outhning the responsibilities of the Non-executive
Darectors The Board Control Manual 1s updated by the Company
Secretary and approved by the Audit Commuttee on an annual
basis

How 15 your Board Orgamsed?

The Roles of the Chawrmuan and Chief Executive

Sarah Bates was appoimnted as Chairman on 1 January 2014,
following the resignation of Charles Gregson from the Board on
31 December 2013

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman of the
Board, Sarah Bates, and the Chief Executive, David Bellamy, are
clearly defined and documented As Chairman, Sarzh 1s
responsible for leadership of the Board, ensuning 1ts continued
cffectivencss, and also promoung effective communication
between the Executive and Non-executive Directors, and with
shareholders generally As Chief Executive, David Bellamy's
primary responsibility 15 to manage the Company via the
executive management team and implement the strategies

adopted by the Board

The Senitor Independent Director

Tain Cormsh 1s the Semor Independent Director, having
succeeded Sarah Bates in January 2014 The Semor Independent
Director acts as a sounding board and confidant for the Charrman
and the Non-executhive Directors lain ensures he 15 available to
meet with shareholders and rases sharehelder concerns with the
Board that are not resolved through normal channels

Ensuring Independence

When determiming whether a Non-executive Director is
independent, your Board considers each individual ageinst the
critena set out 1n the Code and also considers how they conduct
themselves in Board meetings, including how they exercise
judgement and independent thinking Taking these factors nto
account, the Board believes that all Non-executive Directors
continue to demonstrate their independence

Procedures to Deal with Conflicts of Interest

Ragorous procedures are in place to deal with potential or actual
conflicts of interest Under this procedure, the relevant Director
must disclose to the Board the actval or potential confiict of
interest for discussion by the other members of the Board The
Board will consider the potential conflict on 1ts particular facts
and decade whether to waive the potential conthet and Zor unpose
conditions on such warver, 1f it believes this to be 1n the best
interests of the Company Caonflict authorisations are reviewed
annually by the Board

Darectors’ and QOfficers’ Indemnity and Insurance

The Company has taken out msurance covering Directors and
officers against liabihties they may incur n therr capacity as
Directors or officers of the Company and 1ts subsidianies

The Company has granted indemnittes to all of its Directors (and
Darectors of subsidiary companies) on terms consistent with the
applicable statutory provisions Quahfying third party mmdemmty
provisions for the purposes of section 234 of the Companies Act
2006 were accordingly in force during the course of the financal
year ended 31 December 2013, and remain m force at the date of
this report

How are your Board Commuittees Structured?

There are five commuttees of the Board  Audit, Investment,
Normnation, Remuneration, and Risk The membership and
terms of reference of the commutices are reviewed annually and
the terms of reference are available on the corporate website
{(www sjp co uk}, or on request from the Company Secretary
Biographical details for members of these Commuttees are set out
on pages 52 and 53
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Corporate (Fovernance Report contunued

Attendance at Meetings
The attendance by individual Directors at Board meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2013 was as follows

Board

_ 6 meetings)

Sarah Bates 6/6
Vivian Bazalgette 6/6
Dawid Bellamy 6/6
Steve Colsell®” 3/3
lain Cormish 6/6
Andrew Croft 6/6
[an Gascoigne &/6
Charles Gregson‘” 6/6
Sue Harrst"? 2/3
Alison Hewntt™ 3/3
David Lamb 6/6
Make Power® 6/6
Barconess Wheatcroft 6/6

(1) Steve Colsell ceased being a member of the Board with effect from 1 June 2013
and Sue Harns 2nd Alison Hewitt were appointed non-1ndependent Non-executive
Directors on 1 June 2013, a3 representatives of Lloyds Banking Group ('LBG')
pursuent to the Relatonsbip Agreement between the Company and LBG Under
this agreement, LBG was entitled to appoint up to two Noa-txecutve Directors
to the SJP Board The agreement terminated 1n accordances with 113 terms on
13 Desember 2013 following the disposal by LBG of ns sharcholding m $]P Asa
consequence Sue Harris and Alison Hewatt etased being members of the Board
with effect from 31 December 2013

(2) Charles Gregson and Mike Power ceased being members of the Board with effect
from 31 December 20i3

The Group Risk Director 15 invited to attend some Board
meetings during the year to present his Group Rask report He
also attends Risk and Audit Commuttee meetings during the year

How 1s your Board Supported?

Induction and Contimung Professional Development

An appropriate induction programme 15 designed to enable new
Directors to meet senior management, understand the business
and future strategy, the mam risks patentially affecting the
Group, vt office locations and speak directly to Partners and
staff around the country

During 2014, the Chairman and the Company Secretary will
continue to implement the induction programmes for Simon
Jeffreys and Roger Yates, and will 2lso ensure continung
professional development for all your Directors, based on their
mdividual requirements This includes training on topical 1ssues,
visits to head office and other locations to meet with stafl and
members of the Parfnershlp and attend seminars or other events
taking place throughout the year In addition to this, ad hoc
traimng 15 set up in the year to deal with individual requests and
the Non-executive Directors are able to attend semnars or
conferences which they consider will assist them in carrying out
their duties Non-executive Directors are briefed on the views of
major shareholders at Board meetings and are provided with the
opportunity to meet with shareholders, as necessary

Directors have access to the advice of the Company Secretary at
all times, as well as independent professional advice where needed
wm order to assst them 1n carrying out their duties

Board Evaluation

Following the externally-led evaluations carried out by
Independent Audit Lumited 1n 2011 and 2012, and 1n hght of the
significant changes to the Board during the year, the Board
undertock a formal internal evaluation exeraise 1n 2013 The
Chairman assessed the individual performance of each of the
members of the Board by a process involving interviews with each
Board member, and the provision of feedback where relevant
This process also enabled the Chairman to review the completion
of the varous actions ansing from the Board evaluation carred
out 0 2012 and to carry out a handover process with the
incoming Chairman, Sarah Bates, prior to lam stepping down
from the Board at the end of 2013

Relations with Shareholders

The Board mamtains close relationships with mstitutional
shareholders through dialogue and frequent meetings and the
Chief Financial Officer provides feedback to the Board on any
materal topics raised by shareholders The Company also meets
regularly with the Group’s brokers who faclitate meetings with
wvestors and their representatives The Chairman, Semor
Independent Director and other Non-executive Directors are
available for consultation with sharehclders on request Board
members receive copies of the latest analysts’ and brokers’ reports
on the Company and attend shareholder and/or analyst meetings
from time to time
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Rep‘ort of the Audit Committee

Iain Cormsh

Membership and Attendance 1n 2013

Commuttee members Attendance
Iain Cormish 6/6
Vivian Bazalgette 6/6
Mike Powerl” 6/6

(1) Mike Power ceased being 2 member of the Committee on 31 December 2013 and
Simon Jeffreys jomned the Commuttee on § Januarv 2014

Role of the Commuttee 1n Summary

— To be responsible for the accuracy and integrity of the Group’s
financial statements,

— To review the external auditors’ reports thereon,

— To monitor the effectiveness of the Intei nal Audit function,

— To ensure the effectiveness of the systems of internal cantral,

— To review, and where appropriate refer on to the Board, any
sigmificant control failures, and

— To report to the Board on how 1t has discharged
1ts responsibilitics

The mtegrity of the Company's financral results and the
effectiveness of 1ts internal control systems are of utmost
importance to the Directors The Audit Commuttes assists the
Board 1n 1ts oversight and monitormg of financial reporting and
wternal controls, by testng and challenging these areas and
working 1n conjunction with management and the external and
internal andrtors as appropriate

The key actinities of the Commttee during 2013 mcluded

-~ reviewing the annual and half yearly Report and Accounts,
and assouated announcements, including the external
auditors’ reports,

~ momtoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Internal
Audt function, including progress agamst the Internal Audat
plan,

— engaging with development of the Internal Audit plan for the
year and subsequently considering the results of the Internal
Audit activity, particularly the major areas of internal audit
focus duning the year, and

— considenng the results of the Internal Control
Evaluation process

The Commuttee also mamtained an appropriate relatonshup wath
the Company's external auditors

Thus report aims to provide more in-depth details of the role of
the Audit Comrmttee and the work 1t has undertaken during
the year

lain Cornish
On behalf of the Audit Commitzee
24 February 2014

odsy atfamag

&
2
=
£
3
a
[

SJuweIpIg [poupuly

uonouofUr PO




60

St James's Place ple Apnual Report and Accounts 2013

Report of the Audit Committee wnsawd

Committee Membership during 2013

The membership of the Commuttee changed at the end of 2013
following the resignation of Mike Power from the Board Simon
Jeffreys joined the Commuttee on 1 January 2014 and it s
mtended that he will become Charr of the Commuttee from

1 March 2014, followmg the process to finalise the 2013 Financial
Statements All members of the Audit Commuttee at the end of
the year were independent Non-executive Directors and this
Temains the case at the date of this report The Board remains
satisfied that all members of the Audit Commuttee have the
experience and quahfications to perform therr roles, noting in
particular that a majonity of members have recent and relevant
financial experience and expertise

Attendees at meetings during the year included the Chuef
Exccutrve, the Chicf Financial Officer, the Rusk Director, the Head
of Internal Audit and members of the Finance team, as well as
representatives from the external auditors, Pricewaterhouse Coopers
Steve Colsell also attended meetings as the representative of Lloyds
Banking Group untul s resignation i June 2013, thereafter Sue
Harns attended a further meeting as LBG’s replacement
representative In addition, as part of the annual development
programme, Charles Gregson was mvited to attend as an observer
at three of the Audit Commuttee meetings, and Sarzh Bates was
wvited to attend one of the Audit Commuttee meetings

Committee Activities during 2013

Report and Accounts

Asin previous years, the Commuttee spent a signrficant ameunt of

tume reviewmng the annual and half yearly Report and Accounts

The focus was particularly on process and control issues, for

example, confirmmg the process of how judgements were made,

who was mvolved and how decistons were implemented The
topics discussed were driven both by consideration of nsk of
mis-statement of accounts, but also by consideration of risks in the
husiness Topies that recerved dedicated time in the year, bathm

Commttee meetings and in separate less formal sessions, included

- actuarial assumptions, with a particular focus on persistency
used 1n the assessment of the embedded value,

— review of principal areas where the Group apphies accounting
estimates, including valuation of deferred tax assets and
habiliies and impatrment testing of other mtangible assets,

— 1mpact on the business of regulatory and legal risks, including
disclosure and accounting,

— process for extendmng loans or advances to Partners and
assessing the risk of them being unable to repay,

— future financial implications of the new outsourced
admimstration contract wrth IFDS, and

— reporting and disclosure of the fees paid by the Company in
connection with the placing by Lleyds Banking Group plc of
shares 1n the Company 1n March 2013

Having reviewed how all of these points were represented in the
Report and Accounts, the Committee concluded that their
treatment was appropriate

Early 1n the year, as part of a series of presentations by senior
managers from the business and following the announcement by
the FCA of an mdustry review, the Committee received a
presentation on unit pricing This provided the Commuttee with
an opportumty to challenge the management and controls in this
umportant area The presentation also mcluded consideration of
the relationship with State Street and the control environment
around regular valuation of assets and funds, which 1s also a key
part of the accounts

Fanally 1n relation to the review of the Report and Accounts, as part
of the regular Internal Audit plan, the Company’s reparting
processes were, as usual, the subject of a number of internal audits
These audits complemented the external andit and were taken into
account 1n the Commuttee’s review of the Report and Accounts

Internal Audst Function Effectiveness

In relation to the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function, the
Committee spent a considerable period of time 1n early 2013
discussing the scope and objectives of the Internal Audst Plan and
testing to ensure that the internal audit department had the
necessary resources, both internal and external, to implement the
plan 10 a timely manner

As part of that review, the Commttee appointed Deloitte LLP
(‘Delaitte’) to conduct an independent review of the internal
audit function This review assessed the function 1n light of the
growth of the Group, relevant industry standards, good practice
and the expectations of the Board, regulators and other
stakehclders Deloitte presented their findings to the Commuttee
mn July 2013 The review confirmed that the Internal Audat
funetion was operating with the necessary independence and
objectivity when carrying out its work However, Deloatte
recommended a mumber of changes intended to strengthen the
profile and resaurces of the internal audit team and improve s
alignment wath the nsk functions operatmg within the Group
The Comrmttee accepted the recommendations 1 full and has
momitored the progress of the actions to be implemented The
remaiming actions are expected to be completed 1n early 2014

Iaoternal Audt Actrvity

As in previous years, the Commuttee was actively engaged 1n
approving the Internal Audit Plan which was risk based The plan
covered a wide range of areas across the business but some of the
key topics addressed included ant-fraud controls and the
supervision of Partners The anti-fraud contrels work was 1o
support of the External Auditors Internal audit activity m
relation to Partner activity 1s carried out annually given the
mmportance of managing the advice risk 1n the business

Reflecting the importance of the current project warking with
IFDS to upgrade some of the Group's policy admimstration
systems, the Audit Commuttee also requested that the Internal
Audit team undertook work to review (and advise on controls for)
the project The project 15 expected to run for a number of years
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and Internal Audit will contnue to monitor progress to help
ensure a successful outcome

Throughout the year, the Commuttee recerved regular updates from
the Head of Internal Audit 1n relation to the results from completed
audits The Commuttee pad careful attention to any areas where
the audit led to remedial action being recommended The actions
arising were montored to ensure completton In practice 93% of
actions were completed m hne with the original agreed deadline,
with the rest being completed by appropriately revised deadlines

Internal Control Evaluation

The Board, through the Audit Commuttee, conducts an annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal
control, n hne wrth the requirements of the UK Corporate
Governance Code The Group adopts the ‘three imes of defence
model’ as the design bass for its internal control framework and
the process for reviewing the effectiveness of the framework 15
aligned to the same model

In summary, the Chief Executive has ultimate responsibility for
the first twa lines of defence and uses his knowledge of the
business, and that of his senior management team, to provide s
opinton on the control systems Internal Audit then provides an
independent second opimion, from a third line perspective, based
on Internal Audit actvity conducted throughout the year and
Internal Audit's appraisal and triangulation on the output from a
wide range of other sources

In 2013, the Chief Executive was also able to take into account the
output of the new ‘controls self-assessment” (*CSA’) processes for a
number of departments within the Group Ths work had been
encouraged by the Audit Commuttee and was facilitated by the
Internal Audit function The processes are now being embedded
and will be extended to the rest of the Group functions

during 2014

Jomtly, the two opinions assist the Audit Commuttee 1n. completing
1ts anmal review and enable the Audit Commuttee to attest on
behalf of the Board that 1t has been able to properly review the
effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal contral m
accordance with the Turnbull Gudance for Directors on Internal
Contro! Where any matters have arisen from the review, the Andit
Commuttee has ensured that corrective action has been taken

Other Actrvity

Finally, a varety of jomnt presentations about the business were
recerved from semor management The Commuttee also carned
out a formal review of the risk schedules, and recerved updates
from the Chair of the Risk Commuttee and reports from the
Audit Commuttee of St James’s Place International ple (the
Group's Insh-registered life company) The Commuttee also
carefully considered the changes to the UK Corporate
Governance Code The Committee’s terms of reference were
reviewed during the year and 1t 15 satisfied that they remain
appropriate and conform to best practice

‘Fair, Balanced and Understandable’ Opinion

The UK Corporate Governance Code now requires the Board to
give their opmion as to whether they consider the Company’s
Report and Accounts to be fair, balanced and understandable To
aid the Board, the Audit Commuttee formally reviewed the
Report and Accounts mn relation to this requirement and were
able to confirm the apimon of the Commuttee, based on the
activities and informatron described above, being that the Report
and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013 for

5t James’s Place plc are indeed far, balanced and understandable

External Auditor

The Commuttee has responsibility for the work of the external
auditors of the Company and during the year senior management
carried out its annual review of the effectivenéss, independence
and objectivity of the Company’s external auditor As a result of
thus review, the Commuttee concluded that the audit service of
Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP was fit for purpose and provided a
robust evaluation of the risks underlying the Company's

financial statements

In relatton to the review of the mndependence of the auditors, the
Commuttee noted the existence of a formal pelicy for the provision
of non-audit services by the External Auditor The aurn of the
policy 1s to ensure that external audrtor objectivity and
independence 1s safeguarded by setting out the categores of
non-audit services which the external auditor 15 allowed to provide
to the Group and limung the amount of activity The financial
Lirnutt for non-audit related advice and consultancy work by the
external audit firm 15 £100,000 per year Non-audit assignments
exceeding 25% of the audat fee, escher mndividnally or cumulatrvely,
must have the prior approval of the Audit Committee The amounts
paid to the External Auditors during the year for audit and
non-audit related services are set out in the Notes to the Accounts
on page 120, but the amount for non-audit related services i the
year was Lrul (2012 £nl) The Commuttee remains satisfied that
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP remains independent and objective in
relation to s audit acuvities carned out for the Group

Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP was appointed as the Company's
external auditor in 2009 In 2014 the Lead Partner will rotate,
and since the audit service provided 1 recent years has been
deemed fit for purpose, the Company considers that putting the
audrt engagement out to tender 1s not necessary at the current
time Having assessed the performance and independence of the
auditors as cutlined above, the Comtruttee recommends that
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP be re-appointed as external audstor
and a resolution to effect this will be put to shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting

The terms of reference setting out the Commttee's role and
authority can be found on the corporate website at
www s)p couk
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Report of the Risk Committee

iain Cormish

Membership and Attendance in 2013

Commuittee Members Attendance
Mike Powerf" 575
lain Cormsh® 5/5
Baroness Wheatcroft 575

(1) Mike Power ceased being a member of the Committee on 31 December 2013
and Roger Yates jaibed the Cammittee an 1 January 2014, when lain Cornish
became Chair

(2) Attended one meeting by telephone

Role of the Committee 1o Summary

— To foster a culture of effective risk wWentification and
management throughout the Group,

— To provide leadership, direction and oversight of the Group’s
management of risk,

— To review the principal risks affecting the Group and the ways
mn whuch the risks are controlled and mtigated, and

— To report any material areas of concern to the full Board

Fostering a culture of effective risk management 15 of the utmost
importance to the Directors The Risk Commuttee assists the
Board i developmg this culture, by providing leadership,
directron and oversight of the Group’s management of risk

In purswing these objectives, the Commuttee’s key activities 1n

2013 included

— Momitoning and reviewing the effectiveness of risk management
10 the Group and the risk management functions,

— Review:ng the risk appetite as well as the principal risks and
uncertaintics aﬂ‘cctmg the Group,

— Considering reports produced by the Group’s Rusk and
Compliance functions, to momtor the ongoing complance
mteraction with the Group’s regulators, and

— Recerving presentations from members of senror management
about their business areas and reviewing the management of the
associated rasks

The following report sets out 1n more detad the Commuttee’s key
activities 1n 2013

Iainn Cormish
On behalf of the Risk Commuttee
24 February 2014
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Committee Membership during 2013

The membership of the Risk Commuttee changed wnth effect
from 1 January 2014, with Mike Power stepping down on

31 December 2013 and being replaced by Roger Yates lain
Cormsh was appomted Chair of the Commuttee All members of
the Rusk Committee have conuiderable financral, risk and/or other
experience and are mndependent Non-executive Directors

Regular attendees at Commuttee meetings during the year
mcluded the Chief Executive, Managing Director,

Group Rusk Direetor, the Compliance Officer, Head of Risk
Manapement, the Corporate Actuary and a representative from
Lloyds Banking Group, the Company’s major shareholder during
2013 Alsq, as part of the annual development programme,
Charles Gregson and Sarah Bates attended a number of Risk
Committee meetings

Commuttee Activities during 2013

Oversight of the Risk Management Framework 15 key to delwvery
of the responsibihties of the Commttee The framework and
associated documents are subject to annual review, and 1n 2013,
particular focus was given to the articulation of the Group's Risk
Appente Statement and the breadth of the associated Key Risk
Indicator Swte The risk policies were also considered at the same
time m a dechcated meenng

The Commuttee 15 supported in 1ts oversight of the Ruisk
Management Framework by the Risk Management team and the
Committee spends a q1gmﬁcant proportion of 1ts time recerving
updates from the Group Rusk Director and the Head of Rask
Management, wha both have direct access to the Chairman of the
Risk Commuttee should the need arise The Commuttee 15 also
able to review and provide challenge on the inplementation of
nisk mitigation 1 the business, and can test how cifectrvely the
culture 15 embedded

As 1n previous years, the Committee regularly received and

discussed a swite of management imformation to ud ther

monitoring of risks and nisk exposure 1o the business The

information mcluded

— Risk Schedules, setting out the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, as well as how they are mitgated, and

— Key Rask Indicators (KRIS), assesaing the current exposure to
key risks

Durmg the year, and with the encouragement of the Commuttee,
the KRI swite was reviewed The Committee, working actively
with Risk Management and the Executive Board, contributed
extensively to the re-design and refinement of the new suite

of information

As part of their oversight of rsk management 1n the business, the

Commuttee contnued to recerve and review reports from a number

of Executive Comrmuttees and other functions in the Group mcuding

— mnutes of the Risk and Finanee Executive Commuttee
meetings, where executive oversight 1s given to the
appropriateness and observance of the Group’s Risk Appetite,

— reports from the Risk Commuttee of St James’s Place
Internattonal (the Group’s Insh registered insurance company),

— reports produced by the Complanee and Actuanial functions
relating to the management of the risks faced by the regulated
subsdiary entities within the Group,

— an annual report from the Head of Risk Management on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management systems, and

— an annual report from the Meney Laundering Reporting
Officer on the ant-money lazndering, bribery and fraud
activities taking place within the Group

Smnce most of the actrvity within the Group 1s regulated, the
Commuttee also considered regular updates on the Group’s ongomg
interactrons with the PRA and FCA, and the wider regulatory
interactions with firms i the financal services marketplace Thus
allowed them to monitor ongoing comphance with regulation

Finally, the Committee continued to receive regular updates from
senuor executives on key corporate 1mtiatives and spent fime
discussing management of the associated nsks The Committee
finds these presentations particularly useful 1n grving an
opportunity for more detailed discusston and challenge of
particular areas of risk 1n the business Most of the topics were
presented as joint sessions with the Audit Commuttee and allowed
metnbers of both Commttees wider experience of the
management of the Group and an opportuaity to challenge senior
management Presentations in 2013 mcluded

— the Comphance Officer explaining the processes in place to
momtor the quahty of advice provided by the 5t james’s Place
Partnership, including the ongeing supervision arrangements
and busmess checking procedures,

— the Commeraal Director outliming the strategy of the Group
to attract larger Independent Financial Advisers to jomn the
Partnershup, often through the acquisition of larger established
businesses The Commuttee also reviewed the due diligence carried
out prior to any acquision talang place and the procedures used
to monutor the wntegration of the businesses wnta the SJP Group,

— the Corporate Actuary reporting on recent [CAAP (Internal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process) work and discussing the
key risks affecting the financiz] positton of the regulated
subsidiary entities within the Group, the management of these
and the imphed capital requirement, and

— the Business Development Director updating the Commuttee
on the programme to upgrade the Group's third party
adminstration arrangements 1n the UK, including the
development of a new admimstration platform

The terms of reference setting out the Comruttee’s role and
authority can be found on the corporate website at www sp co uk
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Report of the Nomination Committee

Iain Cormish

Membership and Attendance 1n 2013

Commuttes members Attendance
[air Cormish 3/3
Charles Gregsont! 3/3
Mike Power® 3/3

(1) Charles Gregson and Mike Power ceased being mmembers of the Commttee on
3t December 2013 and Sarah Bates and Baroness Wheatcroft joined the
Committee on | January 2014, when Sarah Bates became Chair

Role of the Commuittee 1n Summary

— To regularly review Board and commuittee composition
and structure,

— To 1dentsfy, report on and recommend for Board approval
surtable candidates for appomntment to the Board, and

~ To appropriately consider succession planning for Directors and
sentor management, ta](mg into account dwers;ty, experience,

knowledge and skills

Board 15 key to achieving success in the Group's strategic
objectives, whilst helping to mitigate the regulatory and other
risks faced by the Group

Having the appropriate range of high calibre Directors on our \

The Committee spent a connderable amount of tune over the
past year loolang for new Non-executive Directors as part of the
Company’s pelicy of contiually refreshing its Board Ths
process resulted in the appontment on 1 January 2014 of

two new wndependent Non-executive Directors, Sunon Jeffreys
and Roger Yates

The Commuttee also considered who should succeed Charles
Gregson as Charr of the Board, following hus retirement at the
end of 2013 The Commuttee recommended to the Board the
appointment of Sarah Bates (with Charles Gregson talang no
part mn this process in accordance with the Code)

Succession planming 15 also 2 core remit of the Comnuttee

In order to identfy appropriate successors for each senior
management role, the Committee regularly reviews the
Company’s succession plans Assessing and developing. the talent
that lies below the Board 1s key to mantaimng healthy
motrvational and retention levels amongst semor management,
as well as ensuring smooth transition when semor staff move 1n
the Company

This report provides further details of the role of the Nomination
Commuttee and the work it has undertaken during the year

Iamn Cormsh
On behalf of the Nemmation Commttee
24 February 2014
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Committee Membership during 2013

The membership of the Commuttee changed at the end of 2013
following the resignation of Charles Gregson and Mike Power
from the Board Sarah Bates joined the Commuttee and became
Chair of the Commuttee with effect from 1 January 2014
Baroness Wheatcroft also joined the Commuttee at the same date

Committee Activities during 2013

During 2013, the Nomination Commuttee spent a considerable
amount of time 1dentifying two independent Non-executive
Directors to join the Board It carefully conmidered the calibre,
skalls, knowledge and experience required to fill the roles and
complete the most appropriate balance in Board compostion
Given the planned retirement of Mike Power from the Board,
1t was decided to seek a candidate with considerable accounting
experience The Commuittee also identified the need for a
candidate with investment management experience, given the
importance of this area to the success of the Group

The Commuttee believed 1t inappropriate to narrow the search
towards a particular gender since 1t considered 1t was in the best
interests of the Company and shareholders as a whole to access
the widest pool of non-executive talent This 15 not to say,
however, that the Board does not apprecrate the importance of
diversity The Commuttee believes that, m order for a Board to
be fully effective, 1t should consist of people from dufferent
backgrounds and skall sets so that ‘group thinking' 1s avorded and
constructive discussion enhanced Tt will therefore continue to
focus on all these aspects when considering candidates

Once suitable candidate profiles had been agreed upon and
drafted, an external recruitinent consultant, Korn Ferry, with no
connection to the Company, was engaged to identify the most
appropriate candrdates These candidates met with semior
management and the members of the Nomination Committee
and were ngorously interviewed prior to being recommended to
the Board The Board in turn carefully examined each candidate
before approving their appointments

The Commuttee also considered who would be the most
appropnate person to succeed Charles Gregson as Chair of the
Board on his retirement at the end of the year After careful
review, it was considered that Sarah Bates had the requsite
experience and skills to become Chairman with effect from

1 January 2014 The Commttee also confirmed that Sarah
remained independent and recommended her appointment to the
Board In accordance with the Code, nesther Charles Gregson nor
Sarah Bates were involved i the discusstons relating to the Chair
of the Board

The Commttee continued to monitor and review succession
planmng in relanon to the Company’s semor management 1n
order to encourage and develop a strong pipeline of talent It
believes that diversity extends beyond the Boardroom and that
developing all members of the senior management team below
Board level 15 wital in order to develop and mamtain an effective
successton programame During the year, the Commuttee
reviewed the Group's succession plans with the Chief Executive
and made suggestions as to how the plans could be further
strengthened It was noted that the Group had mtroduced a
number of new 1mtiatives to develop semior talent below the
Board, including bespoke traimung programimes with development
consultants, mentoring opportunities anda pﬂot programme
centred on healthy iving and wellbeing The Commuttee also
reviewed the succession plans for each of the Executive Directors
and members of the semor management team

The terms of reference setting out the Committee’s role and
authority can be found on the corperate website at www sjp co uk
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Report of the Investment Committee

Vivian Bazalgette
Charr

Membership and Attendance 1n 2013

Committee members Attendance
Vivian Bazalgette 9/9
Sarah BatestV 9/9
Peter Dunscombe 8/9
David Lamb 9/9
Win Robbins 9/9
Attendees Attendance
Chris Ralph 9/5
Andrew Humphries 779

(1) Sarah Bates ceased being a member of the Commurtee on 31 December 2013

Role of the Commuittee in Summary

— To oversee the Company’s lnvestment Management Approach,

~ To monitor the performance and switability of the Group's
range of independent fund managers,

— To ensure that the fund managers follow the terms of ther
agreements with the Company,

— To make recommendations 1n relation to the appomtment or
removal of fund managers, and

— To consider any new funds whach are to be made avarlable to
the Group’s chients

The objective of the S5t James’s Place approach to investment
management 1s to generate consmtently Superior mvestment
results over the medium term The Investment Committee 1s the
cornerstone of the approach and will select the best individuals
within the appropriate investment companies, monitor their
performance on behalf of clients and, when necessary, make
changes to ensure the maximum probability of obtamming future
good performance

Key activities m 2013 included

— conducting mne full meetings during the year and ten anager
monttoring sessions which saw 26 fund management
compames,

— overseeing changes to the range of funds as announced 1n
February and October 2013 Asa result, five existing funds
were subject to a fund management change following the
appowntment of exght addinonal anvestment managers, and

— undertaking regular reviews of the range of Growth and
Income Portfalios to ensure they maintained the appropnate
level of sk, volatility and diversification to deliver against their
objectives The outcome of these reviews was changes made to
the Defensive, Conservative and Adventurous Portfolios

The following report sets out in mote detail the Committees key
activitzes 1n 2013

Vivian Bazalgette
Chair of the St James’s Place Investment Commuttee
24 February 2014
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Committee Membership during 2013

The membership of the Commuttee was stable throughout the
year However, Sarah Bates stepped down from the Commuttee at
the end of the year when she became Chairman of the Board

Commuittee Activities durmng 2013

2013 saw markets open 1n uncertamty but close with optimism
across the developed economies The stmulus polictes of central
bankers and the gradually strengthening signs of economc
recovery have encouraged global markets in what has been a
remarkable year for developed giobal equities Returns from other
assets were more muted, although the great rotation from bonds
predicted by some has yet to matenahise The St Jamess Place
fund range continues to deliver strong returns for chents with
70% of the fund range posting above average performance aver
the last ten years*

The strong progress of markets 1n 2013 and the continued support
of clients has seen the value of assets under our management grow
to £44 3 billion as at 31 December 2013 This quantum of assets
can provide opportumties, such as helping to keep fees down, but
¢an also bring challenges Much of the focus of the Commuttee
has been on the 1ssue of managers’ capacity, worlung with them
to understand the volume of assets they can accommaodate
without jeopardising the integrity of their investment style and
process With the anticipated fiture growth in the value of assets
under management, effective oversight 1s key to delivering future
performance and will remain a major focus for the Commuttee

The changes overseen by the Cotmittee in February 2013 saw
the mtroduction of two new fund management groups to our
panel Harmsh Douglass of Magellan Asset Management, based 1n
Sydney, Australia was appointed to manage the [nternational
Equity fund, and Tyc Bousada and Geoff MacDonald of EdgeFomt
Investment Group, based m Toronto, Canada were added as
satellite managers of the Global Equity fund

In October, the Commuttee made a series of changes both to
individual funds and to some of the Growth Portfolios The
Committee appointed a blend of new managers Richard Rooney
of Burgundy Asset Management, Jonathan Asante of First State,
and Georpe Loening and Chad Clark of Select Equity Group to
manage the Worldwide Oppottumuties Unit Trust/ Worldwide
Managed fund Secondly, the Commuttee appointed Luke
Chappell of BlackRock and the UK equity team at Majedze, led
by James de Uphaugh to join John Wood of ] O Hambro m the
UK & General Progressive funds Finally, Nigel Rudge of
BlackRock was appointed to take responsibility for the

UK Absolute Return fund

The Commuttee undertock regular reviews of the range of
Growth and Income Portfolios to ensure they mantained the
appropriate level of risk, volatihity and diversification to deliver
against their objectives These fund developments also
provided an oppartunity to introduce some changes to the fund
allocations for the Defensive, Conservative and Adventurcus

Growth Portfolios

Starnford Associates dedicated a considerable amount of resources
and specialist skalls to the Commuttee principally via
comprehensive monrtoring and the extensive evaluation of
potential new candidates Stamford Associates, worlung closely
with the Investment Management team, also played an active

role 1n the evolution of the Growth and Income Portfolios

Aon Hewitt provided specialist consultation to the Commuttee
on the St James's Place Property funds

Finally, the Commuttee has devoted considerable tme to
considering the impact of Nexl Woodford leaving Invesco
Perpetual 1n Aprl this year to team up with Oakley Capital 1n
his new venture The Commuttee and Stamford Associates have
held a number of in-depth meetings wrth Neill Woodford, Oakley
Caprtal, Invesco’s sentor management and portfohe managers,
and a number of alternative potential mmvestment managers

based 1n the UK and in the US The Commuttee 1s pleased with
the progress made and a decision will be made publi¢ in the

near future

The terms of reference setting out the Commuttee’s role and
authority can be found on the corporate website at www sjp co uk

* Source Financial Express, Analytics Dataasat 31 December 2013 Werghted by
5t james's Place funds under management, bid to bud basis, net income resavested
Please be aware that past performance 13 not indicative of Juture performance
The value of an inveatment with St James’s Place will be directly linked to the
performance of the funds you select and the value can therefore go down and well
asup You may get back less than you wavested
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Sarah Bates
Chairmen

On behalf of the Board, [ am pleased to present the Directors’
Remuneration Report for 2013 Inaccordance with the new
Durectors' Remuneration Reporting Regulations, the report1s
splitinto two parts Our remuneration policy for 2014 and
beyond 15 set ont m the Remuneration Policy Repert The Annual
Report on Remuneration sets out the remuneraton paid to the
Executive and Non-executtve Directors 1n respect of 2013,
together with details of how the Remuneration Pohey will be
implemented 1n 2014

Each part of the report will be subject to separate votes at the
AGM Shareholders will also be asked to approve a new long-term
incentive plan at the AGM

Key Remunerabon Policy Considerations during 2013

As reported last year, during 2013 the Remuneration Committee

has carned out a thorough review of the Group's remuneration

policy The main objectives of this review were

— to design a suitable long-term ncentive plan to replace the
current plan, which exprres in 2015,

— to consider overall pay levels in the context of the Group
generally, the Executive Directors’ sustamed strong
performance and the mereasing scope and complexity of the
Executive Directors’ roles,

— to ensure our remuneration pohcy supports the Group’s
strategy through the creation of appropriate incentives to
encourage safe and sustamnable growth, and to put m place a
remuneration policy which 1s regarded as fair and reasonable by
shareholders, staff, partners, vegulators and other stakeholders

Summary of Main Remuneration Policy Decisions

The pohey for Directors’ remuneration s to support and drrve the
delivery of the Group’s business objectives Remuneration
packages arc designed to be sufficiently competitive to attract,
retain and motivate executives of the highest calibre, with
performance-related mcentives based on measures hinked to the
safe and sustamable growth 1n long term shareholder value and
the delivery of a significant proportion of remuneration n

St James’s Place shares, thus ahgning the mterests of the
Executives with those of shareholders generally

The remuneration review highliphted that our Executives’ total

farget remuneranon 15 some ‘way below that of comparable

executives i companies of smilar size and complexaty and this

has been taken into account in formulating the Company’s policy

for 2014 and beyond The changes that the Cornmuttee 13

proposing are as follows

— Salaries will be increased by 3% for each of the Executive
Directors effective from 1 March 2014 and 1n line wath average
workforce mereases for the Group

— The annual bonus potental for all of the Executive Directors
will be increased from 120% to 150% of salary Asin previous
years, 50% of any bonus 15 payable mn cash, with 50% invested
in SJP shares and deferred for three years

Registered No 03183415
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— 2014 PSP awards for Executive Directors wall remain
unchanged from 2013, but will be increased m 2015 from
190% of salary up to 200% for the Chief Executive and from
175% of salary up to 190% for the other Executive Directors

‘With the increases to potential variable pay, the total packages of
the Executives will still be below the mid market level for
compames of SJP’s s1ze

The Commttee 1s at the same time introducing other changes to

the Executrve Directors’ remuneration policy to strengthen

shareholder alignment

— A post-vesting holding requrement has been mntroduced for
PSP awards granted from 1 January 2014 under the existing
PSP scheme, whereby Executive Darectors will not be able to
sell their shares for a penod of six months post vesting For
awards granted from 1 January 2015 under the new PSP
scheme, this holding pertod will be extended to two years post
vesting (five years from grant of the award) except to meet
meome tax and expenses on vesting/exercise

— The required level of shareholding that Executive Directors are
expected to build in the Company will 2lso mcrease to 150% of
salary (from 100%) In addition, Executive Directors will be
required to hold a further 50% of base salary exther n
Company shares or SJP funds, providing further ahgnment
with shareholders and chents

The Company will seek shareholder approval for a new long-term
mcentve plan {‘The 2014 Performance Share Plan’), to replace
the exasting PSP Thus new plan will be used for the granting of
awards from 1 January 2015 The 2014 PSP will be simular in
destgn to the exishng plan, but taking into account where
relevant developments i market and best practice The maximum
level of awards which can be granted under the plan will be

250% of salary (increased from 200% in the current plan} and the
Commuttee will retain fleability 1n the policy to increase awards
up to the maximum, but will consult with rts major shareholders
if the Commuttee contemplates making awards that exceed the
2015 levels referred to above

The total shareholder return {TSR) comparator group for the
TSR performance measure under the PSP 15 currently based on
the constituents of the FTSE 250 excluding certain sectors
Reflecting the more recent market caprtalisation of S]P, the 2014
awards will use the companies ranked FTSE 51 to 150 at the date
of grant (excluding investment trusts, the o1l, gag and miming
sectors) No change 15 being proposed to the PSP performance
measures based on earnings per share

Dunng 2013, as part of the Committee’s review of the Group's
remuneratton policy, the Committee consulted with the Group’s
major shareholders and mvestor representative bodies regarding
the proposed new long-term 1ncentive plan and changes to the
Executive Directors’ remuneration pohcy The Commuttee
recerved helpful 2nd welcome feedback onits proposals and our
major investors were supportive of our proposals We are grateful
to shareholders for their responses to our consultation and for the
support they have given

Corporate Performance and Remunperation for 2013
Shareholders will be aware that the Group has achieved strong
growth in recent years, which has continued 1n 2013, during a
peniod of considerable change for the industry The key highlights

are set out on pages 2 to 4 of this document

Our Executives’ remuneration for 2013, on which we are
reporting, reflects this Based on the three-year performance to
the end of 2013, 95% of the Executive Directors’ PSP awards
granted 1n 2011 will vestm March 2014, a5 a result of total
shareholder return {TSR) and earmngs per share (EPS) growth
near to or above the challenging performance targets set by the
Commuttee for the three years to 31 December 2013 In addition,
the Remuneration Comruttee deterrmined that 98% of the
maximum annual bonus should be payable for 2013, reflecting the
strong financial results for 2013 and excellent progress against
other strategic objectives set by the Commuttee at the start of the
year Further details are set cut in the Remuneration Report

on pages 83 and 84

Summary

The Remuneration. Committee has worked hard to ensure that
the changes to the remuneraton policy that1t1s proposing to
make this year support our corparate objectives over the longer
term and reflect the strong performance of the Company and
management The Committee believes that the new policy
achieves thus objective

I hope that you wall be supportive of the remuneration resolutions
to be proposed at the next AGM If in the meantime you have

any questions regarding our remuneration policy then my
colieagues and [ on the Remuneration Commuttee will be pleased
to address them

Sarah Bates
Chairman of the Remuneration Commzttee

24 February 2014
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Remuneration Policy Report

Thus part of the Directars’ Remuneration Report sets out the
remuneration policy for the Company, which will be subject
to shareholder approval at our AGM on 14 May 2014 The
Remuneration Committee (‘the Commattee’) 15 currently
operating under this remuneratton pelicy although it will be
legally effective (under the new Mirectars’ Reporting
Regulations) from the date 1t receives shareholder approval
at the AGM

In setting the remumeration pohicy for the Executive Directors,
the Commuittee takes into consideration a number of different
factors

— the Commuttee applies the principles set out in Schedule A
of the UK Corporate Governance Code and also takes mto
account best practice pindance 1ssued by the major UK
insttutional investor bodies, the FCA and other relevant
orgamsations,

— the Commuttee has overall responsibihity to be aware of the
remuneration policies and structures of the Group as a whole
and 1t reviews remureration policy on & firm-wide basis When
the Commuittee determines and reviews the remuneration
pohiey for the Executive Directors it considers and compares it
against the pay, pohcy and employment conditions of the Group
to ensure that 1t 15 comfortable that there 15 alignment and
equity between the two, and

— the Commuttee conmders the external market m whach the
Group operates and uses comparator remuneration data from
tune to trme, but as a gude only recognising that data can be
volanle and must be used carefully to avord the risk of an
unwarranted upward ratchet in remuneration The Commuttee
recognises that there 15 often a need to phase-in changes overa
pericd of ime

The Committee’s overall policy, having had due regard to the
factors above, 15 for a substantial proportion of total remuneration
to be based on varable pay This 1s achieved by setting base pay
and benefts up to nud-market levels, with annual bonus and long
term mcentive opportuntties imked to the achievement of
demanding performance targets In this way, the Comnuttee
facibitates ahgnment between the interests of shareholders and the
total remuneration paid to the Executive Directors and,
historicaily, the levels of variable pay paid to the Executives have
varied considerably, reflecting the performance of the Group 1n
the relevant year

Remuneration payments and payments for loss of office can only
be made if they are consistent with the approved Remuneration
Palicy or are otherwise approved by ordinary resolution of the
members of the Company

Engagement with Shareholders

The Commttee’s policy 15 to engage with and seek the views of
1ts major investers and 1nvestor representative bodies on any
proposed major changes to remuneration policy The Commttee
will also engage on those aspects of implementation of that policy
that 1t considers appropriate Any views expressed by shareholders
at general meetings of the Company or otherwise will be
considered by the Commuttee as part of any review of
remuneration pelicy or sooner if appropriate

Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors

The remuneration policy 1s designed to support and encourage the
delivery of the Group's short-term and long-term busmess
objectives

The follow:ng table summarises each element of the remuneration
policy for the Executive Directors, explamning how each element
operates and how each part inks to corporate strategy

Registered No 03183415
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Salary

Purpose and link to strategy mcluding

choice of performance metrics

To provide the core reward for the role

Sufficient level to recruit and retain individuals of the necessary calibre, taking mto account
the skills, expertence, demands and complexity of the role

Operation

Reviewed annually and fixed for 12 months comumeneng | March

Influenced by

role, experience and performance of the individual,

company performance,

external economic conditions,

average change 1n broader workforce salary,

pertodic benchmarkang for each role aganst similar UK listed compames, and

overall pohcy, having regard to the factors noted, 15 normally to target salaries up to
the mud market level

Maximum cpportumty

Salary mncreases (in percentage terms) will normally be linked to the average of the workforce
generally other than 1o exceptional circumstances such as where the 1ncrease may be

higher for a sigmficant change n responsibility, experience or increase 1n role or the size or
complexity of the Group where increases may be phased

Where new joiners or recent promotees have been given a starting salary below md-market
level, a series of increases above those granted to the wider workforce (in percentage terms)
may be awarded over the following few years, subjectto satisfactory mdwidual performance
and development 1n the role

The base salaries for the Executive Directors from 1 March 2014 are set out in the Annual
Report on Remuneration

Performance metrics

The Commuttee considers all of the factors described above when deciding how the salary
policy operates
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Directors’ Remuneration Report contamued
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Annual Bonus

Purpose and hnk to strategy mcluding
choice of performance metrics

Rewards the achievement of annual financial and strategic business plan targets and delivery
of strategic objectives

Deferred element aids retention, encourages long-term shareholding, discourages excessive
risk taking and aligns with shareholder interests

Performance metrics reflect the key performance drivers of the annual business plan,
achievement of which will reflect performance 1n line with the Group's strategy

Operation

Performance measures, targets and weightings are reviewed annually and set in line with the
annual business plan

Bonus payments are determuned by the Commuttee after the year end, based on performance
aganst the targets set

50% of any bonus payable 1s paid in cash with the remaining 50% deferred into SJP shares,
the vesting of which 1s normally subject to a three year continuous service requirement

Mindends that accrue on the deferred shares are pad to the Executive Directors during the
three-year deferral period

All bonus payments are at the discretion of the Commuttee

The Commuttee has the overriding discretion to scale back payments under the strategic part
of the annual bonus 1f 1t deems them to be inappropriate in the context of the overall financial
results of the Company

The Remuneration Commuttee has the over-nding discrenion to adjust the borms outcome
up or down (subject to the overall 150% maximum) to take account of factors such as an
excephonal posrave or neganve event

Annual bonus payments including deferred amounts are subject to claw-back if there 15 found
to have been a material mus-statemeat, error or msconduct following the payment of the
bonus

Maximum opportunity

150% of base salary

Performance metrics

Performance measured over one year

At least bali the bonus 1s based on financal measures reflecting the key priorities of the
business for the relevant year

Up to half of the snnual bonus can be based on the achievement of key strategic objectives set
at the start of the year

Actual measures and weightings may change from year to year to reflect the business
priorites at that time

Detals of performance criteria set for the year under review and performance against them 1
provided in the Annual Report on Remuneration

20% of the annual bonus vests for threshold performance

Registered No 03183415
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Performance Share Plan
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Purpose and hink to strategy mcluding
choice of performance metrics

Incentivises the Directors to achieve supertor long term shareholder returns

Provides long term retention
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Focuses the Executives on longer term corporate performance and performance objectives

A mux of three performance conditions provides an appropriate balance of targets that both
incentrvise the Executives to achieve stretchang long-term financial performance while also
keeping their 1nterests aligned to those of shareholders

Operation

Awards are granted annually with vesting on the third anmiversary of the date of grant

dependent on the achievement of stretching performance condrons measured aver a period

of three financial years g
B
=

Metrics and targets are set m line with the business plan and are reviewed annually to ensure .,E__

they remam appropriate as well as the weighting between them ‘gj’

Awards 1n 2014 will be made under the current performance share plan Dividend g

equivalents may accrue on awards made 1z 2014 under the current plan between the date of

grant and the date of exercise of the awards These divadend equivalents wall be released only

to the extent that awards vest The 2014 awards will have a post-vesting holding requirement —

of s1x months whereby particzpants will not be able to sell their (net of tax) shares for a six

month pertod following vesting Awards made from 2015 onwards will be made under a new

performance share plan (subject to the plan recerving shareholder approval at the 2014 AGM) Q@

These awards will have 2 post vesting holding period of two years (net of tax) y
g

For awards granted from 2015 dividend equivalents may accrue on awards between the date L§’

of grant and the end of the two-year post-vesting holding period These dividend equivalents E’,

will be released only 1o the extent that awards vest g

Subject to claw-back m the event of a material musstatement, error or misconduct allowing
summary dismissal

Maximum opportunity

The maximum annual award under the plan rutes 15 250% of salary as at date of grant
although the Comrmittee will not increase above the 2015 award levels without prior
consultation with the Company's major shareholders

The PSP award levels for 2014 (as in 2013) will be 190% of salary for the Chief Executive and
175% of salary for the other Executive Directors (value of shares at date of award)

The Committee intends to increase the PSP award levels for 2015 to 200% of salary for the
Chuef Executive and 190% of salary for the other Executive Directors (value of shares at date
of award)

Performance metrics

The vesting of awards 15 dependent on the achievement of three equally weighted
performance measures as set out below The Committee may choose alternative measures
and weightings between them 1f it deems 1t appropriate taking mto account the strategic
objectives of the Company The vesting of at least one-third of the PSP award will however
be determined by a relative TSR target

The performance targets for the 2014 PSP awards will be based on

— EPS growth based on EEV adjusted profit,

— EPS growth as above but excluding the impact of the EEV unwind of the discount rate
(effectively excluding the impact of stock market movements on earnings), and

— relative TSR performance

For cach performance condinion, a threshold and stretch level of performance 1s set
At threshold, 25% of the relevant element vests
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Pension

Purpose and link to strategy mcluding
choice of performance metrics

Helps recruit and retain Executives

Provides a discrete element of the package to contribute to post-retrement lifestyle

Operation

Defined contribution pension scheme  20% of salary 1s paid inte the Group personal pension
scheme for the Executive or an equivalent cash amount via non-pensionable salary supplement
1f the Executive 15 affected by the pension cap

Maximum opportumty

20% of base salary

Performance metrics

N/A

Other Benefits

Purpose and Link to strategy including

chowee of performance metrics

Operate competitive benefits to help recruit, retain and support the well-being of employees

Operation

Including but not imted to
Cormpany car {or salary supplement m lieu), private medical msurance, Life, citical 1llness
and death w service cover, relocation assistance where necessary and the use of a drver for

business purposes

Participation 1n the Group’s all employee SIP and SAYE schemes

Maximum opportunity

Benefit costs are monttored and contralled and represent a small clement of total
remuneration costs

Performanee metrics

N/A

Non-executive Directors’ fees

To attract high quality, experienced Non-executive Directors

The Chairman 1s pard an all-encompassing annual fee, which 15 reviewed periodically by the
Commuttee

All Non-executive Directors recerve a basic annual fee for carrying out their duties, together
with additional fees being paid 1n respect of Board Commuttee and other responsibilitres,
with fee levels reviewed periodically by the Board They may also be paid additional fees
{calculated at an appropriate day rate) 1n the event of exceptional levels of additional time
bemg reqmred, for 1nstance 1 response to corporate developments

There 15 no prescribed maximum annual increase  Reviews take into account market data for
sunilar non-executive roles in other corapames of a simlar size and/or business to St James'’s
Place as well as the ime commitment of 1ts Non-executive Directors

The Company’s Policy 1s to pay up to the rmid-market level based on similar time
comnmtments of chairman and non-execunyes in sumilar nized companes
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The performance measures and targets that are set for the
Executive Directors’ annual bonus and PSP awards are carefully
selected to align wath the Company's strategre and key

performance mdicators

For the annual banus financial and strategic measures are
reviewed and selected by the Commuttee annually The measures
selected and weighting between them may vary annually
depending on the key priorities of the business for the year ahead
Robust and demanding targets will be set annually talung 1nto
account the economic environment, market expectations and the
Company’s budget and business plan for the year ahead EEV
operating profit 1s used to assess financial performance as this
measure reflects a number of key metrics including new business,
persistency, retention of funds under management and cost
control The balance 1s determined based on strategic measures
set annually on a balanced scorecard basis

The Company has used 2 comparative TSR measure and EPS
growth targets for the PSP for a number of years in hine with the
Group's strategy of delivering profitable growth and supersor
returns to 1ts shareholders The Committee wall continue to
review the choice of performance measures and the
appropriateness of targets prior to each PSP award being made
and will set robust and stretching measures for any alternative
measures used For the EPS growth measure stretching targets
will be set annually taking into account the economic
environment, market expectations and the Company’s budget and
business plan at that time For the comparative TSR measure the
Committee’s policy 1s to set threshold vesting for median
performance rising to full vesting for upper quartile performance
The Commmttee will assess annually the appropriateness of the
TSR comparatar group

No performance targets are set for the SAYE and SIP awards a5
these form part of all employee arrangements designed to
encourage employees across the Group to purchase shares in the
Company

Shareholding Guidelines

Executives are required to build and mamtam a shareholding
equivalent to 150% of base salary Unti the threshold 15 reached,
50% of vested shares from the PSP and other share awards (less
tax hability) must be retained Executives are also required to
hold a Further 50% of salary in shares and/or 1n ene or more SJP
funds, thus providing further alignment with shareholders

and clients

Anmual Bonus Plan and Share Plan Policy

The Commuttee wi]l operate the annual bonus plan, deferred

bonus plan, PSP and all-employee share plans according to the

rules of each respectrve plan and consistent with normal market

practice and the Listing Rules, where relevant The Committee

will retain flexibihity 1n a number of areas regarding the aperation

and admimstration of these plans, ncluding (but not imited to)

the following

— Who participates in the plans

— When to make awards and payments

— How to deterzmne the size of an award, a payment, or when
and how much of an award should vest

— How to deal with a change of control or restructuring of the
Group

— In the case of stated good leaver reasons or otherwise, whether
a director 1s a good/bad leaver for incentive plan purposes and
whether and what proportion of awards vest at the time of
leaving or at the oryinal vesting date(s) as relevant

— How and whether an award may be adjusted in certain
arcumstances (e £ for a nghts 1s5ue, a corporate restructuring
or for special dividends)

The Commuttee also retains the discretion within the pohey to
adjust targets and /or set dafferent measures and alter weightings
for the annual bonus plan and the PSP 1f events happen that canse
1t to determine that the original targets or conditions are no
longer appropriate and the amendment 15 required so that the
targets or conditions achieve ther onianal purpose and are not
matenally less difficult to satisfy

The use of discretion would where relevant be explained 1n the
Annual Repert on Remuneration and may, as approprate, be
subject to consultatron with the Company’s major shareholders

Awards made prior to the Effective Date

For the avoidance of doubt, 1n approving this Policy Report,
authority 1s given to the Company to honour any commutments
entered into with current or former Directors that have been
disclosed to shareholders in previous remuneration reports This
includes all hustoric awards that were granted under any current
or previous share schemes operated by the Company but remain
outstznding (detailed on pages 87 to 89 of this Report) and which
will remain ehgible to vest based on therr original award terms
Details of any payments to former Directors will be set out 1n the
Annual Remuneration Report as they arise
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Approach to Remuneration for Recruitment

and Promotions

The Committee would aim to set a new Executive Director’s
remuneration package i line with the Company’s approved pohey
at the time of appaintment The Comnuttee will take into
account, 1n arraving at a tota] package and in considering the
quantum for each element of the package, the skills and
experience of the candidate, the market rate for a candidate of
that expenence as well as the importance of securing the best
candidate For new appoimntments, base salary and total
rermuneraton may be set imtally at below normal market rates on
the basis that 1t may be increased once expertise and performance
has been proven and sustained

Annual bonus potential will not exceed 150% of salary and
long-term incentives will not exceed 250% of salary (not :ncluding
any arrangements to replace forfeited deferred pay) Particpation
in the annual bonus plan and Performance Share Plan will normally
be pro-rated for the year of jorming and different performance
measures may be set from those applying to the other Directors, of
1t 18 appropriate to do so to reflect the individual’s responsibilities
and the pomnt in the year in which they jomed the Board

The Committee may make additional cash and /or share based
awards as 1t deems appropriate and if the arcumstances so
demand to take account of deferred pay forfaited by an executive
on leaving a previous employer Awards to replace deferred pay
forfeited would, where posable, reflect the nature of awards
forferted m terms of delivery mechanism (cash or shares), time
horizons, attributed expected value and performance conditions
Other payments may be made m relation to relecation expenses
and other incdental expenses as appropnate

In the case of an internal appointment, any variable pay element
awarded i respect of the prior role would be allowed 1o pay out
according to its terms and any other ongeing remuneration
obligations exasting prior to appowntment would continue

If appropriate and in exceptional carcumstances the Commuttee
may agree, on the recruttment of a new executive, a notice period
of 1n excess of 12 months but reducing to 12 months over a
speaified period

For the appomntment of a new Chatrman or Non-executve
Director, the fee arrangement would be set1n accordance with
the approved remuneration policy at that time

Risk Management

Rusk 18 managed within the remuneration pelicy through the

Committee

— Taking into consideration the recommendations contaned
1n the FCA Remuneration Code (‘the Code’) and associated
gudance which the Comuuttee considers 1s relevant alber
that St James’s Place 15 not specifically required to comply
with the Code

— Structuning the annual bonus plan to contain a mix of financial
and strategic performance metrics, where performance
conditions are tailored to the business outlook and strategy,
mcluding the management of risk within the business The
Commuttee also retains the discretion to reduce the bonus
out-turn where appropriate

— Assessing the performance metnics from a sk perspective,
with input from the Charrman of the Risk Commuttee

— Requiring deferral of 50% of afinual bonus payments 1nto
St James's Place shares which are deferred for three years

— Requuring the Executive Directors to retain shares acquired on
vesting of PSP awards granted from 1 Janmary 2014 to
31 December 2014 for a s1x month period post the date of
vesting, increasing to a two-year penod for awards granted
from 1 January 2015

— Ensuring that the majonity of the incentive pay comes i the
form of a long-term incentive plan subject to stretching
performance targets measured over multi-year performance
periods, with the performance penod for subsequent awards
overlapping the previous award, together with an addinonal
two year holding pertod This ensures that there 15 no
particular incentive to maxinmse performance over a particular
perod

— Incorporating claw back into the Company’s bonus and long
term mcentive plans

— Requiring the Executive Directors to build and mamtain a
substantial shareholding m the Company

Remuneration Policy across the Group

The remuneration pelicy for the Executive Darectors 1s designed
with regard to the policy for employees across the Group as a
whele and the Committee auns, where appropriate, for there to
be a consistent approach applied For mstance, the suite of
benefits in kind 15 consistent (other than 1n relation to quantum)
and all employees parucipate 1n annual bonus Plans All
erployees, including the Exceutive Darectors, arc offered the
opportumty to participate 1o the Group’s SAYE Share Option
Plan and Share Incentive Plan Semor managers participate m the
long-term incentive plan

The remuneration pehey for the Executive Directors 1s more
weighted towards variable pay than for other employees to make a
greater part of their pay conditional on the successful delivery of
busimess strategy, and n hne with shareholder mterests In
addition, more of semor level remuneration 1s deferred than 1n
the case for the workforce as a whole

Employees were not consulted 1n respect of the Directors’
remuneration policy, but the Commuttee does consider the
remuneration arrangements for the broader employee population
when determining the policy for the Executive Directors

Regastered No 03183415
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Remuneration Scenarnos for Executive Directors
The chart below shows how the proportion of each Executive Director’s remuneration package varnes at different levels of performance

m accordance with the policy to be xmplemented 1n 2014 and using the asswroptions set out below A sigmificant proportion of
remuneration 15 hnked to performance, particularly at maximum performance levels

Assumptions
Thresheld = fixed pay only (salary, benefits and penston)

Target = fixed pay plus 60% vesting of the annual bonus and 50% vesting of PSP awards
Maximum = fixed pay plus 1009 vesting of the annual bonus and PSP awards
Salaries used are those applying on 1 March 2014 and taxable benefits are those reported for the year ending 31 December 2013

Pension 15 based on 2014 policy apphed to T March 2014 salaries

Amounts have been rounded to the pearest £1,000 Participation in all employee plans, dividends payable on PSP awards over the vesting
period or on deferred share bonus awards are not mcluded 1n the above scenarios and the table assumes no increase to the share price

Service Contracts
The Company's policy 1s that service contracts may be termanated with 12 months’ notice from exther the Company or from the

Executive Director (except 1n certain exceptional recruitment srtuations where a longer notice period from the Company may be set
provided 1t reduces to a maximum of 12 months with a speafied time limit) Service contracts do not contain a fixed end date

Under thesr service contracts the Executive Directors are entitled to salary, pension contributions and benefits for therr notice period
(except on termination for events such as gross misconduct where payment will be for sums earned up to the date of ternination with
na notice pertod only) The Company would seel to ensure that any payment 15 mitigated by use of phased payments and offset against
earnings elsewhere in the event that an Executive Dhrector finds alternatve employment during s natige perind  There are no
contractual provisions 1n force other than those set out above that impact any termination payment
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In summary the position on cessation of employment 1s as follows

Provinion Detailed terms
Notice pertod 12 months by erther party
Termination payment Base salary plus benehts including pension) An express obligation on the Executive to mutigate hus

Ioss Payments can be made on a monthly basis and reduced 1f an Executive 15 able to secure alternative
employment In addition any statutory amounts would be paid as necessary

Remuneration entitlements A pro-rata bonus may also become payable for the period of active service along with the vestung of
on cessation outstanding share awards (in certain circumnstances as described below)

Change of control As on termination and with remuneration entrtlements as descnbed above

When connidenng the size of any proposed termnanon payment, the Comrmttee wonld take into account 2 number of factors
mcluding the health, length of service and performance of the relevant Executive, mcluding the duty to mitigate his own loss, with a
broad aim to aveid rewarding poor performance while dealing faxrly with cases where the departure 15 due to other reasans, fér
example illness or redundancy

Any unvested awards held under the PSP schemes wall lapse at cessation, unless the indwvidual is leaving for certan reasons (defined
under the plan as death, ijury, ll-health, disability, redundancy, retirement, his office or employment being either a company which
ceases to be a Group member or relaning to a business or part of a business which 15 transferred to a person who s nota Group member,
or any other reason the Commuttee so demdes) In these circumstances, unvested awards will normally vest at the normal vesting date
(unless the Comurmuttee decides they should vest at cessation) subject to performance condittons being met and scalmg back 1n respect of
actual service as a proportion of the total vesung period (unless the Commuttee deaides that scahng back 1s mappropriate) The same
approach applies on a change of control

Any unvested awards held under the Deferred Bonus Scheme wll lapse at cessation unless the Commutiee determines otherwise In
these aircumstances the Commuttee may determne that unvested awards will vest at the cessation (unless the Committee decdes they
should vest at the normal vesting date)

The Commuttee may agree to the payment of dishursements such as legal costs and outplacement services if appropriate and depending
on the aircumstances of the leaving executive

Non-executive Directors’ Letters of Appomtroent

The Non-executive Directors (including the Chairman) do not have service contracts or any henefits in kind arrangements and do nnt
participate 1n any of the Group’s pension or incentive arrangements The appontment of each Non-executive Director can be
termunated by giving three months’ notice (subject to annual re-appointment at the AGM) Any period of service longer than six years
1s subject to particularly rigorous review by the Nommanon Committee of the Board The Non-executive Directors’ letters of
appowtment do not provide for any payment on termunation except for accrued fees and expenses to the date of termination

The terms and conditions of Executive Directors’ service contracts and the letters of appomntment of the Non-executive Directors are
available for inspection at the Company’s registered office during normal business hours and at the AGM, the detals of which can be
found on page 95

External Appointments

Executive Divectors are permtted to be appointed to an external board or commttee so long as thus 15 unlikely to interfere with the
busmess of the Group Any fees recerved 1n respect of external appointments are retamed by the relevant Executive Director
Currently, no Executive Director acts as a non-executive director on the Board of another listed company, other than David Lamb,
who 15 a non-executive director of The Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust ple
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Directors’ Annual Report on Remuneration

The Annual Remuneration Report will be put to an advisory
shareholder vote at the 2014 AGM The information on pages 82
to 92 has been audited where indicated

How the Commattee operates to set the

Remuneration Pohcy

The Remuneration Commuttee, on behalf of the Board,
determines the Company’s remuneration policy and the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors of the
Company and the Chairman In addition, the Committee
monitors the remuneration of the semor management team,
including the Group Risk Director and s colleagues in the Risk
Division, and oversees the aperation of the Executive long term
ncentive schemes and all employee share schemes

The membershup and terms of reference of the Commuttee are
reviewed annually and the terms of reference are available on the
Company's website

Membership of and Attendance at the Remuneration
Committee meetings

The members of the Comimnittee (all independent Non-executive
Directors) during 2013 are set out below as well as their
attendance at meetings during the financial year

Number of meetings

attended 10 2013 out of
Name potential maximum
Sarah Bates (Commuttee Chairman) 77
Vivian Bazalgette 77
Patience Wheatcroft 6/7

Patience Wheatcroft was not able to attend one meeting due to a
pror commrtment, but reviewed the papers and gave her
comments to the Commttee Chairman prior to the meeting

Simon Jeffreys and Roger Yates werc appeinted as members of the
Comumttee from 1 January 2014 It1s intended that Sarah Bates
will step down as Charrman of the Commuttee after the AGM
May 2014, to be replaced by Roger Yates

The Comrruttee recetves advice from several different sources
— The Company Secretary who acts as Secretary to the
Commuttee and provides advice on corporate governance, legal
and regulatory issues as well as the design and operation of the
long term ncentive schemes, and
— Members of the executive team or other third parties as they
see fit mcluding
— The Chef Executive to provide information on corporate ar
indrvidual performance to the Committee, or to provide
recommendattons regarding the remuneration packages of
mdividual Directors
— The Chairman to provide information on the performance
of individual Directors, ncluding the Chuef Executive

— The Chref Finaneial Officer to provide explanations on
financial information relating to the Group

— The Chairman of the Risk Commuttee as part of the
Company’s risk management process

— New Bridge Street as indeperdent adviser to the Commuttee

Any recommendations from the management team are discussed
by the Committee and adopted or amended as the Commuittee
sees fit No Durector 1s prosent at any part of a mectng of the
Commuttee when thewr 1ndividual remuneration or contractual
terms are bemng discussed

Adwvisers to the Committee

The Commttee 15 advised by independent remuneration
consuitants New Bnidge Street (a trading name of Aon Hewtt
Limsted being an Aon plc company) New Bridge Street’s
appolntment as adviser to the Commuttee 1s reviewed annually
by the Commuttee

New Bridge Street provided adwice to the Commuttee on
remuneration matters generally, including on executive pay, the
new legslation on remuneration reporting and incentive plans
whach are of particular relevance to the Company New Bridge
Street1s a signatory to the Remuneration Consultants’ Code of
Conduct and has confirmed to the Commuttee 1ts comphance
with the Code

The total fees pard to New Bridge Street for the advice provided
to the Commuttee during the year was £149,832 Fees are charged
predomunately on a ‘ime spent’ basis

Nerther New Bridge Street, nor its parent company Aon ple, has
provided any other services to the Company during the year other
than some consultancy work relating to property and hedge funds
which Aon Hewit provided to the Investment Commuttee

The Commttee has been advised of the basis on which New
Bridge Street 15 orgamised and managed as part of the wider Aon
organisation and the basis on which its staff are remunerated and
15 satisfied that these relatively minor additional services in no
way compromused the independence of advice provided by New
Bridge Street to the Commuttee

Engagement with Shareholders

During 2013, the Remuneration Commuttee reviewed the
Remuneration Policy for the Executive Directors and other semor
executrves As part of thus process, 1t sought the views of the
Company’s major shareholders and mnvestor representatives and
other members of the Board Further details of the review process
are set out on page 58~
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How the Remuneration Policy will be applied for 2014

2014 Salary Review

The salary mcrease to take effect from 1 March 2014 will be 3% for all Executive Directors (this 1s consistent with the average salary
merease provided to Group employees)

The current salaries as at 1 March 2013 and the proposed increases from 1 March 2014 are as follows

Increase from

Salary Salary Salary 1 March 2043

asat Frem from to 1 March

1 January 2013 1March 2013 1 March 2014 2014

Dawid Bellamy £465,000  £478,000  £492,000 3%
Andrew Croft £336,000  £346,000  £356,000 3%
lan Gascoigne £336,000  £346,000  £356,000 3%
David Lamb £336,000 £346,000 £356,000 3%

The szlares of the Executive Directors were not increased 1 2012 m line wath the pohey for semor management generally
Fees for the Chairman and Non-executive Directors *

The fees for the Chairman and Non-executive Directors from 1 January 2014 (together with the fees for 2013) are as set out below
Fees for 2014 have been increased by 3%

2013 2014 Increase
Chairman £165,000  £170,000 3%
Base fee £26,250 £27,000 3%
Audit Commaittee Member £15,750 £16,250 3%
Investment Committee Member £25,200 £26,000 3%
Risk Commuttee Member £12,600 £13,000 3%
Remuneration Committee Member £9,450 £9,750 3%
Commuttee Chair £6,300 £6,500 3%
Senior Independent Director £2,625 £2,700 3%

Annual Bonus

The Executive Directors’ maxamum bonus opportumty for 2014 wall be 150% of salary Half of the annual bonus will be determined
by EEV cperaung profit and hal{ by key strategic targets 50% of the annual bonus earned for performance i 2014 will be paid in cash
and the remaiming 50% will be deferred in SJP shares for a three year period and subject to continued service

The EEV operating profit target set by the Commrttee 1s based on a shding scale to progressively reward incremental performance with
the bottom end of the scale representing an mcrease over the 2013 result The Bourd conmders that the performance targets for the
annual bonus are commeracially sensitive and 15 not disclosing them at this ime  The performance metrics and performance against
them will be disclosed 1n the 2014 Remuneration Report to the extent that they do rot remam commercially sensitive at that time

The team element of the 2014 annual bonus will be assessed by reference to key strategic targets based around the 2014 business plan,
mncluding elements relating to clients, shareholders and other key stakeholders Speafic objectives include the delvery of excellent
service to the Group’s clients as measured by surveys and other chent feedback, enbancing the range of irvestment funds and
matntaining strong wnvestment performance, the successful recrutment and retention of hugh quality new Partners, successfully
controlling and nitigating the material risks that could impact the Group, and maintatning the Group’s good relations with 1ts
shareholders and regulators
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Performance Share Plan Awards
The Executive Directors will each receive a PSP award 1n 2014 of 175% of salary, except for Dawvid Bellamy who will receive a PSP
award of 190% of salary

The PSP awards to be granted in 2014 will be subject to a relative TSR performance condition for one-third of the award and earmings
per share growth targets for two-thirds of the award as follows

&y
2
)
2
=
=
o

Average annual adjusted Average annual adjusted
EPS growth (including the EPS growth (excluding the
unwind of the disconnt rate) unwind of the discount rate)

TSR relative to the FTSE 51 to 150 {Note 1} 1n excess of RPI (Note 1) 1n excess of RPI (Note 11)
% of one thard % of one third % of one third
ofaward Performance ofaward Performance of award
Performance level hurdle Performance required vesting required vesung required vesting
Below threshold Below Median 0%  Below 5% 0%  Below 5% 0% =
Threshold Median 25%  Atleast 5% 5% Atleast 5% 25% g
Stretch or above Upper Quartile or 2bove 100% 16% or above 100% 16% orabove 100% 2
B
u-.
)
Notes g
(i) FTSE 51 to 159, excluding imvestment trusts and compames i the FTSE o1, gas producers and muning sectors Straight Line vesting occurs in between threshold and 8
maximum vesang [4
() The frst EPS performance condruon 15 calculated by referance to adjusted consolidated profit after tax on the EEV basus of accountng for both the Lfe and unit trust
businesses (on 4 fully duuted per share basis) The effect of the adjustment o the consolidated after tax figures will be to strip out the post rax EEV investment vartance ang
any econommuc assumption change in the final year of the performance periad as these factors are not wthin the control of management and caz produce wide variations to e

reported earmings due to stock market fluctuations Haowever, this measure of EPS 1s sull impacted by stock market movements in the prior year due to the impac of any such
movements on the unwind of the discotut rate in the current year

The second EPS perfarmance condihan 15 calculated m a similar way to the first EPS conditian, save that a further adjustrsent 19 made to strip ont the vnpact of the unwind of
the discount rate  Tus adjustment ehminates any direct smpact of stock market volaulity end changes 1o the econormic assumptions throughout the whole three-year period
of the performance condition

Straght line vesting occurs 1n between threshold and maximum vesting
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Remuneration Payable in respect of Performance 1n 2013

Durectors’ Remuneration (audrted)
The following teble sets out each element of remmuneration for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 (or penod thereof for

appointments or cessations durmg the year)

Salary Annual Long term
& fees Benefits® Pension® bonus®  incentives®™ Othert® Total
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
Executive Directors

David Bellamy 2013 475,833 59,516 95,167 563,244 1,726,979 - 2,920,739
2012 465,000 53,792 93,000 255,750 1,531,736 11,102 2,410,380
Andrew Croft 2013 344,333 41,191 68,867 407,704 1,149,358 — 2,011,453
2012 336,000 41,192 67,200 184,800 1,062,255 11,102 1,702,549
Ian Gascoigne 2013 344,333 47,619 68,867 407,704 1,149,358 - 2,017,881
2012 336,000 46,792 67,200 184,800 1,062,255 11,102 1,708,149
David Lamb 2013 344,333 50,585 68,867 407,704 1,149,358 — 2,020,847
2012 336,000 41,328 67,200 184,800 1,062,255 11,102 1,702,685

Non-executive Directors
Sarah Bates 2013 66,675 66,675
2012 65,564 65,564
Vivian Bazaigette 2013 82,950 82,950
2012 76,287 76,287
Steve Colsell 2013 10,938 10,938
2012 26,250 26,250
Tain Cormsh 2013 67,200 67,200
2012 63,876 63,876
Charles Gregson 2013 165,000 165,000
2012 165,000 165,000
Sue Harms 2013 15,313 15,313
. 2012 — -
Alison Hewitt 2013 15,313 15,313
2012 - —
Mike Power 2013 102,200 102,200
2012 79,574 79,974
Patience Wheatcroft 2013 48,300 48,300
2012 34,144 34,144

Notes

() Benefits comprase the enntlement to company car or cash equivalent, fuel, private health care, hife and entical illness cover, permanent health Ingurance and healeh
scresning and are geaerally the amounts which are returned for taxation purposes

(1) The contrbutions made to the money purchase group pension scheme for David Bellamy, Andrew Croft, lan Gascoigne and David Lamb were £95,167 (2012 £93,000),
£68,867 (2012 £67,200), £68,867 (2012 £67,200) and £68,867 (2012 £67,200) respectively, being 20% of base salary earned in 2013 To the extent that pension
contribuuons were capped by legislation, a non pensionable salary supplemeat was paid 1o the Executive Directors for the bafance

(@) As explamned on page 72, half of the anoual bonus 15 paad 1 cash, with the other half being used to purchase St James s Place shares which are subject to forferture for three
years under the terms of the Deferred Bonus Scheme

(v) The value of the lonp-term meentives 15 the value of shares vesnng under the PSP scheme in the year (1e the three year performance period ends in that year) together with
value of the diidends that would have been received during the three year performance period

(v) ‘The value of the SAYE options exercised on 3 May 2012 when the ruad-market price of St James's Place shares was £3 32

(vt} Mike Wilsan, a former director of the Company, was paid £200,000 0 2813 (£200,000 1n 2012) 1n respect of his role as Chawrman of the St James’s Place Foundatien,
assisting the Academny and the recrmitment and retention of members of the St James’s Place Partnership

{v1} David Lamb was anon executve director of the Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust ple during the year and was paid a fee of £4,500 10 2013 1n connection
with that rele
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Details of Variable Pay Earned in the Year ,

Annual Boous
For the year under report, the performance conditions which applied to the bonus and the resulting payout under these were as

follows
Weaghting Payount
Weighting (%2 of Maximum Payout (% of
Measure (% of salary) xpaxImum) Threshold value Actual (% ofsalary) maximur}
EEV operating profit
range of between
£382m and £417m 30% £25% £382m £417m £462 Tm 30% 25%
EEV profit from new
business profit range
of between £280m and
£325m 30% 25% £280m £325m £321 im 27 5% 23%
Strategic business plan Assessment by the
objectives Commuttee of the Performance
performance of the assessed
Executive Directors as by the
a team In relation to the Committee
various objectives set by as described
the Commuttee at the more fully
60% 50% start of the year below 60% 50%

Annual Bonus Strategic Targets Performance Assessment

As described 1n other parts of the Report and Accounts, the Company delivered strong performance i 2013 for our chents,
shareholders and other stakeholders The Commuttee considered these three groups when setting the strategic targets for 2013,
together with other objectives set out i the 2013 business plan In serving our chients well, developing our employees and the
Partnershup for the future and striving to improve the effectiveness of our orgamsation, we will be best placed to meet our long-term
business objectives, and create additional value for our shareholders We also focus on the importance of safe and sustamable growth
through prudent management of risk and the highest standards of regulatory compliance

The Committee assessed how well the Executive team had performed 1n relation to the objectives set at the start of the year The
Commttee did not place fixed weightings an the factors assessed, but made a judgement based an the Commmttee’s view of the relative
mmportance and umpact of those factors over the course of the year For some factors the Comuruttee was able to putin place
quantrtatrve metrics, and for others more qualrtative judgments were made, depending on the nature of the stratepic objective

As regards chent satisfaction, the Commuttee took nto account the following objectives

— The independent client satisfactien survey results for 2013 were very strong and in some categories the results were the highest
achieved since the annual survey began in 2007 In summary, 84% of clients rated therr ‘overall satisfaction” with SJP as 8 or more
out of 10 (compared to 73% 1n 2012) and 81% of clients would be happy to recommend SJP to their contacts compared to 70% 1m
2012) In the annual Wealth Account survey, 88% of clients rated the value of their relationshup with their S|P Partner as 8 or more
out of 10

— Clients continued to benehit from above average performance across the majority of funds, over a three, five and ten year period
Over the ten year period 70% of funds outperformed thewr peer group

— The Group won a number of industry awards, further details of which are set out on page 39, many of which were voted on by
chents

— The above factors, together with strong service levels, generally, contributed to excellent retentron of funds under management, with
95% of existing funds being retained (see page 32) and an 8% reduction m complamnt levels compared to 2012
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In terms of strategic objectives designed to ensure the success of the business in the future, the Commuttee took tnto account

~ the growth mn the size of the Partnership of 9 5% 1n 2013, conmderably above the target for the year of 5-7%,

— the success of the Academy 1n attracting smitable candidates to the courses run in 2013, with over 80% of recruits Jorung the
Academy 1n 2012 and 2013 being retained,

~— the lugh levels of retention for both employees and members of the Partnership, assisted by additional traming and development
oppertumuties launched 1n 2013 for both the' senior manageiment teamn, the Partnership and the workforce generally, and

— the successful placing by Lloyds Banking Group ple of 1ts major shareholding 1n the Company during the year, assisted by the strong
levels of support and demand for SJP shares from institutional investors, due to the strong results of the Group in recent years and
the Group’s successful investor relanons programme

In additton to the above, the Commuttee assessed and noted the satisfactory completion of the various strategic objectives set out in the

business plan, including

— the'entering into of a reinsurance treaty with SwissRe that crystallised the future value of protection policies, reduced insurance and
persistency risks and resulted i an inerease in cash profity of approxirnately £18 mullion,

~ the completion of various objectives designed to enhance and strengthen the menitoring and mrtigation of key regulatory risks
ympactng the Group, and

— the implementation of phase one of the back office integration programme, which included the aigning of a new cantract for the
admumstratien of the Group’s UK life and pension policies with IEDS, who already administer the Group’s unit trust and iSA policies

Taking all the above strategic objectives into account, the Commttee awarded the maximum bonus available under the team
performance element of the annual bonus scheme, recogmsing that 2 hugh propertion of the stratemc objectives were graded as
‘outstandmg’ or “above stretch’ and that all of the major busmess plan objectives had been satisfactonly completed

Notes

(1} Profit from new business 15 the EEV new business contribution plus the profits arisng m the distribution company as shown i the segmental analvas

{11} The Commuttee has the discretion o scale back the annual bonus payable m respect of the strategic measures if it considers 1t inappreprate 1o the context of the overall
Enancial results of the Group The Commuttee reviewed the Group’s pecformance and agreed that no scale-back was appropriate

(it} The Committee retains the discretion to amend each element of the bonus, up or down, within the overall cap of 120% of salary, to take 100 account other relevant factors
such as the Group's performance compared to compenitor organisations or, for instance, an exceptional positive or negative event which sropacts the Group The Commuttee
1eviewed the Group's performence a3 well as comprtitors and the external market at the eud of the performance pertod and agreed that no adjustment was required

{wv}Half of the bonus 15 paid in cash, with the remainder being fnvested in the Company's shares and deferred for three years, under the Group's deferred bonus plan

Long-Term Incentive Awards
Vesting of Performance Share Plan (PSP) awards (audited)

On 31 December 2013, the awards made on 15 March 2011 under the PSP reached the end of their three-year performance period
These will vest on 15 March 2014, being the third anniversary of the date of grant The performance conditions which appled to the
2011 PSY awards, and the actual perfermance achieved against these conditions, are set out 1n the table below

Average anpual adjusted Average annual adjusted EPS
EPS growth (including the  growth (excluding the unwind
unwind of the discount rate) of the discount rate) in excess
TSR relative to the FTSE 250% 10 excess of RPI of RPI
% of one

% of one third third of % of one third
Performance of award Performance award Performance of award
Performance level burdle required vesting required vesting required vesting
Below threshold Below Median 0% Below 5% 0% Below 5% 0%
Threshold Medan 25%  Atleast5% 25%  Atleast 5% 25%
Stretch or above Upper Quartile or above 100% 16% or above 100% 16% or above 100%
Actual Achieved 18 out of 179 companzes 13 8% 85% 16 8% 100%

Above Upper Quartle 100% Note 1 Note 1

* FTSE 250, excleding investment qrusts and companies in the FTSE a1, gas and mining sectors

Note 1 In caleulatng the performance target relating to EPS prowth, including the upwind, for the three years to 31 December 2013, the Commuttee excluded the ‘one-0f costs of
£6 2 mulbon incurred by the Company 1n relation to the placing by Lloyds Banking Group ple (LBG) of 20% of :ts shareholding in SJP 1n March 2013 The Commuttes
considered that these costs were not mcurred in the ordinary course of business and were unforeseen at the time the performance targets were setand that it was fair and
reasonable to exclude them The impact of the adjustment to the EPS growth (ncluding the unwind) was to increase the EPS growth aver the three-year peried to
31 December 2013 frem 13 1% to 13 8%, with the result that the percentage vesting in relation to the one-third of the award based on EPS (includmg the unwind) ancreascd
from B0% to 85% The impact of the adjustment of the EPS growth (excluding the unwind) was to increase EPS grawth over the three year period te 31 December 2013 from
15 9% to 16 B%, with the result that the percentage vesung in relation to the one-third of the sward based on EPS (excluding the unwind) mereased from 99% 10 100%
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Accordingly, the total percentage of the 2011 PSP awards vesting was 95%, which resulted in the following awards vesting to the

Executive Directors

Total number Percentage Value of

of shares of awards Numberof shares vestng

Dhrector granted vesting shares vesting (£°000)'

David Bellamy 267,322 95% 253,970 £1,653

Andrew Croft 177,912 95% 169,025 £1,100

lan Gascoigne 177,912 95% 169,025 £1,100

David Lamb 177,912 95% 169,025 £1,100
Note

(1) The deemed share price used ro caiculate the value of shares vesting was £6 51 being the three month average to 31 Decernber 2013 (as the awards will not actually vest unnl

15 March 2014)

Share Awards granted to the Executive Directors 1n 2013

Number of SJP % of face

Average shares gver value that

shares price which award wouid vest

at date of wasgranted Facewalueof  atthreshold

Dhrector ‘Type of award Basis of award granted grant (Note1) award (£000) performance

David Bellamy Nil cost option ~ 190%: of salary of £478,000 £5 155 176,178 £908 25%

Andrew Croft Nil costoption  175% of salary of £346,000 £5 155 117,458 £606 25%

lan Gascoigne Nil cost option  175% of salary of £346,000 £5 185 117,458 £606 25%

David Lamb Nil cost option  175% of salary of £346,000 £5 155 117,458 £606 25%
Note

(1) The nmber of shares awarded was calenlated based on the average share price over a period of three days prior to the date of grant en 21 March 2013, being £5 (55 per
share The face value of the award figure is calculated by multiplying the number of shares awarded by the average share price figure of £5 155

PSP awards are structured as nil cost options and there 15 therefore no exercise price payable on exercise Dividend equivalents accrue
to the Executive Directors between the date of grant and exercise of the award, but are released only to the extent that awards vest
Further details of the performance conditions which apply to the awards are set out 1n Notes (1) and (u} on page 81
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Total Shareholder Return Performance

The graph below shows a comparison of the Company’s TSR performance agawnst the FT'SE All-Share mndex over the last five financal
years The Company considers this to be the most appropriate comparative index, given the broad nature of the index and the
compames within it

Total Remuneration for the Chief Executive

The table below shows the total remuneration figure for the Chief Executive during each of the financral years shown The total
remuneration figure includes the annual bonus and long-term incentrve awards which vested based on performance 1n those years
(and ending 1n that year for PSP scheme awards)

Year ending 31 December

2009 2010 2411 2012 2013
Total Remuneration £1,035,723 £1,495,600 £1,998,758 £2,410,380 £2,920,739
Annual Bonus (% of maximurm) 92% 96% 63% 46% 98%
LTIP vesting (% of maximum) 0% 57% 83% 87% 95%

The total value of the PSP award vesang in 2013 15 £1,650,000 Of this, 52% (£855,831) 1s due to share price increase over the
vesting pertod

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The following table sets out the percentage change 1n profit, dividends and overall spend on pay in the year ending 31 December 2013,
compared to the year ending 31 December 2012

2012 2013 Percentage

£ Mialhion £ Malhon change

Opcrating profit after tax 107 1 190.3 78%
Dividends 540 821 52%
Employee remuneration costs 679 886 30%
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Percentage Increase 1n the Remuneration of the Chief Executive
The table below shows the percentage movement 1n the salary, benefits and annual bonus for the Chief Executive between the current
and previous financial year compared to that for the average Group employee

% change

2012 to 2013
Chief Executive
Salary 28
Benefits (Note 1) 106
Bonus ) 120 2
Average per Employee
Salary 36
Benefits {Note 1) (13
Bonus 669
Notes

(1) See Note (i) on page 82 for further detals
(1) The benefits costs reduced mamly due ta bower costs belug achieved for the Group's ife and ¢ntical 1llness corer

Share Awards
The tables below set out details of share awards that have been granted to individuals who were Directors during 2013 and which had

yet to vest at some pomnt during the year

Petformance Share Plan — Awards held in return for Qualifying Services during 2013 (audrted)

Balanceat Balance at
1 January Granted Lapsed Exercised 31 December
Dhrector 2013 1n yearf™? m yearl? 1 yearl™ 2013 Dates from whach exercisable
David Bellamy - 316,666% - 42117 268,020 - 8 Mar 2013 to 8 Mar 2016
267,322® - - - 267,322 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
242,220 - - - 242,220 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
176,178 - - 176,178 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019
Andrew Croft 219,6079 ~ 29208 184,411 - 8 Mar 2013 to 8 Mar 2016
177,912 - - - 177,912 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
161,206 - — — 161,206 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
117,458 - 117,458 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019
Ian Gascoigne 219,6070 - 29,208 184,411 - 8 Mar 2013 to 8 Mar 2016
177,912® - - — 177,912 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
161,206 - - - 161,206 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
117,458 - - 117,458 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019
David Lamb 219,607® - 29,208 185,285 - 8 Mar 2013 10 8 Mar 2016
177,512 - - - 177,912 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
161,206™ - - — 161,206 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
117,458 - - 117,458 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019

Notes

(i) These swards were made on 8 March 2010 when the St James's Flace share price was £2 57 The performance period 1 the three yesr period ending on 31 December 2012
The three performance conditions, each in respect of one third of the award, relate to (i) EPS (including the smpact of the unwind of the discount rate, as described more
fully on page 73) (u) EPS exclud:ng the smpact of the sa1d unwind and (n1) TSR compared to the FTSE 250 Index, excluding investment trusts and companies 1a the oil, gas
and muming sectors The EPS scale starts at RPI +7% for 25% of the award to vest and ends at RPI +16% for 100% of the award to vesz, with pro rita vestng between the
said pomts The TSR shdmg scale is between median and upper quartile, with 25% of the TSR part of the award vesting atmedian Up to 11,764 shares (being the £30k
Inland Revenue cap on ‘approved” share options) can be exercised via a hinked award under an approved share option scheme with an exereise price of £2 55

{n) These awards were made on 15 March 2011 when the St James'’s Place share price was £3 14 The performance period is the three year period ending on 31 December 2013
The performance conditions, each 1o respect of one third of the award, relate to (i) EPS (including the impact of the unwind of the discount rate, as described more fully on
page 73}, (1) EPS excludmg the impect of the said unwind and (in) TSR compared to the FTSE 250 Index, excluding javestment trusts and companies in the oif, gas and
mitung sectars The EPS scale starts at RPI +5% for 25% of the award to vest and ends a1 RP1 +16% far 100% of the award to vest, with pro rata vestung between the said
pownts The TSR shiding scale 1s between median and upper quartile, with 25% of the TSR part of the award vesting at median

(i) These awards were made on 26 March 2012 when the St James's Place share price was £3 73 The performance period is the three year period ending on 31 December 2014
‘The performence cond:tions, each in respect of one-third of the award, relate to (1) EPS (including the :mpact of the unwind of the discouat rate, as described mare fully on
page 73) (it) EPS excluding the impact of the said unwind and () TSR compared to the FTSE 250 index, excluding 1avestmeat trusts and companies 1n the o1l, gasand
muning sectors The EPS scale starts at RPI +5% for 25% of the award to vest and ends at RPI -+16% for 100% of the award to vest, with pro rata vesting besween the said
points ‘The TSR shding scale is between median and upper quartile, with 25% of the TSR part of the award vesting at median
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(tv) These awards were made on 26 March 2013 when the S1 James's Place share price was £5 115 The performance period s the three year period ending on 31 December

2015 The three perfarmance conditions, each in respect of one-third of the sward, relate to (i) EPS (inchuding the rmpact of the unwind of the discount rate, as described
more fully on page 73) (is) EPS excluding the impaet of the said uawind and (#f) TSR compared to the FTSE 250 Index, excluding investment trusts and companies 1n the oil,
gas and mining sectors The EPS scale starts at RPI +5% for 25% of the award to vest and ends at RP] +16% for [100% of the award to vest, with pro rata vesting between the
said pownts The TSR shding scale is between median and upper quartile, with 25% of the TSR part of the award vestiag at medfaa Up to 774 shares (being the £30k Inland
Revenue cap on 'approved’ share options) can be exercised v1a a inked award under an approved share option scheme with an exeraise price of £5 155

These awards lapsed due to the performance condition based on TSR (more fully desenbed in note (i) above) not being fully satisfied and, as a result, 13 3% of the award
lapsed at the end of the performance pertod (42,117 shares lapsed for David Bellamy and 29,208 shares lapsed for the other Executive Directorsy The addinonal shares that
lapsed were due to the Executives exercising their linked apprdved share options (see note (1)) prior to the exerclse of their PSP awards (see also note (v1) below for

more details)

{(v) On 23 December 2013, when the mud market price was £7 125, Dawid Bellamy exercised 10,199 shares at an option price of £2 55 under an spproved award, resulting :n a

gam of £46,252 Asa result, Davad Bellamy's related PSP award over 274,545 shares lapsed in respect of 6,529 shares, equivalent 1n value to the gaun ansing on exercise of
the approved eward David Bellumy then exertised the remaming balance of 268,020 shares under the related PSP award on the same date resulting in a gain of £1,903,332
On 15 August 2013, when the mid- market price was £6 175, Andrew Croft and Iap Gascolgne exercised 10,199 shares st an option price of £2 55 under an approved award,
resulting ina gamn of £36,971 each As aresult, Andrew Croft's and Tan Gascoigne 8 related PSP awards over 190,399 shares each lapsed intespect of 5,984 sharea,
equivalent in value to the guin arising on exereise of the approved award Andrew Croft and Jan Gascoigne then exercised the remaming balances of 184,411 shares each
under the related PSP award on the same date resulting ina gain of £1,138,737 ¢cach Ou 2 April 2013, when the mud-market price was £5 105, David Lamb exercused 10,195
shares at an option price of £2 55 under an approved award, resulting 1o gun of £26,153 As a result David Lamb's related PSP award over 190,399 shares lapsed in respect of
5,114 shares, equivalent 1 value to the gain arising on exercise of the approved award On 2 Angust 2013, when the mid-market price was £6 345, David Lamb exerqused the
remaining balance of 185,285 shares under the related PSP award resulting i » gaan of £1,171,427

Deferred Bonus Scheme — Shares held during 2013 (audited)
The table below sets out details of the awards held by the Directors under the deferred element of the annual bonus scheme

dunng 2013
Balance at Balance at
1 January Released Awarded 31 December
Durector 2013 dunng year® durng year®™ 2013  Vesting Date
David Bellamy 89,930 89,990 - — 10 Mar 2013
77,558 - - 77,558 15 Mar 2014
49,563 - - 49,563 26 Mar 2015
- 24 591 24,591 21 Mar 2016
Andrew Croft 67,757 67,757 - — 10 Mar 2013
58,397 - - 58,397 15 Mar 2014
35,813 - - 35,813 26 Mar 2015
- 17,769 17,769 21 Mar 2016
lan Gasco1gnc 67,757 67,757 - — 10 Mar 2013
58,397 - - 58,357 15 Mar 2014
35,813 - - 35,813 26 Mar 2015
— 17,769 17,769 21 Mar 2016
David Lamb 59,287 59,287 - — 10 Mar 2013
58,397 - - $8,397 15 Mar 2014
35,813 - - 35,813 26 Mar 2015
- 17,769 17,7693 21 Mar 2016
Notes
(1)0 Sl']:es: deferred share awards were awarded on 10 March 2010 equal in value to the Executive’s 2009 annual cash boous The St James's Place share prece on the date of the

award was £2 54 and ¢t the date of releass (11 March 2013) was £5 365 These deferved share awards were swarded on 21 March 2013, equal 1n value to the Executive’s
2012 annual cash bonus These shares will be held for a restricted pertod endmg on 21 March 2016 The St James’s Place share price on 21 March 2013 was £5 07

{11) Outstanding awards at the year-end relate to deferred share awards awarded in 2011, 2012 and 2013 (see (u) above) The share price at the date of the 2011 award (15 March

2011) was £3 14 and as at the date of the 2012 award (26 March 2012) was £3 733

{w) Further details of the deferred element of the annual borus scheme are set out on page 72 Dividends zccrue to the Executive Directors during the three year period while

the shares ere subject to forfature
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SAYE Share Option Scheme — Shares held during 2013 (audited)
Detauls of the options held by the Directors in 2013 under the SAYE scheme and any movements during the year are as follows

Ophons Options
held at held at
1 January Granted Lapsed Exercised 31 December Exercise
Dhrrector 2013 n year n year 1n year 2013 price  Dates from which exercisable
David Bellamy 3,040 - - - 3,040 £2 96 1 May 2015 to 31 Oct 2015
Andrew Croft 3,040 - - - 3,040 £296 1 May 2015 to 31 Oct 2015
Tan Gascoigne 3,272 - - — 3,272 £2 75 1 Nov 2015to 30 Apr 2016
Dawid Lamb 3,272 - - - 3,272 £2 75 1 Nov 2015 to 30 Apr 2016

Note
() At 31 December 2013 the mid-market price for St James’s Place shares was £7 28 The range of prices between 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 was between £4 253

and £7 28

Share Incentive Plan — Shares held during 2013 (audited)
The table below sets out details of the awards held by the Directors under the Share Incentive Plan during 2013

Matching
Partnership shares
Balanceat shares allocated Balance at

1 January allocated durmg 31 December Holding penied
Dharector 2013 during year year 2013 (matching shares)
Andrew Croft® 642 - - 642 26 Mar 2010 to 26 Mar 2013
- 296 29 325 26 Mar 2013 to 26 Mar 2016
Ian Gascoigne®™ 502 - - 502 28 Mar 2011 to 28 Mar 2014

Notes
(i) 584 partnership shares were swarded on 26 March 2010 ata price of £2 5675 per share, in retura for £1,500 being deducted from Mr Croft's pre-tax salary A further 58

matching shares were awarded on the same date 296 partnership shares were awarded on 26 March 2013 2t a price of £5 065 per ahare, in return for £1,500 being deducted
from Mr Croft's pre-tax salary A forther 29 matching shares were ewarded on the same date
(1) 457 partnershp shares were awarded on 28 March 2011 at & price of £3 2775 per share, in return for £1,500 being deducted from Mr Gascaigne's pre tax salary A further

45 matching shares were awarded on the same date
{121) The partnership and matching shares will be held by an employee berefit trust on behalf of the Director The matching shares must be held for a muimum perod of three

years from the date of the award

Between 31 December 2013 and 25 February 2014 there were no exercises or other deahngs in the Company's share awards
by the Directors

Share Interests and Shareholding Gmidelines (audited)

To align the interests of the Executive Directors with sharehelders, the Executive Directors are required to bunld up a shareholding
equvalent to 150% of salary, to be achieved through retaimng at least 50% of their net of taxes gam ansing from any shares vesting

or acquired under the various mcentive share plans, until such ime as the upper himit of their share ownership target has been met
Executives are also required to hold a further 50% of salary n shares and/or 1n one or more St James’s Place fund portfolios, thus
providing further alignment with shareholders and chents Details of the Directors’ interests in shares are shown 1n the following table
All of the Executive Directors have met the shareholding guideline
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Directors’ Interests in Shares

% of base

salary held

1o SJP shares

Shares held at  Shares held at asat 3l

1Japnary 31 December December

Director 2013 2013 20139

David Bellarmy 1,346,608 1,294,458 1,971%

Andrew Croft 746,298 803,738 1,691%

Tan Gascoigne 688,515 693,263 1,45%%

David Lamb 428,141 415,003 873%
Sarah Bates 13,500 13,500
Vivian Bazalpette 20,000 20,000
Steve Colsell™ - -
lain Cormsh — -
Charles Gregson™ 12,535 12,535
Sue Harris® - -
Alison Hewitt(" — —
Mike Power'™ — -
Patience Wheatcroft 1,500 1,500

Notes
() Calculated umng the mid market price at 31 December 2013 of £7 28p

(1) The mterests of the Directors indude theae of thewr Connected Persons as defined 1a section 968(2) of the Finangia! Servives and Marlets Act

{uf) The 1nterests of the Executive Directors set out above 1nctude deferred bonus scheme awards held im trust for the Directons, details of which are set out on page 88
The 1nterests of the Executive Directors also include awards ander the Share Incentive Plan, details of whach are set out on page B9

(1v) The Company s regaster of Directors’ imnterests contains full details of Directars’ shareboldings and any share awards under the Company's various share schemes

(v} Steve Calsell ceased bevag 2 member of the Board with effect from 1 June 2013 and Sue Harnis and Alison Hewitt were appomted non-1odependent Non-executive Directors

on 1 June 2013 Sue Harns and Alison Hewatt ceascd beng members of the Board with effect from 31 December 2013

(i} Charles Gregson and Mike Power ceased being members of the Board with effect from 31 December 2013
(vi)Dasclosure of the Directors’ interests in share awards 15 given on pages 87 to 89 of the Remuneration Report end lso 1n Note 33 — Related Party Transactions

Between 31 December 2013 and 20 February 2014 there were no transactions in the Company’s shares by the Durectors

Executive Dhirectors’ Shareholdings and Qutstanding Share Awards

Outstanding
Benefically  Outstanding DBS SAYE SIP
owned at PSP awards awards (no options (o shares (uo
31 December (performance performance performance  performance
Director 20137 conditions)® conditions)™ conditions)™  condibons)t?
David Bellamy 1,294 458 685,720 151,712 3,040 —
Andrew Croft 803,738 456,576 111,979 3,040 967
lan Gascoigne 693,263 456,576 111,975 3,272 502
Dawid Lamb 415,003 456,576 111,979 3,272 -

(1) Nosharc awards have vested but remain unexcresed
(i) Dezails on the PSP awards are set out on page 87

(ni) Details on the DBS awards are set out on page 88
{»v) Details on the SAYE optians are set out on page 89
(v) Details on the SIP shares are set out oo page 89
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Dilution

Dilution limnits agreed by shareholders at the time of shareholder approval of the various long term mcentive schemes allow for

the following

~— up to 5% of share capital m ten years to be used for grants to employees under discretionary schemes,

— up to 10% of share capital in ten years to be used for grants to employees under all employee share schemes, and

— up to 15% of share capital 1n ten years to be used for grants to employees and members of the St fames’s Place Partnership ({the
Group's sales force) under all share schemes 1 e both the employee and ‘Partner’ share schemes Thisincreased lirmt reflects the
umgque structure of the business and the importance of the Partnershup to the continued success of the Group (Shareholders are not
being asked to approve a 15% of share capital Limit 1n relation to the new long-term mcentive plan at the AGM }

The table below sets out, as at 31 December 2013, the number of new ordivary shares in the Company which have been 1ssued, or are
capable of being 1ssued {subject to the satisfaction of any applicable performanee conditions) as a result of options or awards granted
under the varicus long term ineentive schemes operated by the Company 1n the ten years prior to 31 December 2013
% of total
Number of  1ssued share

new ordinary capital as at
sharesof 31 December

Share Scheme 15 pence each 2013
SAYE schemes 3,853,078 0 75%
Executive share schemes 13,634,552 2 64%
Partners’ share schemes 21,175,793 411%
Total 38,663,423 7 50%

In addition, as at 31 December 2013, the Group's Employee Share Trust held 885,932 shares mn the Company which were purchased m
the market to satisfy awards made under the PSP and exccutive share option schemes

A further 2,167,880 shares, registered to employees under the terms of the Group’s deferred bonus scheme, have been allocated by the
Group’s Employee Share Trust These shares are allocated to the relevant mndividuals on a restricted basis whereby the recipients

arc not cntitled to the shares until completion of the three year restnicted period  Further details of the deferred bonus scheme are set
out on page 72

Interests in Shares Held 1n Trusts

Certain Executive Directors and employees are deemed to have an interest or a potential interest as potential discretionary beneficiaries
under the 5t James's Place Employee Share Trust As such, they were treated as at 31 December 2013 25 being interested in cero
ordinary shares of 15p 1n the Company, such shares being held by $ G Hambros Trust Company (Chanrnel Islands) Limited, the trustee
of that trust
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Statement of Shareholding Voting at AGM
At last year’s AGM held on 21 May 2013, the Directors” Remuneration Report recerved the following votes

from shareholders

Remuneration Report

Total number % of votes

of votes cast

For 423 055,306 89 3%
Agamst 2,945,481 07%
Abstentions 104,101 N/A
Total 426,104,888 100%

This report was approved by the Board of Dhrectors and signed on 1ts behalf by

Sarah Bates
Chatrman, Remuneration Committee

24 February 2014
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Directors’ Report

The Durectors present their Report and the Annual Report and
Accounts and the audited consolidated Financal Statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 All of the
Directors were 1n office throughout the financial year and up to
the date of sigming this report with the exception of Steve Colsell,
Charles Gregson, Sue Harris, Alison Hewitt and Mike Power, as

detailed below

The information that fulfils the Compames Act requirements of
the Strategic Report can be found in the following sections

Prinapal risks and uncertainties

The Rask and Risk Management
section on pages 36 and 37

Internal control and risk
management

Strategic Report on pages 34
and 35

Performance and development
of the business during the

year and position at the end of
the year

Chief Executive’s Statement on
pages 2 1o 4, the Chuef Financral
Officer’s Report on pages 12 to
14 and the Financal Review on

pages 16 to 33
Information on hkely future Chief Executive’s Statement
developments on pages 3 and 4, the Chnef

Financral Officer’s Report
on page 14 and the Financial
Review on pages 22, 28 and 32

Mhrectors’ and Officers’
Indemmty and Insurance

The Corporate Governance
Report on page 57

Fmanaal and non-financial KPls

Key Performance Indicators on
pages 10 and 11

Environmentel, employee and
social commumity matters

The Corporate Social
Responsibility Report on pages
3% to 45

Contractual or other
arrangements essential to the
business of the Company

Page 95

Results and Dividends

The consolhidated statement of comprehensive income 15 on page
102 and profit for the financal year attributable to equity
shareholders amounted to £190 3 mullion An mnterim dividend of
6 38 pence per share, which equates to £32 7 mullion, was paid on
25 September 2013 (2012 4 25 pence per share/£21 4 mmllion)
The Directors recommend that shareholders approve a final
dividend of 9 58 pence per share, which equates to £49 4 million
(2012 final dividend of € 39 pence per share/£32 4 milhon) to be
paid on 16 May 2014 to shareholders on the register at the close of

business on 11 April 2014

In 2012, the Directors mtroduced a Dividend Reinvestment Plan
(‘DRP’Y, details of which are set out on page 178

Status of Company

The Company 15 registered as a public hrmted company under the

Companies Act 2006

Our Directors

Details of the Directors as at 24 February 2014 and their
biographies are shown on pages 52 and 53 Brief particulars of the
Darectors’ membership of the Board commuttees are contained m
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 59 to 67

Sue Harris and Ahson Hewntt were appomnted non-independent
Non-executive Directors on 1 June 2013, as representatives of
Lloyds Banking Group ('LBG’) pursuant to the Relationship
Agreement between the Company and LBG They replaced
Steve Colsell who resgned from the Board on 1 June 2013
Under the Relationship Agreement, LBG was entatled to appomt
up to two Non-executive Directors to the SJP Board The
Relationship Agreement terminated in accordance with its terms
on 13 December 2013 following the sale by LBG of its major
shareholding 1n SJP and, as a consequence, Sue Harris and
Alson Hewntt resigned from the Board on 31 December 2013

Simon Jeffreys and Roger Yates were appointed to the Board
as independent Non-exeeutive Directors on 1 January 2014
Charles Gregson and Mike Power resigned from the Board
on 31 December 2013

The Company’s current Articles of Association require that any
Durector appointed during the year to fill a casual vacancy must
stand for reappountment at the next Annual General Meetng and
that, at each Annual General Meeting, all those Directors who
were elected or last re-elected at or before the Annual General
Meeting held 1n the thurd calendar year before the current year,
shall retire from office by rotation Directors can be removed
from office by an ordinary reselution of sharcholders or in certamn
other arcumstances as set out1n the Articles of Association

In accordance with the recommendations of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the whole Board of Directors will retire by
rotation at the Annual General Meeting 10 2014 Before a
Director is proposed for re-election by shareholders, the
Chairman considers whether hus or her performance continues to
be effective and whetber they demonstrate commitment to the
role After careful consideratron, the Chairman 1s pleased to
confirm that, following the performance evalnaton referred to an
page 58, the Directors seeking re-election continue to make a
valuable contribution to the Board Your Directors each bring a
great deal of experience to the Board as a result of their varted
careers and we beheve this diveraity 1s essential to contributing to
the approprrate mix of skalls and expertence needed by the Board
and 1ts commuttees i arder to protect shareholders’ interests

The Chairman 15 also happy to confirm that the Directors have
demonstrated their continued commtment to their roles and
continue to dedicate sufficient tume to their duties The Board
therefore recommends to 1ts shareholders that all the Directors
retining at the forthcormog Annual General Meeting should

be re-elected
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As shown on pages 29 and 30 of the Strategic Report, the Group’s
capital posttion 13 strong and well 1n excess of regulatory
requrements The long-term nature of the business results 1n
considerable positive cash flows, ansing from exasting busimess
As a consequence, the Directors believe that the Company 15 well
placed to manage 1ts business risks successfully

The Directors confirm that they are satisfied that the Company
and the Group have adequate resources to continue 1n business
for the foreseeable future For this reason, they conunue to adopt
the going concern basis 1n prepaning the accounts Further
mformation on the basis of preparation of these accounts can

be seen 1n Note 1 to both the Consolidated Accounts under
International Financial Reporting Standards and Parent Company
Accounts on UK GAAP basis

Disclosure of Information to Auditors

Each of the Directors, at the date of approval of this report,

confirms that

— 30 far as each Darector 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit
information of which the auditors are unaware, and

— each Director has taken all reasonable steps to ascertain
relevant audit information and ensure that the auditors are
aware of such information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted 1n
accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Companies
Act 2006

Independent Anditors

The auditors, PriceWaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated thetr
willingness to continue m office and a Resolution that they be
re-appamnted until the end of the 2015 Annual General Meeting
will be put to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on

14 May 2014

On behalf of the Board

D Bellamy A Croft

Chisf Executive Chef Financial Officer
24 February 2014
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Statement of Directors’

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report,
the Darectors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements
1 accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors
have prepared the Group financial statements 1n accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union, and the Parent Company financial
statements in accordance with Umted Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law) Under company law the Directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are sausfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for
that period [n preparing these Ainancial statements, the Directory
are required to

— select surtable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

— make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

— state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Unton and
applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any mater1al departures disclosed and explamed 1n
the Group and Parent Company financial statements
respectively, and

— prepare the financial statements on the going concern basts
unless 1t 15 inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue 1n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficent to show and explan the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them
to cnsurc that the financial statements and the Directors’
Remuneration Report comply with the Compames Act 2006 and,
as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the [AS
Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the

assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
ather irregularities

The Directors have chosen to prepare supplementary information
m accordance with the European Embedded Value Prinaiples
1ssued 10 May 2004 by the Chief Financial Officers Forum, as
supplemented by the Additional Gudance on European
Embedded Value Disclosures 1ssued m October 2005 (‘the EEV
Principles’) When complhiance with the EEV Principles s stated,
those principles require the Directors to prepare supplementary
information 1n accordance with the Embedded Value
methodalogy (EVM) contained 1n the EEV Princaples and to
disclose and explain any non-compliance with the EEV Guidance
mmcluded 1n the EEV Principles

Responsibﬂities

In prepaning the EEV supplementary information, the

Directors have.

— prepared the supplementary mformation 1n accordance with
the EEV Prineiples,

— wdentified and described the business cavered by the EVM,

— applied the EVM consistently to the covered busmess,

— determined assumptions on a realistic basis, having regard to
past, current and expected future experence and to any
relevant external data, and then applied them consistently, and

— made estimnates that are reasonable and consistent

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and 1integrity
of the corporate and financial information 1ncluded on the
Company’s website Legislation 1n the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of Anancial statements may
differ from legislation 1n other jurisdictions

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed 1n
Board of Directors section of the Annual Report confirm that, to
the best of thewr knowledge

— the Group financal stastements, which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and
fair view of the assets, lrabilities, financial position and profit of
the Group,

— the European Embedded Vale {'EEV’) supplementary
wformation has been prepared 1n accordance with the
European Embedded Value principles 1ssued 1n May 2004 by
the Chief Financial Officers Forum as supplemented by the
Additional Guidance on European Embedded Value Disclosures
1ssued in October 2005 (“the EEV Principles’),

— the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the posihon of the Group,
together with a deseription of the principal risks and
uncertanties that it faces, and

— the Directors consider that the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, 15 fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the mfermation necessary for shareholders to assess a
company’s performance, business model and strategy

By order of the Board

H Gladman
Compcm_y Secretary
24 February 2014
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of St. James’s Place plc

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our opmion the consohdated financial statements,

defined helow

— give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at
31 Necember 2013 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for
the year then ended,

— have been properly prepared 1n accordance with International
Finanaal Reporting Standards (‘TFRSs') as adopted by the
Eurcpean Union, and

— have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

This opinion 1s to be read m the context of what we say 1n the
remainder of this report

‘What we have audited

The consohidated financal statements, which are prepared by

St James’s Place plc, comprise

— the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2013,

— the consolidated statement of comprehensive 1ncome for the
year then ended,

— the consohdated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and

— the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
nclude a summary of sgmficant accounting pohcies and other
explanatery information.

The financial reporting framewark that has been appled in their
preparation comprises applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union

What an audit of financial statements imvolves

We conducted our audit in accordance with International

Standards on Audiang (UK and Ireland) (‘ISAs (UK & Ireland)’)

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and

disclosures 1n the finanuial statements sufficent to give reasonable

assurance that the financial statements are free from material

musstatemnent, whether caused by fraud or error This mcludes an

assessment of

— whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's
circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed,

— the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
the Directors, and

— the overall presentation of the financal statements

It addition, we read all the financial and non-finanaal
information n the Annual Report and Accounts (the ‘Annual
Report’) to identify material inconsistencies with the audited
consohdated financial staterments and to 1dentify any intormation
that 15 zpparently materally incorrect based on, or materally

nconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by usin the course of
performing the audit 1f we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or Incons:stencies we consider the
umplications for cur report

Overview of our audit approach

Materrality

‘We set certain thresholds for materiality These helped us to
determune the nature, timing and extent of our eudit procedures
and to cvaluate the effect of misstatements, both indrvidually and
on the financal statements as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materrality
for the consolidated financial statements as a whole to be

£15 million In arriving at this judgement we have had

regard to proht betore tax attributable to shareholders’ returns
because, 10 our view, this 15 the most relevant measure of
underlying performance

We agreed with the Audit Commttee that we would report to
them musstatements 1dentified during our audit above

£0 75 mllion as well as misstatements below that amount that,
m our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons

Overview of the scope of our audit

The Group 1s structured to reflect its vertically integrated
msurance and wealth management operations situated
predorinantly 1n the UK and also in the Republic of Ireland The
consolidated finanmal statements are a consohidation of five
financally sigmficant reporting units, comprising the Group’s
operating businesses and centralised functions and the 5t James's
Place Unit Trusts where they are considered to be subsidiartes of
the Group

In establishing the overall approach to the group audit, we
determined the type of work that needed to be performed at the
reporting units by us, as the group engagement team, or
component auditors from other PwC network firms operating
under our instruction Where the work was performed by
component auditors, we determmed the level of involvement we
needed to have 1n the audit work at those reporting umits to be
able to conclude whether sufficent appropriate audit evidence had
been obtained as a bams for our opinion on the conselidated
financal statements as a whole

Accordingly, the five financrally significant reporting units
requred an audit of their complete financial mformation, due to
their size and /or their risk characteristies Speaific audit
procedures on certarn balances and transactions were also
performed over those St James’s Place Unut Trusts regarded as
subsidiaries of the Group Ths, together with additional
procedures performed at the consolidated level, gave us the
evidence we needed for our opimon on the consohidated finrancial
statements as a whole
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Independent Auditors’ Report wum

to the members of St. James’s Place plc

Areas of particular audst focus
In preparing the financial statements, the Pirectors made a
number of subjective judgements, for example m respect of

sigmficant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions

and constdering future events that are inherently uncertarn
We primanly focused our work in these areas by asseszng the
Directors’ judgements agamst available evidence, forming our
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial

statements

In our audit, we tested and examined information, using samphing

and other audinng techmques, to the extent we considered

Area of facus

How the scope of our audit
addressed the area of focus

necessary to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions
We obtained audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of
controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both

‘We considered the following areas to be those that required
particular focus in the current year This 1s not a complete lst of
all risks or arcas of focus identificd by our audit We discussed
these areas of focus wath the Audit Commuttee Their report on
those matters that they considered to be sigmificant tssues 1n
relation to the financial statements 15 set out on pages 59 to 61

Area of focus

How the scope of our audit
addressed the area of focus

Existence and
valuation of
financial
mvestments and
nvestment
property

We did not assess
these mvestments
to be a signihcant
risk area for

our audit but
theirr magmtude
m the context

of the finanaal
statements meant
that they were an
area of focus for
testing

St James's Place
plc outsources
the custodian
and valuaton
acowvities Our
audit procedures
therefore focus
on the evidence
available over
these outsourced
processes

‘We agreed the existence of all holdings
of the financial imvestment portfolo to a
confirmation recerved from independent
custodians as at 31 Decernber 2013

‘We mndependently agreed the exstence of a
sample of holdings of Investment Properties
as at 31 December to the Land Register
maintained by the Land Registry

We obtained and read the International
Standard on Assurance Engagements (‘ISAE’)
3402 “‘Assurance Reports on Controlsat a
Service Orgamsation’ for State Street’s Global
Fund Accounting and Custody operations
whuch provided a description of the systems
and controls 1n place and the results of the
testing of the operational effectiveness of
their controls Where appropriate, we placed
rebiance on the controls described in the
ISAE 3402 report to gan evidence over the
valuation and existence of the investments
within the portfolio

In addition to cur controls tesang we
independently re-priced a sample of derivative
wnvestments as at 31 December 2013 We

also independently re-priced all equity, fixed
income and collective 1nvestment scheme
investmnents at a pomt mn tune during the

year to complement our controls rehiance

We agreed our independent prices to those
provided by State Street

For Investment Properties we tested the
mputs to the valuation process and tested the
reasonableness of the rental yield assumptions
used by the Directors 1n the valuation of the
portfohio as at 31 December 2013

Fraud m revenue
recognition

ISAs (UK &
Ireland) presume
there 15 a nsk of
fraud 1n revenue
recogrition
because of

the pressure
management rnay
feel to aclueve the
planned results

We focused on
the transactions
which mcluded

a judgemental
element 1n ther
calculation, for
example the
determination of
the amortisation
period for the

deferred income

{Refer also to note
2 to the financial

‘We evaluated the relevant IT systems
and tested the internal controls over
the completeness, accuracy and fiming
of revenue recogmised i the financral
Statements

We assessed the Directors’ jJudgements

and estimates that had a direct mmpact on
revenue, for example the amortiation profle
of the deferred 1ncome and the dassfication
of St James's Place plc products between
1nsurance and investment business

We tested journal entries posted to revenue
accounts that met speaific eriteria to idenufy
unusual or irregular items

staterments )

Rusk of ‘We assessed the overall control environment
management of the Group, including the arrangements
override of for staff to “whistle-blow’ mappropriate

internal controls
ISAs (UK &

Ireland) require
that we consider

thas

actions, and mterviewed senior management
and the Group’s internal audrt function

We examined the ssgmificant accounting
estimates and judgements relevant to the
finanaal statements for evidence of bias by
the Directors that may represent a risk of
material misstatement due to fraud We also
tested journal entries

Registered No 03183415
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Going Concern

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors’
statement, set out on page 95, n relation to going concern

We have nothing to report having performed our review

As noted 1 the Directors’ statetnent, the Directors have
concluded that 1t 15 appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial staterments using the going concern basis of accounting
The going concern basis presumes that the Group has adequate
resources to remain 1n operation, and that the Divectors mtend 1t
to do so, for at lcast onc year from the date the financial
statements were signed As part of our audit we have concluded
that the Directors’ use of the gowng concern basis 1s appropriate

However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, these statements are not a guarantee as to the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern

OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE

COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opimon

— the information given tn the Strategic Report and the
Dhrectors’ Report for the financial year for which the
consolidated finanaal staternents are prepared 15 consistent
with the consolidated financial statements, and

— the information given in the Corporate Governance Statement
set out on pages 61 and 94 in the Annual Report with respect to
internal control and risk management systems and about share
capital structures 15 consistent with the financial statements

OTHER MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Adequacy of information and explanations recerved
Under the Compames Act 2006 we are required to report to you
1f, 1n our opmon we have not recerved all the mformation and
explanatmns Wwe require for our audit We have no exceptions to
repert artang from this responsibility

Drrectors’ remuneration

Under the Compantes Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, m our opimion, certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration
spectfied by law have not been made We have no exceptions to
report anising from this responsibility

Corporate Governance Statement

Under the Compames Act 2006, we are requred to report to you
1f, 1n our opimen a corporate governance staternent has not been
prepared by the Parent Company We have no exceptions to
report ansing from this responsiblity

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of the
Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Parent
Company’s comphance with mne provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code (‘the Code’y We have nothing to report having
performed our review

On page 37 of the Annual Report, as required by the Code
Provision C 1 1, the Dhrectors state that they consider the Annual
Report taken as a whale to be fair, balanced and nnderstandable
and provides the mformation necessary for members to assess the
Group's performance, business model and strategy On page 60,
as required by C 3 8 of the Code, the Audit Commttee has set
out the significant issues that it considered 1n relation to the
financtal statements, and how they were addressed Under [5As
{UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you if, n our
opiaion

— the statement given by the Directors 1s matenally mconsistent
with our knowledge of the Group acquwred 1n the course of
perforeung our audit, or

— the section of the Annual Report and Accounts describing the
work of the Audit Commuttee does not appropriately address
matters commumeated by us to the Aundit Commttee

‘We have no exceptions to report anising from this responsibility

Other information 1n the Annual Report

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland), we are required to report to you if,

11 our opinion, mformatron in the Annual Reportis

— matertally incansistent with the information 1n the andited
consolidated financial statements, or

— apparently materally incorrect based on, or materally
mnconsistent with, our knowledge of the Group acquired 1n the
course of performing our audit, or

— 15 otherwise misleading

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsiihty

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND THE AUDIT

Our responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explamed more fully in the Staternent of Directors’
Responsibilities set out on page 97, the Drrectors are responsible
for the preparation of the conschdated finanaal staternents and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the
consahdated financral statemnents 1in accardance with apphicable
taw and [SAs (UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards
for Auditors

This report, including the opumons, has been prepared for and
only for the Company’s members as a body i accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other
purpose We do not, 1n giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this repert 1s shown or into whose hands it Inay come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent i wniting

OTHER MATTER

We have reported separately on the Parent Company financial
statements of St James's Place ple for the year ended

31 December 2013 and on the imformation 1n the Directors’
Remuneration Report that 1s described as having been audited

Craig Gentle (Senior Statutery Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCovpers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audrtors
Bristol

24 February 2014

Notes

¢ The maintenasce and 1ategnity of the St James's Place plc website 1s the
respoosibality of the Directors, the work carraed out by the auditors does not
1nvelve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no
responsibuity for any changes that may have accurred to the financial statements
;ince they were imtially presented on the website

* Legislation in the United Kingdom governng the preparation and dissemnation
of finaneal stazements may differ from leguslation 1 other jurisdictions
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Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Notes 2013 2012%
£' Million £ Milhon
Insurance premium mcome 61.2 661
Less premums ceded to reinsurers (54 3) (26 9)
Net insurance premium income 69 392
Fee and comimission income 4 1,013.3 6431
Investrent return 5 5,8311 3,576 7
Other operating mcome 25 12
Net 1ncome 3 68538  4,2602
Policy claims and benefits
— Gross amount {50.2) (52 6)
— Reinsurers’ share 205 210
Net policyholder claims and benefits incurred (29.7) (31 6)
Change 1n mnsurance contract lhiabilities
— Gross amount (42.3) (BoO)
— Remnsurers’ share 25.6 {04)
Net change 1n insurance contract habilities (16.7) (304
Investment contract benefits 23 (5494 (34152
Fees, commission and other acquisition costs (734.7) (405 0)
Admimstration expenses (158.9) (113 0)
Other operating expenses (3-2) 32
(896.8) (531 2)
Profit before tax 461.2 251 8
Tax attributable to policyholders’ returns 8 (270.5) (117 2)
Profit before tax attmbutable to shareholders’ returns 150 7 134 6
Total tax expense 8 (270 9) (144 7)
Less tax attnibutable to policyholders’ returns 8 270.5 1172
Tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 8 (04) 27 5)
Profit and total comprehensive 1ncome for the year 190 3 1071
Profit attrbutable to non-controlling interests ()] -
Profit attributable to equity sharcholders 190 5 107 1
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 190.3 1071
Pence Pence
Basic earmings per share 10 374 215
10 367 212

Diluted earnings per share

*  Restated to reflect the adoption of IFRS 10 See Note 1a

The Group has no other comprehensive income or expense and therefore a separate consolidated statement of comprehensive income

has not been presented

The notes and information on pages 106 to 155 form part of these accounts

Registered No 03183415
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Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity

Attmbutable to Equity Sharcholders

Treasury Non-
Share Share Shares  Retamned Misc controlling
Notes Capital Premum Reserve Earmings  Reserves Tatal Interests Total
£ Milheon £ Million £ Milhon £ Milhon &£ Mihon £ Milhion £ Milhon £ Million
At January 2012 740 110 4 (8 5) 500 1 23 678 3 — 678 3
Profit and total eomprehensive
income for the year 107 1 107 1 107 1
— Dividends 11 45 3 (45 3) (45 3)
— Exerase of options 20 173 193 193
Consideration paid for own shares 24 24 24
Own shares vesting charge 20 (2 0) - -
Retained earnings credit in respect of
share option charges 31 54 54 54
Retained earmngs creditn respect
of proceeds from exercise of share
options held 1n trust 01 01 01
At 31 December 2012 76 0 127 7 (89) 5654 23 762 5 - 762 5
Non-controlling interests arising on
the purchase of subsidiaries during
the year 02 02
Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 190 5 1805 ©2) 190 3
— Dividends 11 (65 3) (65 3) (65 3)
— Issue of share capital 03 03 03
— Exerase of options 10 14 5 155 155
Consideration paid for own shares ; (53) 53 (5 3)
Own shares vesting charge 40 (4 0} - -
Retained earmngs credit ia respect of
share option charges 31 78 78 78
Retarned earmings credit in respect
of proceeds from exercise of share
options held in trust 01 01 01
At 31 December 2013 773 142 2 (10.2)  694.5 2.3 906.1 - 906 1

The number of shares held i the Treasury Share Reserve 1s given m Note 30 Share Capital on page 147

Miscellaneous reserves represent other non-distributable reserves

The notes and mformation on pages 106 to 155 form part of these accounts
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Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position

31 December 31 December 1 January
Naotes 2003 Wi+ 2012+
£ Million £ Million £' Milhen
Assets
Intangible assets
— Deferred acquisttion costs 12 888 8 971 6 865 1
— Acquired value of in-force business 12 400 4312 46 4
— Computer software 12 87 117 84
— Customer Lst 12 — 30 09
R 9375 1,029 § 9208
Property & equpment 13 58 36 54
Deferred tax assets 14 181 8 190 9 248 5
Investment property 15 7327 587 ¢ 5509
Investments
— Equties 29,614.8 21,472 8 17,306 3
— Fixed 1ncome securities 5,965 7 5,117 0 3,811 3
— Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 3,244 3 2,909 6 2,312 2
— Dertvative Fmancial Instruments 142 9 86 1 301
Reinsurance agsets 21 64.2 EL 380
Insurance and mnvestment contract receivables 49,9 46 5 44 5
Income tax assets - 852 41 3
Qther receivables 17 554 0 526 1 5572
Cash & cash equivalents 18 3,845 7 3,080 1 2,368 1
Total assets 45,339 3 35,183 6 28,235 6
Liabilities
Insurance contract habihities 20 466 4 424 Q 394 0
Qther provisions 22 97 912 31
Financial habilities
— Investment contracts 23 33,7175 27,147 4 22,227 3
— Borrowings 24 98 7 707 43 8
— Dervative Financial lnstruments 878 525 43 4
Deferred tax liabihties 25 496 6 2690 218 3
Insurance and mvestment contract payables 381 245 299
Deferred income 26 538¢ 616 5 5359
Income tax Liabilities 49 712 12 4
Other payables 27 439 4 435 8 393 2
Net asset value attributable to umit holders 16 8,535 4 5,293 5 3,654 4
Preference shares 0.1 - -
Total liabalities 44,433 2 34,421 1 27,5573
Net assets 906 1 762 5 678 3
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 30 773 760 740
Share premium 1422 1277 1104
Treasury shares reserve (10 2) {8 9) (8 5)
Miscellaneous reserves 2,3 23 23
Retamned earnings 694 5 565 4 5001
Shareholders’ equity 906 1 762 5 678 3
Non-controlling interests — — _
Total equuty 906.1 762 5 678 3
Pence Pence Pence
Net assets per share 1759 150 4 375

*  Restated to reflect the adoption of IFR5 10 See Nate 1a

The finaneial statements on pages 102 to 155 were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 February 2014 and signed on 1ts behall by

Yt A Co

D Bellamy A Croft
Chnef Execunive Chief Frnancial Officer

The notes and mformation on pages 106 to 155 form part of these accounts
Registered No 03183415
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Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Notes 2013 2012%
£ Milhon £ Milhon
Cash Hows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the year 461 2 2518
Adjustments for
Depreciation 13 16 23
Revaluation 13 0.1 04
Amortisation of acquired value of in-force business 12 3.2 32
Amortisation of computer software and customer hist 12 2.5 .06
Share based payment charge 31 78 54
Interest ncome (22 5) (22 9y
Interest pard 2.8 17
Changes 1n operating assets and liabilitres
Decrease/(increase) in deferred acqusition costs 82.8 (106 5)
Increase in investment property (135 1) 46 7)
Increase 1 1nvestments {9,382.2) (6,125 &)
(Increase)/decrease in reassurance assets (256) 04
Increase 1n insurance and investment contract recervables 34 20
Increase in other receivables (22.4) 30y
Increase 1n 1nsurance contract habilihes 42 4 300
Increase in provisions 0.5 61
Increase in financal hiabalmes {excluding borrowings) 6,605.0 4,929 6
Increase/(decrease) 1n insurance and tavestment contract payables 132 50
(Decrease)/increase 1n deferred mcome (779) 796
Increase 1n other payables 36 426
Increase 1n net assets attributable to unit holders 3,241 9 1,639 1
Cash generated from operating activities 799 5 6811
Interest received 22.5 229
Interest pad {28) amn
Income taxes (paid)/received (14 8) 180
Net cash from operating activities 804 4 720 3
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisttion of property & equipment (38) {09
Disposal/(acquusition) of intangible assets 12 0.5 (38
Acqmsition of subsidiarzres and other business combmations, net of cash acquired @1 24
Net cash from mvesting achvities (12.4) 6 %)
Cash flows from financaing activities
Proceeds from the 1ssue of share capital 158 153
Consideration paid for own shares (5-3) 24
Proceeds from exercise of options over shares held 1n trust 01 01
Proceeds from 1ssue of non-redeemable preference shares 01 -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests 0.2 —
Additional borrowings 300 700
Repayment of borrowngs (2.0) 43
Dividends paid 11 {65 3) (45 3)
Net cash from financing activities (26 4) (a4
Netincrease in cash & cash equivalents 765 6 7120
Cash & cash equivalents at 1 January 3,080 1 2,368 1
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held - -
Cash & cash equivalents at 31 December 3,845 7 3,080 1

*  Restated to reflect the adoption of IFRS 10 See Note la
Exchange rate fluctuations result from cash held 1n the unit-hnked funds

The notes and information on pages 106 to 155 form part of these accounts
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards

)

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
St James's Place ple (“the Company”) 15 a company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales

Statement of Cornpliance
The Group financial statements consohdate those of the Company and st submdiaries (together referved to as the ‘Group’)

The Group financral statements have heen prepared and approved by the Mmrectors in accardance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (‘adopted IFRSs') and interpretations 1ssued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Commuttee (‘TFRIC') and those parts of the Compames Act 2006 that are applicable when reporting under IFRS

The following new and amended standards, which the Group have early adopted as of 1 January 2013, have had a material impact on the
Group’s reported results

1A528 Revised — Investments 1n assoctates and joint ventures
IFRS 10 Conschdated Fainancial Statements

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
Amendments to IFRS 10, 11 and 12 on Transibon Guidance

The following new, revised and amended standards, which the Group have adopted as of 1 January 2013, have not had any material
impact on the Group’s reported results

IAS 1 Amendment — Presentation of Financial Statements
IAS12 Amendment —Income Taxes

IFRS7 Amendment — Financial Instruments Disclosure
TFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2002 — 2011 Cycle

As at 31 December 2013, the following standards and interpretation, which are relevant to the Group but have not been apphed 1 the
financial statements, were in 15sue but not yet effective

IAS 32 Amendment — Financal Instruments Presentation

IAS36 Amendment — Impairment of Assets

IAS39 Amendment — Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement
[FRS9 Financal Instruments — Classificaton and Measurement

IFRS9 Amendment — Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 Amendment — Hedge Accounting

IFRIC  Interpretation 21 — Levies

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle

The adoption of the above standards and mterpretaton 15 not expected to have any material impact on the Group’s results reported
within the financial statements other than requiring additional disclosure or alternative presentation

The Group financial statements alse comply with the revised Statement of Recommended Practice 1ssued by the Association of Brinish
Insurers n December 2005 {as amended 1n December 2006}, to the extent that it 15 consistent with IFRS standards

Basis of Preparation
As discussed in the Directars’ Report, the going concern basis has been adopted i preparing these accounts

The financial statements are presented in pounds Sterling, rounded to the nearest one hundred thousand pounds They are prepared on

ahistonical cost basis except for assets classified as mnvestment property, 1vestments and derivative financial instruments, and liabilities
Jassified as investment contracts, insurance contracts and third party holdings 1n unit trusts, which are held at fair value
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The preparation of financial statements mn conformrty with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of pelicies and reported amounts of assets and labihues, income and expenses The estimates and associated
assumptons are based on lustorical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and habilites that are not readily apparent
from other sources Actuai results may differ from these estimates

The eshimates and underlymg assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recogmsed 1n the
period 1n which the estimate 1s revised af the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the rewvision and future periods, 1f the
revision affects both current and future pertods

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that have significant cffeet on the financial statements and estimates with a
stigruficant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed 1n Note 2

The financial statements are prepared 1o accordance with the Companses Act 2006 ay applicable to companses reporting under IFRS and
the accounting palicies set out below have been applied consistently to alk periods presented in these consohidated inancial statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

{a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated finaneal information 1nearporates the assets, labilities and the results of the Cornpany and of 1ts subsidiarzes
Subsidiaries are those entitres i which the Group directly or mdirectly has the power to govern the financial and operating policies 1n
order to gain benefits from its actvities (including umit trusts m which the Group holds more than 30% of the umts) Associates are all
entities over which the group has significant influence but not control and are accounted for at fair value through the profit and loss
The Group uses the acquisthon method of accounting to account for business combinations and expenses all acquisition costs as they
mcur The financal statements of substdiaries are included 1n the consclidated financial statements from the date that control
commences unt:l the date that control ceases Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with policies adopted by the Group

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the group 1s recognised at fair value at the acquusition date Subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent consideration that 15 deemed to be an asset or liability 18 recognised m accordance with IAS 39 1n the
consohdated statement of comprehensive imcome

The treatment of transactions with non-controlling interests depends on whether, as a result of the transaction, the Group alters
control of the subsidiary Changes in the parent’s ownership mterest in a subsidiary that do not result 1n a loss of control are accounted
for as cquity transactions, any difference between the amount by whuch the non-controlling interests arc adjusted and the fair valuc of
the consideration pard or recerved 13 recogmised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the parent entity Where the Group
loses control of the subsidrary, at the date when control 15 lost the amount of any non-controlling interest 1n that former subsidiary 15
derecognised and any imvestiment retaned 1n the former subsidiary 15 remeasured to its fair value, the gan or loss that 1s recogmsed m
proht or loss on the partial disposal of the subsidrary includes the gatn or luss on the remeasurement of the retained interest

Intragroup balances, and any mcome and expenses or unrealised gains and losses arising from intragroup transactions, are eluminated
in preparing the consolidated financial statements

(b) Product classification
The Group's products are classified for accounting purposes as exther nsurance contracts or investment contracts

{1) Insurance contracts
Insurance contracts are contracts that transfer sigmficant nsurance nsk The Group's product range includes a variety of term
assurance and whole of life protection contracts volving sigmificant insurance risk transfer

(u) Investment contracts
Contracts that do not transfer sigmficant insurance nisk are treated as mvestment contracts The majority of the business written by the
Group s umt linked investment business and 1s classified as 1nvestment contracts
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards contmued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

{c) Long-term busimess

{1} Insurance premium revenue

For unit hinked insurance contracts, premiums are recogmsed as revenue when the habilities arising from them are recognised
All other premiums are accounted for when due for payment

Investment contract premiums are not included 1n the statement of comprehensive income but are reported as deposits to investment
contract labihities 1n the balance sheet

(x1) Revenue from 1investment contracts

Fees charged for services related to the management of investment contracts are recogmised as revenue as the services are provided
Imitial fees, including deahing margins from umt trusts, which exceed the level of recurring fees and relate to the future provision of
services, are deferred These are amortised over the anticipated period 1 which services will be provided

(1) Policy claims and benefits
For insurance contracts, death <laims are accounted for on nottheation of death  Critical illness claims are accounted for when
admitted All other claims and surrenders are accounted for when payment 13 due

For investment contracts, benefits paid are not included 1n the statement of comprehensive income but are instead deducted from
vestmernt contract habihties The movement 1n investment contract benefits wathin the statement of comprehensive income
principally represents the investment return credited to policyholders

Followmg the implementation of the Retail Distribution Review (‘RDR’) on 31 December 2012, explicat advice charges are payable to
St Jemes's Place distribution company by most clients who wish to receive advice wath their investment ina 5t James's Place retail
mvestment product St James's Place facihitates the payment of these charges for the chent, by arranging withdrawals from the chent’s
policy, which are then recognised as income to St James’s Place distribution company A proportion of the charge 15 then paid to the
St James’s Place adviser (‘Partner’) who provides the advice (see (g){1} Expenses)

(rv) Acquusition costs

For msurance contracts, acqusihon costs compnse direct costs such as mitial commussion and the indirect costs of obtaining and processing
new husmess Acquisition costs which are incurred dunng a financial year, net of any imparment losses, are deferred and then amortised aver
the period durning whach the costs are expected to be recoverable and 1n accordance with the ineidence of future related margins

For investment contracts, only directly attributable acquisitien costs, whuch vary with and are related to securing new contracts and
renewing existing contracts, are deferred, and only to the extent that they are recoverable out of future revenue These deferred
acquisition costs, which represent the contractual right to benefit from providing investment management scrvices, et of any
imparrment losses, are amortised on a straight-line basis over the expected hifetime of the Group's investment contracts All other costs
are recognised as expenses when ineurred Note, following the implementation of the Retail Distribution Review ("RDR') on

31 Decemnber 2012, the initial advice costs are no longer an acquisition cost luked to the contractual right to benefit from providing
investment management services and so they are no longer deferred

(+) Insurance contract habilities

Insurance contract hability provisions are determined following an annual actuarial wvestigation of the long-term fund 1n accordance
with regulatory requirements The provisions are calculated on the basts of current information and using the gross prermum valuation
method The Group’s accounting policies for insurance contracts meet the munmum specified requirements for liabihity adequacy testing
under IFRS 4, as they consider current estimates of all contractual cash flows, and of related cash flow such as claims handling costs

Insurance contract hab:lities can never be definitive as to their timing nor the 2mount of claims and are therefore subject to subsequent
reassessment on a regular bass
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(v1) Investment contract liabilities

All of the Group’s investment contracts are unit inked Unit linked hiabilities are measured at fair value by reference to the value of the
underlying net asset value of the Group’s umitised investment funds, determined on a bid value, at the reporting date An allowance for
deductions due to {or from) the Company 1 respect of policyholder tax on capital gains {and losses) 1 the life assurance funds 15 alse
reflected m the measurement of unit linked hab:hities Investment contract hahiliies are recognised when units are first aflocated to the

policyholder, they are derecognised when umts allocated to the pohicyholder have been cancelled

The decision by the Group to designate 1ts unit hinked liabilities as fair value through the profit and loss statement reflects the fact that
the underlying mvestment portfolio 1s maraged, and its performance evaluated, on a farr value basis

v

(vir) Insurance and investment contract recervables and payables
Insurance and investment contract recervables and payables are itially recogmised at fasr value and subsequently at amortised cost,

ustng the effective interest method, less impairment losses

(d) Remsurance
Remnsurance premiums are accounted for when due for payment and remsurance recoveries are accounted for 1n the same period as the

related claim

The accounting pohey for reassurance assets has been amended to reflect only amounts recoverable from reinsurers in respect of
insurance contract iabilites Amounts recoverable from reinsurers in respect of claims and amounts payable 1n respect of future
remsurance premiums are reported as part of insurance and investment contract recervables and payables, respectively There 1s no
impact on the Group's reported results from thas change

{e) Fee and commission 1ncome

Fee and commission income comprises

(1) fees charged for services related to the management of investment contracts,

(u) advice charges pard by clients who wish to receive advice with their investment n a St James’s Place or third party retail
nvestment product, and

{1} commusston, due m respect of products sold on behalf of third parties

Investment contract management fees are genexally recogmised as revenue as the services are provided (see also accounting pohcy
note ¢ (1)}

Advice charges and comimssion are recogmsed in full on acceptance and inception of the associated policy by the relevant product

g g P P policy by P!
provider Where the product provider retains the right to clawback of commussion on an indemmity basis, turnover on sale of these
products 1s recognised net of a provision for the estimated clawback

{f) Investment return
[nvestment return comprises mnvestment incorme and investment gans and losses Investment income mcludes dividends, interest and

rental income from investment properties under cperating leases Dividends are accrued on an ex-cividend basis, and rental meome 15
recogmsed 1n the statement of comprehensive meome on a stratght-line basis over the term of the lease Interest, whuch 15 generated on
assets classified as fur value through profit or loss, 1s accounted for on an accruals bagmis

(g) Expenses

(1) Partper remuneration

Whulst the implementation of the Retail Dastribution Review (‘RDR') on 31 December 2012 has resulted in changes to Fee and
Commmussion mcome recerved (see (€) Fee and Commussion), there 18 no change to treatment of Partner Remuneration

Partner remuneration comprises imtial commission and 1mtial advice fees (‘IAF) (paid for mitial advice, at policy outset and within an
‘mittal per1od’}, renewal commission and renewal advice fees (payable on regular contributions) and fund fee commission or ongoing
advice fee ('OAF’) (based on funds under management and payable on the policy anniversary) Initial and renewal commission and
advice fees are recognised 1n line with the associated premum 1ncome, but inrtial commisston on msurance and investment contracts
may be deferred as set out 1n accounting policy () (xv) Fund fee commussion and ongoing advice fee are recognised on an accruals bass
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards contmued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Commussion and advice fees 1n respect of some 1nsurance and investment business may be paid in advance on renewal premiums and
accelerated by up to five years The unearned element of this accelerated remuneration 1s recognised as an asset within other
recervables Should the contributions reduce or stop within the mitial period, any unearned amount 15 clawed back

{11) Operating lease payments

Leases where a sigmficant praportion of the risks and rewards of ownership 1s retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases
Payments made under operating leases are recogmsed 1n the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease Lease 1ncentives recerved are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as an wntegral part of the total lease
expense and are spread over the life of the lease

(h) Income taxes

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax payable by the Group in respect of policyholders and
shareholders Income tax 13 recogmsed i the statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to 1tems
recogmsed darectly in equity, m which case 1t 1s recognised 1n equity

(1) Current tax
Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable 1a respect of previous years

(1) Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided using the hability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
Liablines for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The following differences are not provided for
the mitial recogmtion of assets or habilities that affect nether accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments n
subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and habihinies, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date

A deferred tax asset 15 recogmsed only to the extent that 1t 15 probable that furure taxable profits will be avatlable agamst which the asset
can be unhsed Deferred tax asseis are reduced to the extent that 1115 no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised

Deferred income tax assets and habihties are offset when there 15 a legally enforceable night to offset current tax assets agamnst current
tax habihnes and when the deferred income taxes assets and habilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
erther the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there 15 an intentian to settle the balances on a net basms

(1) Pobcyholder and shareholder tax

The total income tax charge 15 a separate adjustment within the statement of comprehensive income based on the movement in current
and deferred income taxes in respeet of income, gains and expenses The total charge reflects tax incurred on bekalf of policyhelders as
well as shareholders, and so 1t 15 useful to be able to 1dennfy these separately Shareholder tax is estumated by making an assessment of
the effective rate of tax that 1s applicable to the shareholders, with the balance being treated as tax 1n respect of policyholders

( ) Davidends
Dividend dustributions to the Company's shareholders are recognised in the pertod in which the dividends are paid, and, for the final
dividend, when approved by the Company’s shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

(1) Intang:ble assets
(1) Deferred acqusition costs
See accounting policy ¢ (1v)

(1) Acquired value of in-force business
The acquired value of in-force business in respect of insurance business represents the present value of profits that are expected to
emerge from insurance business acquired on business combinations it 18 calculated at the tume of acquistion using best estimate
,actuarial assumptions for interest, mortahity, persistency and expenses, net of any imparrment losses, and 1t 15 amortised as profits
emerge over the anticipated lives of the related contracts in the portfollo An intangible asset 13 also recogmised 1n respect of acquired
1nvestment management contracts representmg the fair value of contractual righits acquired under those contracts The acquired value
of in-force business 1s expressed as a gross fignre 1n the balance sheet with the associated tax included within deferred tax halalities It
15 assessed for tmpairment at each reporting date and any movement 1s charged to the statement of comprehensive 1ncome
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(m) Computer software
Computer software 15 stated st cost less accumulated amortisation and any recogmised smpairment loss The carrying value 15 reviewed
for impatrment when events or changes 1o circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable

Computer software 15 recognised as an mtangible asset during development with amertisation commencing when the software 1s
operational Amortisation 1s charged to the statement of comprehensive mcome to administration expenses on a straight-line basis over
four years, being the estimated useful life of the intangible asset

(rv) Customer hst
During the year, customer list (renamed rencwal income) was reclasaified as a financial assct and disclosed withun other receavables to better

reflect of the nature of the asset. See accounting policy o {Other recarvables pelicy) for information relating to the treatment of other recervables

Customer list was recogrused as an intangible asset and represented the value of future commission income streams following the
acquisttion of financial services’ businesses and was amortised over four years as the income stream was realised Customer List was
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any recognised impairment loss The carryng value was reviewed for impawrment
when events or changes 1n circumstances mdicated that the carrying value may not be recoverable

(k) Property & equipment

Items of property & equipment are stated at cost less accutnulated depreciation Cost includes the orginal purchase price of the asset
and the costs attrbutable to bringing the asset to 1ts worlang condition for its intended use Land 15 shown at faur value, based on
valuations by external independent valuers The carrying value 1s reviewed for rmpairment when events or changes 1n circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable and any assets that may have suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date

Depreaanon 15 charged to the statement of comprehensive income to admimstration expenses on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the property & equpment as follows

Computers 3 years
Fixtures and fittings 5 years
Office equipment 5 years

Land 15 not depreciated

(1} Investment property
Investment properties, which are all held within the unit hnked funds, are properties which are held to earn rental 1ncome and/or for

capital apprecration They are stated at fair value

An external, independent valuer, having an appropriate recognised professional quahfication and recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued, values the portfoho every month

The farr values are based on open market values, being the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of
valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had

each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion

Any gam or loss ansing from a change in fair value 1s recogmsed 1 the statement of comprehensive mcome within mvestment income
Rental return from investment property 15 aceounted for as described in accounting policy (£}

() Investments

The Group’s investments are 1mittally and subsequently recognised at fawr value through profit or loss, with all gains and losses
recognised within 1nvestment income i the statement of comprebensive income The fair values of quoted hnanual investments, which
represent the vast majority of the Group's investments, are based on the value withuin the bid-ask spread that 1s most representative of
fair value If the market for a finaneial mvestment 18 not active, the Group establishes fair value by using valuation technigues such as
recent arm’s length transactions, reference to sumilar hsted investments, discounted cash flow models or option pricing modeis

The decision by the Group to designate 1ts mvestments at fair value through the profit and loss reflects the fact that the investment
portfolio 1s managed, and its performance evaluated, on a fair value basis
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards contmued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES contmued
The Group recogmses purchases and sales of investments on trade date The costs assocrated with investment transactions are included
withm adnumistration expenses 1n the statement of comprehensive income

{(n) Derrvative financal mstruments

The Group uses dervative finaneial mstruments within some umt Iinked funds, with each contract initrally and subsequently
recogmised at fair value, based on observable market prices All changes in value are recognised within investment income 1n the
statement of comprehensive 1ncome

(o) Other recervables

Other recervables are rmitially recognised at fair value and subsequently held at amortsed cost less ympairment losses, except for
renewal income which 1s held at fair value The value of any impairment recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the oryginal effective interest rate See accounting policy
note p (Impairment pohcy) for information relating to the treatment of impaired amounts

(P) Impairment policy

Formal reviews to assess the recoverability of deferred acquisition costs on insurance and 1nvestment contracts, the acquired value of
m-force business, renewal mcome and loans are carried out at each reporting date The recoverability of such assets 1s measured and the
asset 1s deemed imparred if the projected future margins are less than the carrying vaiue of the asset The carrymg amounts of the
Group’s other assets that are not carried at fair value are also reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 1s any
indication of impairment If there 15 any indication of irrecoverabihity or impairment, the asset’s recoverable amount 15 estimated based
on the present value of its estmated future cash flows

Impawrment losses are reversed — through the statement of comprehensive income — if there 15 a change 1n the estimates used to determne
the recoverable amount Such losses are reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrymg amount does not exceed the carrymg amount
that would have been determmed, net of depreciation or amortisation where applicable, 1f no unpairment loss had been recogmised

(q) Cash & cash equivalents
Cash & cash equivalents include cash 1n hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly hiquud investments, and bank
overdrafts to the extent that they are an mtegral part of the Group’s cash management

Cash & cash equivalents held within unit linked and unit trust funds are class:fied at fair value through the profit and loss All other
cash & cash equivalents are classfied as loans and recervables

(x) Provisions

Provisions are recogtused when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events such that 1t 1s probable
that an outflow of economuc benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obhigation can
be made Provisions are measured as the discounted expected future cash flows taking account of the risks and uncertainties associated
with the specihc hability where appropriate

(5) Borrowmgs

Borrowings are measured mitally at fair value, net of directly attributable transaction costs, and subsequently stated at amortised cost
The difference between the proceeds and the redemptioh value 1s recognised m the statement of comprehensive income over the
borrawing period on an effective interest rate basis Borrowings are recogmised on drawdewn and derecognised on repayment

(t) Other payables
Other payables are recogmsed 1mitaally at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective mterest method

(1) Net asset value attributable to umt holders

The Group consohdates umt trusts in which 1t holds more than 30% of the umts and exercises control The third party interests in
these unit trusts are measured at fawr value, since the underlymg investment portfolios are managed on a fair value basis, and they are
presented in the balance sheet as net asset value attributable to unit holders Income attributable to the third party interests 1s
accounted for within investment income, offset by a corresponding change in investment contract benefits
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(¥) Employee benefits

(1) Penston obligations

Fhe Group operates 2 defined contribution personal pension plan for its employees Contributions to this plan are recogmsed as an
expense 1 the statement of comprehensive income as mcurred The Group has ne legal or constructive obhigations to pay further
contrbutions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relaning to employee service m the current and
prior periods

(1) Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of share-based payment plans The fair value of equaty instruments granted 15 recogrised as an expense
spread over the vesting period of the instrument which accords with the period for which related services are provided, witha
corresponding increase 1n equity in the case of equity settled plans The total amount to be expensed 1s determimed by reference to the
fair value of the awards at the grant date, measured using standard option pricing models

At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments that are expected to vest and 1t recogruses
the impact of the revision of original estimates, 1f any, 1n the statement of comprehensive income, such that the amount recogrsed for
employee services are based on the number of shares that actually vest The charge to the statement of comprehensive mncome 1s not
revised for any changes in market vesting conditions

(w) Treasury shares

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s share capital, the consideration pard 1s deducted from equity atimbutable to
shareholders, as disclosed 1n the Treasury Shares reserve Where such shares are subsequently sold, ressued or otherwise disposed of,
any consideration recerved 15 included 1n equity attributable to shareholders, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects

(x) Foreign currency translation
The Group’s presentation and the company’s functional currency 1s pounds Sterling

Foreign currency transactions are translated into sterling using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transachons Monetary
assets and hiabthties denominated 1n foreign currencies are translated using the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date and the
gain or losses on translation are recognised in the statement of cemprehensive income

Non-monetary assets and liabilities which are held at historical cost are translated using exchange rates prevailg at the date of
transaction, those held at fair value are translated using exchange rates ruling at the date on which the fur value was determined

(¥) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating deaision maker
The chief operating decision maker, which 1s responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been rdentified as the Board of the Company

{z) Current and non-current disclosure

Assets which are expected to be recovered or settled no more than twelve months after the reporting date are disclosed as current
withun the notes to the accounts Those expected to be recovered or settled more than twelve months after the reporting date are
disclosed as non-current

Liabilines which are expected and due to be settled no more than twelve months after the reporting date are disclosed as current
within the notes to the accounts Those Liabilities which are expected and due to be settled more than twelve months after the
reporting date are disclosed as non-current
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

1{a) ADOPTION OFIFRS 10 — IMPACT OF CONSOLIDATICN OF UNIT TRUSTS

Thus new standard establishes the principles to determine whether one entity controls another, where such control exists the
controlling entty 18 required to consolidate the other entity in 1ts financal statements The Group has early adopted IFRS 10 with
effect from 1 January 2013 Ut trusts are now therefore bemng accounted for as a subsidiary when the Group holds more than 30% of
the units

Comparative financial mformation has been restated following the early adaption of [FRS 10 The tables helow show the effect on the
staternent of financial position, the statement of comprehensive 1ncome and the statement of cashflows There was no mpact on the

earmings per share calculation

Immpact on Statement of Financial Position

31 December 1 January
Increase/{decrease) 2012 2012
£ Million £' Million
Assets
Investments
— Equrtes 2,481 2 1,562 9
— Fixed income securies 371 532
— Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes (1,199 5) {690 5)
— Dervative Financial Instruments - 19
Other recervables 177 270
Cash and cash equyvalents 831 388
Total assets 1,419 6 993 3
Liabilities
Financial habihties
— Dervative financial mstruments ©7n -
Other payables 16 16 8
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 1,418 7 976 5
Total habihities 1,418 6 953 3
Impact on Statement of Comprehensive Income Year Ended
31 December
Increase/(decrease) 2012
£' Mitlion
QOther investment return 1650
Net income 1690
Net change 1n investment contract benefits - (169 0)
Profit before tax -
Tax attributable to policybolders’ returns -
Profit for the Permd _
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Impact on Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended

31 December

2012

£ Milhon

Changes 1n operating assets and habilrties

Increase in 1nvestments (3921 3)

Increase m other receivables 93
Decrease m financal Lhiabilities (excluding borrowngs) ©7
Increase in other payables (i52)

Increase 1n net assets attributable to umt holders 442 2

Cash generated from operations 44 3

Net cash generated from operating activities 44 3

Net increase 1n cash and cash equivalents 433

Cash & cash equivalents at 1 January 38 8

Cash & cash equrvalents at 31 December 831

2 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Judgements

The primary area in which the Group has apphed judgement 1n applying accounting policies hes in the classification of contracts
between insurance and investment business Contracts with a significant degree of insurance risk are treated as insurance  All other
contracts are treated as investment contracts The Group has also elected to treat all assets backing linked and non unit hnked contracts
as fair value through profit or loss although some of the assets 1n question may ultimately be held to maturity

Estimates

The princpal areas m which the Group applies accounting estimates are

~ Determimng the value of insurance contract hahilities

— Decading the amount of management expenses that are treated as ecquisition expenses

- Amortisation and recoverability of deferred acquisitton costs and deferred income

— Determiming the fair value, amortisation and recoverability of acquired in-force busmess
— Determming the fair value hability to poheyholders for caprtal losses n unit funds

— Determimng the value of deferred tax assets

Estimates are also apphied 1n determmuung the amount of deferred tax asset recognised on unrelieved expenses and the value of other
provistons

Measurement of msurance contract habilities

The assumptions used m the calculation of insurance contract habilities that have a sigmficant effect on the statement of comprehensive
mncome of the Group are

— The Japse assumption, whuch 15 set prudently based on an mvestigation of experience during the year

— The level of expenses, which 15 based on actual expenses in 2013 and expected long term rates

— The mortahity and morbidity rates, which are based on the resuits of an nvestigation of experience during the year

— The assumed rate of investment return, which 1s based on current gt yields

Greater detarl on the assumptions apphed 1s shown 1n Note 20

Acquisrtion expenses

Certam management expenses vary with the level of new business and have been treated as acqusition costs Each line of costs has
been reviewed and its variability to new business volumes estimated on the basis of the level of costs that would be incurred 1f new
business ceased
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts i

under International Financial Reporting Standards contmnued

2 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES contmued
Amortisation and recoverability of Deferred Acquisitron Costs ‘DAC’) and Deferred Income ( ‘DIR’)

Deferred acquisition costs on investment contracts are amortised on a straight-line basis over the expected hifetime of the underlymg
contracts The expected hfeume of the contracts has been estimated from the experienced termination rates and the age of clients at
mception and maturity

Deferred income 15 amortised on a straight line basis over the surrender penalty period as income 15 recogmsed from the pohcy

Deferred acqusition costs and deferred income on 1nsurance contracts are amortised over the pertod during which the costs are
expected to be recoverable in accordance with the projected emergence of future margins

Deferred acquisttion costs relating to msurance and 1nvestment contracts are tested annually for recoverability by reference to
expected future income levels Future income levels are projected using assumptions consistent with those underlying our embedded
value caleulation

Acquired mn-force busmess

There have been no new business combinations generating acquired in-force business dunng the year The acquired value of the
1n-force busmess 1s amortised on a basis that reflects the expected profit strears arising from the business acquired at the date of
acqumetion Ths profit stream 1s estimated from the experienced termnation rates, expenses of management and age of the clents
under the individual contracts as well as global esumates of investment growth, based on recent experzence at the date of acquisinon

The acquired value of in-force business relating to msurance and 1ovestment contracts 15 tested annually for recoverability by reference
to expected future income levels

Valuing caprtal losses 1n unit funds
In hine with TAS 12, the Group has recognsed a deferred tax asset in relation to capital losses at the reporting date Ths asset has been
tested for impairment against the level of capital gains realistically expected to arise in future

Much of the benefit of the deferred tax asset on capital losses will be shared with policyholders The policyholder mvestment contract
hability has therefore been mncreased to reflect the fair value of this additional benefit The assumptions that have a stgnificant effect on
the fair value of the hability are as follows

— The assumed rate of investment return, which 15 based on current gilt yields

— The lapse assumption, which 18 set prudently based on experience during the year

— The assumed period for development of caprtal gains, which 13 estimated from recent expenence

Determining the value of de‘rfe.rred tax assets

I line with TAS 12, the Group has recognised deferred tax assets for future tax benefits that will accrue The asset value has taken into

consideration the likelihood of appropriate future mcome or gains against which the tax asset can be utiised In particular future '
investment 1ncome from the existing assets will be sufficient to utelise the uarelieved éxpcnaes and capital gains crystallising in the
umt linked funds will utilise the capital losses Tax assets in relation to deferred mcome will be utilised as the underlymg income
15 recogmised

3 SEGMENT REPORTING

IFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be 1dentified on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the Board in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess 1ts performance

The Group’s reportable segments under IFRS 8 are therefore as follows

1 lLafe business — offering pensions, protection and investment products through the Group’s hife assurance subsidiaries,

2 Unt Trust busmess — offering unit trust mnvestment products, including 15As, through the St James’s Place Ut Trust Group, |

3 Distribution business — the distribution network for the 5t James’s Place life and umt trust products as well as finanaal products
such as annurties, mortgages and stakeholder pensions, from third party providers

Registered No 03183415
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The figures for segment income provided to the Board m respect of the distribution business relate to the distribution of the products
of third party prowiders only The figures for segment profit provided to the Board take account of fees and commissions payable by the

[1ife business and umt trust business to the distrbution business

4 Other — all other Group activities

Separate geographical segmental information 1s not presented since the Group does not segment its business geographically, 1ts

customers berng based and 1ts assets managed predominantly m the United Kingdom
The income, profit and assets of these segments are sct out below

Segment Income A
Annval Premrum Equrvalents (‘APE’)

APE, being regular premiums plus one tenth of single pretmiuims, 15 the imncome measure that 1s monitored on a monthly basis by

the Board
Year Ended = Year Ended
31 Decemb 3t Decemb
2013 2012*
£ Miallion £' Mallion
Life business 532.9 488 7
EInit Trust business 230.0 148 5
Distribution business 1023 106 1
Other business - —
Total APE 865.2 743 3
Restatement to reconcile to IFRS basis
Life business
Exclude investment busmess APE (530 5) (486 0)
Dufference betwecen insurance business APE and premium recervable 588 63 4
Less insurance premum 1ncome ceded to retnsurers (54 3) (26 9)
Fee income (management fees) 460.7 458 2
Net movement on deferred income 708 (43 5)
Investment income (primarily i unit inked funds) 4,886.3 3,016 5
Unit Trust business
Exclude unit trust APE (2300) {148 5)
Fee income (dealing profit and management fees) 1509 166 3
Net movement on deferred income 7.1 (36 1)
Investment income 03 03
Distribution business
Exclude distmbution APE (102 3) {106 1)
Fee and commussion income recervable 3192 580
Other investment income 0.2 08
Other business
Income receivable . 46 02
Investment income on third party heldings in consehidated umt trusts 939 2 5553
Other mnvestment income 51 38
Other operating income 2.5 12
Total adjustments 5,988 6 3,516 9
Net income — IFRS 6,853 8 4,260 2

*  Restated to reflect the adoptien of IFRS 10 See Note fa

All segment income 15 generated by external customers and there are ne segment 1ncome transactions between operating segments as

measured by APE
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards contnued

3 SEGMENT REPORTING continued

Segment Profit

Three separate measures of profit are monitored on a monthly basis by the Board These are European Embedded Value ('EEV?), IFRS
(both pre-tax) and the post-tax cash result

EEV Operating Proftt

EEV aperating profit 1s manitared on a manthly basis by the Board The components of the EEV operating profit are included in more
deta] in the Supplementary Information on EEV basis within the Annual Report and Accounts on pages [66 to 176 A receneihation of
EEV operating profit to IFRS profit before tax 1s shown below

1
Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
£' Million £' Mallico
Life business 365.7 2939
Unit Trust business 130.8 826
Dhstribution business (61) 53
Other business _(277) (15 9)
EEV operating profit ' 4627 365 9
Investment return variance 344 2 190 4
Economic assumption changes 106 37
EEV profit before tax 8175 5526
Adjustments to [FRS basis
Deduct amortisation of acquired value of m-force 32) 32
Movement 1n hife value of in-force (net of tax) (360.1) (273 4)
Movement 1n unit trust value of in-force (net of tax) (122.8) 777
Tax of movement in value of in-force (140.7) 63 7)
Profit before shareholder tax 190.7 1346
Tax attributable to policyholder returns 270.5 117 2
IFRS profit before tax 461 2 251 8
Cash result Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
£' Malhon £ Mailbon
Lafe business 143 8 594
Unit Trust business 44 8 336
Dnastnibution business 4 7) 40
Other business (15 1) (53)
Cash resultafter tax ' 168 8 91 7
IFRS adjustments (after tax)
Share option expense (78) (54)
Deferred acqusition costs {'DAC") (62 9) 824
Deferred income (‘DIR") 679 (63 8)
Acquired value of in-force (‘PVIF’) (26) 25
Sterling reserves G4 56
IERS tax adjustments 265 0%
IERS profit after tax 190 3 107 1
Shareholder tax 04 275
Profit before shareholder tax 190 7 134 6
Policyholder tax 2705 1172
IFRS profit before tax 4612 2518
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IFRS segment result
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 202
£ Millon £’ Milhon
Life business
— shareholder 170 6 1117
— policyholder tax gross up 270.5 117 2
Ut Trust business 53.9 i3s
Distribution business (61) 53
Other business (277) (15 9)
IFRS profit before tax 461 2 251 8
Included within the EEV, IFRS profit before tax and post-tax cash result are the following
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
£ Mallion £' Mubon
Sharcholder interest income 73 56
Depreciation 16 23
Segment Assets
Funds under Management (‘FUM’}
FUM within the St James's Place Group, rounded to the nearest £0 1 hillion, are monitored on a monthly basis by the Board
31 December 31 December
2013 2012+
£ Mallion £' Millian
Life business 34,100 0 27,300 0
Unit Trust business 10,2000 7.5000
Total FUIM 44,3000 34,800 0
Exclude thurd party holdings in non-consolidated unit trusts (1,665 6} (2,089 5)
Add balance sheet habilities 1n umt linked funds 5456 499 8
Adjustments for other balance sheet assets excluded from FUM
DAC 888 8 9716
PVIF 40.0 432
Computer software 87 117
Goodwll - 30
Property & equpment 58 18
Deferred tax assets 1818 190 9
Fixed income securtties 67.7 B4 3
Collective investment schemes 5230 322 4
Reinsurance assets 642 386
Insurance and 1nvestment contract recervables 499 46 5
Income tax assets — 8512
Qther recervables 2299 1931
Other recervables eliminated on consolidation {151 9) (199 1)
Cash & cash equivalents 197 1 1825
Other adjustments 543 (4 2)
Total adjustments 1,039 3 3836
Total assets 45,3393 35,183 6

*  Restated to reflect the adoption of [FRS 10 See Note la
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

4 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year Ended Year Ended
31 Pecember 31 December

2013 2012
£ Mallion £' Mallion
Ut Trust management fees 131.8 106 4
Unut Trust dealing profit i91 599
Advice charges 2508 -
Third party fee and commussion income 730 582
Life company management fees 460 7 498 2
Movement m deferred mncome 779 (79 6)
Total fee and commission income 1,013.3 643 1
5. INVESTMENT RETURN
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012+
£ Milhion £ Million
Divadend 1ncome 455 6 4197
Interest income 225 229
Rental income 418 396
Unit Irnked funds cross holding investment wncome 3581 262 9
Net realised gains 4541 179 9
Net unrealised gans 3,559.8 2,096 4
Income attributable to third party holdings in unit trusts 9392 5553
Total investment return 58311 3,576 7

* Restated to reflect the adoption of IFRS 10 See Note 1a

6. EXPENSES

The followng 1tems are included within the expenses disclosed 1n the staternent of comprehensive income

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
£ Malhon £ Mulion
Employee costs (see Note 7) 886 679
Depreciation 16 23
Revaluations 01 04
Amortisation of acquired value of 1n-force business 32 32
Amortsation of DAC 1171 9717
Amortisation of computer software 25 03
Deferral of DAC (34 3) (204 2)
Partner remuneration 407 1 3070
Payment under operating leases 101 99
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audst of the parent Company and consolidated
financial statements 01 01
Fees payable to the Company’s audrior for other services
— The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 06 05
— Audit-related assurance services 01 0t

— Non-audit related services - —
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7 EMPLOYEE COSTS

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2013 2012 9

£ Mallzon £' Malbon S

Wages and salaries* 669 528§ g

Social security costs 89 60 8
Other pension costs 10 relation to defined contribution schemes 50 4 4
Cost of share awards and opucens 78 50
Total employee costs 886 679
Average number of persons employed by the Group during the year 985 854

* Durnng the year the wages and salanes disclosure has been expanded to include employee benefits 1o kind of £6 4 mullion (2012 — £6 5 mllion) with the comparanve figure
having been represented to reflect thus change

The above mformation includes Directors’ remuneration Details of the Directors’ remuneration, share options, pension entitlements
and interests in shares are disclosed n the Remuneration Report on pages 70 to 92
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8 INCOME TAXES

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2013 012
£ Mallion £ Mulbeo
UK corporation tax Q
— Current year charge 290 310 g
— Adjustment 1n respect of prior year 25 (13 5
Overseas taxes k_b"’
— Current year charge 68 76 E
— Adjustment in respect of prior year - © 3 g
38.3 370 N
Deferred tax on unreahsed capital gains and losses i unit linked funds 2781 54 5
Deferred tax on unrelieved expenses 2.2 79°
Deferred tax on pensions business losses 6.4 -
Deferred tax on Group Company capital losses (279) -
Deferred tax charge on other items
- Current year charge (142) 152
— Adjustment 1n respect of prior year - (O]
Effect on deferred tax of change in tax rate (120) (8 2)
2326 107 7
Total tax charge for the period 270.9 144 7
Attributable to
— pobeyholders 2705 172
— shareholders . 04 275

270.% 144 7
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under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

8 INCOME TAXES continued

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Deferred tax 2013 2012
£ Million £' Malhon
Balance at 1 January 781 (29 6)
Charge through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 232 6 107 7
Ansing on acquisitions during the year 41 -
Balance at 31 December 314 8 78 1

The deferred tax components to which movements above relate to are disclosed in Note 14 Deferred Tax Assets and Note 25 Deferred
Tax Liabilities

Included withun the deferred tax current year charge s a credit of £1 7 mulbon (2012 £0 1 mullion credit) relating to sharc based
payments Detals of share based payments are disclosed m Note 31 Share-based Payments

The change 1n the corporation tax rate from 23% to 21% effective from 1 April 2014 and from 21% to 20% effective from 1 April 2015
have been incorporated into the deferred tax balances and 1s quantified in the reconaliation of the tax charge below and on page 123

Year Ended Year Ended
np b 31D b
Reconcihation of tax charge 2013 2012
£ Malhon £’ Mibon
Profit before tax 461.2 251 8
Tax at 23 25% (2012 24 5%) 107.2 617
Effects of
QOverseas mthholdlng tax 1n unit hnked funds - 61
Overseas rates of tax 24 14
Deferred tax in respect of unit hinked funds - 479
Shareholder deduction for policyholder tax 207 6 382
Pohcyholder tax rate differential - 21
Group company capital losses (27 9) —
Share options (2.7) -
Disallowable expenses 1.4 —
Adjustment 1n respect of prior year 0.8 {2 6)
Change 1o tax rate (12 0) (8 2)
Other adjustments (11) 09
Total tax charge for the year 270 9 144 7

The policyhelder tax rate differential relates to the effect of the difference between the shareholder tax rate of 23 25% (2012 24 5%)
and the policyholder tax rate of 20%
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Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Reconciliation of tax charge 2013 2012
£ Mallion £ Mullion
Profit before tax 4612 2518
Tax attributable to policyholders’ returns* (270.5) {117 2)
Profit before tax attributable to sharchelders' returns 1907 i34 6
Shareholder tax charge at corporate tax rate of 23 25% (2012 24 5%) 443 23 25% 330 24 5%
Adjustments
Tax regime differences
Dufference due to Life Insurance tax regime (‘Deferred Income Reserve”) - 21
Dafference due to overseas subsidiarzes (24) (14
249 (1 3%) 07 0 5%
Marker related .
Difference due to Life Insurance tax regime (‘UCG”) - 40
- - 40 3 0%
Other
Creation of deferred tax asset on Group Company capital losses 279) -
Adjustment m respect of prior year 0.8 (2 6)
Share options 27 -
Dasaliowable expenses 14 —
Other an 06
(295) (15 5%) 2 0) (1 5%)
Change 1n tax rate (120) (6 3%) #2) {6 1%)
Shareholder tax charge 04 0 2% 275 20 4%
Policyholder tax charge 2705 117 2
Total tax charge for the year 2709 144 7

*  Profit before tax attributable ta policyhelder returns iy equal to the policyholder tax charge

9 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
During the year the Group acquired the following subsidiaries 1 hine wath the Group's strategic objective of growing the Partnership

Subsidiary undertaking Principalactivity % Sharcholding Date of acquisttion
Dellkark Lid Holding Company 100 22 January 2013
BFS Financial Services Limited*** IFA” 100 22 Janmary 2013
EW Smuth & Co Independent Financial Advisers Limitedk* IFA* 100 22 January 2013
LP Holdeo Lamited Holding Company 43 3" 24 January 2013
Lansdown Place Group Holdmgs Limated*r* Holding Company 924 24 January 2013
LP Wealth Management Limuted**#* IFA” 24 January 2013
Lansdown Place Financial Management Ltd*#* IFA’ 100 24 January 2013
LP Auto Enrclment Solutions Limited*** Auto Enrolment 100 24 January 2013
Chapman Hunter Group Limited Holding Company 100 1 March 2013
Chapman Assomates Limited®** IFA° 100 1 March 2013

* Independent Finanamal Adviser
** Inall cases the percentage shareholding 13 equal to voung rights except for LP Holdoo Limited where 43 3% equity share caprtal 13 held but 60% of the vonng interests of the
**#*Pre-existing subsnidiary of the acquired holding company
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

9 BUSIENESS COMBINATIONS continued

The acquisitions contributed £4 7 mullion to revenue and a £0 4 mullion profit before income tax for the year between the acqmsition
dates and the statement of financial position date Due to the acquisitions preparing financial statements up to the date of purchase 1t 1s
not practicable for the Group to calculate the revenue and profit or loss of the combined entities for the current reporting period as
though the acqumsition date for all business combinations had been as of the beginning of the annual reporting pertod

The net assets, far value adjustments and consideration for these acqusihons are summansed below (all values shown as at their
acqusition dates)

Fair value
Book value  adjustments Fair value
£ Malhon £' Malhon £ Million
Finanaal assets 47 103 150
Cash and cash equivalents i3 - 13
Financaal habilities (6 8) - (6 8)
Total {0 8) 103 95
Consideration
Cash conaideration 77
Deferred consideration 13
Contingent consideration 05
Total consideration 9.5
The non-controlling interest 15 calculated unng the equity method i
Atacquisition
£ Million
Fair value of non-controlling interest 02

The contingent consideranon was payable if certain performance targets were met, being based on the mdividual Partner
performances As at the financial position date all the deferred and contingent consideration has been paid or agreed to be paid in full
with no changes to the inmally recogmised amount

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2013 2032
Pence Pence
Basic earnings per share 374 215
Diluted earmings per share 367 212
The earnings per share (‘EPS’) calculations are based on the followng figures
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
! 2013 2012
£ Mallion £’ Million
Earnings
Profit after tax { for both basic and diluzed EPS) 1903 1071
We:ghted average number of shares
Weiphted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue (for basic EPS) 509 4 497 7
Adjustments for outstanding share options 92 25
We1ahted average number of ordinary shares ( for diluted EFS) 5186 506 2
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11 DIVIDENDS
The following dividends have been paid by the Group
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 3] December Q
2013 2012 2013 2012 5
Pence per Pence per £' Mallion £' Malbon 8
Share Share ]
Final dividend in respect of previous financial year 639 4 80 326 239
Interim dividend 1n respect of current financial year 638 425 32.7 21 4
Total divadends 12 77 9 05 653 453

The Dhrectors have recammended a final dvadend of 9 58 pence per share (2012 6 39 pence) This amounts ta £49 4 mallion

(2012 £32 6 rmllton) and wall, subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, be paid on 16 May 2014 to those :_?
shareholders on the regster as at 11 Apral 2014 §
12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS ;;
Computer g
software S
& other 4
Life Life Unat Trust Acquared speafic
business busmess business value of software
—insurance - Investment —investment m-force  develop-  Customer
DAC DAC DAC Total DAC business ments Tist Total
£ Miallion £ Million 2 Million £ Million £ Million £ Million £ Mudlion £ Mallion
Cost g
At 1 January 2012 103 6 964 8 2453 1,313 7 73 4 87 09 1,357 a
Additions 3i 157 4 437 204 2 — 36 24 210 2 @'-:
At 31 December 2012 106 7 1,122 2 28%0 1,517 9 73 4 123 33 1,606%9 §
At 1 January 2013 106.7 1,122 2 289 Q 1,5179 734 123 33  1,6069 &
Additions 05 23.8 100 343 — — - 343 3
Disposals - - - - - (0.5} - (0 5)
Reclassification — - - - - - (B3 33
At 31 December 2013 107.2 1,146 0 2990 1,5522 73.4 118 - 1,6374
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2012 86 2 294 8 676 448 6 270 03 - 475 9
Charge for the year 60 73 1 186 977 32 03 03 101§
At 31 December 2012 922 367 9 862 546 3 302 06 03 5774
At 1 January 2013 92,2 367.9 862 546 3 30.2 0.6 03 577 4
Charge for the year 135 82.2 214 117 1 32 25 - 122 8
Reclassification - - - - - - (0 3) (03)
At 31 December 2013 1057 4501 1076 663 4 334 31 - 699 9
Carrying value
At 1 January 2012 17 4 670 0 1777 8651 46 4 84 09 920 8
At 31 December 2012 14 5 754 3 202 8 971 6 432 117 30 11,0285
At 31 December 2(13 15 695 9 191 4 8888 40.0 87 - 9375
Current 875
Non-current 8496
937.5

Outstanding amortisation period
At 31 December 2012 6 years 14 years 14- years 13 years 4 years 4 years

At 31 December 2013 6years l4years 14 years 12 years 4 years
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12, INTANGIBLE ASSETS conrznved

Amortisation of deferred acquisinon costs 15 charged within the fees, commussion and other acquisition costs line 1n the statement of
comprehensive income The amortisation of the acquired value of 1n-force business, 15 charged within other operating expenses with
the arnortisation of computer software and customer st charged within admimstration expenses Amortisation profiles are
reassessed annually

13. PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT

Fuoxtures,
Fthngs,
Computers &
Office
Equpment Land Total
£ Mallion £ Milhon £ Mulhon
Cost
At 1 January 2012 323 14 337
Additions 06 03 09
Revaluation - 04 4
At 31 December 2012 329 13 342
At 1 January 2013 329 13 342
Additions 3.7 02 39
Revaluation - (0.1) (1)
At 31 December 2013 366 1.4 380
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2012 283 — 283
Charge for the year 23 - 23
At 31 December 2012 08 — 06
At January 2013 306 - 306
Charge for the year 16 - 16
At 31 December 2013 322 - 322
Net book value
At ] January 2012 40 14 54
At 31 December 2012 23 13 i
At 31 December 2013 44 1.4 58
Current 17
Non-current . 41
5.8
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4 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

31 December 31 December

- 2013 2017

£' Mallion £' Milhon

Life business — unreheved expenses 73.7 759
Life business — net capital losses m umt linked funds - 37
Life business — pension business - 64
Life business — deferred income 23.7 40 2
Umt Trust business — deferred mcome 482 571
Caprtal losses on iquidations 279 -
Other 83 76
Total deferred tax assets 181 8 190 3
Current 36.8 425
Non-current 1450 148 4
181 8 190 9

Appropriate 1nvestment income, gains or profits are expected to arise against which the tax assets canbe utilised In particular, future
mvestwment mcome from the existing assets will be sufficient to unlise the unrelieved expenses and capital gams crystallisng the

unit hnked funds wall utilise the capital losses Tax assets in relation to deferred income wall be utilised as the underlying income

15 recognised

At the reporting date there were unrecognised deferred tax assets of £ml (2012 £0 2 mulhon)

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY
31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Million £' Million

Balance at | January 5976 5509
Additrons 194.1 128 9
Disposals (67.3) (55 8
Changes in fair value 8.3 {26 4)
Balance at 31 December 7327 597 6

Investment property 15 held within unit hnked funds and 1s considered current

The rental income and direct operating expenses recognised 1n the statement of comprehenave income 1n respect of investment
properties are set out below All expenses relate to property generating rental income

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 Decemnber

2013 2012

£ Million £ Million

Rental income 418 396
Direct operating expenses 51 54

At the year end contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop mvestment property amounted to £0 1 millon
(2012 £0 I mulhon) and to dispose of investment property amounted to £ml malheon (2012 £20 0 mallion)
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16. ASSETS HELD TO COVER LINKED LIABILITIES AND THIRD PARTY HOLDINGS IN UNIT TRUSTS

Included wrthin the balance sheet are the following assets and liabatities which represent the net assets held to cover hinked liabihnes
and those attributzble to third party holdings i umit trusts {'UTMI’) The difference between these assets and habilities and those

shown 1 the consohdated balance sheet represents assets and liabilities held outside the umt hnked funds and the UTMI

31 December 31 December
2013 212
£ Millron £' Miallion
Assets
Investment property 732.7 597 6
Investments
— Equities 29,614.8 21,472 8
— Fixed income securities 5,397.9 50326
— Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 2,718.3 2,5871
— Currency forwards 977 577
— Interest rate swaps 8.6 16
— Contracts for differences 29.4 200
— Other derivatives 72 68
Other receivables 3241 3333
Other receivables elirginated on consohdation 151 9 199 1
Cash & cash equivalents 3,6486 2,897 6
Total assets 43,2312 33,206 2
Liabilities
Financal habilities -
— Currency forwards 49.4 342
~ Interest rate swaps 11.8 15
— Contracts for differences 24.8 159
~ Other derivatives 1.8 13
Other payables 241.6 2990
Other payables eliminated on consolidation 2162 1479
Total habilities 5456 499 8
Net assets held to cover linked habilities and third party holdings 1n unit trusts 42,685 6 32,706 4

*  Restated to reflect the sdoption of IFRS 10 See Mote la

Net assets held to cover hnked habilities and third party holdings m umt trusts are considered to have a maturity of up to one year since

the corresponding unit hiabilities are repayable and transferable on demand

31 December 31 December

2013 2017+

£ Milhen £’ Milhon

Investment contracts 33,7175 27,147 4
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 8,535 4 5,293 5
Insurance contract habihties 395.0 336 5
Censchdation adjustments 377 (M0
Net liabihities held to cover linked hiabilities and thard party holdmgs tn unit trusts 42,685 6 32,706 4

*  Restated vo reflect the adoption of IFRS 10 See Note 1a
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17. OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December 31 December
2013 2012»

£ Matlion £ Mithion @

St James's Place Partnership loans 1442 1399 3

Prepayments 2540 150 §

Advanced Partner remuneration 2232 212 R
Unit hinked funds and UTMI (including outstanding security sales) 3241 3333
Unit Trust dealing recevables 4.0 33
Renewal income 16.6 -
Mziscellaneous 17.9 134
Total other recervables 554.0 5261
Current 4322 403 5
Non-current 121.8 122 6
554.0 5261

*  Restated to reflect the adaption of TFRS 10 See Note 11

The fair valuc of loans and receivables included in other receivables is not materially different from amortised cast St James’s Place
Partnership loans are interest bearing (linked to Bank of England base rate plus a margin), repayable on demand and secured against the
future renewal income streams of that Partner The St James’s Place Partnership loans are shown net of a £3 8 mullion provision
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{2012 £6 7 mullion) During the year £0 8 million of the provision was utthsed (2012 £0 5 maillion addition) and £2 [ million
{2012 £0 5 million) was written off to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Movement in renewal 1ncome 31 December g

2013 ]

; -

£ Mallion %

At | January 2013 - 3

Reclassificabion 30 &

Additons 16.7 g
Revaluation (31
Total renewal income 166

The key assumptions used for the assessment of the fair value of the renewal mncome as follows

3§ December
2013

Lapse rate*
Discount rate

15 0%
6 2%

*  Future income streams are projected makang use of persistency assumptions dersved from the Company's own expenience or, where insufficient data exists, from external

1ndustry expenience  These assumptions are reviewed on an annual basis

These assumptions have been used for the analyss of each business combination classified within renewal income

18 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 31 Decemnber

2013 2012

£ Mallion £ Milhon

Cash at bank 195.5 182 5
Cash held by thurd parties 16 —
197.1 182 %

Cash & cash equivalents held outside umt hinked and umt trust funds
Balances held within umt hked and unit trust funds

3,648 6 2,897 6

Total cash & cash equivalents

3,845.7 3,080 1

* Restated to reflect the adopuion of IFRS 10 See Note 12

All cash & cash equivalents are considered current
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under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

19 INSURANCE RISK

Insurance risk arises from imherent uncertainties as to the occurrence, amount and tuming of insurance habihiies The Group assumes
insuranee risk by ssmng insurance contracts under which the Group agrees to compensgate the chient (or other beneficiary) if a specified
future event (the msured event) occurs The Group insures mortality and morbdsty risks but has no longevity risk as we have never
written any anmnty business The Group has 2 medm appetite for insurance misk, only actively pursuing 1t where financually

beneficial, or 1n suppaort of strategic objectives

Risk Description

Management

Underwriting Failure to price appropriately fora
risk, or the impact of anu-selecton

The Group ceased wniting new protechon business tm Apnil 2011
Experience 15 momtored regularly For most busness the premium
or deduction rates can be re-set During the year the Group fully
remsured the remamng UK msurance nsk

Epidemuc/disaster An unusually large number of claims
ansfng from a single madent or event

Protection 1s provided through remnsurance Durmg the year the
Group fully remsured the remamimng UK mngurance risk

Expense Admmistration costs exceed expense  Admimstranon is outsourced and a anff of costs 15 agreed The
allowance contract 1s momtored regularly to rationahse costs mcurred Internal
overhead expenses are monitored and closely managed
Retention Loss of future profit due to more Retention of insurance contracts 15 closely momtored and
? chents than anticipated withdrawmg  unexpected experience 1s mvestigated Retention experlence has
thewr funds continued 1n Live with assumptions during 2013

20. INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2013 012

£ Milhon £' Malhon

Balance at 1 January 424.0 354 0
Movement 1n unit inked hiabilities 585 287

Maovement 1n non-unit linked liabilities

— New business {0.3) 03}
— Existing business 63 3a
« Other assumption changes (10.3) 08
— Experience variance (11.8) {2 8)
Total movement in non-umt hnked habihues (16.1) 13
Balance at 31 December 466.4 424 0
Umt linked 395.0 3365
Non-unit linked 71 4 875
466.4 424 0

Current 100 7 895
Non-current 365 7 134 5
466.4 424 0
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Umt hnked habilities move as a function of net cash flows nto policyholder funds and underlying investment performance of

those funds

Assumptions used 1n the calculation of habilities
The principz] assumptions used in the calculation of the hahilities are

Assumption

Description

Interest rate

Mortality

Morbdity
— Critacal Tlness

Morbadity
— Permanent Health Insurance

Expenses

Persistency

The valuation interest rate ts calculated by reference to the long term gilt yield at 31 December
2013 and the speafic gilts backing the Labilittes The speaific rates used are between 2 5% and
3 3% depending on the tax regime (1 3% and 2 5% at 31 December 2012)

Mortality 15 based on Company expenience and 1s set at 72% of the TM/F$2 tables with an
additionat loading for smokers There has been no change smee 2006

Morbidity 15 based on Company experience There has been no change durmg 2013 Sample
annual rates per £ for a male non-smoker are

Rate
Age 2013 2012
25 0000760 0 000760
35 0.001334 0001334
45 0003182 0003189

Morbidaty 15 based on Company experience There has been no change during 2013 Sample
annual rates per £ mcome benefit p a for a male non-smoker are

Rate
Age 2013 2012
25 0.00548 0 00548
35 001447  ~0 01447
45 003138 003138

Contract liabilities are calculated allowimng for the actual costs of admumstration of the business
The assumption has been amended to allow for changes to the underlying admmstration costs

Annual Cost
Product 2013 2012
Protection business £35.69 £34 30

Allowance 15 made for a prudent level of lapses within the celenlation of the liabiliies The rates
have not changed 1n 2013 Sample annual lapse rates are

Lapses

2012 & 2012 Year 1 Year 5 Year 10

Protection business 7% 9% 8%
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

20 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES continuved

Sensitivity analysis

The table below sets out the sensitivity of the profit on insurance business and net assets to changes 1n key assumptions The levels of
sensitivity tested are consistent with those proposed in the EEV principles and reflect reasonably possible levels of change i the
assumptions The analysis reflects the change i the vamable/assumption shown while all other vanables/assumptions are left
unchanged In practice vanables/assumptions may change at the same tirne, as some may be correlated (for example, an inerease 1n
interest rates may also result in an increase 1n expenses if the increase reflects higher inflation) 1t should also be noted that in some
Instances sensitivities are non-linear The sensitivity % has been applied to proportion the assumption e g application of a 10%
sensttivity to a withdrawal assumpnion of 8% will reduce it 10 7 2%

Change 10 Change 1n

profit profit Change m Change in

Change 10 before tax before tax net assets BEt assets

Sensitvity analysts assumption 2013 2012 2013 2012
% £ Malhon £' Milhon £ Mallion £ Milion
Withdrawal rates -10% (1.1) 7 1.0y 38
Expense assumptions -10% 1.2 13 1.0 11
Mortality/morbdity -5% 00 29 0.0 {23)

A change 1n 1nterest rates will have no material impact on insurance profit or net assets

21 REINSURANCE ASSETS

31 December 31 December

2013 2012
£ Million £' Malhion
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract Liabilities
— Long term insurance contract hablhty 60 5 357
— Claims outstanding 3.7 29
Rewnsurance assets 64.2 386
Current 161 102
Non-cuarrent 48 1 28 4
64 2 386
During the year the Group fully reinsured 1ts rernaining UK protection book of business
A reconciliation of the movement 1n the net reinsurance balance 15 set out below
2013 2012
£ Milhon £ Mullon
Reinsurance assets at 1 January 386 390
Remsurance compeonent of net change 1n claims provision 08 (0 3)
Remsurance compenent of change in msurance liabihties 24.8 1)
Reinsurance assets at 31 December 64.2 386

The overall impact of reinsurance on the profit for the year was a net charge of £8 2 million (2012 charge of £6 3 million)

Registered No 03183415
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22. OTHER PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Office Other
Endowments restructuring provistons Total
£ Mialhon £' Million £ Mallion £' Mallion
At 1 January 2013 0.5 1.0 7.7 9.2
Utlhised/released during the year ©01) (10} - (Gl))
Addrcnal provisions - - 16 1.6
At 31 December 2013 04 - 93 97
Current - - 6.0 60
Non-current 0.4 - 33 37
04 - 9.3 97

The endowments provision relates to the cost of redress for mortgage endowment complaints The provision 1s based on estimates of
the total number of complaints expected to be upheld, the average cost of redress and the estimated tmuing of settlement

The office restructuring provision represented the expected amounts payable under 2 number of non-cancellable operanng leases for
office space that the Group did not occupy The provision was based on estimates of the rental payable untl the approximate dates on
which the Group expectad erther to have sublet the affected space or to have reached break clauses within the relevant

lease agreements
The other provisions represent a reserve mn respect of self insured habtlities

As more fully set out 1n the summary of principal risks and uncertamties on pages 36 and 37, the Group could 1n the course of its
business be subject to legal proceedings and /or regulatory activity Should any such material circumstance arase, a provision would be
established based on the Board’s best estimate of the amount required to settle the obhigation Winle there can be no assurances, the
Directors do not believe, based upon information currently available to them, there 13 any such actrvity that would have a material
adversc effect on the Group's financial position

23, INVESTMENT CONTRACT BENEFITS

- 2013 2012+

£ Millon £ Mallion

Balance at 1 January 27,147 4 22,227 3
Deposits 4,612.3 4,225 5
Withdrawals (2,0917) (1,6671)
Investment contract benefits (principally representing investment expense/mcome) 5,449 4 3,4152
Less investment contract benefits attributable to fund deductions (460 7) (498 2)
Less mvestment contract benefits attributahle to third party holdings in umt trusts (939 2) (555 3)
Balance at 31 December 33,717 5 27,147 4
Current 2,528 8 2,036 1
Non-current 31,188 7 25,111 3

33,717.5 27,147 4

*  BRestated ta reflect the adoptian of IFRS 10 See Note 12
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24, BORROWINGS
31 December 31 December
2(13 2012
£ Malhon £ Malhon
Bank loan 98 7 707
Current 47 07
Non-current 240 700
98.7 707

During the year new loans of £10 0 million with Barclays Bank plc {variable interest rate, repayable over five years), £10 0 million with
Santander UK plc (variable mterest rate, repayable over three years) and £10 0 milhion with Metro Bank plc (varable interest rate,
repayable over 10 years) were agreed, 1n addition to the £45 0 nulhon loan from Barclays Bank ple and a £25 0 milhion loan from Royal
Bank of Scotland plc agreed in the prior year, in order to continue to finance loans from the Group to members of the St James's Place
Partnership The Partners’ loans are secured agatnst the future renewal 1ncome streams of that Partner

Bank loans also includes £750,000 (2012 £750,000) from Bank of Scotland which 1s secured on property disclosed 1n Note 13 to
the accounts

The Greup also guarantees £103 6 million (2012 £89 6 million) of direct loans frem Bank of Scotland and £1 2 malhon (2012 £mil} of
direct loans from Metro Bank plc to members of the St James's Place Partnershup drawn under total facilrnes of £125 0 mulhon (2012
£125 0 milhon) and £20 0 mlhon (2012 £ml) respectively In the event of default of any imndividual Partner loan the Group guarantees
to repay the outstanding balance of that loan These Partners’ loans are secured against the future renewal mcome streams of that
Partner Asthe Company’s guarantee 1s contingent, these loans are not shown as a financta! habihity under borrowing

The fair value of the outstanding bank loans are not materally different from amortised cost

25. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£' Malhion £ Malhion

On deferred acquisition costs 168 0 214 5
On acquired value of mn-force business 80 99
In respect of unit linked funds 3141 407
Other 65 39
Total deferred tax liabilities 496 6 269 0
Current 617 291
Non-current 4349 2399
496 6 269 0

26. DEFERRED INCOME

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Milhon £ Milhan

Life business 297 3 368 2
Unat Trust business 2413 248 3
Total deferred income 5386 6165
Current 119.6 127 6
Non-current 419 0 488 5
8386 616 5
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27. OTHER PAYABLES
31 December 31 December
2013 2012*
£ Million £ Milhoo Q
Accruals 74.2 58 4 §
Unit Trust dealing payable 46.8 46 9 g
Umt hnked funds and UTMI (including outstanding security purchases) 241 6 299 1 s
Mascellaneous 76.8 314
Total other payables 439 4 435 8
|

* Restated to reflect the adoption of IFRS 10 See Note 1a

All other payable balances are considered current

The farr value of inancial liabilities 1n other payables 1s not materszlly different from amortised cost

28, FINANCIAL RISK

Risk management objectives and risk policies

The Group seeks 1o manage risk through the operation of umt linked business whereby the policyholder bears the finanaal risk
In addition, shareholder assets are 1nvested 1n hughly rated investments
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Under [FRS 7, the Group 15 required to analyse their exposure to the following risks

— Credit risk
— Liqudity nisk
— Market risk
— Currency nisk

Credat risk 1s the risk of loss due to a debtor’s non-payment of a loan or other hne of credit Credit risk also anses from holdmgs of
cash and cash equivalents, deposits and formal loans with banks and finanenal institutions  The Group has adopted a risk averse approach

uonpLIIOfUf 13130

to such risk and has a stated policy of not actively purswing or accepting credit rask except when necessary to support other objectives

Risk

Descnption

Management

Shareholders’ assets

Loss of assets

Sharehelder funds are predomnantly mvested ;n AAA rated umtised

money market funds and deposits with approved banks Maxamum

counterparty homts are set for each company within the Group and

aggregate hmuts are also set at a Group level |

Investment matching of Loss of value of assets These habibities are matched by fixed interest securities with mimum

non-hinked habilities AAA credit ratings or UK Government Chits; masumum counterparty
lunuts for such holdings are again set for each company within the
Group and at an aggregate Group level

Remsurance Fallure of counterparty or Credit ratings of potential rewnsurers must meet or exceed

counterparty unable to meet

habilites

rummum specified levels Constderation 1s also given to suce,

risk concentrations/ expasures and ownership 1n the selection of
rewusurers The Group also seeks to diversify 1ts remnsurance credit risk
through the use of a spread of rernsurers

Partner loans and advances

Inability of Partners to repay loans
or advances from SJP

Loans and advances are managed mn hne with the Group's secured
lending policy Loans are secured on the future renewals’ income
streamn expected from a Partner’s portfolo and loan advances vary

in relation to the projected future income of the relevant Partner
Qutstanding balances are regularly reviewed and assessed on a
conservative basis Support 1s provided to help Partners manage their
business appropriately Appropriate provision 1s made where there s
objective evidence of impawrment
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28, FINANCIAL RISK coptinued
Liquidaty risk is the risk that the Group, although solvent, erther does not have avarlable sufficient finanmal resources to enable 1t to
meet 1ts obligations as they fall due, or can secure such resources only at excessive cost The Group 1s averse to hquidity nsk and seeks

to mmimse this risk by not actively pursuing 1t except where necessary to support other objectives

Rask Descrrption Management
Cash or expense A sigmificant cash or expense All free assets are invested 1n cash or cash equavalents and the cash
requirement requrement needs to be met at short  position and forecast are momtored on a monthly basis Also, the Group

notce

mantans a margin of free assets in excess of the mummum requred

solvency capital wrthin its regulated entnes

Market risk 1s the impact a fall in the value of equity or other asset markets may have on the business The Group adopts a risk averse
approach to market risk, with a stated solvency policy of not actively pursuing or accepting market risk except where necessary to
support other objectives However, the Group accepts the nisk that the fall in equity or other asset markets will reduce the level of
annual management charge income derived trom policyholder assets and the risk of lower future profits

The table below summarises the maimn market risks that the business 1s exposed to and the methods by which the Group seeks to

mitigate them

Rusk Description Management

Client habihities As a result of a reduction 1 equuty Ths risk 15 substantially mitigated by the Group’s strategic focus on
values, the Group may be unable to  unit-hinked business, by not providing guarantees to chents on policy
meet chent habihues values and by the matching of assets and habilines

Tax In adverse market conditions, when  The tax position 1s momtored closely, in particular the size and sources
the Group 15 realising investment of relevant mncome streams
losses rather than gamns, the working
of the I-E tax regime can lead 10
short-term capital mefficencies,
mcludmg the deferral of the cash
benefit ansing from tax rehef
on expenses

Retention Loss of future prefit on mvestment Retention of investment contracts 15 closely momtored and unexpected

contracts due to more chents than
antiapated withdrawing thew funds,
partcularly as a result of poor
mvestment performance

experience vaniances are mnvestgated Retention has remamed
conaistently strong throughout 2013, despite the challenging economc
environment and volatility, and fund surrender rates have remairied low
atc 5%

New Business

Poor performance 1n the financial
markets in absolute terms, and
relative to inflation, leads to
exasting and future chents rejecting
investment 1n longer term assets

The benefit of longer term equuty investment 1n a range of riskzer
financial assets 1s fundamental to our business model Adviee and
marketing remam vahd even when market values fall, however, greater
attention 1s requiired to support and give confidence to existing and
future clients 1n such arcumstances, and this is taken account of by the
Group n 1ts activities

Currency risk

The Group 14 not subject to any sigmficant currency risk since all material shareholder financial assets and finaneral hablinies are

denomnated m Sterhng

Regsiered No 03183415
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Categories of financial assets and financial habihities
The categories and carrying values of the financial assets and financial liabilities held 1n the Group’s balance sheet are summarised in the
table below
Fiancial Financial g
assetsat Liabilities at §
far value fair value 8
through through a8
profit  Avalable for Loans and profit
31 December 2013 and loss™ sale receivables and loss™ Total
£'Malhon £ Malhon £ Milhon £ Milhon £ Million
Financial Assets and Investment Properties
Investment properties 7327 7327
Equities 29,614 8 29,614 8
Fixed mncome securities 5,965 7 5,9657
Investment in Collective Investment Schemes 3,244.3 3,244.3
Dernvative financtal instruments 1429 1429
Other recervables®
— St James's Place Partnership loans 144.2 144.2
— Renewal income 16.6 - 166
— Other 3460 3460
Total other receivables 16.6 4902 506 8
Cash & cash equivalents 3,648 6 1971 3,8457
Total financial assets and 1nvestment
properties 43,349.0 166 687.3 44,0529
Financial Liabihitzes Q
Investment contract benefits 33,717 5 33,7175 g
Borrowings 98 7 =
Denvative financial instruments 87.8 878 L_‘e_:"’
Other payables 4394 §
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 8,535.4 8,535 4 2
Total financial abilities 42,340.7 42,878 8 =
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28 FINANCIAL RISK contrnued

Financial Fmancia)
assety at lialnhties at Financhal
fair valug failr value liabilities
through through measured at
pruﬁt Loanst and proﬁt amortised
31 December 2012% and loss!® recervables and loss® cost Total
£' Million £ Milhoo £’ Million £ Million £' Milhion
Financial Assets
Equities 21,472 8 21,472 8
Fixed income secunties 5,117 0 5,117 0
Investment in Collective Investment Schemes 2,809 6 2,809 6
Denvative financal instruments 86 1 861
Other recervables®
— St James's Place Partnership loans 139 9 13839
— Other 3500 3500
Total other recervables 485 9 489 5
Cash & cash equivalents 2,897 6 182 § 3,080 1
Total financial assets 32,483 1 672 4 33,1555
Finanaal Liabilities
Investment contract benefits 27,147 4 27,147 4
Borrowings 707 707
Deravative Ainancial instruments 529 529
Other payables 435 8 4358
Net asset value attnibutable to umt holders 5,293 5 5,293 5
Total financral lhabrlities 32,493 8 506 5 33,000 3

*  Restated ro reflect the sdoption of IFRS 10 See Note la

(1) All Bnancial assets and Labilities ot fair value through profit or loss are designated as such upen 1stial recogaition
(2) Other financial assets exclude prepayments and unearned commission from ather recesvables

The carrying value of the umit linked 1nvestment contract hiabilities may duffer from the amount contractually required to pay at
maturity Matority values of the financial liabilities vary with future policyholder investment and vathdrawals as well as investment
return, coupled with the impact of capital losses 1o the funds The contractual value required to be paid to policyholders asat

31 Dceember 2013 would be £38 9 mullion lower than the investment contract benefits stated above

Registered No 03183415
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Income, expense, gains and losses arising from financial assets and financial lhabilitzes
The income, expense, gamns and losses arising fram financial assets and financial habihties are summansed 1n the table below
Financial Finanaal
assetsat Iabihties at Financial Q
fair value farr value liabilihes 3
through through measured at Y
profit  Available for Loans and profit amortised 2
Year Ended 31 December 2013 and loss® sale recervables and loss™ cost Tatal -
£ Midlton £ Malhon £ Malhion £ Milbon £ Million £’ Malhon
Financial Assets and Investment Properties
Investment properties
Unt hnked assets 58256 5,825 6
Fixed mcome securities (20 (20)
Investment in Collective Investrnent Schemes 2.0 2.0
Other recervables
— St James's Place Partnership loans 75 75
— Renewal mncome (3.1) 31)
Total other recervables 31 75 4.4
Cash & cash equivalents® 09 09
Total financral assets and mvestment
properties 58256 (31) 8.4 5,8309
Financial Lrabilites®
Investment contract benefits 4,049 5 4,049 5
Borrowngs - -
Net asset value attributable to umt holders 939.2 9392 Q
Total financial habihities 4,988 7 4,988.7 E‘
Sy
)
Fimanmal Finanmal ‘.é.’
atscts at liablities at Financal §
farr value fair value Labilities fad
through through measured at S
profic Loansand profit amortised
Year Ended 31 December 2012* apd Joust™ receivables and loas® cost Total
£ Mithen £ Mitlion £ Million £' Millhon £' Millien
Financral Assets
Umnt hinked assets 3,570 5 3,570 5
Fixed income securities 07 07
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 15 15
Other receivables
—~ 8t James's Place Partnership loans 33 33
Total other recervables 33 33
Cash & cash equivalents® 07 07
Total financial assets 3,572 7 40 3,576 7
Financial Liabilities®
Investment contract benefits 2,361 7 2,361 7
Borrowings . — -
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 5553 5553
Total financial habilities 29170 2,917 0

+ Restated to reflect the adoption of IFRS 10 et Note 12

(1) All hnaneial assets and liabrdities at fair value through profit or kuss are demgnated as such upon initial recognition

(2) The majority of the return from cash & cash equivalents 15 1ncluded within unit hoked asgets

(3) Noxze of the change in the far value of financial habihities at fair value through profit or loss 1s acributable ta changes 1 their credst rak
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28. FINANCIAL RISK contmnued

Fair value estimation

Financial assets and habihities, which are held at fair value 1n the financal statements, are required to have disclosed ther fair value
measurements by level of the followang fair value measurement erarchy

— Quoted prices (unadjusted) 1n active markets for 1dentical assets or habilities (Level 1)

— Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are chservable for the asset or hability, exther directly (that 1s, 25 prices)
or indrrectly (that 1s, dertved from prices) (Level 2)

— Inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable market data (that 1s, unobservable 1nputs) (Level 3)

The following table presents the Group's assets and habilrties measured at fair value

31 December 2013 Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total balance
£ Milhon £ Malhon £ Milhon £ Millron
Financial Assets and Investment Properties
Investment property 7327 732.7
Equities 29,614 8 29,614 8
Fixed mncome securities 5,965 7 35,9657
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 3,243.0 1.3 3,244.3
Dermvative financial instruments 142.9 142.9
Other recervables 16.6 16.6
Cash & cash equivalents 3,648.6 3,648 6
Total financial assets and ivestment properties 36,506 4 6,108.6 750.6 43,365 6
Financial Liabilities
Investment contract benefits 33,7175 33,7175
Derrvative finanaal mmstruments 87.8 878
Net asset value attributable to umt holders 8,535.4 8,535 4
Total finanaal habihhes 8,535.4 33,805 3 - 42,340 7
31 December 2012* Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 ‘Total balance
£ Mallion £* Million £ Million £' Mallion
Financial Assets
Equties 21,472 8 21,472 8
Fixed mcome securities 5,117 0 5,117 0
Investment in Collectrve Investment Schemes 2,908 0 16 | 2,996
Dermvative financal imstruments 861 861
Cash & cash equvalents 2,897 6 2,8976
Total financial assets 27,278 4 5,203 1 16 32,483 1
Financial Liabilities
Investment contract benefits 27,147 4 27,147 4
Derrvative financial instruments 529 529
Net asset value attributable to umit holders 52935 5,293 5
Total financial habihities 5,293 5 27,200 3 — 32,4938

*  Restated ta reflect the adeption of IFRS 10 See Note 1a

The fair value of financial mstruments traded n zctive markets is based on quoted bad prices at the reporting date, as described mn the
accounting policy (m) These instruments are included 1n Level 1 Instruments included m Level | comprise primanly listed
equity nstruments
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The Group closely monitors the valuatton of assets 1n markets that have become less hquid Determining whether a market 1s active
requures the exercrse of judgement and 1s determined based upon the facts and arcumstances of the market for the instrument being
measured ‘Where 1t 15 determined that there 15 no active market, fair value 15 estabhshed using a valuation techmque Tke techniques
apphed meorporate relevant information available and reflect approprate adjustments for credst and liquidity risks These valuation
techmiques maximise the use of ohservable market data where 1113 avarlable and rely a3 hittle as posable on entity speific estmates The
relative weightings given ta differing sources of information and the determination of non-observable inputs to valuation models can
require the exercise of sigmificant judgement

If all sigmificant mputs required to fair valuc an instrument arc obscrvable, the instrument 1s included 1n Level 2 If one or more of the
significant inputs 1s not based on observable market data, the instrument as included i Level 3

Note that all of the resulting fair value estimates are ncluded m Level 2, except for certamn equities and investments m Collective
investment Schemes (‘CIS’) and investment propertes as detailed below

Spectfic valuation techniques used to value Level 2 finanaal assets and habilities 1nclude
— The use of observable prices for :dentical current arm’s length transactions

Speafic valuation techmques used to value Level 3 financmal assets and habiities include

- The use of observable prices for recent arm’s length transactions

— Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow and Instoric lapse rates, are used to determune fair value for the remarning
financial mstruments

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 duning the year

Transfers mnto and out of level 3 portfolios
Transfers out of level 3 portfohos arse when inputs that could have a sigmificant 1mpact on the instrument’s valuation become market
observable, conversely, transfers mto the portfolios arise when consistent sources of data cease to be available

Transfers in of certamn equities and investments m Collective Investment Schemes (‘CIS") ocour when asset valuations can no longer be
obtamed from an observable market price 1 e become 1lliquid, 10 hquidation, suspended ete The converse 15 true 1f an observable
market price becomes available

During 2013 [FRS 13 was adopted resulting 1n mvestment properties now being mcluded within the Level 3 portfolie As this IFRS 13
to be applied prospectively as of the begiuning of the annual period in which 1t 15 imtially apphed the investment property opening

balance has been presented within transfers into Level 3

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 financial assets at fair value through the profit and loss

2013 2012
' £ Malhon £ Million
Opening balance 16 09
Transfer into Level 3 5978 [V
Additions during the year 213.8 -
Disposed during the year (67 7) -
Gamns reoogmsed 1 the 1ncome statement 3.1 -
Closing balance 7506 16
Total gains for the year included 1n the statement of comprehensive income for assets
held at the end of the reporting period 438 03

Additions include £194 1 milhion of investment properties and £19 7 mullien of renewal 1ncome Gains recognised 1n the statement of
comprebensive 1ncome are included within investment return for certain equines and mvestments 1n Collective Investment Schemes
and tnvestment property, and within admimstration expenses for the renewal income
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

28. FINANCIAL RISK contnued

Sensitvaty of Level 3 valuations

The valuation of certain equities and investments m Collective Investment Schemes (‘CIS") are based on the latest obsexvable price
available Whlst such valuations are sensitive to estmates, it s believed that changing the price appled to a reasonably possible
alternative would not change the fair value sigmficantly

The valuation of renewal income 15 based on discounted cash flaws and historic lapse rates The effect of applying reascnably possible
alternative assumptions of a movement of 100bps on the discount rate and 2 10% movement n the Iapse rate would resultin an
unfavourable change m valuation of £1 6 millien and a favourable change in valuation of £1 9 milhon, respectively

The investment property valuation has been prepared using the “market approach’ valustion techmque — using prices and other relevant
wformation generated by market transactions mvolving identical or comparable (1 e stmilar) assets, as such 1t 15 agam belreved that
changing the price applied to a reasonably possible alternative would not change the fair value significantly Moreover, any change 1n
the value of investment property 15 matched by the assoctated movement 1n the policyholder Liabahity and therefore would not tmpact on
the shareholder net assets

Credat risk
The following table sets out the maximum credit sk exposure and ratings of financial and other assets which are nexther past due or

mmpaired and susceptible to credit risk

Unat inked
funds and
third party
holdmngs in
31 December 2013 AAA AA A BEB Unrated  umt trustst Total
£' Malhon £ Malion £ Malhon £ Mallzon £ Mallion & Milhon £ Mallion
Fixed mncome securibes 67.7 5,898 0 5,965 7
Investment in Collective [nvestment
Schemes® 5223 3.7 2,718 3 3,244 3
Cash & cash equivalents 43 1825 07 9.6 3,6486 3,845.7
Amounts due from reinsurers
— Claims outstanding 3.7 37
— Rewnsurers share of long term
insurance contract habilities 605 605
Total amount due from reinsurers 64.2 642
Other receivables 385 324 1 3626
Total 522.3 136 2 1825 0.7 518 12,589.0 13,482.5

1) Credit rusk relating to umt Linked and umt trust funds 1s borne by the policyholder/umit holder
(2) Investment of shareholder assets in Collective Investment Schemes refers to mvestment [n untzsed money market funds held for the longer term
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The table below sets out the comparative credit risk analyss as at 31 December 2012

Ut hinked
funds and
third party
holdmgs n
31 December 2012#% AAA AA A BEB Usrated unit trusts Total
£ Millhon £ Millon £ Million £ Milhon £' Million £ Million £' Million
Fixed income securities 843 5,0327 5,117 0
Investment in Collective Investment
Schemes 321 6 08 2,587 2 2,909 6
Cash & cash equrvalents 226 158 9 10 2,897 6 3,080 1
Amounts due from rexnsurers
— Claims outstanding 29 29
— Remsurers share of long term
mnsurance contract liabihiies 357 357
Total amount due from remsurers 386 38 &
Other receivables 16 7 3333 3500
Total 405 9 612 158 9 i0 175 10,850 8 11,495 3

*  Restated to refiect the adoption of IFRS 10 See Note 1z

Finanaal assets that are erther past due or impaired
Loaas to 5t James's Place Partnership of £144 2 malbon (2012 £139 9 milhon) are net of an impairment provision of £3 8 mmllon
(2012 £6 7 milhon) (see Note 17) The movement i the impawrment loss recognised within admimistration expenses in the statement

of comprehensive income was a credit of £0 2 mullion (2012 £0 7 mullion charge) The factors considered in determinuing the

impatrment include default history, the nature or type of the Partner loan, exposure levels to individuai Partners and whether the

mndrvidual Partner 15 active or has left

There are no other inanual assets that are impaired, would otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have been renegotiated or

are past due but not imparred
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards contnued

28 FINANCIAL RISK contmmyed

Contractual maturity and liquidity analysis

The following table sets oct the contractual maturity analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial habilities as at
31 December 2013

Total ex
Unat Imt hinked
linked funds and
funds and third party
Uptol 1-5 Over 5 other unit holdings 1n
31 December 2013 year years years holders unit trusts* Total
£ Milhon £ Million £ Milhon £ Million £ Mallion £ Malhion
Financial Assets
Equines 29,614.8 29,614 8
Fixed ipcome secunties 16.8 120 38.9 677 5,898.0 5,965.7
Investment 1o Collective Investment Schemes 5223 §223 2,722.0 3,244 3
Dervative financial instruments 142.9 1429
Orther recervables
— §t James’s Place Partnership loans 412 850 180 144.2 - 144 2
— Renewal income 16 6 166 - 16.6
— Other 219 219 3241 346 0
Total other recervables 797 850 18.0 182 7 3241 506 8
Cash & cash equivalents 197.1 197.1 3,648.6 3,845 7
Total financial assets 815.9 970 56.9 969.8 42,350 4 43,320.2
Financial Liabilities
Investment contract benefits 33,717 5 33,717.5
Borrowings 4.7 89.0 5.0 98 7 - 98 7
Dertvative financial instruments 87.8 878
Other payables 197.8 197 8 241 6 439 4
Total financial hhiabilities 202.5 89.0 5.0 296.5 34,046.9 34,343 4

*  Financral habilibies included under unit linked fonds and net assets attributable to wnit holders are decmed to have a matunty of up to one year ance the corresponding unit
linked habthities are repayable and transferable on demard In pracuice the contractual maturities of the assets may be longer than coe yzar, but the majonty of assets held
withiz the unit linked and anit trust fands are haghly hqud and the Group also actively momtors fund hqudity

Regrstered No 03183415




St James’s Place ple Annual Report and Accounts 2013 145

[

3

&

ial

=

S

B
The table below sets out comparative contractual maturity and liquidity analysis as at 31 December 2012

Total ex
Unt Unit linked
linked funds and «
funds and third party 2
Uptot t-5 QverS other unst beldmps in 3
31 December 2012% year years years holders  unut trusts** Total 8
£' Mathen E' Milhon £ Mallion £' Million £' Milhon £ Malhon "

Financial Assets
Equuttes ~ 21,472 8 21,4728
Fixed mcome securities 121 122 600 843 5,032 7 51170
Investment i Collective Investment Schemes 322 4 3224 2,587 2 2,909 6§
Derivative financial instruments - 86 1 861
(Other recervables -
— St James’s Place Partnership loans 342 829 22 8 1399 1399 ;=:
— Other 170 170 3330 3500 3
Total other recevables 512 829 228 1569 3330 489 9 -':
Cash & cash equivalents 182§ 1825 2,897 6 3,080 1 g
Total financial assets 568 2 95 1 828 746 1 32,409 4 33,1555 §
Financal Liabilities z
Investment contract benefits - 27,147 4 27,147 4
Borrowings 707 707 707
Derivative financial instruments - 529 529
Other payables 149 1 1491 286 7 435 8
Total financial liabilities 149 1 707 219 8 27,4870 27,706 8

*  Reststed to veflect the adoption of IFRS 10 See Note 1a
#* Financial habilities included under umt linked fands and stiributable to unit holders are deemed to have a matunity up to one year as they are repayable or transferable

on demand
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Sensttivity analysis to market risks

The majorsty of the Group’s business 1s umt hinked and the direct associated market risk 15 therefore borne by policyholders (although
there 15 a secopdary 1mpact as shareholder income 15 dependent upon the markets) Financial assets and habilines held outnde umtised
funds primarily consist of fixed interest securities, uruts 1 money market funds, cash and cash equivalents, and other assets and
habilines The fixed interest securities are held to match non linked lrabilities and the hability values move broadly m line with the
matching asset values such that fair value interest rate rigk 1s immaterial, although these 15 some restdual nisk due to imperfect
matching Cash held 1n umnised money market funds and at bank 15 valued at par and 1s upaffected by movement 1n interest rates
Other assets and habthnes are similarly unaffected by market movements

As aresult of these combined factors, the Group's financial assets and habilites held outsrde unitused Funds are not materizlly subject to
market rusk, and movements at the reperting date 1n mterest rates and equity values have an immaterial impact on the Group’s profit
after tax and equity Future profits from annual management charges may be affected by movements in interest rates and equity values
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29 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND ALLOCATION

It 1s the Group’s policy to maintain a strong capatal base in order to

— protect policyholders’ and creditors’ interests,

— support the development of 1ts business and create shareholder value, and
— meet regulatory requirements at all imes

Withun the Group each subsidiary manages its own capital 1n the context of the Group capatal plan  Capital generated 1 excess of
planned requirements 1s returned to the Group's parent, 5t James's Place ple, normally by way of dindends The Group capital plan 1s
monitored by the Finance Executive Commuttee on behalf of the St James'’s Place plc Board

The Group'’s pohcy 1s for each Company to hold the gher of
— the Company's mnternal assessment of the capital requred, and
— the capital requirement of the relevant supervisory body ptus a speaified margin over this to absorb changes

Generally, because of the nature of the business and the current regulatory rules, the higher requirement 1s that of the supervisory
body plus the specihied margin R

The following entities are under supervisory regulanon and have to maintain a minimum level of regulatory capital

Entity Regulatory Body and Junisdicbhon

PRA & FCA Lonp-term msurance business

St James’s Place UK ple |
Central Bank of Ireland Life insurance business

St James's Place International plc

St James's Place Unit Trust Group Limited

St James's Place Wealth Management ple

5t James's Place Reassurance (2009) Lumited

St James’s Place Trust Company Jersey Lumted

St James's Place Wealth Management (PCI5) Lumuted
BFS Financial Services Limited

E W Smuth & Ce Independent Financral Advisers Limuted
Lansdown Place Financial Managerent Ltd

FCA UCITS Management Company
FCA Personal Investment Farm

FCA Reasgsurance Company

Jersey Financial Services Comnmession
FCA Securites and Futures

FCA Personal Investiment Firm

FCA Personal Investment Firm

FCA Personal [nvestment Firm

The PRA regulatory requirement for St Jamnes’s Place UK plc, which makes up the majority of the Group capital requirernent, includes
the prescribed mimimum solvency margin requirement (the Capital Resources Requrement ('CRR’)) and an assessment of the risks
faced under the business, known as the Individual Capital Assessment The capital requirement 1s assessed and monrtored by the
Finance Executive Commuttee, a commuttee of the St James’s Place UK plc Board

The regulatory requirements for the remaimng companies within the Group are assessed and monitored by the relevant Board

There has been no materal change 1n the Group's management of caprtal during the period and all regulated entities exceed the

Iinimum solvency reqmrements at the reportmg date

Capltal composition

The prinupal forms of caprtal are 1ncluded in the tollowing balances on the consolidated statement of financial position

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
£ Malhion £ Mihon
Share capital 773 760
Share premmm 1422 1277
Treasury shares reserve (102) 89
Maiscellaneous reserves 23 23
Retatned earnings 694.5 565 4
906 1 762 8

The above assets do not all qualify as regulatory capttal Analysis of the assets which do qualify as regulatory capatal 1s given 1n Section 3
of the Financial Review on page 30 The Group and 1ts individually regulated operations have comphed with all externatly and

internally imposed capital requirements throughout the period
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30 SHARE CAPITAL

Number of
Ordinary Share
Shares Caputal
£' Mahon
At 1 January 2012 493,422,751 740
— Exerase of options 13,408,396 20
At 31 December 2012 506,831,147 76 0
— Exerase of options 3,384,336 13
At 31 December 2013 515,215,983 77.3

The total authorised number of ordinary shares 1s 605 mullion (2012 605 mullion), with a par value of 15 pence per share
(2012 15 pence per share) All wssued shares are fully pad

Included 1 the 1ssued share capital are 3,338,458 (2012 3,052,273) shares held in the Treasury Shares Reserve with a nominal value of
£0 5 malbon (2012 £0 5 mulhon)

The number of shares reserved for 1ssue under options and contracts for sale of shares, mcludmg terms and conditions, 15 included
within Note 31,

31 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2013 the Group operated a number of different equaty settled share-based payment arrangements,

which are aggregated as follows

— SAYE plan — this 1s a standard IMRC approved scheme that 15 available to all employees where indivduals may contribute up to
£250 per month over three years to purchase shares at a price not less than 80% of the market price at the date of the invitation
to participate

— Share incentive plan (*SIP’) ~ this 15 an HMRC approved scheme whach 15 available to all employees where indivtduals may invest up
to an annual hmit of £1,500 of pre-tax salary n S]P shares, to which the Company will add a further 10% If the shares are held for
five years then they may be sold Free of income tax ar CGT

— Executive deferred bonus schemes — under these plans the deferred element of the annual bonus 15 used to purchase shares at market
value 1n the Company The shares are held by the Company until vesting after three years and, 1n addition to the performance
targets, which apply prior to any entitlement being granted, further performance condittons may also apply on vesting

— Executive performance share plan — the Remuneranon Commttee of the Group Board may make awards of performance shares to
the Executive Directors and other sentor managers Two-thirds of shares awarded to Directors are subject to an earnings growth
condition of the Group and one-third of shares awarded to Directors are subject to a comparative total shareholder return ("TSR”)
condition, both measured over a three year period Further information regarding the vesting conditions of the earmings prowth and
total shareholder return dependent portions of the award 1s grven in the Remuneration Report on page 73 Awards made to senior
managers are largely only subject to the earmings growth condition of the Group

— Partner share option schemes — these were offered to the Partners of the bt James’s Place Partnership and vest over three to six years
subject to satisfying personal sales related performance criteria The last award under these schemes was made in 2007

— Partner performance share plan — a new scheme was launched in January 2008 whereby Partners are entitled to purchase shares in
the future at nominal value (15p) The number of shares the Partners are entitled to purchase will depend on their persenal sales
production in the year of the award and vahidatron over the following three years Thus scheme 13 now closed with no further awards
being made

Share options cutstanding under the various share option schemes, together with shares due under the deferred bonus schemes at

31 December 2013 amount to 14 3 milion shares (2012 21 0 milhon) Of these, 5 3 milhon (2012 10 7 mallion) are under option to
Partners of the St [ames’s Place Partnership, 7 5 million (2012 8 7 rmullion) are under option to executives and senior management
{including 2 6 milhion (2012 3 2 mulhon) under option to Directors as disclosed n the Remuneration Report on pages 87 to 89) and
1 5 million (2012 1 6 milhoo) are under option through the SAYE scheme These are exercisable on a range of future dates
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31 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS contmnued

The table below summarises the share-based payment awards made 1n 2012 and 2013

Executive
Share Incentive Executrve Performance
SAYE Plan Deferred Bonus Share Plan
Awardsn 2012,
Date of grant 23 March & 26 March 26 March Various
26 Sept

Number granted 1,621,267 4,528 747,571 1,590,512

Awards in 2013:
Date of grant 25 March 26 March 21 March 21 March
Number granted 249 691 4 998 435,177 1,335,003
Contractual hife 3 5 years 3 years 3 years 3 5 years
Vesting conditons 3 year saving 3 year saving 3 years’ 3 years’
period period service and service and
achievement achievement
of personal of earmings
targets and TSR
n some targets

Instances

Financial assumptions underlying the calculation of farr value

The fair value expense has been based on the fair value of the mstruments gra.nted, as calculated using appropriate derivative pricing

models The table below shows the assumptions and models used to calculate the grant date fair value of each award

Executive
Share Incentive Executive Performance
SAYE Plan Deferred Bonus Share Plan
Valuation model Black Black Black Monfe
Scholes Scholes Scholes Carlo
Awvards in 2012 .
Fair value {pence) 102 1/110 6@ 364 7 364 7 212 3/364 7
Share price (pence) 362 0/369 9 3647 3647 341 5t0371 09
Exercise price (pence) 296 0/275 0 000 000 000
Expected volaulity (% pa)™? 34732 N/A N/A 34
Expected drvidends (% pa) 22/24 N/A N/A® N/A
Rusk-free interest rate (% pa) 07/03 N/A N/A N/A
Volatility of competitors (% pa) N/A N/A N/A 17 t0 69
Correlation with competitors (%) N/A N/A N/A 20
Awards n 2013.
Fair value (pence) 1420 5070 5100 331 5/510 0
Share price (pence) 5055 507 0 364 7 510 0®
Exercise price (pence) 3890 0 oo 000 000
Expected volanlity (% pa)® 30 N/A N/A 30
Expected dividends (% pa) 21 N/A N/A® N/A
Risk-free interest rate (% pa) 04 N/A N/A N/A
Velatihty of competitors (% pa) N/A N/A N/A 18 to 107
Correlation with competitors (%6) N/A N/A N/A 20
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(1) Expected volatlity 1s based on an analys:s of the Corapany's historie share price volauhity over a period {typically three or five years) which 1s commensurate with the
expected term of the options or the ewards
(2) In 2012 and 2013, the vestng persod for the SAYE plan was three years The vesting period may be extended by up to six months m order to catch up on mussed
contributions 3]
(3) Dividends payable on the shares during the restricted perod are paid out dunag the restricted perrod for the executive deferred bonus schemes ind no dividend yield g
assumption 15 therefore requred 8
{4) The awards made under the extcunve performance share plan are dependent upoen earmings growth 1n the Company (two-thirds of the award) and 1 total shareholder return 2

of a comparator group of compames (one-third of the award) Thas results 1n having two fair va/lues for each of the awards made in the table above, the Srst betng in relation to
the comparator total sharchelder return and the second relating to the Company's earnings growth

(5) Awards were made under the executive performance share plan on two separate occamions during 2013 (2012 5)

(6) There were no awards made 1n 2012 or 2013 for the executive share option schemea or the sales management share option schemes

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
3i December 31 December 31 Decemnber 31 December
2013 2013 2012 2012 -
Wesghted Weighted )
Number of average Number of average §
Dptloﬂs exercrse pncc DPUOB.I exercise pnce _;"
SAYE =
Outstanding at start of year 1,572,172 £263 1,987,287 £1 70 E
Granted 249,691 £389 1,621,267 £2 86 E
Forfeited (98,824) £2.83 (594,764) £2 88 S
Exercised (235,702) £2.04 (1,441,618) £1 50
Outstanding at end of year 1,487,337 £292 1,572,172 £2 63
Exercisable at end of year 5,862 £307 5,468 £2 25
Executive Share Options:
Outstanding at start of year 524,348 £201 587,443 £1 84
Granted - — g
Forferted - — g
Exercised (388,904) £194  (463,095) £1 66 &
Outstanding at end of year 135,444 £222 524,348 £2 01 g
Exercisable at end of year 135,444 £2,22 524,348 £2.01 g
Partner Share Options B
Outstanding at start of year 10,411,138 £277 17,892,050 £2 45
(Granted - _
Forfeited - (24,667) £1 37
Exercised (5,238,467) £272 (7,456,245) £2 02
QOutstanding at end of year 5,172,671 £281 10,411,138 £2 77
Exercisable at end of year 5,162,046 £281 10,398,388 £277

The average share price of the options that were exercised during the year was 572 8 pence (2012 357 § pence)

The SAYE plan options cutstanding at 31 December 2013 had exercise prices of 242 pence (228,112 options), 296 pence
(281,319 opticns), 275 pence (737,739 options), 389 pence (240,167} and a weighted average remaining contractual hfe of 1 6 years

The options outstanding under the executive share option schemes at 31 December 2013 had exercise prices ranging from 170 5 pence
to 254 pence and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 0 9 years

The optrons outstanding under the Partner share option schemes at 31 December 2013 had exercise prices ranging from 162 pence to
465 pence and a weighted average remaimng contractual life of 2 0 years
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

Share Incentive Plan (01l cost option —no proceeds on exercise)

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Number of Nuober of
options optzons
Outstanding at start of year 15,658 12,043
Granted 4,998 4,528
Forfeited (581) (670)
Exercised (464) (243)
Outstanding at end of year 19,611 15,658
Exercisable at end of year — —
Executive Performance Share Plan (n1l cost option — no proceeds on exercise)
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Number of Number of
options optens
Cutstanding at start of year 5,270,375 5,851,489
Granted 1,335,003 1,590,512
Forfeited (369,221)  (407,200)
Exercised (1,067,559) (1,764,426)
Outstanding at end of year 5,168,598 5,270,375
Exercisable at end of year 516,514 40,494
Partner Performance Share Plan (15 pence nominal share value option — 15 pence per share on exercise)
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2
Number of Number of
OPt'.lODS opnum
Outstanding at start of year 307,500 2,617,500
Granted - —
Forfated —~  (223,854)
Exercised (176,500) (2,086,146}
Outstanding at end of year 131,000 307,500
Exercisable at end of year - -
Executive Deferred Bonus (no proceeds on exercise)
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Number of MNumber of
shares shares
Outstanding at start of year 2,923,687 2,690,807
Granted 435,177 747,571
Forferted (19,598) (53,957
Exerased . (1,128,384)  (460,734)
Outstanding at end of year 2,923,687

Exercisable at end of year

2,210,882
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Early exercise assumptions
The following allowance has been made for the impact of early exercise once options have vested

(1) SAYE plan — all option holders are assumed to exercise half-way through the six month exercse window

(2) Executive, sales management and partner share option schemes —1t 1 assurned that 10% of option holders are forced ta exercse
their optrons each year irrespective of the level of the share price For the remainder 1t 15 assurned that one-half wall exeraise ther
ophions each year af the share price 1s at least 33% above the exermise price

Allowance for performance conditions

The executive performance share plan mcludes a market based performance condiion based on the Company's total shareholder return
relative to an index of comparator companes The impact of this performance condition has been modelled using Monte Carlo
sumulation techmaques, which invelve runming many thousands of ssmulations of future share price movements for both the Company
and the comparator index For the purpose of these sumulations 1t 1s assumed that the share price of the Company and the comparator
index are 20% (2012 20%) correlated and that the comparator index has volatilines ranging between 18% pa to 107%pa

(2012 17%pa 0 69%pa)

The performance condition 15 based on the Company’s performanee relative to the comparator index over a three year period
commencing on 1 January each year The fair value calculations for the awards that were made in 2013 therefore include an allowance
for the actual performance of the Company’s share price relative to the index over the period between | January 2013 and the various
award dates

‘

Charge to the consolidated statement of comprehensrve income
The table below sets out the charge to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 1n respect of the share-based

payment awards

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2013 2012
£ Mallion £' Million
Share-based payment expense 78 54

32. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
At 31 December 2013 the Group had the following annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases in connection with the

rental of office buildings and office equpment with varying lease end dates ranging from 2013 to 2028

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Million £' Mathon

Within one year 05 19
Between two and five years 34 23
In morc than five years 67 66
Total financal commitments 106 108

As at 31 December 2013, there was £0 2 million (2012 £1 0 millton) of future mimimum sublease payments expected to be receved
under non-cancellable sub-leases
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company and the Group have entered into related party transactions with Lloyds Banking Group ple (‘LBG"), various subsidiaries
of LBG and the Directors of the Company and the Group

Transactions with LBG and LBG group companies

The followng transactions were carried out, on an arm’s length basis, with LBG and its subsidiarzes during the year

— Commussion of £0 4 muthan (2012 £0 8 milhan) was recewvable fram the sale of hanking services for St James’s Place Bank
(a divison of Halufax plcy

— Fees of £2 O xullion (2012 £1 1 malbion) was recavable from the salc of pensions offered by Scottish Widows

— Commussion of £1 0 milhion (2012 £0 9 mullion) was recervable from the sale of Halifax, Cheltenham & Gloucester, Bank of
Scotland, Birmingham Midshires, Scottish Widows and The Mortgage Busniness mortgages

— Commussion of £0 7 mullion (2012 £0 5 million) was recevable from Bank of Scotland Annuity Service

— Commussion of £36,380 (2012 £37,000) was recevable from Bank of Scotland in respect of corporate banking mncome in 2013

— During the year, deposts were placed with Bank of Scotland and Lloyds TSB on normal commereial terms At 31 December 2013
these deposits amounted to £63 7 mullion (2012 £54 7 milhon)

~ Amounts lent by, or assigned to, the Bank of Scotland to members of the St James's Place Partnershup, under guarantee by
St James’s Place, totalled £103 6 mulhion (2012 £89 & mullion)

— Amounts lent by the Bank of Scotland to the Group totalled £0 8 million (2012 £0 8 mulhon)

— Tax fees of £26,886 (2012 £27,000) 1z respect of annual tax compliance and ad-hoc tax advice were charged by LBG ple to certam
unat trusts

— Fees of £41,564 (2012 £26,250) were payable to LBG 1 respect of the services of non-executive St Jamnes’s Place Board Directors

During the year, Lloyds Banking Group made three separate placements of their holding 1n St James's Place plc

On 11 March 2013, Lloyds Banking Group ple placed 20% of 1ts holding 1n St James's Place plc ("SJP’) on the market through an
accelerated book buuld reducing its holding from 57% to 37% As part of this transaction, fees of £5 2 milhon were paid by 5]P to a
third party whach ordinanly would have been paid by the vendor In the Board’s view this payment was m the interest of 5JP and

1ts sharehelders

On 29 May 2013, Lloyds Banlung Group plc placed 15% of 1ts holding 1n St James's Place plc ("S]P’) on the market reducing its
holding frem 37% to 21%

On 10 December 2013, Lioyds Banking Group ple placed 1ts remaimning 21% holding 1n St James's Place plc (*S]P’} on the market
reducing 1ts holding from 21% to ml

As at the 31 December 2013 Lioyds Banking Group plc remained a related party by virtue of their Non-executive Directorships on the
5t James's Place plc Board Asof 1 January 2014, due to the resignatiaons of these Non-executive Directors, Lloyds Banking Group ple
were no longer a related party

Transactions with 8t. James’s Place unit trusts*

In respect of the non-consalidated $t James’s Place managed umt trusts that are held as investments in the St James's Place life and
pension funds, there was income recogmsed of £16 1 mullion {2012 £21 9 mullion income) and the total value of transactions with
those non-consolidated unit trusts was £32 1 million (2012 £86 3 mullion) Net management fees recervable from these unit trusts
amounted to £19 4 mlhon (2012 £30 1 mlhion) The value of the imnvestment into the non-conschidated unit trusts at 31 December
2013 was £92 2 milbon (2012 £203 4 mullion)

* 2012 comparatives restated to reflect the adopuen of IFRS 10 See Note 1a
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Transactions with key management personnel

The compensation pad to key management personnel, being the Board of Directors of St James’s Place, 15 set out 1n the Remuneration
Report on page 82 The Remuneration Report also sets out transactions with the Directors under the Deferred Bonus Scheme, the
Performance Share Plan, the Executive Share Option Scheme and the SAYE Share Option Schemes, together with detals of the
Directors’ interests in the share capital of the Company

The charge to the statement of comprehensive income 1n respect of the share-based payment awards made to the Executive Directors of
5t James’s Place durmg 2013 was £2 8 mulbon (2012 £1 4 million)

Commussion and advice fees of £865,019 (2012 £814,687) was pad, under normal commercial terms, to 5t James's Place Partners
who were related parties by virtue of beang connected persans with key management The outstanding amount payable at 31 December
2013 was £105,440 (2012 £230,191)

At the start of the year, a St James’s Place Partner, connected to Mr Andrew Croft, held 55,000 options under the Partuer share
optien scheme, exercisable between 26 July 2005 and 27 July 2006 (expiry dates between 25 July 2015 and 26 July 2016} at exercise
prices ranging between £2 36 and £3 28, and 18,333 options under the Partner performance share plan exercsable on between 8
March 2012 and 8 March 2015 at an exercise price of £0 15 During the year 40,000 options under the Partner share option scheme
were exercised (2012 31,000) at £2 36 and £3 28 leaving a balance at 31 December 2013 of 15,000 options under the Partner share
option scheme In addition, 5,000 vested award shares were exercised under the Partner performance share plan at £0 15 leaving a
balance at 31 December 2013 of 13,333 vested award shares under the Partners performance share plan The 40,000 options and 5,000
award shares were exercised on two separate occastons 20,000 at £2 36 and 20,000 at £3 28 on 2 April 2013 when the share price
was £5 105 and 5,000 at £0 15 on 15 August 2013 when the share price was £6 175, realising a gawn of £121,525

34 INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES

Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Group operates mvestment vehucles, such as unt trusts, primanly to match umitholder liabilities The mvestment vehicles are
primarily inanced by investments from umt holders Note 1 sets out the judgements inherent 1n determuung when the Group controls,
and therefore consolidates, the relevant investment velicles

The majonty of the nsk from a change in the value of the Group's investment 1n unconsolidated unit trusts 1s matched by a change 1n
policyholder liabiiries However, the maximum exposure to loss 1s equal to the carrying value of the investment with the balance being
mcluded wathin investments in Collective [nvestment Schemes At 31 December 2013, the total net asset value of unconsolidated urit
trusts in which the Group held a beneficial interest was £1,789 3 rmillion

The following umit trusts are not consolidated withtn the Group accounts however the Group does act as the manager of these
unit trusts

Net asset value asat

% of ownership interest 31 December
Nature of Measurement
Name of entity 2013 012 relationship method 2013 2012
— £' Mulhion £' Milkon
Manager of
St James's Place Property Umt Trust 0.00 000  umttrust N/A 393.4 266 4
Fair value
through
Manager of profit
5t James's Place UK High Income Umt Trust 661 507  unittrust and loss 1,395 9 1,097 8

1,789 3 1,364 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards contmued

34 INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES continued

Associates

The following unit trusts are not consohdated withun the Group accounts however they do meet the criteria of an associate

Net asset value as at

% of ownership interest 31 December
Nature of Measurement
Name of entaty 2013 012 relatomship method 03 2012
£ Mallion £ Milhon
Fair value
through
. Manager of profit
St James's Place UK High Income Unit Trust 661 507 umt trust and loss 1,395 9 1,097 8

1,3959  1,0978

353 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Investment Holding Companies
Life Assurance

Unit Trust Management
Dastribution

Management Services

IFA Acqulsltions

Internal Reassurance

* Directly held by $t [ames's Place ple

St James’s Place Investments plc*

5t James’s Place Wealth Management Group plc*

St James’s Place UK ple

St James's Place Internattonal ple (teorporazed m Ireland)
St James's Place Unit Trust Group Limited

5t James's Place Wealth Management plc

5t James’s Place Management Services Limited

St James'’s Place Acquisition Services Limited

St James's Place Reassurance (2009) Limited

The Company owns either directly or indirectly 100% of the voting ordinary equity share capital of the above-named subsidiaries

A full list of subsidiaries 15 available on request from the registered office and will be submitted with the Company’s Annual Return

Al of these compames are registered 1n England and Wales and operate principally 1n the United Kingdom except where

otherwise stated

Due to ongoing solvency requirements, there are restnictions on the amount of distributable reserves within the hife assurance, unit
trust and financial services operating compantes of the Group which restricts their ability to transfer cash drvidends to the Cormpany

Registered No 03183415
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The following subsidiaries of 5t [arnes’s Place plc have raken advantage of the exemption fram statutory audit granted by section 479A

of the Companies Act 2006 In accordance with sectron 479C, St James's Place plc has therefore guaranteed all the outstanding

biabilities as at 31 December 2013 of

Angha Finaneial Limited (03835743)

BFS Financial Services Limuted (4609753)

Chapman Hunter Group Limited (6034452)

Chapman Associates Limited (3047530)

Delllark Lumted (5487108}

Entellus Limited (01611224)

EW Smuth & Co Independent Financial Advisors Limited (4088394)
Lopsystem Limited (01503794)

M H § (Holdings) Limited (00559995)

St James's Place 1990 Limited (02513402)

St James's Place Acquisiton Services Limited (7730835)
St James’s Place Admimstration Limited (00740495)

St James’s Place Investment Trust Limited (00209445)
St James's Place Investments plc (01773177)

St James’s Place Partnership Limated (00425649)

St James's Place Property Services Limited (02608806)
St James’s Properties Lamuted (01075927)

SJPC 2000 plc (SCO13363)

SJPC Group Limited (01873546)

SJPC 7 Lumuted (02102279)

In addimion, the Group accounts consehdate the following umt trusts
St James's Place Allshare Income Uit Trust

St James's Place Alterpative Assets Unit Trust

St James’s Place Balanced Managed Unit Trust

St James’s Place Continental European Umt Trust

St James’s Place Corporate Bond Unat Trust

St James's Place Equity [ncome Unit Trust

St James’s Place Ethical Umit Trust

St James's Place Far East Uit Trust

St James’s Place Galts Umt Trust

St James's Place Global Emerging Markets Unit Trust

St James’s Place Global Equity Income Ut Trust

St James’s Place Global Equity Unst Trust

St James’s Place Global Umt Trust

St James's Place Greater European Progressive Umt Trust
5t James's Place High Octane Unit Trust

St James's Place Index Linked Gilts Unit Trust

St James’s Place International Corporate Bond Unit Trust
St James’s Place International Equuty Unst Trust

St James's Place Investment Grade Corporate Bond Umt Trust
St James’s Plave Managed Growth Unit Trust

5t James’s Place Money Market Unt Trust

St James's Place Mult Asset Unit Trust

St James's Place North Amencan Umt Trust

St James's Place Strategic Managed Unit Trust

St James’s Place UK and General Progresnve Umt Trust
5t James’s Place UK and International Unut Trust

St James's Place UK Absolute Return Umt Trust

St James's Place UK Growth Unit Trust

5t James's Place Worldwide Opportunities Umit Trust

All of these unit trusts are managed in the Umted Kingdom
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of St. James’s Place plc

REPORT ON THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

Our opimion

In our optmion the Parent Company financal statements,

defined below

— give a true and fair view of the state of the Parent Company’s
affarrs as at 31 December 2013 and of 1ts cash flows for the year
then ended,

— have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

— have been prepared 1o accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

This opinion 1s to be read in the context of what we say 1n the
remainder of this report

What we have audited

The Parent Company finaneial statements, which are prepared by

§t James's Place plc, comprise

— the Balance Sheet of the Parent Company as at 31 December
2013, and

— the notes to the Parent Company financial statements, which
winclude a surnmary of sigmficant accounting policies and other
explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation comprises applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

In zpplying the financial reporting framewark, the directors have
made a number of subjective judgements, for example n respect
of significant accounting estimates In making such estumates,
they have made assumptions and consdered future events

Certain disclosures required by the financial reportung framework
have been presented elsewhere n the Annual Report and
Accounts (the ‘Annual Report’), rather than i the notes to the
financial statements These are cross-referenced from the
financial statements and are identified as audited

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit mn accordance with International

Standards on Audrang (UK & Ireland) (‘ISAs (UK & Ireland)’)

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and

disclosures m the finanal statements sufficient to give reasonable

assurance that the financial statements are free from materral

musstaternent, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an

assessment of

— whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Parent
Company’s circumstances and have been consistently apphed
and adequately disclosed,

— the reasonableness of sigmficant accounting estinates made by
the directors, and

— the averall presentation of the finaneal statementz

g
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In addinon, we read all the finanoal and non-financeral
mnformation 1n the Anhual Report to 1dentify materal
inconsistencies with the audited Parent Company financial
statements and to 1dentify any information that 1s apparently Q
matenally meorrect based on, or materally inconsistent with, the g
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audrt %

If we become aware of any apparent material russtatements or
inconsistencies we consider the imphcations for our report

OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE

COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opimon

— the information gaven in the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report for the finanaal year for which the Parent
Company Ainancial staternents are prepared 1s consistent with
the Parent Company financial statements, and

— the part of the Directors” Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006
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OTHER MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO

REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Adequacy of accounting records and information and

explanations received

Under the Compamies Act 2006 we are required to report to you

if, 1n our opimion

— we have not received all the information and explanations we
requure for our audit, or

— adequate accounting recerds have not been kept by the Parent
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
receved from branches not visted by us, or

— the Parent Company financial stztements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns

vonpuLIofiy 1410

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are requred to report to you
1f, 1n our opinion, certan disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law have notbeen made We have no exceptions to
report arising from this responsibility

Other information 1n the Annual Report

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland), we are required to report to you if,

1n our opinon, information 1n the Annual Reportis

~ matenally inconsistent with the information in the audited
Parent Company financial statements, or

— apparently materially incorrect based on, or materzally
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Parent Company
acqutred 1n the course of performlng our audit, or

— 15 otherwise misleading

We have no exceptions to report ansng from this responsibility
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Independent Auditors’ Report wmne

to the members of St. James’s Place plc

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND THE AUDIT

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully 1n the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities set out on page 97, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the Parent Company financial statements
and for heing satisfied that they give a true and fasr view

Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an opimon ¢n the
Parcnt Company financial statements i accordance with
applicable law and ISAs (UK & Ireland) Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Thus report, mcluding the opimons, has been prepared for and
only for the Company’s members as a body mn accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006 and for no other
purpose We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume -
responsibdity for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report 1s shown or 1nto whose hands 1t may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

QTHER MATTER

‘We have reported separately on the Consohidated financial
statements of St James’s Place ple for the year ended

31 December 2013

Craig Gentle (Senor Statutery Auditor)
for and en behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Starurory Auditors

Bristol

24 February 2014

Notes

+  The maintunance and integrity of the st Jamea's Plags pli, websit s the
respenmbility of the directors, the wark carried ont by the auditors does not
jtvolve consideration of these mattersand, sccordingly, the auditors accept no
responsitility for any changes that may have aciurred to the firancial statcments
unce they were imtially prescated on the website
Legslation in thy, Umized Kingdom governag the preparation and dissemination
of Anancial statcmunts may differ from legedation in ather jurisdictions
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Balance Sheet of the Parent Company

31 December 31 Devember

Notes 2013 2012
£ Mihon £ Millien

Fixed assets
Investment 1n subsidiaries 2 3%07 3828
Current assets
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 54 6 14 9
Other debtors - 01
Current habilities
Corporation tax habilihes 02 -
Net current assets 544 150
Total assets less current hiabilhities 445.1 397 8
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 3 773 760
Share premium account 4 142.2 127 7
Share option reserve 4 81.2 73 4
Other reserves 4 01 01
Profit and loss account 4 144 3 120 6
Total shareholders’ funds 445.1 397 8

The financial statements on pages 159 to 163 were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 February 2014 and signed on its behalf by

Yhiser—, A\ co

D Bellamy A Croft
Chzef Executive Chief Fimancal Officer .

The notes and mformation on pages 160 to 163 form part of these accounts
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Notes to the Parent Company Accounts

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

St James’s Place plc (‘the Company’) 1s a mited Liability company incorporated 1n England and Wales and whese shares are publicly
traded The Company offers a range of msurance, investment and other wealth management services through 1ts subsidiaries, which are
incorporated in the UK and Ireland

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and under the historical cost
convention The Company has elected to continue to prepare the parent financial statements in accordance with UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice In publishing the Parent Company financal statcments, the Company has taken advantage of the
exemption in Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present 1ts indrvidual profit and loss account and related notes that form
part of these finanenal statements The Company 1s not required to present a statement of total recogmused gains and losscs

As discussed 1n the Directors’ Report the going concern basis has been adopted 1n preparing these accounts

All accounting pohcies have been reviewed for appropriateness in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard {FRS} 18 (Accounting
Polctes) and have been applied consistently ta all periods presented 1n these Parent Company fhinancial statements The Company has not
presented a cash flow statement as a consolidated cash flow statement 15 presented m the consohidated Group financial statements

Significant accounting policies
(@) Investment return
Investment return compnses dividends from subsidiaries, which are accounted for when recerved

(b) Taxation

Taxation 1s based on profits and mcome for the perted as determined i accordance with the relevant tax legmslation, together with
adjustments to provisions for prier periods

(¢) Investment 1n subsidiaries B

Investments in subsidraries are carried at cost after impairment losses, plus the cost of share awards granted by the Company of its
own shares

(d) Debtors

Debtors are imtially recogmsed at fair value and subsequeatly held at amortised cost less impairment losses

(e Amounts owed to Group undertakings
Amounts owed to Group undertakings imtially are recognised at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost

O‘) Impamrment losses

The carrying amounts of the assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 1s any imndication of impairment

If there 15 any mndiation of irrecoverability or impairment, the asset’s recoverable amount 18 estumated based on the present value of 1ts
estimated future cash Hows

Registered No 03133415
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2 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

2013 2012
£ Malhon £ Mallion
Costat 1 January
Investment 1n Group undertakings 311 4 311 4
Share options granted by Company 73 4 680
384.8 3794
Additons 1n the year
Investment 1n Group undertalangs - -
Share options granted by Company 78 54
78 54
Cost at 31 December
Investment mn Group undertakings 311 4 311 4
Share options granted by Company 812 734
3926 384 8
Impairment 1n value
Investment 1 Group undertakings (19 20
Net book value at 31 December * o 3%0.7 382 8

The Directors” beheve that the carrying value of the

mvestments 15 supported by their underlymg net assets

Principal Subsidiary Undertakings at 31 December 2013

Investment Holding
Companies
Life Assurance

Uit Trust Management
Distribution
Management Services
IFA Acquisitions
Internal Reassurance

St James's Place Investments plc

S5t James’s Place Wealth Management Group ple

St James’s Place UK ple

St James's Place International plc (incorporated :a Ireland)
St James's Place Unit Trust Group Limited

§t James’s Place Wealth Management plc

St James's Place Management Services Limited

St James's Place Acquisition Services Limited

St James's Place Reassurance {2009) Limited

A foll hst of subsidiaries 15 available on request from the registered office and will be submtted with the Company’s Annual Return

The Company owns either directly or indirectly 100% of the voting ordinary equity share capital of the above-named subsidraries

All of these companies are regstered in England and Wales and operate principally in the United Kingdom except where

otherwise stated

Due to ongoing selvency requirements, there are restrichions on the amount of distributable reserves within the hfe assurance, unit
trust and financial services operating companies of the Group whuch restricts ther ability to transfer cash dividends to the Company
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Notes to the Parent Company Accounts wnatnued

3. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL Number of Called up
Ordinary Share

Shares Capital

£ Muhon

At 1 January 2012 493,422,751 740
— Exercise of options 13,408,396 20
At 31 December 2012 506,831,147 76 0
— Exercise of options 8,384,836 13
At 31 December 2013 515,215,983 773

The total autherised number of ordinary shares 1s 605 mullign (2012 605 mullion), with a par value of 15 pence per share
{2012 15 pence per share) All issued shares are fully pad

8,384,836 shares were 1ssued m the year at a nominal value of £1 3 mullion, for which the Company receved consideration of
£15 8 million

4, RESERVES Share Profit
Premium and Loss Option Other
Account Account Reserve Reserves Total
£ Mallion £ Mallion £ Malhon £ Mallion £ Million
At 1 January 2012 110 4 102 5 68 0 01 2810
Profit for the financial year 63 4 63 4
Dividends (45 3) 45 3)
Issue of share capatal
Exerase of options 173 173
Cost of share options expensed 1n subsidiary 54 54
At 31 December 2012 1277 120 & 73 4 01 3218
Profit for the financial year 890 330
Drvidends (65 3} (65 3)
Issue of share capital
Exercise of options 14 5 145
Cost of share options expensed in subsidiary 78 78
At 31 December 2013 142 2 144.3 812 0.1 367.8

5 AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The total audit fee in respect of the Group 15 set out in Note & on page 120 of the consolidated financial statements The audit fee
charged to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 15 £1,000 (2012 £1,000)

& DIVIDENDS
The following dividends have been paid by the Group

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 Decernber 31 December 31 December

2013 2012 20%3 2012
Pence per Pence per £ Mallion £" Malhon

share share
Final dividend 1n respect of previous financial year 639 4 80 326 239
Interm dividend 1n respect of current financial year 6.38 425 327 21 4
Total 12.77 305 65.3 453

The Directors have recommended a hnal dividend of 9 58 pence per share (2012 6 39 pence) This amounts to £49 4 million
(2012 £32 6 mullion) and will, subject to sharcholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, be paid on 16 May 2014 to those
shareholders on the register as at 11 April 2014

Registered No 03183415
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7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
At the year end the following related party balances existed
31 Decersher 31 December
2013 2012 Q
£ Mallhon £' Mulhon g
Investments in Group companzes g
5t James’s Place Partnership Limited 420 420
St James’s Place Wealth Management Group ple 168 9 1610
St James's Place Investments ple 179.8 1798
Intra group debtors
St James'’s Place Investments plc 54.6 149

Duning the year, the Company recerved £89 0 milhion (2012 £63 4 mulhon) dividends from submduary undertakings

The following wholly-owned subsidiartes of St James’s Place ple have taken advantape of the exemption from statutory audat granted by
sectron 479A of the Companues Act 2006 In accordance with section 479C, 5t James's Place ple has therefore guaranteed all the
outstanding hiabilities as at 31 December 2013 of
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Angha Financial Limited (03835743)

BES Financial Services Limited (4609753)

Chapman Hunter Group Limited (6§034452)

Chapman Associates Limited (3047530)

Dellkark Lumited (5487108)

Entellus Limited (01611224)

EW Stuth & Co Independent Financial Advisors Lamuted (4088394)
Lopsystem Limited (01503794)

MHS (Holdings) Limuted (00559995)

St James's Place 19920 Limited (02513402}

St James’s Place Acquisition Services Larmited (7730835)
St James's Place Admimstration Limmited (00740495)

St James's Place Investment Trust Limited (00209445)
St James’s Place Investments plc (01773177)

St James’s Place Partnership Limated (00425649}

St James’s Place Property Services Limxted (02608806}
St James’s Properties Lumited (01075927}

STPC 2000 ple (SCO13363)

SJPC Group Limited (01873546)

SJPC 7 Lunted (02102279)

uenousefur 12410

8 DIRECTORS®' EMOLUMENTS
The Directors’ responsibilities relate primarily to the trading companies of the Group and accordingly their costs are charged ta those
companies and none are met by the Parent Company Disclosure of the Directors’ emoluments 1s made within the Remuneration

Report on page 82

9. COMPANY INFORMATION
In the opinien of the Directors there 15 not considered to be any ulamate controlhng party

Copues of the consohdated accounts of St James’s Place ple may be obtamned from the Company Secretary, St James’s Place ple,
St James's Flace House, James’s Place House, ! Tetbury Road, Cirencester, Gloucestershire, GL7 1FP
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Directors of St. James’s Place plc (‘the Company’)

REPORT ON THE SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
—~ EUROPEAN EMEBEDDED VALUE BASIS

Our opinion

In our opinton, the supplementary information, detined below,
for the year ended 31 December 2013 has been properly
prepared, 1n all materzal respects, 1n accordance with the

EEV basis set out 1n Note I — Basis of Preparation to the
supplementary informatron

This epinion 1s to be read in the context of what we say in the
remainder of this report

What we have audited

The supplementary information — European Embedded Value

('EEV’) basis (the ‘supplementary informatron’), whichs

prepared by 5t James’s Place plc (the ‘Company’), comprises

— the consohdated statement of financial posiion — European
Embedded Value Basis as at 31 December 2013,

— the conschdated statement of income — European Embedded
Value Basis for the year then ended,

— the consohdated statement of changes in equity — European
Embedded Value Bams for the year then ended, and

— the notes to the European Embedded Value Basis, which
mclude the EEV basis and methodology set out 1n Notes [ and 11
and other explanatory information

The hnancial reporting framework that has been applied 1n their
preparation 1s the EEV basis set out in Note [ — Basis of
Preparation to the supplementary information

What an audit of supplementary information mvolyves

We conducted our audit in accordance with International

Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland) ("ISAs (UK & Ireland)’)

An audit 1nvolves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the supplementary informanon sufficient to give

reasonable assurance that the supplementary mformation 1s free

from materal musstatement, whether caused by fraud or error

Thus includes an assessment of

— whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group’s
arcumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disdlosed,

— the reasonableness of sigmificant accounting estimates made by
the directors, and

— the overall presentation of the supplementary information

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the Annual Report and Accounts to identify
material 1nconsistencies with the audited supplementary
informatien and to identify any iformanon that 15 apparently
materially incorrect based on, or matenially mconsustent with, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performmg the audit
If we become aware of any apparent material misstaterents or
mconsistencies we conaider the implicattons for our report

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION AND THE AUDIT

Our responsibihties and those of the directors
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
supplementary information tn accordance with the EEV
basis set out in Note I — Basis of Preparation to the
supplementary :mformation

Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinton on the
supplementary information 1n accordance wrth apphicable law and
ISAs (UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Thus report, mncluding the opimon, has been prepared for and
only for the Company’s directors as a body 1n accordance with
our letter of engagement dated 22 July 2013 and for no other
purpose We do not, i giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report 15 shown or mnto whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent m writing

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants

Bristol

24 February 2014

Notes
The maintenance and integnty of the St James’s Place ple website Ls the
responxbility of the directors, the work carmied out by the auditors does not
involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no
respongbility for any changes that may bave occurred to the financial statements
since they were imtially presented on the website
Legislavon in the United Kingdom governung the preparation and dissemenatron
of financial staternents may differ from legislation in other junsdictions
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Consolidated Statement of Income
European Embedded Value Basis

The following supplementary mformation shows the result for the Group adopting a European Embedded Value ('EEV") bass for

reporting the results of 1ts wholly owned ife and umt trust businesses

Year Ended Year Ended
nop b 31D b

Note 2013 2012

£ Million £ Millton

Life business 3657 293 9
Umt Trust business 130.8 826
Distmbution business (6.1) 53
Other (21.7) (159
EEV operating profit 4627 3659
Investment return variances 3442 190 4
Economuc assumption changes 10.6 (37
EEV profit before tax 8175 5526

Tax

Life business (127 5) (89 5)
Unit Trust business (42 3) (28 9)
Distnbution business 1.4 {13)
Other 65 52
Corporatien tax rate change 189 216
(143.0) (92 %)

EEV profit after tax 674.5 459 7
EEV profit attributable to non-controlling interests - —
EEV profit attributable to equity share holders 674.5 459 7
EEV profit on ordinary activities after tax 674.5 459 7
Pence Pence

Basic earnings per share VI 132 4 92 4
Diluted earnings per share VI 130.1 90 8
Operating profit basic earnings per share A% 729 585
VI 71.6 575

QOperating profit diluted earmngs per share

The notes and information on pages 169 to 176 form part of this supplementary mformation

Registered No 03183415
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

European Embedded Value Basis

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Mallion £' Million

Opening shareholders’ equity on an EEY basis 2,336.3 1,899 5
EEV profit after tax for the year 674 5 459 7
Issue of share capital 15.8 193
Retained earnings credit in respect of share option charges 78 54

Retained earnings credit in respect of proceeds from exerase of share options of shares held 1n trust 0.1 01
Drvidends paid (65 3) (45 3)
Consideratior paid for own shares 3 24
Non-controlling interests arising on purchase of subsidianies during the year 0.2 -
Closing shareholders’ equity on an EEV basis 2,964 1 2,336 3

The notes and nformation on pages 169 to 176 form part of this supplementary informanon
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
European Embedded Value Basis

31 December 31 December

2013 2012*
£ Million £ Mulbon
Assets
Intangible assets
Deferred acquisihon costs 888 8 971 6
Value of long-term business m-force
— long-term insurance 1,583 7 1,223 6
— unit trusts 506 3 31835
Computer software 87 117
Customer list - 30
2,987 5 2,593 4
Property & equpment 58 36
Deferred tax assets 181 8 1909
Investment property 7327 5976
Investments 38,9677 29,5855
Reinsurance assets 64.2 386
Insurance and 1nvestment contract receivables 499 46 5
Income tax assets - 852
Other recervables 554.0 5261
Cash & cash equivalents 3,845 7 3,080 1
Total assets 47,385 3 36,747 5
Liabilitres
Insurance contract habilities 466 4 424 0
Other provisions 97 92
Financal habihities 33,904 0 27,271 0
Deferred tax liabilities 488.6 259 1
Insurance and investment contract payables 38.1 249
Deferred immcome 5386 6165
Income tax hiabilities 49 772
Other payables 4394 435 8
Net asset value attrbutable to umt holders 8,535 4 5,293 5
Preference shares 01 -
Total habilites 44,4252 34,411 2
Net assets 2,964.1 2,33613
Shareholders’ equuty
Share capital 773 760
Share prepum 1422 1277
Treasury share reserve (102) B89
Mascellaneous reserves 23 23
Retained earnungs 2,752 5 2,139 2
Total shareholders’ equity on an EEV basis 2,964.1 2,336 3
Pence Pence
Net assets per share 58753 461 0

* Restated to reflect the sdoption of IFRS 10 See IFRS Note 13

‘The supplementary information on pages 166 to 176 was approved by the Board of Directors on 24 February 2014 and signed on 1ts
behalf by

Yoser— A Co

D Bellanty A Croft
Chuef Executive Chief Financial Offcer

The notes and information on pages 169 to 176 form part of this supplementary information

Repstered No 03183415
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis

o
8
4
a
Ry
3
I. BASIS OF PREPARATION
The supplementary information on pages 166 to 176 shows the Group’s results as measured on a European Embedded Value (EEV)
basis Thus mcludes results for the hfe, pension and imvestment business, mcluding unit trust business The valuation 13 undertaken on a
basis determined in accordance with the EEV Principles 1ssued 1o May 2004 by the Chuef Financial Officers Forurm, a group of chief o
financial officers from 19 maor European insurers as supplemented by the Additional Guidance on EEV Thisclosures 1ssued in Qctober E
2005 (together ‘the EEV Principles’) The treatment of all other transactions and balances 15 unchanged from the pnimary financial 8
R

staternents on an [FRS hasis The EEV hamis recognises the long-term nature of the emergence of shareholder cash returns by reflecting
the net present value of expected future cash flows

Under the EEV methodology, profit 1s recognised as it 15 earned over the hife of the products within the covered business The
embedded value of the covered business 1s the sum of the shareholders’ net worth i respect of the covered business and the present
value of the projected profit stream

II METHODOLOGY
(2) Covered business
The covered business 13 the life, penston and nvestment business, including unst trust business, undertaken by the Group

(b) Calculation of EEV on existing business

Profit from existng business comprises the expected return on the value of in-force business at the start of the year plus the impact of
any changes i the assumphons regarding future operating experience, plus changes 1n reserving bass (other than economic assumption
changes), plus profits and losses caused by differences berween the actual experience for the period and the assumptions used to
calculate the embedded value at the end of the period

2
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(¢) Allowance for risk

The allowance for risk in the shareholder cash flows 15 a key feature of the EEV Prinaiples The EEV Principles set out three mam areas
of allowance for risk in the embedded value

~ the risk discount rate,

— the allowance for the cost of finanaal options and guarantees, and

— the cost of holding both prudential reserves and any additional capital required

wonomIofiy 13y30y

The reported EEV allows for rsk via = risk discount rate based on a bottom-np market-consistent approach, plus an appropriate
additional margin for non-market risk The Group does not offer products that carry any significant financial guarantees or options

(d) Non-market risk

Best estimate assumptions have been establhished based on available information and when used within the market consistent
calculations provide the pnmary evaluation of the impact of non-market sk However, some non-market operational risks are not
symmetric, with adverse expenience having a lugher 1mpact on the EEV than favourable experience Allowance has been made for this
by increasing the risk discount rate by 0 8% (2012 0 8%) .

(¢) The risk discount rate
A market-consistent embedded value for each product class has been calculated

In prmaciple, each cash flow 1s vatued using the discount rate applied to such a cash flow in the capital markets However in practice,
where cash flows are esther mdependent or move linearly with market movement, 1t 1s posable to apply a simplified method known as
the ‘certainty equivalent’ approach Under this approach all assets are assumed to earn the risk free rate and are discounted using that
risk free rate A market-consistent cost of holding the required capital has also been caleulated

As part of this approach, 2n appropriate adjustment has beer: made to reflect the fact that the valse of tax rehef on expenses does not
move linearly with market movemnents Finally, an additional allowance for non-market risk has been made by mcreasing the discount
rate by 0 8%

For presentational purposes, a nsk discount rate has then been calculated which under the EEV basis gives the same value determined
above This provides an average risk discount rate for the EEV and 15 described 1n relation to the risk free rate This average risk
discount rate has also been used to calculate the pubhshed value of new business
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis

contmued

II. METHODOLOGY continued

{f) Cost of required capital

In Iight of the results of internal analysis, the Directors consider that the mmmum regulatory capital provides adequate capital cover
for the risks inherent 1 the covered business The required capital for the EEV calculations has therefore been set to the opturpised
minimum regulatory capital

The EEV includes a reduction for the cost of holding the required capital No allowance has been made for any potential adjustment
that the wnvestors may apply because they do not have direct control over thewr capital Any such adjustment would be subjective, as
different investors will have different views of what, if any, adjustment should be made

(g) New business

The new business contribution arising from reported new business premums has been calculated using the same assumptions as used
mn the EEV at the end of the finaneal year The value of contractual incremental premuums to existing business 15 treated as new
business 1n the year of the increment, rather than at the outset of the policy Thus approach better reflects the way the Group manages
1ts business

The value of new business has been established at the end of the reporting period and has been calculated using actual 2cquisition costs

(h) Operating profit
Operanng profit 1s determined as the increase mn the embedded value over the year excluding market-related impacts such as the effects
of economic assumption changes and investment variances and grossed up for shareholder tax

(1) Tax

The EEV mcludes the present value of tax relef on bfe assurance expenses calculated on a market-consistent basis Thus calculation
takes mto account all expense and mncome amounts projected for the in-force business (including any carred forward unutilised rehef
on expenses)

In deterrmining the market-consistent value an appropniate allowance 1s made to reflect the fact that the value of tax relief on expenses
does not move hinearly with market movements

‘When calculating the value of new business, priority 1s given to relreving the expenses relating to that business
IIL. ASSUMPTIONS

(2) Economic assumptions
"The princtpal cconomuc assumptions used within the cash flows at 31 December are set out below

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

Rusk free rate 3.1% 1 8%

Inflation rate 3.2% 2 5%

Rusk discount rate (net of tax) 6.2% 4 9%
Future investment returns

— Galts 3.1% 18%

— Equunes 61% 4 8%

«— Ut hinked funds

- Caputal growth 25% 12%

— Dividend income 29% 29%

— Total 54% 4 1%

Expensc mflanon 4.0% 3 4%

The risk free rate 15 set by reference to the yield on 10 year gilts Other investment retutns are set by reference to the risk free rate

A \

The inflation rate 15 denved from the implicit inflatson in the valuation of 10 year index-linked gilts Ths rate 1s increased to reflect
huigher increases 1o earmngs related expenses

Registered No 03183415
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(b) Experience assumptions
The principal experience assumptions have been set on a best estimate basis They are reviewed regularly

The persistency assumptions are derived from the Group’s own experience or, where insufficent data exists, from external
ndustry experience '

The expense assumptons include allowance for both the costs charged by the relevant third party admmistrators for acqmsition and
maintenance, and the corporate costs incurred mn respect of covered business The corporate costs have been apportioned so that the
total maintenance costs represent the anticipated ongoing expenses, including systems development costs, which are expected to anse
1n future years in meeting the pohicy serviang requrements of the in-force business

Mortality and morbidity assumptions have been set by reference 1o the Group’s own expertence, publithed industry data and the rates
set by the Group’s reassurers

(c) Tax

The EEV result has been calculated allowing for tax and has been grossed up to a pre-tax level for presentation in the profit and loss
account The corporation tax rate used for this grossing up 15 20 3% (2012 21 3%) for UK Iife and pensions business, 12 5%

(2012 12 5%} for Irish hife and pensions business and 20 5% (2012 21 7%) for unit rust business Future tax has been determined
assuming a continuation of the current tax legislation The reducuion 1n tax rates for UK business reflects the changes in tax rate
enacted 1n the year

IV COMPONENTS OF EEV PROFIT

(a) Life business
Year Ended Year Ended
31 D b 31 D b
Note 2013 2012
£ Malhion £ Milbon
New business contribution 1 213.6 208 9
Profit from cxusting business
Unwind of discount rate 89.4 76 9
Experience variances 53.9 69
Operating assumption changes 46 an
Investment 1ncome 42 29
EEV operating profit 365.7 2939
Iavestment return vanances 27t 8 1395
Economic assumption changes 77 35
EEY profit before tax 645 2 4299
Tax (127.5) (89 5)
Corporation tax rate change 152 147
EEV profit after tax 5329 3551

Note 1 New business contribution after tax s £171 4 million (2012 £165 2 milijon)
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis

continued

IV COMPONENTS OF EEV PROFIT contmued

(b) Umt Trust business

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2013 2012
£ Mallion £' Milbion
New business contribution 1 113 6 679
Profit from existing business
Unwind of discount rate 227 15 1
Experience variances (6.5) 23
Operating assumption changes — (2 6)
Investment income 10 05
EEV operating profit 1308 826
Investment return varances 724 509
Economuc assumption changes 29 02
EEV profit before tax 206.1 1333
Tax (423) (28 9)
Corporation tax rate change 7 69
EEV profit after tax 1675 111 3
Note | New business contributron after tax 13 £90 3 miilior (2012 £53 1 mullion)
{c) Combined Life and Unrt Trust business
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2013 2012
£ Million £' Million
New business contribution 1 3272 276 8
Profit from existing business
Unwind of discount rate 112.1 960
Experience variances 47 4 46
Operating assumption changes 46 (4 3)
Investment income 5.2 34
EEV operating profit 496 5 376 5
Investment return variances 3442 190 4
Economuc assumphon changes 10.6 37
EEV profit before tax 8513 5632
Tax (169 8) (118 4)
Corporation tax rate change 18.9 216
EEV profit after tax 700 4 466 4

Note 1 New business contribution after tax 15 £261 7 milbon {2012 £218 3 million)

Registered No 03183415
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(d) Detailed analysis
In order to better explain the movement w capital flows, the components of the EEV profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 ave
shown separately between the movement in IFRS net assets and the present value of the 1n-force business (VIF) 1n the table below All
figures are shown net of tax o
Movement 5
m IFRS Movement Movement )
Net Assets m YIF n EEY R
£' Million £ Malhion £' Mialkon
New business contribution {45.8) 307.6 261.8
Profit from extsting buspoess 191.4 (191 4) -
Unwind of discount rate - 89.6 83 6
Expertence variances 413 (11.3) 30.0
Operating assumption changes (5:0 90 40 -
Investment return 42 - 4.2 3
Investment return variances i84 2571 275.5 :=:
Economic assumption changes 3.9 4.8 87 £
Mascellaneous {182) - (182 ::’
Corporation tax rate change - 189 18.9 z
EEV profit after tax 190.2 484.3 674.5 ]
The comparative figures for 2012 are as follows
Movement
in IFRS Movemant Movement
Net Assets n VIF in EEV o
£ Million &' Mullion £ Milioo ;:}
New business contrbution (67 8) 286 1 2183 o
Profit from existing busmess 160 3 (160 3) - 3,
Unwind of discount rate - 758 758 3
Experience variances 173 o 4) 79 g
Operating assumption changes 10 “4 (34 g
Investment return 28 - 28
Investment return varances 10 4 1397 1501
Economc assumptton changes (6 6) 35 31
Miscellaneous (10 3) — (10 3)
- 216 216

COI‘POl‘atIO‘n tax rate change

EEV profit after tax 107 1 3526 4597
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Notes to the Eliropean Embedded Value Basis

continued

V. EEV SENSITIVITIES

The table below shows the esimated 1mpact on the combined life and umit trust reported value of new business and EEV to changes in
key assumptions The sensiivities are specified by the EEV prinaiples and reflect reasonably possible levels of change In each case, only
the indicated item 15 varied relative to the restated values

Changc m

Change 1n new business EE:;:E;:E

contribution Yaluc

Notes Pre-tax Post-tax Post-tax

£ Milhon £' Malhon £' Mallion

Value at 31 December 2013 3272 265 7 2,964.1

100bp reduction in risk free rates, with corresponding change in

fixed interest asset values 1 349 (2 8) (6 0)

10% reduction 1n withdrawal rates 2 29 2 23 4 155 7

10% reduction 1n expenses 58 46 295

10% reduction 1n market value of equity assets 3 - - (276 8)
5% reducton 1n mortality and morbidity 4 — - _
100bp 1ncrease 1n equity expected returns 5 — - _
100bp inerease 1n assumed inflabon 6 S0 (4 0) (20 8)

Note 1 Ths is the key economic basis change senmtivity The business model ;3 relatively nsensitive to change in econemicbanis Note that the sznntmty assumes
corresponding change in all investment returns but po change in mfauon

Note 2 The 10% reduction 13 apphed to the lapse rate For instance, 1f the lapse vate 13 8% then a 10% senamtivity reduction would reflect a change 0o 7 2%

Note 3 Fer the purposes of this required sensmtrvity, all umit Linked funds are assumed to be invested in equines The actus] mix of assets varaes and 1o recent years the proportion
1mvested directly in UK and overseas equities has exceeded 70%

Note 4 Assumes the benefit of lower expenence 15 passed o to clients and reassurers at the earhest opportunity

Note 5 As a market~consistent approach 1s used, equity expected returns only affect the derived discount rates and not the embedded value or cantnbution to profit fram new business
Note § Assumed inflation 15 set by reference to 10 year index hinked galt vields

Change in

Enropean

Change 1n new business Embedded

contribution Value

Pre-tax Post-tax Post-tax

£' Milhon £ Milkon £' Mallion

100bp reduction in risk discount rate 412 330 205 2

Although not directly relevant under a market-consistent valuation, this sensitivity shows the level of adjustment which would be
required to reflect differing mvestor views of risk

VI EARNINGS PER SHARE

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2013 2012

Pence Pence

Basic earmings per share 132 4 92 4
Diluted earmngs per share 130.1 50 8
Operating profit basic earmngs per share 729 585
Operaning profit diluted earnings per share 716 575

Regustercd No 03183415
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The earnngs per share calculations are based on the following figures

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
£ Milhon £ Malhion
Earnings
Profit after tax (for both basic and diluted EPS) 6745 4597
Operating profit after tax (for both basic and diluted EPS) 3715 291 0
Mathon Mullion
Weighted average number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue (for basic EPS) 509 4 4977
Adjustments for outstanding share options 92 8BS
Werghted average number of ordinary shares ( for diluted EPS) 518 6 506 2
VII. RECONCILIATION OF IFRS AND EEV PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND NET ASSETS
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
£' Millxon £’ Million
IFRS profit before tax 461 2 251 8
Tax attmbutable to pehcyholder returns {270 5) (117 2)
Profit before shareholder tax 1907 134 6
Add back amortisation of acquired value in-force business 3.2 32
Movement 1n hfe value of mn-force (net of tax) 3601 273 4
Movement 11 unit trust value of in-force {net of tax) 122.8 777
Tax gross up of movement i value in-force 1407 637
EEV profit before tax 817.5 5526
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
£ Million £ Million
IFRS net assets 506.1 762 5
Less acqured value of in-force (400) (43 2)
Add deferred tax on acquired value of ma-force 8.0 99
Add hfe value of in-force 1,583 7 1,223 6
Add umit trust value of in-force 506 3 3835
EEV net assets 2,964.1 2,336 3
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis

continued

YIIL. RECONCILIATION OF LIFE COMPANY FREE ASSETS TO CONSOLIDATED GROUP EQUITY AND ANALYSIS OF
MOVEMENT IN FREE ASSETS

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Mallion £’ Malhen

Life company estimated free assets 2349 155 7
Estimated required life company seolvency capital 493 43 8
Other submidianies, consolidation and IFRS adjustments 6219 5630
IFRS net assets 906 1 7625
31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Milhon £ Milhon

Life company estimated free assets at I January 1557 122 3
Investment 1n new business (287) (64 4)
Profit from existing business 157.0 120 8
Dmidends pad (47.0) (25 0)
Investment return 34 24
Movement 1 required solvency capital (55) 04
Life company estimated free assets at 31 December 234.9 1557

Registered No 03183415
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Shareholder Information

ANALYSIS OF NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS

Amnalysis by Number of Shares Holders Y% Shares held %
1-999 2,388 43 46 914,629 018
1,000 ~ 9,999 2,274 4144 6,876,041 133
10,000 — 99,999 523 952 16,292,127 316
100,000 and above 306 558 491,133,186 95 33
5,488 100 00 515,215,983 100 00
2014 FINANCIAL CALENDAR
Ex-dividend date for final dividend Wednesday, 9 April 2014
Record date for final dividend Friday, 11 April 2014
Announcement of first quarter new business Tuesday, 29 April 2014
Annual General Meeting Wednesday, 14 May 2014
Payment date for final dividend Fnday, 16 May 2014
Announcement of Interim Results and second quarter new business Tuesday, 29 July 2014
Ex-dividend date for mnterim divadend ‘Wednesday, 27 August 2014
Record date for mterim divadend Friday, 25 August 2014
Payment date for interim dividend ‘Wednesday, 24 September 2014
Announcement of third quarter new business Thursday, 30 October 2014

The above dates are subject to change and further information on the 2014 financal calendar can be found on the Company's websrte,
www s]p co uk

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

The Directors mtroduced a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP) during 2012 If you would prefer to recesve new shares instead of cash
dividends, please complete a Dividend Rermbursement Plan (DRP) mandate form, wiich 15 available from our Regstrars,
Computershare Investor Services PLC Their contact details are on page 179

SHARE DEALING

A telephone share deahing service has been established with the Registrars, Computershare Investor Services PLC, which provides
shareholders with a smple way of buying or selling §t James's Place ple shares on the London Stock Exchange If you are 1nterested
this service telephone 0870 703 0084

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS
If you would like to have access to shareholder communications such as the Annual Report and the Notice of General Meeting through

the internet rather than receive them by post, please register at www etreeuk com/stjamesplace

An internet share dealing service 1s also available Further information about this section can be obtained by logging on to
www computershare com/investor/sharedeahng

Registered No 03183415
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How to Contact Us and Advisers

HOW TO CONTACT US

Registered Office

St James’s Place House
1 Tetbury Road
Cirencester

GL7 1FP

Tel 01285 640302
Fax 01285 640436
www §)p co uk

Chairman
Sarah Bates

emal c/o hugh gladman(@s)p co uk

Chief Executave
David Bellamy
email david bellamy@sp co uk

Chief Financial Officer
Andrew Croft
email andrew croft@s)p co uk

Company Secretary
Hugh Gladman
emall hugh gladman@s)p co uk

Customer Service

Whll Alterman

Tel 01285 878352

Fax 01285 878111

emal will alterman(@syp co uk

Analyst Enquuries

Andrew Croft

Tel 01285878079

Fax 01285 657208

email andrew croft@sp co uk

Media Enquiries

Bell Portinger

Tel 020 7861 3917

emal SJP@Bell-Pottinger com

ADVISERS

Bankers

Bank of Scotland
150 Fountainbridge
Edmburgh

EH3 SPE

Barclays Bank PLC
1 Churchall Place
London

E14 SHP

The Royal Bank of Scotland
135 Bishopsgate

London

EC2M 3UR

Brokers

JPMorgan Cazenove Limited
25 Bank Street

London

El4 5P

Bank of America Merrill Lynch
2 King Edward Street

London

ECiA 1HQ

Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
31 Great George Street

Bristol

BS1 5QD

Registrars & Transfer Office
Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions

Bristol

BS99 622

email web quertes({@computershare co uk
Tel 0870 702 0197

www computershare com
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St. James’s Place Partnership Locations

Aberdeen

3 Queens Gate
Aberdeen
AB15 5YL

Mark Wyllie
0122 420 2400

Belfast

St James’s Place House
14 Cromac Place
Belfast

BT72]B

Gerry Qunn
Tel 028 5072 6500

Bnistol

Beech House
Brotherswood Court
Great Park Road
Bradley Stoke
Bristol

B332 4QW

George Hills
Tel 01454 618700

Caty

St James’s Place House
3 Moorgate Place
Londen

EC2R 6EA

Simon Coll
Tel 020 7638 2400

Edinburgh

Melwille House

18 — 22 Melwille Street
Edinburgh

EH3 7NS

Steve Herkes
Tel 0131 459 9200

Elstree

St James’s Place House
5 QOaks Court
Warwick Road
Borehamwood

Herts

WD6 1GS

Mark Newman
Tel 020 8207 4000

Glasgow

Minerva House

131 — 133 Munerva Street
Glasgow

G3 8LE

John Noble
Tel 0141 304 1700

Hanmualton Place
11 Hamilton Place
Mayfair

London

W1] 7DR

Nick Brett
Tel 020 7455 1771

Kingsway
3rd Floor
York House
23 Kingsway
London

WC2B 6U]

Nigel Preston
Tel 0207744 1600

Leeds

2nd Floor
Chancellor Court
The Calls

Leeds

L52 7EH

Richard Balmforth
Tel 0113 244 4054

Liverpool

5th Floor
Martins Bulding
‘Water Street
Liverpool

12 38X

John Ronan
Tel 0151 224 8700

Manchester
7th Floor
Sunhght House
Lattle Quay Street
Manchester

M3 3]Z

Frank Gorrie
Tel 0161 8349480

Newbury
Montague Court
London Road
Newbury

Berks

RG14 1JL

Chris Faerber
Tel 01635 582424

Newcastle

One Trinty Gardens
Broad Chare
Newcastle upon Tyne
NE! 2HF

Phuilip Pringle
Tel 0151 2605373

Nottingham

St James’s Place House
Castle Quay

Castle Boulevard
Nottingham

NG7 IFW

Richard Thompson
Tel 0115 924 2899

Prccadally
117 Piccadilly
London

wij 7ju

Damion Bradbury
Tel 0207399 6889

Solent

St James's Place House
1480 Parkway

Solent Business Park
Whtley

Fareham

Hants

POI15 7AF

Jason Flood
Tel 01485 881400

Sohhull

St James's Place House
Central Boulevard

Blythe Valley Business Park
Sharley

Solihull

B90 8AR

Sean McKillop
Tel 01217336733

Westerham
1st Floor
The Crown
London Road
Westerham
Kent

TNI16 1D]

Nick Froggatt
Tel 01955 561 606

Witham

Roslyn House

16 Newland Street
Witham

Essex

CMS8 2AQ

Paolo Payne
Tel 01376 501947

Regustered No Q3183415
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ST. JAMES’S PLACE
WEALTH MANAGEMENT

ST JAMES’S PLACE PLC

ST JAMES'S PLACE HOUSE

I TETBURY ROAD CIRENCESTER
GLOUCESTERSHIRE GL7 I1FP

T. 0800 (1 38 137

WWW.Sjp.co.uk




